
1 April 18, 2022 

 BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION 
PLANNING BOARD 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
AMENDED 

April 18, 2022 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES 

851 S. Eton 
7:30 P.M. 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Therese Longe, Mayor 

II. ROLL CALL
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk 

III. PUBLIC COMMENT
The City of Birmingham welcomes public comment limited at the Mayor’s discretion to allow for an efficient
meeting. The Commission will not participate in a question and answer session and will take no action on
any item not appearing on the posted agenda. The public can also speak to agenda items as they occur
when the presiding officer opens the floor to the public. When recognized by the presiding officer, state your
name for the record, and direct all comments or questions to the presiding officer.

IV. NEW BUSINESS
A. The Birmingham Plan 2040 – Second Draft Review

1. Resolution to direct the 2040 Plan consultant team to begin the preparation of
the third and final draft of The Birmingham Plan 2040.

V. COMMUNICATIONS
A. Zoning Protest Petition – Little San Francisco Neighborhood
B. Additional Communications Received

1. Email communications with Samuel Oh
2. Letter from Kathryn Gaines regarding the Rezoning of Oakland St.
3. Email Communication from Gina Russo regarding the Little San Francisco 

neighborhood 

VI. ADJOURN
Should you wish to participate in this meeting, you are invited to attend the meeting in person or 
virtually through ZOOM:   https://zoom.us/j/655079760       Meeting ID: 655 079 760  
You may also present your written statement to the City Commission, City of Birmingham, 151 Martin 
Street, P.O. Box 3001, Birmingham, Michigan 48012-3001 prior to the hearing. 

NOTICE:  Individuals requiring accommodations, such as mobility, visual, hearing, interpreter or other assistance, for 
effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk's Office at (248) 530-1880 (voice), or (248) 644-
5115 (TDD) at least one day in advance to request mobility, visual, hearing or other assistance.  
Las personas que requieren alojamiento, tales como servicios de interpretación, la participación efectiva en esta reunión 
deben ponerse en contacto con la Oficina del Secretario Municipal al (248) 530-1880 por lo menos el día antes de la 
reunión pública. (Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964). 

https://zoom.us/j/655079760
tel:%28248%29%20530-1880


 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Planning Division 
 
DATE:   April 18, 2022 
 
TO:   Thomas Markus, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Nicholas Dupuis, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Special Meeting - The Birmingham Plan 2040 – Second Draft 

Review   
 
 
INTRODUCTION: 
The Planning Board has been reviewing the second draft of the Birmingham Plan 2040 (“2040 
Plan”) since November 2021. At the end of the review schedule for the second draft of the 2040 
Plan, the City and the master plan team planned a joint meeting of the City Commission and 
Planning Board to finalize the review of the second draft.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Birmingham received the second draft of The Birmingham Plan 2040 (“the Plan”) in 
October 2021 after nearly 2 years of review and input. On October 11, 2021, the Plan was 
introduced to the City Commission and Planning Board at a joint meeting. During this meeting, 
City Staff and Planning Board members outlined a rough review timeline for the second draft that 
would consist of four meetings at the Planning Board, and at least one joint meeting of the Planning 
Board and City Commission to finalize the second draft and authorize distribution of the Plan for 
review by entities as required by state planning law. 
 
On October 13th, 2021, the Planning Board discussed a detailed review timeline for the second 
draft of the Plan, and requested a new Future Land Use Map document to better guide the four 
review meetings. At this meeting, the Planning Board adopted the following public review timeline: 
 

• November 10, 2021 - Introduction, Future Land Use Map, and Chapter 1 (Connecting 
the City) 

• December 8, 2021 – Chapter 2 (Embrace Managed Growth) 
• January 12, 2022 – Chapter 3 (Retain Neighborhood Quality) 
• February 9, 2022 – Chapter 4 (Support Mixed-Use Districts) and Chapter 5 (Advance 

Sustainability Practices) 
 

On November 10th, 2021, the Planning Board started the review of the second draft of the Plan 
with the Introduction, Future Land Use Map, and Chapter 1. During the review, the Planning Board 
generally commended the consultant team for addressing many of their directions from the review 
of draft one. The board also discussed an array of topics including various multimodal issues, 
suggestions for the Future Land Use Map, and commercial destinations. 
 
On December 8th, 2021, the Planning Board continued the review with Chapter 2. During the 



review, the Planning Board provided comments on specific areas of the City in regards to seams, 
and also provided feedback regarding commercial destinations and ADU’s. Several of the new 
maps provided by City Staff were also discussed in detail. 
 
On January 12, 2021, the Planning Board engaged in a lively discussion around neighborhood 
quality, and provided many comments to the consultant team ranging from house and site design 
to sidewalk width.   
 
On February 9, 2022, the Planning Board wrapped up its review of the content of the 2040 Master 
Plan with chapters 4 & 5. A robust discussion was had regarding several areas of the City. In 
addition, much support was given towards the consultants approach to sustainability, as well as 
the formation of a sustainability board. 
 
On March 9, 2022, the master plan consultant team presented a summary of recommendations 
and prioritization for the Planning Board to review in order to provide clear direction for the third 
and final draft.  
 
On March 28, 2022, the City Commission moved to set a special meeting date to finalize the review 
of the second draft. 
 
LEGAL REVIEW: 
The City Attorney has reviewed this request and resolution and has no objections as to form and 
content. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There are no fiscal impacts for this agenda item. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
Public communications for the review of the second draft have been provided through regular 
constant contact emails, monthly newsletters, and flyers posted around City Hall. In addition, the 
schedule has been presented at each review at the Planning Board, and has been available on 
www.thebirminghamplan.com since October 2021. 
 
SUMMARY: 
The Planning Division requests that the City Commission direct the 2040 Plan consultant team to 
begin the preparation of the third and final draft of The Birmingham Plan 2040.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Please find attached the following documents for your review: 

 
• DPZ 2nd Draft Master Plan Recommendations Summary 
• Planning Division Reports 
• Maps/Attachments 
• Article III, Michigan Planning Enabling Act 
• Meeting Minutes 
• DPZ Presentation Slides 
• The Birmingham Plan 2040 – 2nd Draft 

 

http://www.thebirminghamplan.com/


SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting a resolution to direct the 2040 Plan consultant team to begin the 
preparation of the third and final draft of The Birmingham Plan 2040. 
 



April 11, 2022 

City Commission and Planning Board Members 
City of Birmingham 
151 Martin St. 
Birmingham, MI 48012 

2nd Draft Master Plan Recommendations Summary 
April 11, 2022 Joint City Commission and Planning Board Meeting 

Dear City Commission and Planning Board Members,

We have completed our master plan second draft review with the Planning Board and 
look forward to discussing the direction that has been received in the upcoming joint 
meeting. This letter includes a summary of Planning Board direction, which was 
discussed and updated following the March 22nd Planning Board meeting. Because 
prioritization is an important element of the final draft, we have also highlighted areas 
of broad prioritization to direct our work in that portion of the plan. 

Between the first and second drafts, we have focused the plan and have removed 
supportive information or flagged it for inclusion in appendixes, following the direction 
of both the City Commission and Planning Board. We have also reorganized the 
document to reflect the areas of focus that were expressed during the first draft 
review. During the second draft review, we have discussed refinements to the plan 
details, direction, mapping, and narrative content, while retaining the majority of 
recommendations that carried through to the second draft. We seek your assistance 
to verify and further direct our upcoming work towards a final draft of the master plan. 

General Direction

1. The Master Plan should provide clear prioritization of recommendations. (carry 
over from draft 1, see below) Additionally, ensure clarity about what is 
important, why, and emphasize priorities. 

2. Various adjustments to language in places, including revisions to the 
introduction. Move some remaining longer discussion items to appendixes. 

Page  of 1 4

ndupuis
Highlight



3. FLUM adjustments: 

1. Include detail on zoning district intensities - ranges in lot size or density - an 
improve the nomenclature (e.g. intensities can be misleading). 

2. Various corrections (Greenwood cemetery, seam locations removed near Ann 
St and added along Southfield, incurred Derby Well location) 

4. More consistently use a generalized scope for discussion and 
recommendations, with recognition that some items may require greater 
specificity but that should not be typical. 

5. Feature schools as a key component supporting neighborhood cohesion and 
quality, and accommodating additional housing in the mixed-use areas. 

6. Include dual-use of school facilities, in addition to their yards, as a civic feature. 

7. Include a gateway or similar component at Maple and Big Woodward, which 
may or may not be a circle, but should be studied as an important moment and 
gateway to the city center. 

8. For Woodward crossings, specify the comment elements that should be present 
at all crossings, such as consistent pedestrian countdown signals. 

9. Don’t focus on the loop concept. It can be prioritized in multimodal facilities but 
is not a central focus. 

10. Separate the cafes in parks from neighborhood commercial destinations as the 
two are quite different in scale and impact. Cafes should be a permitted use in 
parks with recommended locations, and be implemented in a Parks & Rec plan 
update. 

11. More coordination on the parks chart and recommendations, include senior 
amenities. 

12. While Worth Park is important for the Triangle District, Torry requires additional 
park space. 

13. Religious institutions should be included in addition to schools as it related to 
formal recreational facility relationships. 

Page  of 2 4



14. Stage the tree canopy recommendations, add the climate resilience 
recommendations to the main text on tree canopies. 

15. Converting public property to private use requires study, in reference both to 
Haynes Square and Southfield Road frontages. 

16. Identify the need to focus on attainability of new housing in mixed-use districts. 

17. Clarify that ADUs are for committee study. 

18. Clarify why zoning reform should be pursued on a neighborhood by 
neighborhood basis to preserve character. 

19. Coordinate EV charging recommendations. 

20. Investigate golf carts as part of future mobility planning. 

21. Get clarity on the 20mph residential street possibilities, add other traffic calming 
recommendations. 

22. Shared space streets should be studied along with social districts. Merrill may 
be the right street, but Pierce and others may as well. The master plan should 
direct the study of these subjects, not necessarily a single solution. 

23. Study the Market District parking & farmers’ market alongside the Bates Street 
extension. 

24. Add intergovernmental cooperation to sustainability recommendations. 

Prioritization

1. Zoning code reform aimed at neighborhood preservation, simplification, and 
clarity. 

2. Big Woodward speed, safety, and crossing improvements, many of which are 
revisions to the multi-modal plan. 

3. Implementing unimproved streets recommendations. 

4. Unbundling downtown parking to encourage new housing, requires study to tie 
with attainable housing goals. 

Page  of 3 4



5. Study a new senior center. 

6. Market North District recommendations, including a solution for the Bates Street 
extension. 

7. Lower Rail District recommendations. 

8. Implement Worth Park and public parking in the Triangle District. 

9. Establishing the Sustainability Board. Refer to SEMCOG low impact initiatives. 

10. Rouge River naturalization and access improvements. 

11. Studying Haynes Square. 

We look forward to a discussion of this direction and to revising the Draft Master Plan; 
thank you. 

Regards,  

Matthew Lambert  

Cc: Nicholas Dupuis, Planning Director; Bob Gibbs, Gibbs Planning Group; Laura 
Haw, McKenna

Page  of 4 4



 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning Board Reports 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MEMORANDUM 
 

Planning Division 
 
DATE:   November 10th, 2021 
 
TO:   Planning Board 
 
FROM:  Nicholas Dupuis, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: The Birmingham Plan 2040 - Review of the Introduction, Future 

Land Use & Chapter One (Connect the City) 
 
 
The City of Birmingham received the second draft of The Birmingham Plan 2040 (“the Plan”) in 
October 2021 after nearly 2 years of review and input. On October 11th, 2021, the Plan was 
introduced to the City Commission and Planning Board at a joint meeting. During this meeting, 
City Staff and Planning Board members outlined a rough review timeline for the second draft that 
would consist of four meetings at the Planning Board, and at least one joint meeting of the 
Planning Board and City Commission to finalize the second draft and authorize distribution of the 
Plan for review by entities as required by state planning law. 

On October 13th, 2021, the Planning Board discussed a detailed review timeline for the second 
draft of the Plan, and requested a new Future Land Use Map document to better guide the four 
review meetings. At this meeting, the Planning Board adopted the following public review 
timeline: 

• November 10th, 2021 - Introduction, Future Land Use Map, and Chapter 1 (Connecting 
the City) 

• December 8th, 2021 – Chapter 2 (Embrace Managed Growth) 
• January 12th, 2022 – Chapter 3 (Retain Neighborhood Quality) 
• February 9th, 2022 – Chapter 4 (Support Mixed-Use Districts) and Chapter 5 (Advance 

Sustainability Practices) 

As a reminder, digital copies of the first and second draft of the Plan, frequently asked questions, 
Future Land Use Map, other documents pertaining to the review of the Plan, and a comment 
submission portal may be found on www.thebirminghamplan.com. In addition, you can find much 
of the same information, plus an online interactive Future Land Use Map on the Planning Division’s 
Citywide Master Plan webpage. You may also sign up for news and updates on the Plan (and 
other City business) through the City of Birmingham Constant Contact Service.  

Introduction, Future Land Use Map, and Chapter 1 (Connecting the City) 

Based on comments received at the October 11th and 13th meetings, the city and consultant team 
have provided several documents to aid the review process of the Introduction, Future Land Use 
Map, and Chapter 1 discussion (all documents attached to this memorandum): 

http://www.thebirminghamplan.com/
https://www.bhamgov.org/government/departments/planning/2019_city_master_plan.php
https://visitor.r20.constantcontact.com/manage/optin?v=001M3cgesz-8J8nt2BxnKCipq3r6WKexA41BU5B06Zzk8gBj02Beio8RE28QmSG09iCdaC4sKlN8M8_112F_x094w%3D%3D
ndupuis
Highlight



• DPZ summary letter of recommendations from the review of the first draft of the Plan 
• Frequently Asked Questions – October 2021 
• Updated Future Land Use Map – New color scheme, added street names 
• Map of proposed Future Land Use changes related to seams and commercial destinations. 
• Introduction, Future Land Use Map, and Chapter 1 (Connecting the City) 

The City has also received some public comments in the form of letters/emails that are attached 
to this report. As always, the City encourages public participation at each review meeting. Those 
who are unable to attend, or wish to provide any additional comments to the Planning Board are 
welcome to submit a letter or email to the Planning Director, Nicholas Dupuis 
(ndupuis@bhamgov.org), who will compile and submit all comments received to the Planning 
Board at the next available meeting.    

 



MEMORANDUM 
 

Planning Division 
 
DATE:   December 8, 2021 
 
TO:   Planning Board 
 
FROM:  Nicholas Dupuis, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: The Birmingham Plan 2040 - Review of Chapter Two (Embrace 

Managed Growth) 
 
 
Introduction/Summary 

The City of Birmingham received the second draft of The Birmingham Plan 2040 (“the Plan”) in 
October 2021 after nearly 2 years of review and input. On October 11th, 2021, the Plan was 
introduced to the City Commission and Planning Board at a joint meeting. During this meeting, 
City Staff and Planning Board members outlined a rough review timeline for the second draft that 
would consist of four meetings at the Planning Board, and at least one joint meeting of the 
Planning Board and City Commission to finalize the second draft and authorize distribution of the 
Plan for review by entities as required by state planning law. 

On October 13th, 2021, the Planning Board discussed a detailed review timeline for the second 
draft of the Plan, and requested a new Future Land Use Map document to better guide the four 
review meetings. At this meeting, the Planning Board adopted the following public review 
timeline: 

• November 10th, 2021 - Introduction, Future Land Use Map, and Chapter 1 (Connecting 
the City) 

• December 8th, 2021 – Chapter 2 (Embrace Managed Growth) 
• January 12th, 2022 – Chapter 3 (Retain Neighborhood Quality) 
• February 9th, 2022 – Chapter 4 (Support Mixed-Use Districts) and Chapter 5 (Advance 

Sustainability Practices) 

On November 8th, 2021, the Planning Board started the review of the second draft of the Plan 
with the Introduction, Future Land Use Map, and Chapter 1. During the review, the Planning 
Board generally commended the consultant team for addressing many of their directions from 
the review of draft one. The board also discussed an array of topics including various multimodal 
issues, suggestions for the Future Land Use Map, and commercial destinations. 

Chapter 2 – Embrace Managed Growth 

Similar to the review of Chapter 1, the Planning Division has included several documents in the 
packet to aid in the review of Chapter 2. Up to this point, the Planning Division has received no 
additional public comment to include. The following documents are attached for your reference: 

ndupuis
Highlight



• DPZ summary letter of recommendations from the review of the first draft of the Plan 
• Current draft of the Future Land Use Map 
• Current Zoning Map 
• Map series demonstrating changes from current Zoning Map to Future Land Use Map 
• Chapter 2 – Embrace Managed Growth 

Master Plan Access and Meeting Participation 

As a reminder, digital copies of the first and second draft of the Plan, presentation slides, 
frequently asked questions, Future Land Use Map, other documents pertaining to the review of 
the Plan, and a comment submission portal may be found on www.thebirminghamplan.com. In 
addition, you can find much of the same information, plus an online interactive Future Land Use 
Map on the Planning Division’s Citywide Master Plan webpage. You may also sign up for news 
and updates on the Plan (and other City business) through the City of Birmingham Constant 
Contact Service.  

Those who are unable to attend any of the review meeting, or wish to provide any additional 
comments to the Planning Board are welcome to submit a letter or email to the Planning Director, 
Nicholas Dupuis (ndupuis@bhamgov.org), who will compile and submit all comments received to 
the Planning Board at the next available meeting. 

 

http://www.thebirminghamplan.com/
https://www.bhamgov.org/government/departments/planning/2019_city_master_plan.php
https://visitor.r20.constantcontact.com/manage/optin?v=001M3cgesz-8J8nt2BxnKCipq3r6WKexA41BU5B06Zzk8gBj02Beio8RE28QmSG09iCdaC4sKlN8M8_112F_x094w%3D%3D
https://visitor.r20.constantcontact.com/manage/optin?v=001M3cgesz-8J8nt2BxnKCipq3r6WKexA41BU5B06Zzk8gBj02Beio8RE28QmSG09iCdaC4sKlN8M8_112F_x094w%3D%3D


MEMORANDUM 
 

Planning Division 
 
DATE:   January 12, 2022 
 
TO:   Planning Board 
 
FROM:  Nicholas Dupuis, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: The Birmingham Plan 2040 - Review of Chapter Three (Retain 

Neighborhood Quality) 
 
 
Introduction/Summary 

The City of Birmingham received the second draft of The Birmingham Plan 2040 (“the Plan”) in 
October 2021 after nearly 2 years of review and input. On October 11th, 2021, the Plan was 
introduced to the City Commission and Planning Board at a joint meeting. During this meeting, 
City Staff and Planning Board members outlined a rough review timeline for the second draft that 
would consist of four meetings at the Planning Board, and at least one joint meeting of the 
Planning Board and City Commission to finalize the second draft and authorize distribution of the 
Plan for review by entities as required by state planning law. 

On October 13th, 2021, the Planning Board discussed a detailed review timeline for the second 
draft of the Plan, and requested a new Future Land Use Map document to better guide the four 
review meetings. At this meeting, the Planning Board adopted the following public review 
timeline: 

• November 10th, 2021 - Introduction, Future Land Use Map, and Chapter 1 (Connecting 
the City) 

• December 8th, 2021 – Chapter 2 (Embrace Managed Growth) 
• January 12th, 2022 – Chapter 3 (Retain Neighborhood Quality) 
• February 9th, 2022 – Chapter 4 (Support Mixed-Use Districts) and Chapter 5 (Advance 

Sustainability Practices) 

On November 10th, 2021, the Planning Board started the review of the second draft of the Plan 
with the Introduction, Future Land Use Map, and Chapter 1. During the review, the Planning 
Board generally commended the consultant team for addressing many of their directions from 
the review of draft one. The board also discussed an array of topics including various multimodal 
issues, suggestions for the Future Land Use Map, and commercial destinations. 

On December 8th, 2021, the Planning Board continued the review with Chapter 2. During the 
review, the Planning Board provided comments on specific areas of the City in regards to seams, 
and also provided feedback regarding commercial destinations and ADU’s. Several of the new 
maps provided by City Staff were also discussed in detail. 

ndupuis
Highlight



Chapter 3 – Retain Neighborhood Quality 

Similar to the review of Chapters 1 and 2, the Planning Division has included several documents 
in the packet to aid in the review of Chapter 3. Up to this point, the Planning Division has received 
no additional public comment to include. The following documents are attached for your 
reference: 

• DPZ summary letter of recommendations from the review of the first draft of the Plan 
• Current draft of the Future Land Use Map 
• Current Zoning Map 
• Map series demonstrating changes from current Zoning Map to Future Land Use Map 
• Chapter 3 – Retain Neighborhood Quality 

Master Plan Access and Meeting Participation 

As a reminder, digital copies of the first and second draft of the Plan, presentation slides, 
frequently asked questions, Future Land Use Map, other documents pertaining to the review of 
the Plan, and a comment submission portal may be found on www.thebirminghamplan.com. In 
addition, you can find much of the same information, plus an online interactive Future Land Use 
Map on the Planning Division’s Citywide Master Plan webpage. You may also sign up for news 
and updates on the Plan (and other City business) through the City of Birmingham Constant 
Contact Service.  

Those who are unable to attend any of the review meeting, or wish to provide any additional 
comments to the Planning Board are welcome to submit a letter or email to the Planning Director, 
Nicholas Dupuis (ndupuis@bhamgov.org), who will compile and submit all comments received to 
the Planning Board at the next available meeting. 

 

http://www.thebirminghamplan.com/
https://www.bhamgov.org/government/departments/planning/2019_city_master_plan.php
https://visitor.r20.constantcontact.com/manage/optin?v=001M3cgesz-8J8nt2BxnKCipq3r6WKexA41BU5B06Zzk8gBj02Beio8RE28QmSG09iCdaC4sKlN8M8_112F_x094w%3D%3D
https://visitor.r20.constantcontact.com/manage/optin?v=001M3cgesz-8J8nt2BxnKCipq3r6WKexA41BU5B06Zzk8gBj02Beio8RE28QmSG09iCdaC4sKlN8M8_112F_x094w%3D%3D


MEMORANDUM 
 

Planning Division 
 
DATE:   February 9, 2022 
 
TO:   Planning Board Members 
 
FROM:  Nicholas Dupuis, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: The Birmingham Plan 2040 - Review of Chapter Four (Support 

Mixed-Use Districts) & Chapter 5 (Advance Sustainability 
Pratices) 

 
 
Introduction/Summary 

The City of Birmingham received the second draft of The Birmingham Plan 2040 (“the Plan”) in 
October 2021 after nearly 2 years of review and input. On October 11th, 2021, the Plan was 
introduced to the City Commission and Planning Board at a joint meeting. During this meeting, 
City Staff and Planning Board members outlined a rough review timeline for the second draft that 
would consist of four meetings at the Planning Board, and at least one joint meeting of the 
Planning Board and City Commission to finalize the second draft and authorize distribution of the 
Plan for review by entities as required by state planning law. 

On October 13th, 2021, the Planning Board discussed a detailed review timeline for the second 
draft of the Plan, and requested a new Future Land Use Map document to better guide the four 
review meetings. At this meeting, the Planning Board adopted the following public review 
timeline: 

• November 10th, 2021 - Introduction, Future Land Use Map, and Chapter 1 (Connecting 
the City) 

• December 8th, 2021 – Chapter 2 (Embrace Managed Growth) 
• January 12th, 2022 – Chapter 3 (Retain Neighborhood Quality) 
• February 9th, 2022 – Chapter 4 (Support Mixed-Use Districts) and Chapter 5 (Advance 

Sustainability Practices) 

On November 10th, 2021, the Planning Board started the review of the second draft of the Plan 
with the Introduction, Future Land Use Map, and Chapter 1. During the review, the Planning 
Board generally commended the consultant team for addressing many of their directions from 
the review of draft one. The board also discussed an array of topics including various multimodal 
issues, suggestions for the Future Land Use Map, and commercial destinations. 

On December 8th, 2021, the Planning Board continued the review with Chapter 2. During the 
review, the Planning Board provided comments on specific areas of the City in regards to seams, 

ndupuis
Highlight



and also provided feedback regarding commercial destinations and ADU’s. Several of the new 
maps provided by City Staff were also discussed in detail. 

On January 12, 2021, the Planning Board engaged in a lively discussion around neighborhood 
quality, and provided many comments to the consultant team ranging from house and site design 
to sidewalk width.   

Chapters 4 (Support Mixed-Use Districts) & 5 (Advance Sustainability Practices)  

Similar to the review of other chapters, the Planning Division has included several documents in 
the packet to aid in the review of Chapter 3. Up to this point, the Planning Division has received 
no additional public comment to include. The following documents are attached for your 
reference: 

• DPZ summary letter of recommendations from the review of the first draft of the Plan 
• Current draft of the Future Land Use Map 
• Current Zoning Map 
• Map series demonstrating changes from current Zoning Map to Future Land Use Map 
• Chapters 4 & 5 

In addition to the review of the final chapters, the Planning Division has worked with the 
consultant team to consider adding a review session at the Planning Board level. The purpose of 
this his additional session would be to summarize the review of the second draft, and to prioritize 
the recommendations that are forwarded to the City Commission for the eventual joint meeting 
before preparation of the third and final draft. At this time, the Planning Division recommends 
that the Planning Board consider WEDNESDAY, MARCH 9 for this final Planning Board review. 

Master Plan Access and Meeting Participation 

As a reminder, digital copies of the first and second draft of the Plan, presentation slides, 
frequently asked questions, Future Land Use Map, other documents pertaining to the review of 
the Plan, and a comment submission portal may be found on www.thebirminghamplan.com. In 
addition, you can find much of the same information, plus an online interactive Future Land Use 
Map on the Planning Division’s Citywide Master Plan webpage. You may also sign up for news 
and updates on the Plan (and other City business) through the City of Birmingham Constant 
Contact Service.  

Those who are unable to attend any of the review meeting, or wish to provide any additional 
comments to the Planning Board are welcome to submit a letter or email to the Planning Director, 
Nicholas Dupuis (ndupuis@bhamgov.org), who will compile and submit all comments received to 
the Planning Board at the next available meeting. 

 

http://www.thebirminghamplan.com/
https://www.bhamgov.org/government/departments/planning/2019_city_master_plan.php
https://visitor.r20.constantcontact.com/manage/optin?v=001M3cgesz-8J8nt2BxnKCipq3r6WKexA41BU5B06Zzk8gBj02Beio8RE28QmSG09iCdaC4sKlN8M8_112F_x094w%3D%3D
https://visitor.r20.constantcontact.com/manage/optin?v=001M3cgesz-8J8nt2BxnKCipq3r6WKexA41BU5B06Zzk8gBj02Beio8RE28QmSG09iCdaC4sKlN8M8_112F_x094w%3D%3D


MEMORANDUM 
 

Planning Division 
 
DATE:   March 9, 2022 
 
TO:   Planning Board Members 
 
FROM:  Nicholas Dupuis, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: The Birmingham Plan 2040 – 2nd Draft Review – Summary of 

Recommendations 
 
 
Introduction/Summary 

The City of Birmingham received the second draft of The Birmingham Plan 2040 (“the Plan”) in 
October 2021 after nearly 2 years of review and input. On October 11th, 2021, the Plan was 
introduced to the City Commission and Planning Board at a joint meeting. During this meeting, 
City Staff and Planning Board members outlined a rough review timeline for the second draft that 
would consist of four meetings at the Planning Board, and at least one joint meeting of the 
Planning Board and City Commission to finalize the second draft and authorize distribution of the 
Plan for review by entities as required by state planning law. 

On October 13th, 2021, the Planning Board discussed a detailed review timeline for the second 
draft of the Plan, and requested a new Future Land Use Map document to better guide the four 
review meetings. At this meeting, the Planning Board adopted the following public review 
timeline: 

• November 10th, 2021 - Introduction, Future Land Use Map, and Chapter 1 (Connecting 
the City) 

• December 8th, 2021 – Chapter 2 (Embrace Managed Growth) 
• January 12th, 2022 – Chapter 3 (Retain Neighborhood Quality) 
• February 9th, 2022 – Chapter 4 (Support Mixed-Use Districts) and Chapter 5 (Advance 

Sustainability Practices) 

On November 10th, 2021, the Planning Board started the review of the second draft of the Plan 
with the Introduction, Future Land Use Map, and Chapter 1. During the review, the Planning 
Board generally commended the consultant team for addressing many of their directions from 
the review of draft one. The board also discussed an array of topics including various multimodal 
issues, suggestions for the Future Land Use Map, and commercial destinations. 

On December 8th, 2021, the Planning Board continued the review with Chapter 2. During the 
review, the Planning Board provided comments on specific areas of the City in regards to seams, 
and also provided feedback regarding commercial destinations and ADU’s. Several of the new 
maps provided by City Staff were also discussed in detail. 

ndupuis
Highlight



On January 12, 2021, the Planning Board engaged in a lively discussion around neighborhood 
quality, and provided many comments to the consultant team ranging from house and site design 
to sidewalk width.   

On February 9, 2022, the Planning Board wrapped up its review of the content of the 2040 Master 
Plan with chapters 4 & 5. A robust discussion was had regarding several areas of the City. In 
addition, much support was given towards the consultants approach to sustainability, as well as 
the formation of a sustainability board. 

Finally, it was agreed upon that the consultants should come back for an additional meeting at 
the Planning Board to summarize the direction given, and to add any last-minute direction that 
would help in the creation of the 3rd and final draft. The Planning Board agreed to hold this extra 
session on March 9, 2022 to keep the 2040 Plan moving forward. 

2nd Draft Review – Summary of Recommendations  

Similar to the end of the 1st draft review, the consultant team has prepared a summary document 
of recommendations based on their notes from each review session. The summary document is 
attached to this report. Up to this point, the Planning Division has received no additional public 
comment to include.  

In addition to this final session at the Planning Board for the 2nd draft, a joint meeting of the 
Planning Board and City Commission must be scheduled to finalize the 2nd draft and distribute to 
adjoining communities and other entities consistent with the Michigan Planning and Zoning 
Enabling Act for their review. At the time of this report, the following dates could be considered: 

• Monday March 21, 2022 
• Monday April 4, 2022 
• Monday April 18, 2022 

Please note that these dates are subject to the availability of City Commission members, Planning 
Board members, City Staff, and the consultant team. City Staff will consult with the necessary 
parties and finalize a date as soon as feasible. 

Master Plan Access and Meeting Participation 

As a reminder, digital copies of the first and second draft of the Plan, presentation slides, 
frequently asked questions, Future Land Use Map, other documents pertaining to the review of 
the Plan, and a comment submission portal may be found on www.thebirminghamplan.com. In 
addition, you can find much of the same information, plus an online interactive Future Land Use 
Map on the Planning Division’s Citywide Master Plan webpage. You may also sign up for news 
and updates on the Plan (and other City business) through the City of Birmingham Constant 
Contact Service.  

Those who are unable to attend any of the review meeting, or wish to provide any additional 
comments to the Planning Board are welcome to submit a letter or email to the Planning Director, 
Nicholas Dupuis (ndupuis@bhamgov.org), who will compile and submit all comments received to 
the Planning Board at the next available meeting. 

 

http://www.thebirminghamplan.com/
https://www.bhamgov.org/government/departments/planning/2019_city_master_plan.php
https://visitor.r20.constantcontact.com/manage/optin?v=001M3cgesz-8J8nt2BxnKCipq3r6WKexA41BU5B06Zzk8gBj02Beio8RE28QmSG09iCdaC4sKlN8M8_112F_x094w%3D%3D
https://visitor.r20.constantcontact.com/manage/optin?v=001M3cgesz-8J8nt2BxnKCipq3r6WKexA41BU5B06Zzk8gBj02Beio8RE28QmSG09iCdaC4sKlN8M8_112F_x094w%3D%3D


 
 
 
 
 
 

Maps/Attachments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



March 4, 2022 

Planning Board Members 
City of Birmingham 
151 Martin St. 
Birmingham, MI 48012 

2st Draft Master Plan Recommendations Summary 
March 9, 2022 Planning Board Meeting 

Dear Planning Board Members,

We’ve wrapped up our second draft review of the master plan with efficiency and 
greater focus. This is thanks to your direction regarding the first draft, and the work 
everyone contributed towards the second. We now reflect upon the general direction 
provided to our team by the Planning Board to move from a second to final draft. This 
letter includes a summary of that general direction from our meeting notes, which do 
include more specific details which we will consult during our revision process. 
Because prioritization is an important element of the final draft, we have also 
highlighted some elements of the plan which resonated as priorities through this 
second draft review. These are presented in a preliminary order for your reaction. 

During the March 9th meeting, we would like to affirm the general direction and 
discuss priorities. In addition, a few items from your first round of recommendations 
should be considered for inclusion’ these appear at the end of this document for your 
consideration. Additional items not fully addressed from the first round of 
recommendations have been discussed through this review process and sufficient 
direction has been provided.

General Direction

1. The Master Plan should provide clear prioritization of recommendations. (carry 
over from draft 1, see below) 

2. Various adjustments to language in places, including revisions to the 
introduction. Move some longer discussion items to appendixes. 

Page  of 1 4

ndupuis
Highlight



3. FLUM adjustments: 

1. Include detail on zoning district intensities - ranges in lot size or density - an 
improve the nomenclature (e.g. intensities can be misleading). 

2. Various corrections (Greenwood cemetery, seam locations removed near Ann 
St and added along Southfield, incurred Derby Well location) 

4. More consistently use a generalized scope for discussion and 
recommendations, with recognition that some items may require greater 
specificity but that should not be typical. 

5. For Woodward crossings, specify the comment elements that should be present 
at all crossings, such as consistent pedestrian countdown signals. 

6. Don’t focus on the loop concept. It can be prioritized in multimodal facilities but 
is not a central focus. 

7. Separate the cafes in parks from neighborhood commercial destinations as the 
two are quite different in scale and impact. Cafes should be a permitted use in 
parks with recommended locations, and be implemented in a Parks & Rec plan 
update. 

8. More coordination on the parks chart and recommendations, include senior 
amenities. 

9. While Worth Park is important for the Triangle District, Torry requires additional 
park space. 

10. Religious institutions should be included in addition to schools as it related to 
formal recreational facility relationships. 

11. Stage the tree canopy recommendations, add the climate resilience 
recommendations to the main text on tree canopies. 

12. Identify the need to focus on attainability of new housing in mixed-use districts. 

13. Clarify that ADUs are for committee study. 

Page  of 2 4



14. Clarify why zoning reform should be pursued on a neighborhood by 
neighborhood basis to preserve character. 

15. Coordinate EV charging recommendations. 

16. Investigate golf carts as part of future mobility planning. 

17. Get clarity on the 20mph residential street possibilities, add other traffic calming 
recommendations. 

18. Shared space streets should be studied along with social districts. Merrill may 
be the right street, but Pierce and others may as well. The master plan should 
direct the study of these subjects, not necessarily a single solution. 

19. Study the Market District parking & farmers’ market alongside the Bates Street 
extension. 

20. Add intergovernmental cooperation to sustainability recommendations. 

Prioritization

1. Big Woodward speed, safety, and crossing improvements. 

2. Market North and Lower Rail District recommendations as they are achievable in 
the near term. 

3. Establishing the Sustainability Board. Refer to SEMCOG low impact initiatives. 

4. Unbundling downtown parking, requires study to tie with attainable housing 
goals. 

5. Rouge River naturalization and access improvements. 

6. Implementing unimproved streets recommendations. 

7. Updating the zoning code. 

8. Studying Haynes Square. 

Further Direction Needed

Page  of 3 4



1. Woodward circle. Some members have recommended removal as has been 
achieved in the second draft, others have requested that the circle concept, or 
something similar, be revisited. 

2. Prominently feature schools. We had included schools as part of the population 
diversity discussion. Reducing the scope of seams has affected the opportunity 
with which this plan can affect issues of school populations. 

3. Consider future of golf courses. The courses are currently self-sufficient and are 
not particularly good locations to accommodate other uses, being generally 
disconnected from the larger community. 

We look forward to a discussion of this direction and to revising the Draft Master Plan; 
thank you. 

Regards,  

Matthew Lambert  

Cc: Nicholas Dupuis, Planning Director; Bob Gibbs, Gibbs Planning Group; Sarah 
Traxler, McKenna

Page  of 4 4



Elm St

Hazel St

Bowers St

Forest Ave

S W
orth St

Haynes St

Chestnut St

Landon St

Gra ntS t

Woodward Ave

_̂̂_ _̂

_̂
_̂
_̂_̂

_̂ _̂
_̂

_̂
_̂
_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

Woodward Ave
Park St

S Bates St

Martin St

George St

Willits St

Bowers St

S Wort hSt

E Brown St

E Frank St

Hamilton Ave

Brookside Ave

Wimbleton Dr

Peabody St

E Merrill
St

Ra vine
Rd

Hazel St

Woodward Ave

_̂̂_ _̂

_̂

_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂ _̂
_̂

_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂

_̂
_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!!!!!!

!

! ! !

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! !
!

!

!

!

!
! !

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

kj

Ash
for

d Ln

Lyonhurst Rd

Peabody St

Maple Hill Ln

Dunsta
ble Rd

Brandon Rd

Tooting Ln

Fairway Dr

Carrollwood Ct

Valleyview Ln

Graefield Rd

Hilltop Ln
Ct

Fairfax Ave

Suffield Ave

Haynes Ave

Tau nto
n R

d

Woodlea Rd

Millrace Rd

Po
pp

let
on

 Av
e

Baldwin Ave

Aten Ct

Warren Ct

Lin
co

ln 
Ct

L in den Rd

Merritt Ln

Hanley Ct

Wa
rw

ick
 D

r

Kenwood Ct

ChesterfieldA ve

Abbey Rd

Cr
an

br
oo

k R
d

Pembroke Ct

Gr
ae

fie
ld 

Ct

Larchlea Dr

Westchester Way

As
pe

nR
d

Ruffner Ave

Ce
da

r D
r

We
lle

sle
y D

r

Humphrey Ave

Westboro Rd

Pilgrim Ave

Lakeside Rd

Davis Ave

Yorkshire Rd

Dorchester Rd

Windemere Rd

Buckingham Rd

Manchester Rd

Pembroke Rd

Southlawn Dr

Brookw o od

Sh
ipm

an
 B

lvd

Bi
rm

ing
ha

m 
Bl

vd

Ma
ryl

an
d B

lvd

Wa
sh

ing
ton

 B
lvd

St
an

ley
 D

r

Emmons Ave

Fairview Ave

Bowers St

Humphrey Rd

Holland Ave

Dewe y St

Yosemite Blvd

Access

Mohegan Ave

Colonial Ct

Strathmore Rd

Daines St

Banbury RdBennaville Ave

Melbourne Ave

Putney Dr

SWorthS t

Winthrop Ln

Bird Ave

Gordon Ln

Smith Ave

Shirley
Dr

Chapin Ave

Devon Ln

B lo o m f ie l d C t

Baldw in
Ct

ArdenLn

E Merrill St

Cl
ark

 St

Flo
yd

 St

Cheltenham Rd

Forest Ave

Bonnie Brier Ave

G
r a te n

S t

Hazelwood Ave

Wallace St

Woodland Ave

Greenwood Ave

Golfview Blvd

BrooksideAve

Lakeview Ave

Wi llitsAlley

Willow Ln

Ch
err

y C
t

WoodlandVill a Ct

Hill Side
Dr

Commerce St

Arl ington Rd

Be
rw

yn
Rd

No
rfolk Dr

Old Salem Ct

Tottenham Rd

Lawndale Ave

Fourteen Mile Rd

Chestnut St

Randall St

Ar
gy

le 
Blv

d

Pine St

Mansfield Rd

Ca
mb

rid
ge

 R
d

Ya
nk

ee
 Av

e

Pleasant Ave

Catalpa Dr

St
 A

nd
rew

s R
d

Ed
en

bo
ro

ug
h R

d

Croft Rd

Bennaville Ave

Donmar Ct

Shepardbush Rd

Wakefield Dr

Greenlawn Blvd

Vinewood Ave

N Chester St

Wa
tki

ns
 Av

e
Oakdale Ave

Arden Ln

Cole Ave
Oxford Dr

Oa
kd

ale
 Av

e

Ro
se

da
le 

Av
e

Hazel St

Kennesaw Ave

E Frank St

N 
Wo

rth
 S

t

Raynale St

Saxon Dr

Martin St

W Merrill St

Townsend St

Northlawn Blvd

Southlawn Blvd

W Fourteen Mile Rd

Euclid Ave

N Bates St

Ed
ge

wo
od

 Av
e

Br
yn

 M
aw

r R
d

W Frank St

Landon St

M idl

and Ave

Cu
mm

ing
s S

t

La
ke

pa
rk

Dr

Webster AveHanna St

P olo
Pl

S Glenhurst Dr

Hazel St

Ridgedale Ave

Atta
rd St

He
nr

iet
ta 

St

Norwich Rd

Bradford Rd

Riverside Dr

Purdy St
Ann St

Brookdale St

Pleasant Ct

Trl

Henley Dr

Palmer Ct

N Old Woodward Ave

Knox Ave

Ferndale St

S C
he

ste
r S

t

Geor ge St

Wa
ter

fal
l L

n

Ham ilton Ave

Tw
in 

Oa
ks

 Ln

Dr

Ha w
th

or
ne

Rd

Woodward Ave

Ru
gb

y R
d

Pie
rce

 St

Puritan Ave

Sheffield Rd

E Brown StAvon Ln

Ravi ne
Rd

Hazel AveElm
 S

t

W Brown St

Madison Ave

Radnor Dr

La
tham

Rd

Hayn
es 

Ct

Melton Rd

Villa Ave

Midvale Rd

Oak St

Park St

Gr
an

t S
t

S Old Woodward Ave

Canterbury Dr

Worthington Ave

S A
da

ms
 Av

e

Willits St

S Eton Rd

N 
Et

on
 R

d

S B
ate

s S
t

Torry St

L ewi s
St

W Big Beaver Rd

E Lincoln Ave

Harmon St

Derby Rd

Rivenoak Ave

Wimbleton Dr

Co
oli

dg
eH

wy

Oakland Ave

Northlawn Dr

E Fourteen Mile Rd

Redding Rd

Quarton Rd

Haynes St

Co
lum

bia
 Av

e

N A
da

ms
 Av

e

W Lincoln Ave

W Maple Ave

E Maple Ave

Kimberley Rd

N
GlenhurstDr

WestwoodDr

St
an

ley
 D

r

Hidden
Ravines 

Riverstone 
Dr

So
uth

fie
ld

Rd

Ar lin gton Rd

Shirle
y D

r

Southlawn Blvd

Penistone Rd

±1,500 0 1,500750 Feet
City Of Birmingham

Zoning MapCoordinate System: State Plane Coordinate System Michigan South Zone 2113 Projection: Lambert Conformal
Conic, Units: International Feet, Datum: NAD83
Data Sources:  Oakland County GIS Utility, City of Birmingham
Updated: August 2021

Overlay Zoning Districts

Retail Frontage 
(Redline Retail)
Downtown Overlay 
Boundary

Zoning Districts
R1 Single-Family Residential
R1-A Single-Family Residential
R2 Single-Family Residential
R3 Single-Family Residential
R4 Two-Family Residential
R5 Multiple-Family Residential
R6 Multiple-Family Residential

R7 Multiple-Family Residential
R8 Multiple-Family Residential

MX Mixed-Use
B-1 Neighborhood Business
B-2 General Business

B-2B General Business
B-3 Office-Residential
B-4 Business-Residential
0-2 Office Commercial
0-1 Office
P Parking
PP Public Property
Downtown Overlay Boundary

TZ1   Transitional Zoning 1
TZ3    Transitional Zoning

C
D-2
D-3
D-4
D-5
P

kj Height Restriction
_̂ Terminating vistas

Triangle District Zoning
ASF-3
R2
MU-3
MU-5
MU-7

B-2 General Business* Limited to Grocery Story Use

*



B. Future Land Use

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/04/218

Future Land Use Map
B. Future Land Use

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/04/21 9

Future	Land	Use:	1:400

Municipal	Boundary

Downtown	Neighborhood

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Civic	Use
Civic

School

Cemetery

Destinations
Neighborhood	Destination

EX

Mixed	Use	Centers
Downtown

Haynes	Square

Market	North

Railroad	District

South	Woodward	Gateway

Neighborhood	Intensities
Commercial

High

Medium

Low

Neighborhood	Seams
High

Medium

Low

De-densification

Parks
Parks	and	Open	Space

Boundaries  

  Planning Districts 

District Destinations

  Civic Destination: General 

  Civic Destination: School

  Civic Destination: Cemetery

  Recreational Destination

  Commercial Destination

Mixed Use District Fabric

  High Intensity

  Medium Intensity

  Low Intensity

Neighborhood District Fabric

  High Intensity

  Medium Intensity

  Low Intensity

District Seams

High Intensity (TZ-1, TZ-3, R3, R4, 
R5, R6, R7, R8, and MX)
Medium Intensity (TZ-1, R3, R4, 
R5, R6, and R8)
Low Intensity (R1A, R1, R2, R3)

Future Land Use Map
Birmingham’s future land use map is structured by Planning 
District boundaries within which land uses reinforce the 
desired future character. This map serves as the basis 
for zoning, specifying where different uses and intensities 
are appropriate throughout the City. This Future Land Use 
Map aims to identify, sustain, and strengthen Birmingham’s 
neighborhoods and mixed-use districts. The following 
sections describe each land use in greater detail.

Figure 6. Future Land Use Map.

Redding RdRedding Rd
Redding RdRedding Rd

Quarton RdQuarton Rd

Big Beaver RdBig Beaver Rd

Wimbleton DrWimbleton Dr

Mohegan StMohegan St

Rivenoak StRivenoak St

Madison StMadison St

Abbey StAbbey St

Tottenham RdTottenham Rd

Derby Rd
Derby Rd

Pembroke RdPembroke Rd

Windemere RdWindemere Rd

Buckingham AveBuckingham Ave

Westboro DrWestboro Dr

Yorkshire RdYorkshire Rd

Dorchester RdDorchester Rd
Dorchester RdDorchester Rd

Ridgedale AveRidgedale Ave

Oakland AveOakland Ave

Oakland Ave

Oakland Ave

O
xford St

O
xford St

Maple RdMaple Rd
Maple RdMaple Rd

Maple RdMaple Rd

Martin StMartin St

Merrill StMerrill St

Townsend StTownsend St

Brown StBrown St

Forest AveForest Ave
Yosemite BlvdYosemite Blvd

Villa RdVilla Rd

C
olum

bia St
C

olum
bia St Eton St

Eton St
Eton St
Eton St

Saint Andrew
s St

Saint Andrew
s St

C
oolidge H

w
y

C
oolidge H

w
y

G
raefield Rd

G
raefield Rd

Bowers StBowers St

Hazel StHazel St

Haynes StHaynes St
Haynes St
Haynes St

Holland StHolland St Torry St
Torry St

Torry St
Torry St

Taunton R
d

Taunton R
d

Eton St
Eton St

Sheffield Rd

Sheffield Rd

Webster StWebster St

Cole StCole St
Cole StCole St

Chestnut StChestnut St

Hazel StHazel St

Willis StWillis St

B
aldw

in Ave
B

aldw
in Ave

G
reenw

ood St
G

reenw
ood St

W
oodland St

W
oodland St

O
ld W

oodward Ave

O
ld W

oodward Ave

Woodward Ave

Woodward Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

Adam
s R

d
Adam

s R
d

W
orth St

W
orth St

Adam
s R

d
Adam

s R
d

Adam
s R

d
Adam

s R
d

Raynale StRaynale St

Lakeside D
r

Lakeside D
r

Lakeside D
r

Lakeside D
r

La
ke

 P
ar

k 
Dr

La
ke

 P
ar

k 
Dr

Lake Park D
r

Lake Park D
r

B
ro

ok
w

oo
d 

St
B

ro
ok

w
oo

d 
St

C
hesterfield Ave

C
hesterfield Ave

G
le

nh
ur

st
 D

r
G

le
nh

ur
st

 D
r

W
es

tw
oo

d 
D

r
W

es
tw

oo
d 

D
r

Ly
on

hu
rs

t S
t

Ly
on

hu
rs

t S
t

G
lenhurst Ave

G
lenhurst Ave

Larchlea D
r

Larchlea D
r

W
estchester W

ay
W

estchester W
ay

Pleasant Ave
Pleasant Ave

W
el

le
sl

ey
 D

r

W
el

le
sl

ey
 D

r

Devon LnDevon Ln

Ar
gy

le
 B

lv
d

Ar
gy

le
 B

lv
d

Arlington St
Arlington St

Arlington St
Arlington St

Shirley R
d

Shirley R
d

Shirley R
d

Shirley R
d

Linden R
d

Linden R
d

Aspen R
d

Aspen R
d

H
aw

thorne St
H

aw
thorne St

Oak AveOak AveOak Ave
Oak Ave

Oak AveOak Ave

VinewoodVinewood

HarmonHarmon

PinePine

MapleMaple

AvonAvon

Midvale StMidvale St

W
oo

dl
ea

 C
t

W
oo

dl
ea

 C
t

Lincoln RdLincoln Rd

Fairway DrFairway Dr

Northlawn Blvd

Northlawn Blvd

Norfolk StNorfolk St

G
reenlaw

n St
G

reenlaw
n St

G
olfview

 B
lvd

G
olfview

 B
lvd

C
ranbrook R

d
C

ranbrook R
d

Lincoln RdLincoln Rd Lincoln RdLincoln Rd
Wallace StWallace St

Frank StFrank St Purdy St

Purdy St
Ann St
Ann StPierce St

Pierce St
Pierce St
Pierce St

Park St
Park St

Park St
Park St

Ferndale Ave

Ferndale Ave

George StGeorge St

C
hester St

C
hester St

B
ates St

B
ates St

H
enrietta St

H
enrietta St

Stanley B
lvd

Stanley B
lvd

Southfield R
d

Southfield R
d

H
enrietta St

H
enrietta St

Pierce St
Pierce St

C
edar D

r
C

edar D
r

Edgew
ood R

d
Edgew

ood R
d

G
rant St

G
rant St

C
um

m
ings Ave

C
um

m
ings Ave

W
ashington

W
ashington

M
aryland

M
aryland

Shipm
an B

lvd
Shipm

an B
lvd

W
atkins St

W
atkins StSo

ut
hfi

el
d 

Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

Old W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

Hanna StHanna St

Lincoln RdLincoln Rd

Southlawn BlvdSouthlawn Blvd

Southlawn BlvdSouthlawn Blvd

Northlawn BlvdNorthlawn Blvd

Southlawn BlvdSouthlawn Blvd

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd
14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

Ruffner AveRuffner Ave

Humphrey AveHumphrey Ave

ChapinChapin

Banbury
Banbury

Bradford RdBradford Rd

M
elton Rd

M
elton Rd

Bennaville AveBennaville Ave

Emmons AveEmmons Ave

Smith AveSmith Ave

Bird AveBird Ave
14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

Saxon DrSaxon Dr

Pi
lg

rim
 A

ve
Pi

lg
rim

 A
ve

Pu
rt

ia
n 

Av
e

Pu
rt

ia
n 

Av
e

Fa
irf

ax
 S

t
Fa

irf
ax

 S
t

Su
ffi

el
d 

Av
e

Su
ffi

el
d 

Av
e

Penistone

Penistone



LINCOLN HILLS GOLF COURSE

SPRINGDALE GOLF COURSE

KENNING PARK

POPPLETON PARK

LIN
DE

N 
PA

RK

BARNUM PARK

MANOR PARK

ST. JAMES 
PARK

PEMBROKE PARK

FA
IRW

AY
 PA

RK

SHAIN 
PARK

CRESTVIEW 
PARK

WELLS PARK

LINN SMITH PARK

HISTORICAL 
PARK

MILLRACE 
PARK

HOWARTH 
PARK

ADAMS 
PARK

MARTHA 
BALDWIN 

PARK

Seaholm High School

Derby Middle School

Pierce School

Pembroke School

Quarton School

Eton Academy

Midvale 
School

Our Shepherd 
Lutheran Church

Roeper 
School

Downtown

Rail District
Haynes Square

Woodward Gateway

Market North

Maple

14 Mile

Oak

Eton

Adams

Bates

Bird

Derby

Lincoln

Pierce

Cole

Fa
irfa

x

Pil
gri

m

Torry

Villa

Su
ffie

ld

Henrietta

Pu
rita

n

Redding

Southfield

Cr
an

bro
ok

Fairway

Ann

Raynale

Park
Brown

Grant

Smith

Old Woodward

Holland

Hazel

Lake Park

Lakeside

Ch
es

ter
fie

ld

Pleasant

Elm

Willits

Chester

Quarton

Melton

Pembroke

Webster

Abbey

Midvale

Stanley

Larchlea

Davis

Arlington

Purdy

Harmon

Shipman

Oxford

Henley

Maryland

Sheffield

Yosemite

Frank

Wimbleton

BowersArg
yle

Haynes

Taunton

Hanna

W
est w oo d

Edgewood

Humphrey

Yorkshire

Westchester

Martin

Madison

Coolidge

Windemere

Birmingham

Washington

Croft

Manchester

Watkins

Chapin

La
tha

m

Rivenoak

Oakland

Aspen

Willow

Buckingham

Cedar

Saxon

George

Knox

Baldwin

Forest

Avon

Bradford

Poppleton

Emmons

Linden

Rugby

Dorchester

Greenwood

Edenborough

Big Beaver

Be
rw

yn

Columbia

Ruffner

Glenhurst

Vinewood

Woodward

Penistone

Wallace

Worth

Mohegan

Townsend

Catalpa

Merrill

Cummings

Pine

Banbury

Kennesaw

Shirley

Graefield

Saint Andrews

Ridgedale

Ferndale

Hawthorne

Mansfield

Northlawn

Chestnut

Bennaville

Shepardbush

Wakefield

Lakeview

We
lle

sle
y

Br
oo

kw
oo

d

Hills
ide

Norfolk

Woodlea

Bry
n M

aw
r

Radnor

Tottenham

Woodland

Westboro

Lewis

Kim
be

rly Euclid

Cambridge

Go
lfv

iew

Clark

Hamilton

Ravine

W
ar w ick

Floyd

Fairview

Daines

Ly
on

hu
rst

Landon

Putney

Randall

Brookside

Southlawn

Devon

Colonial

Oakdale

Arden

Midland

Gordon

Tootin g

Gree n la wn

Rosedale

Aten

Winthrop

Canterbury

Graten

Ch
err

y

Worthington

Ha
n le

y

Polo

Dewey

Kenwood

Melbourne

Peabody

Dunst
able

Riverside

Donmar

Mil lra ce

Brandon

Maple Hil l

Merritt

Bloomfield

Yankee

Attar
d

As
hfo

rd

Hilltop

Hazelwood

Lawndale

Co
mm

erc
e

Cheltenham

Old Salem

Bonnie Brier

Hid
de

n Ra
vi n

es

Norwich

Valley View

Palmer

Warren

Carrollwood

Fo
res

t H
ills

Wa
ter

fal
l

Tw
in 

Oa
ks

Bennaville
Flo

yd

Wa
ter

fal
l

Oakdale

Glenhurs t

Wa
rw

ick

Eton

Villa

Hazel

La
wn

da
le

Lakeside

Poppleton

Bowers

Arden

Oakland

Gr
ae

fie
ld

Humphrey

Ruffner

Haynes

Shi rle y

Bowers

Southlawn

Yorkshire

Frank

Ba
ldw

in

Hazel

Pine

Worth

Golfview

Manchester

Chapin

Merrill

Buckingham

Dorchester

Northlawn

Stanley

Bennaville

Southlawn

Proposed Mixed Use District Fabric Changes
Office-Business (O1,O2, B2, B2-B) to Mixed Use District*
Multi-Family (R5, R6, R7, R8) to Mixed Use

Single Family (R2) to Mixed Use
Parking (P) to Mixed Use District

Proposed District Seam Changes
Medium Intensity Seam: Single Family (R1, R2, R3) to Multi-Family
High Intensity Seam: Multi-Family (R5, R6, R7, R8) to Mixed-Use

Proposed District Destination Changes
Transitional Zone (TZ-1) to Recreation (Park)
City Park with a Commercial Destination (ie. small cafe)
Multi-Family to Commercial Destination

The Birmingham Plan 2040 - Draft #2 
Future Land Use Proposed Changes

2040 Master Plan Proposed Mixed Use District Fabric
High Intensity - Downtown
Medium Intensity - Haynes Square
Low Intensity - Market North, Rail District, & Woodward Gateway

Existing Mixed Use Districts
Rail District 
Triangle District
Downtown Overlay

*Office-Business zones permit mixed-use however the highlighted
properties are not currently included in a defined mixed-use district.

BOOTH
PARK 



LINCOLN HILLS GOLF COURSE

SPRINGDALE GOLF COURSE

KENNING PARK

POPPLETON PARK

LIN
DE

N 
PA

RK

BARNUM PARK

MANOR PARK

ST. JAMES 
PARK

PEMBROKE PARK

FA
IRW

AY
 PA

RK

SHAIN 
PARK

CRESTVIEW 
PARK

WELLS PARK

LINN SMITH PARK

HISTORICAL 
PARK

MILLRACE 
PARK

HOWARTH 
PARK

ADAMS 
PARK

MARTHA 
BALDWIN 

PARK

Seaholm High School

Derby Middle School

Pierce School

Pembroke School

Quarton School

Eton Academy

Midvale 
School

Our Shepherd 
Lutheran Church

Roeper 
School

Maple

14 Mile

Oak

Eton

Adams

Bates

Bird

Derby

Lincoln

Pierce

Cole

Fa
irfa

x

Pil
gri

m

Torry

Villa

Su
ffie

ld

Henrietta

Pu
rita

n

Redding

Southfield

Cr
an

bro
ok

Fairway

Ann

Raynale

Park
Brown

Grant

Smith

Old Woodward

Holland

Hazel

Lake Park

Lakeside

Ch
es

ter
fie

ld

Pleasant

Elm

Willits

Chester

Quarton

Melton

Pembroke

Webster

Abbey

Midvale

Stanley

Larchlea

Davis

Arlington

Purdy

Harmon

Shipman

Oxford

Henley

Maryland

Sheffield

Yosemite

Frank

Wimbleton

BowersArg
yle

Haynes

Taunton

Hanna

West w oo d

Edgewood

Humphrey

Yorkshire

Westchester

Martin

Madison

Coolidge

Windemere

Birmingham

Washington

Croft

Manchester

Watkins

Chapin

La
tha

m

Rivenoak

Oakland

Aspen

Willow

Buckingham

Cedar

Saxon

George

Knox

Baldwin

Forest

Avon

Bradford

Poppleton

Emmons

Linden

Rugby

Dorchester

Greenwood

Edenborough

Big Beaver

Be
rw

yn

Columbia

Ruffner

Glenhurst

Vinewood

Woodward

Penistone

Wallace

Worth

Mohegan

Townsend

Catalpa

Merrill

Cummings
Pine

Banbury

Kennesaw

Shirley

Graefield

Saint Andrews

Ridgedale

Ferndale

Hawthorne

Mansfield

Northlawn

Chestnut

Bennaville

Shepardbush

Wakefield

Lakeview

We
lle

sle
y

Br
oo

kw
oo

d

Hills
ide

Norfolk

Woodlea

Bry
n M

aw
r

Radnor

Tottenham

Woodland

Westboro

Lewis

Kim
be

rly Euclid

Cambridge

Go
lfv

iew

Clark

Hamilton

Ravine

W
ar w ick

Floyd

Fairview

Daines

Ly
on

hu
rst

Landon

Putney

Randall

Brooks ide

Southlawn

Devon

Colonial

Oakdale

Arden

Midland

Gordon

Tootin g

Gree n la wn

Rosedale

Aten

Winthrop

Canterbury

Graten

Ch
err

y

Worthington

Ha
n le

y

Polo

Dewey

Kenwood

Melbourne

Peabody

Dunsta
ble

Riverside

Donmar

Mil lra ce

Brandon

Maple Hil l

Merritt

Bloomfield

Yankee

Attar
d

As
hfo

rd

Hilltop

Hazelwood

Lawndale

Co
mm

erc
e

Cheltenham

Old Salem

Bonnie Brier

Hid
de

n Ra
vi n

es

Norwich

Valley View

Palmer

Warren

Carrollwood

Fo
res

t H
ills

Wa
ter

fal
l

Tw
in 

Oa
ks

Bennaville
Flo

yd

Wa
ter

fal
l

Oakdale

Glenhurs t

Wa
rw

ick

Eton

Emmons

Villa

Hazel

La
wn

da
le

Lakeside

Poppleton

Bowers

Arden

Oakland

Gr
ae

fie
ld

Humphrey

Ruffner

Haynes

Shi rle y

Bowers

Southlawn

Yorkshire

Frank

Ba
ldw

in

Hazel

Pine

Worth

Golfview

Manchester

Chapin

Merrill

Buckingham

Dorchester

Northlawn

Stanley

Bennaville

Southlawn

Proposed District Destination Changes
Transitional Zone (TZ-1) to Recreation (Park)
City Park with a Commercial Destination (ie. small cafe)
Multi-Family to Commercial Destination

The Birmingham Plan 2040 - Draft #2 
Future Land Use Proposed Changes

"District Destinations"

BOOTH
PARK 



LINCOLN HILLS GOLF COURSE

SPRINGDALE GOLF COURSE

KENNING PARK

POPPLETON PARK

LIN
DE

N 
PA

RK

BARNUM PARK

MANOR PARK

ST. JAMES 
PARK

PEMBROKE PARK

FA
IRW

AY
 PA

RK

SHAIN 
PARK

CRESTVIEW 
PARK

WELLS PARK

LINN SMITH PARK

HISTORICAL 
PARK

MILLRACE 
PARK

HOWARTH 
PARK

ADAMS 
PARK

MARTHA 
BALDWIN 

PARK

Seaholm High School

Derby Middle School

Pierce School

Pembroke School

Quarton School

Eton Academy

Midvale 
School

Our Shepherd 
Lutheran Church

Roeper 
School

Downtown

Rail District
Haynes Square

Woodward Gateway

Market North

Maple

14 Mile

Oak

Eton

Adams

Bates

Bird

Derby

Lincoln

Pierce

Cole

Fa
irfa

x

Pil
gri

m

Torry

Villa

Su
ffie

ld

Henrietta

Pu
rita

n

Redding

Southfield

Cr
an

bro
ok

Fairway

Ann

Raynale

Park
Brown

Grant

Smith

Old Woodward

Holland

Hazel

Lake Park

Lakeside

Ch
es

ter
fie

ld

Pleasant

Elm

Willits

Chester

Quarton

Melton

Pembroke

Webster

Abbey

Midvale

Stanley

Larchlea

Davis

Arlington

Purdy

Harmon

Shipman

Oxford

Henley

Maryland

Sheffield

Yosemite

Frank

Wimbleton

BowersArg
yle

Haynes

Taunton

Hanna

W
est w oo d

Edgewood

Humphrey

Yorkshire

Westchester

Martin

Madison

Coolidge

Windemere

Birmingham

Washington

Croft

Manchester

Watkins

Chapin

La
tha

m

Rivenoak

Oakland

Aspen

Willow

Buckingham

Cedar

Saxon

George

Knox

Baldwin

Forest

Avon

Bradford

Poppleton

Emmons

Linden

Rugby

Dorchester

Greenwood

Edenborough

Big Beaver

Be
rw

yn

Columbia

Ruffner

Glenhurst

Vinewood

Woodward

Penistone

Wallace

Worth

Mohegan

Townsend

Catalpa

Merrill

Cummings

Pine

Banbury

Kennesaw

Shirley

Graefield

Saint Andrews

Ridgedale

Ferndale

Hawthorne

Mansfield

Northlawn

Chestnut

Bennaville

Shepardbush

Wakefield

Lakeview

We
lle

sle
y

Br
oo

kw
oo

d

Hills
ide

Norfolk

Woodlea

Bry
n M

aw
r

Radnor

Tottenham

Woodland

Westboro

Lewis

Kim
be

rly Euclid

Cambridge

Go
lfv

iew

Clark

Hamilton

Ravine

W
ar w ick

Floyd

Fairview

Daines

Ly
on

hu
rst

Landon

Putney

Randall

Brookside

Southlawn

Devon

Colonial

Oakdale

Arden

Midland

Gordon

Tootin g

Gree n la wn

Rosedale

Aten

Winthrop

Canterbury

Graten

Ch
err

y

Worthington

Ha
n le

y

Polo

Dewey

Kenwood

Melbourne

Peabody

Dunst
able

Riverside

Donmar

Mil lra ce

Brandon

Maple Hil l

Merritt

Bloomfield

Yankee

Attar
d

As
hfo

rd

Hilltop

Hazelwood

Lawndale

Co
mm

erc
e

Cheltenham

Old Salem

Bonnie Brier

Hid
de

n Ra
vi n

es

Norwich

Valley View

Palmer

Warren

Carrollwood

Fo
res

t H
ills

Wa
ter

fal
l

Tw
in 

Oa
ks

Bennaville
Flo

yd

Wa
ter

fal
l

Oakdale

Glenhurs t

Wa
rw

ick

Eton

Villa

Hazel

La
wn

da
le

Lakeside

Poppleton

Bowers

Arden

Oakland

Gr
ae

fie
ld

Humphrey

Ruffner

Haynes

Shi rle y

Bowers

Southlawn

Yorkshire

Frank

Ba
ldw

in

Hazel

Pine

Worth

Golfview

Manchester

Chapin

Merrill

Buckingham

Dorchester

Northlawn

Stanley

Bennaville

Southlawn

Proposed Mixed Use District Fabric Changes
Office-Business (O1,O2, B2, B2-B) to Mixed Use District*
Multi-Family (R5, R6, R7, R8) to Mixed Use

Single Family (R2) to Mixed Use
Parking (P) to Mixed Use District

The Birmingham Plan 2040 - Draft #2 
Future Land Use Proposed Changes

"Mixed Use District Fabric"
2040 Master Plan Proposed Mixed Use District Fabric

High Intensity - Downtown
Medium Intensity - Haynes Square
Low Intensity - Market North, Rail District, & Woodward Gateway

Existing Mixed Use Districts
Rail District 
Triangle District
Downtown Overlay

*Office-Business zones permit mixed-use however the highlighted
properties are not currently included in a defined mixed-use district.

BOOTH
 PARK



LINCOLN HILLS GOLF COURSE

SPRINGDALE GOLF COURSE

KENNING PARK

POPPLETON PARK

LIN
DE

N 
PA

RK

BARNUM PARK

MANOR PARK

ST. JAMES 
PARK

PEMBROKE PARK

FA
IRW

AY
 PA

RK

SHAIN 
PARK

CRESTVIEW 
PARK

WELLS PARK

LINN SMITH PARK

HISTORICAL 
PARK

MILLRACE 
PARK

HOWARTH 
PARK

ADAMS 
PARK

MARTHA 
BALDWIN 

PARK

Seaholm High School

Derby Middle School

Pierce School

Pembroke School

Quarton School

Eton Academy

Midvale 
School

Our Shepherd 
Lutheran Church

Roeper 
School

Maple

14 Mile

Oak

Eton

Adams

Bates

Bird

Derby

Lincoln

Pierce

Cole

Fa
irfa

x

Pil
gri

m

Torry

Villa

Su
ffie

ld

Henrietta

Pu
rita

n

Redding

Southfield

Cr
an

bro
ok

Fairway

Ann

Raynale

Park
Brown

Grant

Smith

Old Woodward

Holland

Hazel

Lake Park

Lakeside

Ch
es

ter
fie

ld

Pleasant

Elm

Willits

Chester

Quarton

Melton

Pembroke

Webster

Abbey

Midvale

Stanley

Larchlea

Davis

Arlington

Purdy

Harmon

Glenhurst

Shipman

Oxford

Henley

Maryland

Sheffield

Yosemite

Frank

Wimbleton

BowersArg
yle

Haynes

Taunton

Hanna

W
est w oo d

Edgewood

Humphrey

Yorkshire

Westchester

Martin

Madison

Coolidge

Windemere

Birmingham

Washington

Croft

Manchester

Watkins

Chapin

La
tha

m

Rivenoak

Oakland

Aspen

Willow

Buckingham

Cedar

Saxon

George

Knox

Baldwin

Forest

Avon

Bradford

Poppleton

Emmons

Linden

Rugby

Dorchester

Greenwood

Edenborough

Big Beaver

Be
rw

yn

Columbia

Ruffner

Vinewood

Woodward

Penistone

Wallace

Worth

Mohegan

Townsend

Catalpa

Merrill

Cummings
Pine

Banbury

Kennesaw

Shirley

Graefield

Saint Andrews

Ridgedale

Ferndale

Hawthorne

Mansfield

Northlawn

Chestnut

Bennaville

Shepardbush

Wakefield

Lakeview

We
lle

sle
y

Br
oo

kw
oo

d

Hills
ide

Norfolk

Woodlea

Bry
n M

aw
r

Radnor

Tottenham

Woodland

Westboro

Lewis

Kim
be

rly Euclid

Cambridge

Go
lfv

iew

Clark

Hamilton

Ravine

W
ar w ick

Floyd

Fairview

Daines

Ly
on

hu
rst

Landon

Putney

Randall

Brooks ide

Southlawn

Devon

Colonial

Oakdale

Arden

Midland

Gordon

Tootin g

Gree n la wn

Rosedale

Aten

Winthrop

Canterbury

Graten

Ch
err

y

Worthington

Ha
n le

y

Polo

Dewey

Kenwood

Melbourne

Peabody

Dunst
able

Riverside

Donmar

Mil lra ce

Brandon

Maple Hil l

Merritt

Bloomfield

Yankee

Attar
d

As
hfo

rd

Hilltop

Hazelwood

Lawndale

Co
mm

erc
e

Cheltenham

Old Salem

Bonnie Brier

Hid
de

n Ra
vi n

es

Norwich

Valley View

Palmer

Warren

Carrollwood

Fo
res

t H
ills

Wa
ter

fal
l

Tw
in 

Oa
ks

Bennaville

Emmons

Flo
yd

Wa
ter

fal
l

Oakdale

Wa
rw

ick

Eton

Ba
ldw

in

Villa

Hazel

La
wn

da
le

Lakeside

Buckingham

Frank

Arden

Manchester

Gr
ae

fie
ld

Haynes

Dorchester

Bowers
Bowers

Shi rle y

Ruffner

Southlawn

Glenhurs t

Oakland

Hazel

Pine

Worth

Golfview

Humphrey

Yorkshire

Merrill

Chapin

Poppleton

Northlawn

Stanley

Bennaville

Southlawn

Proposed District Seam Changes
Medium Intensity Seam: Single Family (R1, R2, R3) to Multi-Family
High Intensity Seam: Multi-Family (R5, R6, R7, R8) to Mixed-Use

The Birmingham Plan 2040 - Draft #2 
Future Land Use Proposed Changes

"District Seams"

BOOTH
PARK 



April 13, 2021 

City Commission Members, Planning Board Members 
City of Birmingham 
151 Martin St. 
Birmingham, MI 48012 

1st Draft Master Plan Recommendations, April 19, 2021 Joint City Commission 
and Planning Board Meeting 

Dear City Commission and Planning Board Members,

Following-up upon the brief discussion held during the March 22nd City Commission 
meeting, this memo provides some additional information concerning the Planning 
Board’s recommendations for changes to the Master Plan First Draft. During the 
March 22nd City Commission meeting, more detail was desired concerning the 
recommendations of the Planning Board, both explanatory in nature and recounting 
the degree to which the recommendation reflects primarily Planning Board direction, 
primarily public direction, or a combination thereof. The explanatory detail provided 
below remains brief and can be expanded upon by the consultants as necessary 
during the upcoming joint meeting. 

In addition to the expanded details, a general summary of public input received is 
included as a separate memo from McKenna.  

Further detail concerning the high-level direction from the Planning Board follows, 
retaining the order and numbering of the prior memo for ease of discussion.

General Direction 

These items are not specifically related to a physical location or area of the city 
and are therefore considered more general in nature.

1. The length of the Master Plan should be significantly reduced. 

• Source: City Commission, Planning Board, and public comment 

• Detail: This item requires no additional explanatory detail. 

Page  of 1 16

ndupuis
Highlight



2. The Master Plan should provide clear prioritization of recommendations, 
including the Themes created during the review process. 

• Source: Planning Board direction concerning the Themes. Prioritization as 
direction came from the City Commission, Planning Board, and public 
comment, specifically in October of 2019. 

• Detail: Further details concerning the direction is not necessary as it is general 
and clear. However please note that this was discussed as an original goal for 
the Second Draft by the consultant when presenting the First Draft in 2019. 
The consultant considers this a step in the process. The First Draft collects 
and explains all of the recommendations assembled through the Charrette 
process, to be accepted, rejected, or augmented. The Second Draft 
organizes and prioritizes the recommendations and timelines. 

3. Language should be as plain as possible, where technical language is required, 
it should be clearly defined. This extends to terms that can be vague like 
sustainability. 

• Source: City Commission, Planning Board, and public comment 

• Detail: This item is a distillation of comments from the Commission and 
Board, as well as public comment. It was not presented as a single 
recommendation originally, rather this is inferred direction across many 
comments which has been validated by the Planning Board. 

4. Adjust and clarify the correction to growth projections (2,000 people not 2,000 
units). 

• Source: Consultant, supported by Planning Board and public comment 

• Detail: During the course of review the consultant identified that the growth 
projection as stated in the First Draft was incorrect. During Planning Board 
review, the consultant corrected this information publicly. Some public 
comment specifically referred to the growth projection numbers. That 
comment in some instances is related to following items concerning the form 
and location of growth, and other comments sought clarity. 

Page  of 2 16



5. Infrastructure should be addressed (the details of this request require 
discussion). 

• Source: Public comment 

• Detail: This item was brought up through public comment, specifically relating 
to stormwater, unimproved streets, and sewer capacity. It is identified as 
requiring further discussion (clarity) by the consultants. At the beginning of 
this contract the consultants asked for clarity concerning how infrastructure 
was to be addressed in the Master Plan. The City Manager at the time stated 
that infrastructure included only the surface, principally the details of streets, 
and did not include sub-surface infrastructure. 

6. Increase the focus on sustainability. 

• Source: Planning Board principally, with some public comment 

• Detail: This item is general in nature as it appears in a few places within the 
First Draft, along with in the introduction, and touches on natural areas like 
the Rouge, on streets and stormwater, on public buildings and grounds, on 
practices like recycling and composting, and on energy use and pollution. 
These points are spread-out in the First Draft. Some items like reduction of 
greenhouse gasses from vehicles were not discussed as they are inherent in 
the physical form of Birmingham inviting walking, and should be discussed 
along with other stated items in a collected goal of greater sustainability. 

7. Acknowledge Covid-19, including a prologue to ground the document in the 
current condition (occurred after the Master Plan First Draft). 

• Source: Planning Board principally, with some public comment 

• Detail: Concerning the source, Planning Board members discussed physical 
attributes and concerns in the city related to Covid-19, social distancing, and 
workplace dynamics. Initially this was brought up through public comment 
and revisited more than once by the Planning Board. While the current 
protocols surrounding Covid-19 are temporary there are a number of real 
items to discuss going forward. Concerning the disease, while it is expected 
that Covid-19 can be successfully mitigated, infectious diseases of this type 

Page  of 3 16



are anticipated to increase in frequency and severity in the future. A number 
of other recent diseases like H1N1 in 2009 luckily did not reach pandemic 
levels, but they have come close. Trends indicate that infectious disease has 
been steadily on the rise. A number of prior pandemics have led to changes in 
the built environment, including the Spanish Flu, Cholera, and Plague. The 
statement to acknowledge Covid-19 comes in part that preparing a 20 year 
plan without at least acknowledging such a significant event is considered a 
mistake but also that there are serious considerations which Covid-19 brings 
to a number of Master Plan recommendations. There is a general consensus 
that office space demand will be reduced going forward, and a greater 
demand for spaces to work some of the time within the home. Today’s 
response may be an overreaction, with many tech companies abandoning or 
significantly reducing office space. However the technology available to work 
and meet more effectively in a remote manner has become well established in 
the workplace. Some change is anticipated, which may result in office space 
that should be converted to housing. In Downtown, this further supports the 
recommendation to allow residential permit parking in garages. In homes it 
may mean that definitions of home occupation should be revisited. That is one 
example of many, including allowances for dining decks, shared streets that 
provide more pedestrian space, and a demand for more seating opportunities 
in parks. Most of these items are included within the First Draft to some 
extent, but warrant revisiting the recommendations in consideration of recent 
experiences. Luckily Birmingham is a good location to weather Covid-19, and 
for many of the reasons that Birmingham is a great place to live generally. 

8. Focus on the bold moves, like Haynes Square and perhaps more aggressive 
fixes for Woodward, so the plan is forward-looking. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: This item is both organizational and directing content. From an 
organizational perspective, a focus on bold moves can garner support. 
Recommendations can be organized in many ways - by location (as current), 
by theme, by goal, by department, by change versus stability, etc. Along with 
the comment on prioritization, this comment is about making the document 
motivating. The second piece is being more aggressive on some of the key 

Page  of 4 16



items, Woodward in particular. For Woodward, some detail was lost in the 
large document as comments made by the Board were already covered in the 
First Draft. But Woodward would also benefit from additional crossing 
improvements and focus on speeds as was discussed extensively. Other 
areas like Haynes Square are similar. 

9. Schools should be more prominently featured in the plan expressing a shared 
vision between the City and the School District. 

• Source: Planning Board principally, with some public comment 

• Detail: Schools came up numerous times in discussion. It was recommended 
that the consultants coordinate with the School District concerning their future 
plans, including any considerations needed ahead of potential changes, 
closures, or expansions. Additionally, aspects of the plan had addressed 
schools with relation to population diversity and housing options, however the 
schools were a bullet point within those discussions instead of being the other 
way around. Schools may be better addressed in a goal-oriented 
organizational format. 

10. The senior center proposal should be more prominently featured in the plan. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: The plan included direction to establish a more prominent senior 
center, as had been discussed at length during the Charrette. As with some 
other items, this had become a side note to the plan, addressed presently on 
pages 65 and 66. 

11. Further address connections to surrounding communities. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: This item requires no additional explanatory detail. 

12. Include recommendations for new historic districts and strengthening of existing 
districts. 

• Source: Planning Board, Historic District Commission, and a few public 
comments 

Page  of 5 16



• Detail: This item requires no additional explanatory detail. 

13. Ensure all considerations for walkability address older adults and people of 
varying abilities. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: Aspects of walkability are discussed throughout the First Draft. While 
aimed at multiple users, they may not clearly address how multiple users 
should be considered. 

14. Growth should be focused in Downtown, the Triangle District, and a small 
amount in the Rail District. 

• Source: Planning Board and public comment 

• Detail: Aspects of this will re-appear later concerning Seams. This was a 
growth strategy that was discussed across numerous meetings and in 
reaction to public comment. The recommendation could be stated in the 
opposite manner, recommending that growth not be focused within or 
between neighborhoods. 

15. More outdoor gathering spaces are needed in light of Covid-19, including 
covered outdoor spaces in parks. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: Details surrounding this item were covered previously. 

16. Increase the focus on connecting across Big Woodward and pedestrian safety. 

• Source: Planning Board, and public comment 

• Detail: This item was addressed above concerning bold moves. It is listed 
separately as it was a common area of concern and discussion among Board 
members and the public. 

17. Big Woodward north of Maple should be further investigated for traffic calming, 
in addition to the portion between 14 and Maple. 

• Source: Planning Board 

Page  of 6 16



• Detail: In Board discussions concerning traffic calming on Big Woodward, the 
higher-speed condition of Big Woodward north of Maple was identified as a 
condition that requires specific consideration. 

18. Retain the reduction of parking regulation complexity, but recommend that it be 
further studied by committee rather than proposing the solution. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: The general idea of simplifying on-street parking regulation was 
supported but the Board believes it should be studied by a committee rather 
than providing a specific solution within the Master Plan. The Master Plan 
would retain the problem statement and recommend a committee be 
established to carry on the work. 

19. More broadly address the Rouge natural area, including bank restoration, 
removal of invasive species, improving the natural condition, and trail 
modifications to increase accessibility without detracting from the natural 
environment. 

• Source: Planning Board principally, with some public comment 

• Detail: The item is clear but note that the character of the trail is an area of 
conflict. Some members of the public feel that the trail should remain as it is 
with wood chips. Other members of the public, and the Board, feel that the 
trail should be accessible to users of all abilities. The direction as stated is to 
improve the trail but recommend strategies to limit the impact that such 
improvements would have to the existing natural character. 

20. Consider the future of the public golf courses. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: There is no specific direction to this item. The golf courses were not 
addressed in the First Draft and the recommendation is to consider their 
potential to remain as is, to improve, or to be used in some other manner. 

Page  of 7 16



Direction Related to Mixed-use Districts

1. Generally 

1. Consider more shared streets and pedestrian-only areas, including 
Worth Park as a potential piazza. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: The First Draft included some shared streets and the Board 
recommended that the concept be expanded beyond the areas 
identified in the First Draft. The recommendation also identifies that 
Worth Park is an opportunity to provide greater variety in open space 
types by recommending a plaza instead of a green. 

2. Consider dining decks in light of Covid-19. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: This item was discussed previously. 

3. EV charging and other similar sustainable strategies should be 
considered in mixed-use districts. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: This item is related to a previous discussion point on increasing 
the focus on sustainability. 

2. Downtown 

1. Bates Street should be included in recommendations. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: At the beginning of the Master Plan process, a proposal for the 
Bates Street extension was going through public review. As such it was 
not included in the Master Plan. The recommendation is to include a 
proposal in the Master Plan since the prior measure was rejected. 

Page  of 8 16



2. Revisit the pilot parking program for downtown housing in light of 
Covid-19 changing business demand and potential future office space 
demand. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: This item was discussed previously. 

3. Retail district standards (redline) should be lightened on side streets. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: The area of very high standards for ground floor uses within 
Downtown extends to most street frontages. The First Draft 
recommended that two sets of standards be created, one of higher and 
one of slightly lower specificity. This recommendation is to expand the 
slightly lower standards to side streets like Hamilton and Willits. 

3. Haynes Square / Triangle District 

1. Adams Square should be included in recommendations. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: This item requires no additional explanatory detail. 

2. Consider live-work buildings. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: Live-work buildings are like a townhome with a small business 
space on the front. They are typically service uses like attorneys. Live-
work buildings are common in historic towns and in some newly built 
neighborhoods but often not allowed in zoning. The recommendation is 
to consider where, if anywhere, live-work buildings should be allowed 
or encouraged. The most likely outcome is consideration for the type 
within the Triangle District and the Adams Square shopping center, in 
addition to the Rail District where they are currently allowed. 

Page  of 9 16



3. Add a pedestrian or vehicular connection from Worth to Bowers. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: This item requires no additional explanatory detail, however the 
consultant strongly supports the recommendation. 

4. Address how the abandoned portion of Old Woodward south of Haynes 
should transfer ownership with concern for the existing property owners 
with frontage on Old Woodward. Also address the City’s ability to vacate 
property by ordinance. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: This is a process-related detail of the recommendation to 
terminate Old Woodward at Haynes in order to improve traffic safety 
and increase the viability of commercial properties south of Haynes. 

5. Focus Missing Middle housing principally in Haynes Square and Adams 
Square. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: This is related to allowing more townhomes, duplexes, and small 
multi-family housing units. The recommendation is to encourage these 
types of housing in limited areas rather than along most Seams. 

6. Look more closely at the Haynes / Adams traffic situation with respect 
to the proposed modifications. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: The First Draft recommends that southbound Adams traffic be 
diverted onto Haynes to meet Big Woodward in order to both improve 
traffic safety and increase the viability of the Triangle District. The 
recommendation is to add further detail for this condition to ensure that 
it is viable from a traffic management standpoint. 

Page  of 10 16



4. South Woodward Gateway 

1. Study the housing proposals along the South Woodward alleys more 
closely and consider other effective means of noise buffering. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: The First Draft recommended townhouse-like housing be 
located along alleys in the South Woodward Gateway area. The alley 
proposal is aimed at activating alleys which provide a more comfortable 
means of walking along Big Woodward than the discontinuous 
sidewalks. Activating the alleys would increase noise which could affect 
adjacent homes. The First Draft recommended that housing be used to 
buffer noise as housing is very effective and doing so. These would be 
located along the alley where houses have previously been removed for 
additional parking area. The recommendation is to consider options in 
addition to housing, and to clarify or reconsider the housing 
recommendation. 

Direction Related to Neighborhoods

1. Revise to define sub-areas of the City as “planning districts” and remove all 
recommendations related to neighborhood associations. 

• Source: Planning Board and public comment 

• Detail: There are two items here. The first is to use the term “planning 
district” rather than neighborhood to refer to the boundaries identified 
on Page 30. The second is straightforward, to remove any of the 
remaining details concerning neighborhood associations. 

2. Seams should be significantly reduced in location, intensity, and building types 
allowed, and be thoughtfully located in the limited areas where they may be 
appropriate. 

• Source: Planning Board and significant public comment 

• Detail: The recommendations concerning Seams brought significant 
public pushback. This began early in the review process but 

Page  of 11 16



accelerated towards the end of the process as both information and 
misinformation about the Seams proposal spread throughout the 
community. Despite attempts at clarifying the concept, the public 
reaction was strong and emotional. Throughout the Planning Board 
review sessions, the subject had come up numerous times and the 
Board’s recommendation was to reduce the intensity of Seams and 
limit the types of housing allowed within them, targeting growth in the 
mixed-use areas. Towards the end of the review sessions, public 
comment increased. While some residents welcomed the 
recommendation, the majority did not. The Board re-affirmed their prior 
position and strengthened it. The concept of Seams as presented may 
be applicable in a few limited locations but the addition of housing type 
diversity along the edge of most planning districts should not be 
allowed. 

3. Accessory Dwelling Units need to be revisited and should be severely limited 
should they be permitted anywhere. 

• Source: Planning Board and public comment 

• Detail: Both the Board and public shared concern about accessory 
dwelling units. Public comment varied from those with specific 
concerns, such as privacy where existing properties are small, to those 
with wished to not allow accessory units anywhere. The Board echoed 
the specific concerns, remaining open to consider conditions that 
accessory units may be allowed but generally skeptical. The 
recommendation is to have the consultant consider this input and 
revise where and to what extent accessory units might be allowed. 

4. New neighborhood commercial destination locations should be reduced and 
thoughtfully considered while existing destinations strengthened; include more 
clarity on the uses that should be permitted. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: Neighborhood commercial destinations were proposed in the 
First Draft in some areas that merit removal, like at Lincoln and 

Page  of 12 16



Southfield. The recommendation is to retain the concept and remove 
some instances mapped in the First Draft. Additionally, the Board would 
like additional detail concerning the types of uses that should be 
allowed, and other regulatory considerations. 

5. Torry requires more amenities. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: This item requires no additional explanatory detail. 

6. Include stronger reference to the Unimproved Streets Committee 
recommendations (completed after the Master Plan First Draft). 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: The committee work on unimproved streets paralleled the 
Master Plan process. The First Draft references the committee which 
has now completed its study and recommendations. The direction is to 
include this within the Second Draft. While public comment isn’t 
mentioned in the source, the topic of unimproved streets was brought 
up by the public multiple times. 

7. Completing sidewalks requires more focus and prioritization, could be handled 
similarly to the committee on Unimproved Streets. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: The first draft recommends completing missing sidewalks. The 
Board feels that it may be lost in other recommendations and wishes to 
highlight the importance and priority. 

8. Provide more detail on green infrastructure opportunities. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: Green infrastructure (bio-swales) was briefly addressed in the 
First Draft. The recommendation is to include more specificity on green 
infrastructure in the Second Draft. 

Page  of 13 16



9. Clarify the neighborhood loop, bicycle boulevards, and protected bike paths by 
including street sections and greater detail addressing different user types. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: This item requests further information concerning street design 
where new approaches and types are included. The neighborhood loop 
is one instance where the specific implications on street design are not 
clear to the Board. Some of the other questions come from items in the 
multi-modal plan that were included in the Master Plan within maps but 
detailed street sections were not included in the Master Plan. 

10. Clarify the Kenning Park path recommendations concerning both pedestrians 
and cyclists. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: Within the First Draft there is a paved bike path mapped in 
Kenning Park which was envisioned to be pedestrian and bicycle use 
but could be read as bicycle only. The Board suggested that it include 
pedestrian accommodations. This item is a clarification of the First 
Draft. 

11. Increase aggressiveness of tree preservation and replacement 
recommendations. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: Tree preservation and replacement is briefly addressed in the 
First Draft. This item recommends that the process be prioritized and 
accelerated, particularly around preservation in consideration of new 
construction. 

12. Provide more detail on non-financial incentives for renovation of homes over 
new construction and provide greater ability to add 1st floor master bedrooms. 
This topic is likely to differ between planning districts. 

• Source: Planning Board 

Page  of 14 16



• Detail: The First Draft recommends incentives be established to 
encourage home renovations instead of tear-downs. The Board is 
concerned that this will be construed as financial incentives and 
recommends that additional detail be provided concerning potential 
incentives that are not financial. 

13. Review lot coverage standards and consider adjustments by lot size. 

• Source: Planning Board and public comment 

• Detail: Public comment brought up concerns about drainage in new 
construction and illuminated a concern about impervious lot coverage. 
The First Draft doesn’t address lot coverage in residential districts aside 
from a note related to incentives mentioned in the previous item. 

14. Provide more detail on design controls that may be considered. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: The First Draft recommends an approvals process for exterior 
design and materials for homes, along with a discussion suggesting 
objective and simple design controls that avoid stylistic restrictions. 
This item requests more information concerning the types of simple 
design controls referenced. Note that while the source states only the 
Planning Board that this was also discussed in the October 2019 joint 
meeting with the City Commission. 

15. Remove lot combination areas but review the existing ordinance to provide 
better direction. 

• Source: Planning Board 

• Detail: The lot combination areas were a source of confusion initially 
because they were mapped along with the Seams. These are areas 
where lot combinations would be allowed rather than relying on the 
more subjective process in place today. This item recommends that 
specific areas for lot combinations be removed and that the existing 
ordinance be reviewed to produce better outcomes. 

Page  of 15 16



We look forward to a discussion of this direction and to revising the Draft Master Plan; 
thank you. 

Regards,  

Matthew Lambert  

Cc: Jana Ecker, Planning Director; Bob Gibbs, Gibbs Planning Group; Sarah Traxler, 
McKenna 

Page  of 16 16



 

 

 

Clarifications to Assist Public Review and 

Understanding of the Second Draft of the Master Plan 
 

What is the status of the Citywide 

Master Plan for 2040? 

The Master Plan process includes two full 
plan drafts that will be completed and 
reviewed before a third and final draft is voted 
on by the City Commission. Presently, the 
second draft has been released and will be 
reviewed  by the Planning Board at four 
upcoming meetings, and at one joint Planning 
Board and City Commission meeting. 

Following this review, the consultants will 
confirm the changes requested with the 
Planning Board and City Commission. 
Requested changes to the second draft will 
be incorporated into a final Master Plan for 
adoption next year. 

 
How is the second draft different from 
the first draft? 
 
The second draft is more concise, and a 
number of recommendations have been 
modified or removed. In addition to input 
received during public meetings, the 
consultants have collected public input 
provided through surveys, through the 
project website, and through emails sent to 
the City. The second draft of the Master Plan 
was written in consideration of all input 
received. 

 
What is Future Land Use? 

Future Land Use is a designation that 
conveys the City’s intended future character 
as communicated by the use of land, such  
as residential or industrial. Future Land Use 
is more general in nature than zoning. For 
instance, a future land use of residential may 
include numerous zones such as R-1, R1-A, 
and R-2. Future Land Use is the legal basis 
for zoning, and zoning must align with Future 
Land Use. Zoning may be more restrictive 
than Future Land Use, but not less 
restrictive. 

 

 
Is the Master Plan rezoning the City? 

No. The Master Plan will include a Future 
Land Use map, but not a new zoning map. 
The Master Plan recommends that the City 
study and revise its current zoning code, but 
does not establish any updated zoning. The 
Master Plan recommends that zoning be 
updated for two primary purposes: 1) to 
simplify but not substantively change zoning 
in the Downtown and Triangle District, and 2) 
to better align neighborhood zoning with 
existing character to avoid new houses that 
are out of character. Other zoning changes are 
recommended for further study by the City. 

 

What has changed with the “seams” 

concept? 
 
Since the review of the first draft of the Master 
Plan was finished in April of 2021, the seams 
concept has been drastically reduced in terms 
of development, especially in the low intensity 
seam areas. Instead, the Master Plan 
recognizes the low intensity seam areas as 
edges of Planning Districts, which typically 
exist on wider and higher-traffic roadways. 
Thus, the focus and recommendations within 
Draft 2 have shifted to multimodal 
improvements in these areas to focus on  
connecting neighborhoods. In addition to 
connectivity, medium and high-intensity 
seams have also been reduced in number 
based on public input, and are generally 
proposed in places where multi-family 
housing, attached single-family housing, and 
commercial uses have previously been built.



 

 
What are Accessory Dwelling Units? 

Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU) are small 
residences that are located on the same site 
as a larger single family residence. ADUs 
may be within the main building, free standing 
in the rear yard, or part of the garage. 

 
Are ADUs still proposed within 

the Master Plan? 

Yes. However, the recommendation has 
been reduced drastically, and now proposes 
to permit ADUs in the already compatible 
zones of MX, TZ1, TZ3, and R4-R8. Based 
on public input, the Master Plan has 
recommended that the City form a committee 
to take its time to further study the benefits 
and best practices associated with ADUs and 
has not provided any further 
recommendations. ADUs are not 
recommended in any single family zoning 
district. 

 

Why does the Master Plan 

recommend more housing? 

The Master Plan recommends, but does not 
require, that new housing be accommodated 
due to regional housing growth and rapidly 
increasing housing costs. The amount of 
growth to accommodate has been in 
discussion with the Planning Board, where 
the board requests that future growth be 
directed to Downtown, the Triangle District, 
and the Rail District. 

 

 

 

How much more housing does 

the Master Plan recommend? 

The first draft Master Plan document 
incorrectly stated that 2,000 new homes would 
be needed by 2040. This was revised to 2,000 
new residents recommended to be 
accommodated, which may occupy 700 to 900 
new homes or condos. All of this capacity may 
be absorbed between Downtown and the 
Triangle District. This number is derived from 
the Southeast Michigan Council of 
Governments (SEMCOG), which projected 
regional growth to 2040, in 2018. Presently, 
the Downtown, Triangle District, and Rail 
District have zoning designations which allow 
housing infill at and above this amount. 
 

What is the Master Plan proposing to 

do with parks? 

The Master Plan considers parks and open 
space to be absolutely essential to the City as 
a whole, and contains several 
recommendations for parks and open space 
to be features and essential components of 
each Planning District within the City. The 
Master Plan studies park access deficiencies 
and proposes numerous solutions including 
acquiring commercial land to create new park 
space, as well as expanding amenities in 
existing parks. 

How can I participate in the review of 
the second draft of the Master Plan? 

At this time, the City is gearing up for another 
round of public hearings regarding the Master 
Plan in which both the Planning Board and 
City Commission will review and solicit 
feedback from the public. We encourage you 
to participate in these meetings and provide 
feedback. The meetings will be highly 
publicized and a schedule will be created 
during the October 13th, 2021 meeting of the 
Planning Board. If you are unable to attend the 
meetings, or wish to provide additional 
comments, you may submit comments directly 
to the Master Plan team at 
www.thebirminghamplan.com, or feel free to 
send your comments directly to City Staff. 



Nicholas Dupuis <ndupuis@bhamgov.org>

2040 Master plan question - potential map and labelling errors? 
3 messages

Birmingham Andrew <andrewinbham@gmail.com> Fri, Oct 22, 2021 at 11:49 AM
To: jecker@bhamgov.org, ndupuis@bhamgov.org
Cc: tmarkus@bhamgov.org

Dear Jana & Nick, on page 56 of the 2nd draft I see this label of the residential zoning. When I cross refer it to Section
126 of the Zoning ordinance it appears to be incorrect for R4 - R7 and potentially R8. TZ1 has a different label to the
ordinance and we have no zone X, but there is an MX zone in the ordinance. Are all the labels & markings on the zoning
maps correct as I cannot correlate the labels to the ordinance 1 for 1 and it is causing some confusion in how to read the
map & permitted uses. Especially with some of the colors on the Future Use map on pages 8 & 9 being very similar too.

Please could you also confirm that R1 is 1 residence with a minimum lot size of 9000 sq feet & R3 is 1 residence with a
minimum lot size of 4500 sq feet if I am reading the ordinance correctly? (Similar question for R2)

Also, if R1 is a minimum of 9000 sq feet surface area for 1 residence, how does table 2.06.4 refer to lots <9000 sq feet for
height? Is that for any pre existing lot sizes within the existing zoning that are already under 9000 sq feet in size that wish
to have a new building on that sub 9000 sq feet lot? Do any new constructions require a zoning variance due to lot size
and zone or is it automatic due to the table reference? 

Thanks.

Andrew



Jana Ecker <Jecker@bhamgov.org> Thu, Oct 28, 2021 at 12:09 PM
To: Birmingham Andrew <andrewinbham@gmail.com>
Cc: Nicholas Dupuis <ndupuis@bhamgov.org>, Tom Markus <tmarkus@bhamgov.org>

Dear Andrew,
 
Thank you for sending along your comments and questions.  I am sorry the response has been
delayed.  Please see below for responses to the questions you raised in your email above:
 

1.    Are the labels of the zoning classifications listed in the legend on page 56 of the
draft 2040 Plan correct?
As you pointed out, there are some inconsistencies in the naming conventions of several of
the zoning districts.  For the multi-family zoning classifications of R4 through R8, the zoning
district symbols or icons are correct, however the written naming conventions are incorrect. 
R4 should be listed as Two-Family Residential and R5 – R7 should be listed as Multiple
Family Residential.  R8, while listed as Single Family Residential, should be labelled as
Attached Single Family Residential.   The TZ1 zoning classification is correct, but should be
listed as Transition Zone, not Attached Single Family.  The zoning classification of X is
incorrect, and should be MX, which is accurately labelled as Mixed Use.  All of these
corrections have been provided to the City’s consultant for correction in the next draft of the
2040 Plan. 
2.    Can you confirm that R1 is 1 residence with a minimum lot size of 9,000 square
feet?



Yes, R1 is a single family zoning classification that permits mainly one family residential
dwellings.  There are however several additional permitted residential, institutional and
recreational uses.  Properties zoned R1 have a minimum lot area of 9,000 square feet.
3.    Can you confirm that R2 is 1 residence with a minimum lot size of 6,000 square
feet?
Yes, R2 is a single family zoning classification that permits mainly one family residential
dwellings.  There are however several additional permitted residential, institutional and
recreational uses.  Properties zoned R2 have a minimum lot area of 6,000 square feet.
4.    Can you confirm that R3 is 1 residence with a minimum lot size of 4,500 square
feet?
Yes, R3 is a single family zoning classification that permits mainly one family residential
dwellings.  There are however several additional permitted residential, institutional and
recreational uses.  Properties zoned R3 have a minimum lot area of 4,500 square feet.
5.    If R1 requires a minimum of 9,000 square feet of surface area for 1 residence, how
does table 2.06.4 refer to lots <9,000 square feet for height? Is that for any pre
existing lot sizes within the existing zoning that are already under 9,000 square feet
in size that wish to have a new building on that sub 9,000 square feet lot?
The R1 zoning does require a minimum lot size of 9,000 square feet for any new lots
created.  However, there are many lots that were created under previous zoning
requirements that are less than 9,000 square feet in area, although they were legal at the
time they were platted. 
6.    Do any new constructions require a zoning variance due to lot size and zone or is
it automatic due to the table reference?
If an original platted lot is less than the current required minimum lot area, a new home can
be constructed on the undersized lot without a variance if the lot area has not been altered
since it was originally platted.  All other current setback, placement and massing standards
apply other than the minimum lot area standard.

I hope I have answered all of your questions. 

Jana
[Quoted text hidden]
--  
Jana L. Ecker

Assistant City Manager 
City of Birmingham
248-530-1811

*Important Note to Residents*
Let’s connect! Join the Citywide Email System to receive important City updates and critical information specific to your
neighborhood at www.bhamgov.org/citywideemail. 

Birmingham Andrew <andrewinbham@gmail.com> Thu, Oct 28, 2021 at 8:42 PM
To: Jana Ecker <Jecker@bhamgov.org>
Cc: Nicholas Dupuis <ndupuis@bhamgov.org>, Tom Markus <tmarkus@bhamgov.org>

Jana, thank you for the detailed response.

Please can this entire email communication be put into the next Planning Board Master Plan meeting agenda packet to
show the items found for correction to keep a record of updates?

In addition, the next plan update, please can we have either a redline copy or a document modification record attached to
each subsequent update to make sure that any changes made are transparent and traceable?

Thank you,

http://www.bhamgov.org/citywideemail


Andrew 

Ethermail

On Oct 28, 2021, at 12:09, Jana Ecker <Jecker@bhamgov.org> wrote: 

Dear Andrew,
 
Thank you for sending along your comments and questions.  I am sorry the response
has been delayed.  Please see below for responses to the questions you raised in your
email above:
 

1.    Are the labels of the zoning classifications listed in the legend on page
56 of the draft 2040 Plan correct?
As you pointed out, there are some inconsistencies in the naming conventions of
several of the zoning districts.  For the multi-family zoning classifications of R4
through R8, the zoning district symbols or icons are correct, however the written
naming conventions are incorrect.  R4 should be listed as Two-Family
Residential and R5 – R7 should be listed as Multiple Family Residential.  R8,
while listed as Single Family Residential, should be labelled as Attached Single
Family Residential.   The TZ1 zoning classification is correct, but should be listed
as Transition Zone, not Attached Single Family.  The zoning classification of X is
incorrect, and should be MX, which is accurately labelled as Mixed Use.  All of
these corrections have been provided to the City’s consultant for correction in
the next draft of the 2040 Plan. 
2.    Can you confirm that R1 is 1 residence with a minimum lot size of 9,000
square feet?
Yes, R1 is a single family zoning classification that permits mainly one family
residential dwellings.  There are however several additional permitted
residential, institutional and recreational uses.  Properties zoned R1 have a
minimum lot area of 9,000 square feet.
3.    Can you confirm that R2 is 1 residence with a minimum lot size of 6,000
square feet?
Yes, R2 is a single family zoning classification that permits mainly one family
residential dwellings.  There are however several additional permitted
residential, institutional and recreational uses.  Properties zoned R2 have a
minimum lot area of 6,000 square feet.
4.    Can you confirm that R3 is 1 residence with a minimum lot size of 4,500
square feet?
Yes, R3 is a single family zoning classification that permits mainly one family
residential dwellings.  There are however several additional permitted
residential, institutional and recreational uses.  Properties zoned R3 have a
minimum lot area of 4,500 square feet.
5.    If R1 requires a minimum of 9,000 square feet of surface area for 1
residence, how does table 2.06.4 refer to lots <9,000 square feet for
height? Is that for any pre existing lot sizes within the existing zoning that
are already under 9,000 square feet in size that wish to have a new building
on that sub 9,000 square feet lot?
The R1 zoning does require a minimum lot size of 9,000 square feet for any new
lots created.  However, there are many lots that were created under previous
zoning requirements that are less than 9,000 square feet in area, although they
were legal at the time they were platted. 

mailto:Jecker@bhamgov.org


6.    Do any new constructions require a zoning variance due to lot size and
zone or is it automatic due to the table reference?
If an original platted lot is less than the current required minimum lot area, a new
home can be constructed on the undersized lot without a variance if the lot area
has not been altered since it was originally platted.  All other current setback,
placement and massing standards apply other than the minimum lot area
standard.

I hope I have answered all of your questions. 

Jana

On Fri, Oct 22, 2021 at 11:50 AM Birmingham Andrew <andrewinbham@gmail.com> wrote: 
Dear Jana & Nick, on page 56 of the 2nd draft I see this label of the residential zoning. When I cross refer
it to Section 126 of the Zoning ordinance it appears to be incorrect for R4 - R7 and potentially R8. TZ1
has a different label to the ordinance and we have no zone X, but there is an MX zone in the ordinance.
Are all the labels & markings on the zoning maps correct as I cannot correlate the labels to the ordinance
1 for 1 and it is causing some confusion in how to read the map & permitted uses. Especially with some
of the colors on the Future Use map on pages 8 & 9 being very similar too.
 
Please could you also confirm that R1 is 1 residence with a minimum lot size of 9000 sq feet & R3 is 1
residence with a minimum lot size of 4500 sq feet if I am reading the ordinance correctly? (Similar
question for R2)
 
Also, if R1 is a minimum of 9000 sq feet surface area for 1 residence, how does table 2.06.4 refer to lots
<9000 sq feet for height? Is that for any pre existing lot sizes within the existing zoning that are already
under 9000 sq feet in size that wish to have a new building on that sub 9000 sq feet lot? Do any new
constructions require a zoning variance due to lot size and zone or is it automatic due to the table
reference? 
 
Thanks.
 
Andrew
 
<image.png>
 
<image.png>
 

[Quoted text hidden]

mailto:andrewinbham@gmail.com














Nicholas Dupuis <ndupuis@bhamgov.org>

2040 Master Plan comments 
2 messages

Eric Wolfe <elwolfe1@comcast.net> Fri, Oct 22, 2021 at 9:34 AM
To: ndupuis@bhamgov.org

Dear Planning Board, 

 With respect to the proposed 2040 Master Plan, we are extremely unhappy
that Ann St., north of Frank St., remains as a "seam" under the proposed 
2040 plan, for many reasons, including: 

1)      Ann St. is not a main street, it is the dead end side street along 
our home, for which we have already been subjected to significant 
impacts to our quiet enjoyment, and our property value, over the years. 
Compare the activity on Ann St. in 2007, when we moved here,    to today and 
it becomes clear that the use has increased dramatically, including traffic, 
parking and noise. 
2)      It incentivizes the destruction of the 1882 built home at 566 Ann 
St., adjacent to our home, which would be a terrible loss for the city. 
3)      The traffic and density in this area is already far beyond what 
people normally expect in a single family home neighborhood. We invite  you 
to sit at the corner of Ann and Frank for one hour to see what it's like to 
live here. 
4)      The fact of the "transitional" rezoning of parcels resulting in The 
Bristol, which we opposed for years, and which is now in the 5th year   of 
construction with no end in sight, should not be used as justification for 
making the situation even worse. 
5)      This "seam" would impact multiple homes on Frank St. and Purdy, 
subjecting us to years of uncertainty and construction, with the 
eventual loss of what little privacy and peace we have in this active area 
of Birmingham. 
6)      We recall clear direction from the Planning Board that Ann St. be 
removed as a seam, yet here it is anyway.   
7)      It is unclear, based on the confusing use of colors, whether Ann St. 
is proposed to be a low density or high density "seam".  We are 
unable to tell, but either way it is an appalling abuse of the integrity of 
the current underlying single family zoning which we relied upon        when 
we made our decision to move to this corner years ago. 
8)      The view that the 2040 plan is not actually a "rezoning" is a 
hairsplitting insult to our intelligence.  It would be used as a basis for 
rezoning, of course. 

If the "seam" on Ann St. remains, it will be abundantly clear that the city 
is not protecting residents who moved here for many good reasons, 
particularly the tranquility of a single family residential neighborhood. 
Our home at this corner is almost unlivable at this point, with excessive 
and unrestrained traffic and development destroying our quality of life and 
property value.  We urge you to remove Ann St., as you previously directed, 
as a "seam" from the 2040 Master Plan. 

Thank you for your time and consideration. 

Eric and Tracey Wolfe 
393 E. Frank St. 



Nicholas Dupuis <ndupuis@bhamgov.org> Fri, Oct 22, 2021 at 9:35 AM
To: Eric Wolfe <elwolfe1@comcast.net>

Received, thank you!
[Quoted text hidden]
--  
Nicholas J. Dupuis
Planning Director

Email: ndupuis@bhamgov.org
Office: 248-530-1856
Social: Linkedin

*Important Note to Residents*
Let’s connect! Join the Citywide Email System to receive important City updates and critical information specific to your neighborhood at www.bhamgov.org/
citywideemail. 

mailto:ndupuis@bhamgov.org
https://www.linkedin.com/in/nicholasdupuis1989/
http://www.bhamgov.org/citywideemail


 
 
 
 
 

Michigan Planning Enabling Act 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MICHIGAN PLANNING ENABLING ACT (EXCERPT)
Act 33 of 2008

ARTICLE III.
PREPARATION AND ADOPTION OF MASTER PLAN

125.3831 Master plan; preparation by planning commission; meetings with other
governmental planning commissions or agency staff; powers.
Sec. 31. (1) A planning commission shall make and approve a master plan as a guide for development

within the planning jurisdiction subject to section 81 and the following:
(a) For a county, the master plan may include planning in cooperation with the constituted authorities for

incorporated areas in whole or to the extent to which, in the planning commission's judgment, they are related
to the planning of the unincorporated area or of the county as a whole.

(b) For a township that on September 1, 2008 had a planning commission created under former 1931 PA
285, or for a city or village, the planning jurisdiction may include any areas outside of the municipal
boundaries that, in the planning commission's judgment, are related to the planning of the municipality.

(2) In the preparation of a master plan, a planning commission shall do all of the following, as applicable:
(a) Make careful and comprehensive surveys and studies of present conditions and future growth within

the planning jurisdiction with due regard to its relation to neighboring jurisdictions.
(b) Consult with representatives of adjacent local units of government in respect to their planning so that

conflicts in master plans and zoning may be avoided.
(c) Cooperate with all departments of the state and federal governments, public transportation agencies,

and other public agencies concerned with programs for economic, social, and physical development within
the planning jurisdiction and seek the maximum coordination of the local unit of government's programs with
these agencies.

(3) In the preparation of the master plan, the planning commission may meet with other governmental
planning commissions or agency staff to deliberate.

(4) In general, a planning commission has such lawful powers as may be necessary to enable it to promote
local planning and otherwise carry out the purposes of this act.

History: 2008, Act 33, Eff. Sept. 1, 2008;Am. 2010, Act 306, Imd. Eff. Dec. 17, 2010.

125.3833 Master plan; land use and infrastructure issues; inclusion of maps, plats, charts,
and other related matter; recommendations for physical development; additional subjects;
implementation of master street plan or certain elements; specifications; section subject
to MCL 125.3881(1); public transportation facilities.
Sec. 33. (1) A master plan shall address land use and infrastructure issues and may project 20 years or

more into the future. A master plan shall include maps, plats, charts, and descriptive, explanatory, and other
related matter and shall show the planning commission's recommendations for the physical development of
the planning jurisdiction.

(2) A master plan shall also include those of the following subjects that reasonably can be considered as
pertinent to the future development of the planning jurisdiction:

(a) A land use plan that consists in part of a classification and allocation of land for agriculture, residences,
commerce, industry, recreation, ways and grounds, subject to subsection (5), public transportation facilities,
public buildings, schools, soil conservation, forests, woodlots, open space, wildlife refuges, and other uses
and purposes. If a county has not adopted a zoning ordinance under former 1943 PA 183 or the Michigan
zoning enabling act, 2006 PA 110, MCL 125.3101 to 125.3702, a land use plan and program for the county
may be a general plan with a generalized future land use map.

(b) The general location, character, and extent of all of the following:
(i) All components of a transportation system and their interconnectivity including streets and bridges,

public transit including public transportation facilities and routes, bicycle facilities, pedestrian ways, freight
facilities and routes, port facilities, railroad facilities, and airports, to provide for the safe and efficient
movement of people and goods in a manner that is appropriate to the context of the community and, as
applicable, considers all legal users of the public right-of-way.

(ii) Waterways and waterfront developments.
(iii) Sanitary sewers and water supply systems.
(iv) Facilities for flood prevention, drainage, pollution prevention, and maintenance of water levels.
(v) Public utilities and structures.
(c) Recommendations as to the general character, extent, and layout of redevelopment or rehabilitation of

Rendered Thursday, March 17, 2022 Page 1 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 34 of 2022

 Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



blighted areas; and the removal, relocation, widening, narrowing, vacating, abandonment, change of use, or
extension of streets, grounds, open spaces, buildings, utilities, or other facilities.

(d) For a local unit of government that has adopted a zoning ordinance, a zoning plan for various zoning
districts controlling the height, area, bulk, location, and use of buildings and premises. The zoning plan shall
include an explanation of how the land use categories on the future land use map relate to the districts on the
zoning map.

(e) Recommendations for implementing any of the master plan's proposals.
(3) If a master plan is or includes a master street plan or 1 or more elements described in subsection (2)(b)(

i), the means for implementing the master street plan or elements in cooperation with the county road
commission and the state transportation department shall be specified in the master street plan in a manner
consistent with the respective powers and duties of and any written agreements between these entities and the
municipality.

(4) This section is subject to section 81(1).
(5) The reference to public transportation facilities in subsection (2)(a) only applies to a master plan that is

adopted or substantively amended more than 90 days after the effective date of the amendatory act that added
this subsection.

History: 2008, Act 33, Eff. Sept. 1, 2008;Am. 2010, Act 134, Imd. Eff. Aug. 2, 2010;Am. 2010, Act 306, Imd. Eff. Dec. 17,
2010.

125.3835 Subplan; adoption.
Sec. 35. A planning commission may, by a majority vote of the members, adopt a subplan for a geographic

area less than the entire planning jurisdiction, if, because of the unique physical characteristics of that area,
more intensive planning is necessary for the purposes set forth in section 7.

History: 2008, Act 33, Eff. Sept. 1, 2008.

125.3837 Metropolitan county planning commission; designation; powers.
Sec. 37. (1) A county board of commissioners may designate the county planning commission as the

metropolitan county planning commission. A county planning commission so designated shall perform
metropolitan and regional planning whenever necessary or desirable. The metropolitan county planning
commission may engage in comprehensive planning, including, but not limited to, the following:

(a) Preparation, as a guide for long-range development, of general physical plans with respect to the pattern
and intensity of land use and the provision of public facilities, together with long-range fiscal plans for such
development.

(b) Programming of capital improvements based on relative urgency, together with definitive financing
plans for the improvements to be constructed in the earlier years of the program.

(c) Coordination of all related plans of local governmental agencies within the metropolitan area or region.
(d) Intergovernmental coordination of all related planning activities among the state and local

governmental agencies within the metropolitan area or region.
(2) In addition to the powers conferred by other provisions of this act, a metropolitan county planning

commission may apply for, receive, and accept grants from any local, regional, state, or federal governmental
agency and agree to and comply with the terms and conditions of such grants. A metropolitan county planning
commission may do any and all things necessary or desirable to secure the financial aid or cooperation of a
regional, state, or federal governmental agency in carrying out its functions, when approved by a 2/3 vote of
the county board of commissioners.

History: 2008, Act 33, Eff. Sept. 1, 2008.

125.3839 Master plan; adoption; procedures; notice; submittals; use of electronic mail.
Sec. 39. (1) A master plan shall be adopted under the procedures set forth in this section and sections 41

and 43. A master plan may be adopted as a whole or by successive parts corresponding with major
geographical areas of the planning jurisdiction or with functional subject matter areas of the master plan.

(2) Before preparing a master plan, a planning commission shall send to all of the following, by first-class
mail or personal delivery, a notice explaining that the planning commission intends to prepare a master plan
and requesting the recipient's cooperation and comment:

(a) For any local unit of government undertaking a master plan, the planning commission, or if there is no
planning commission, the legislative body, of each municipality located within or contiguous to the local unit
of government.

(b) For a county undertaking a master plan, the regional planning commission for the region in which the
county is located, if any.

Rendered Thursday, March 17, 2022 Page 2 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 34 of 2022

 Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



(c) For a county undertaking a master plan, the county planning commission, or if there is no county
planning commission, the county board of commissioners, for each county located contiguous to the county.

(d) For a municipality undertaking a master plan, the regional planning commission for the region in which
the municipality is located, if there is no county planning commission for the county in which that
municipality is located. If there is a county planning commission, the municipal planning commission may
consult with the regional planning commission but is not required to do so.

(e) For a municipality undertaking a master plan, the county planning commission, or if there is no county
planning commission, the county board of commissioners, for the county in which that municipality is
located.

(f) For any local unit of government undertaking a master plan, each public utility company, railroad
company, and public transportation agency owning or operating a public utility, railroad, or public
transportation system within the local unit of government, and any government entity that registers its name
and mailing address for this purpose with the planning commission.

(g) If the master plan will include a master street plan, the county road commission and the state
transportation department.

(3) A submittal under section 41 or 43 by or to an entity described in subsection (2) may be made by
personal or first-class mail delivery of a hard copy or by electronic mail. However, the planning commission
preparing the plan shall not make such submittals by electronic mail unless, in the notice described in
subsection (2), the planning commission states that it intends to make such submittals by electronic mail and
the entity receiving that notice does not respond by objecting to the use of electronic mail. Electronic mail
may contain a link to a website on which the submittal is posted if the website is accessible to the public free
of charge.

History: 2008, Act 33, Eff. Sept. 1, 2008;Am. 2010, Act 306, Imd. Eff. Dec. 17, 2010.

125.3841 Preparation of proposed master plan; submission to legislative body for review and
comment; approval required; notice; submission of comments; statements as advisory.
Sec. 41. (1) After preparing a proposed master plan, a planning commission shall submit the proposed

master plan to the legislative body for review and comment. The process of adopting a master plan shall not
proceed further unless the legislative body approves the distribution of the proposed master plan.

(2) If the legislative body approves the distribution of the proposed master plan, it shall notify the secretary
of the planning commission, and the secretary of the planning commission shall submit, in the manner
provided in section 39(3), a copy of the proposed master plan, for review and comment, to all of the
following:

(a) For any local unit of government proposing a master plan, the planning commission, or if there is no
planning commission, the legislative body, of each municipality located within or contiguous to the local unit
of government.

(b) For a county proposing a master plan, the regional planning commission for the region in which the
county is located, if any.

(c) For a county proposing a master plan, the county planning commission, or if there is no county
planning commission, the county board of commissioners, for each county located contiguous to the county.

(d) For a municipality proposing a master plan, the regional planning commission for the region in which
the municipality is located, if there is no county planning commission for the county in which that local unit
of government is located. If there is a county planning commission, the secretary of the municipal planning
commission may submit a copy of the proposed master plan to the regional planning commission but is not
required to do so.

(e) For a municipality proposing a master plan, the county planning commission, or if there is no county
planning commission, the county board of commissioners, for the county in which that municipality is
located. The secretary of the municipal planning commission shall concurrently submit to the county planning
commission, in the manner provided in section 39(3), a statement that the requirements of subdivision (a)
have been met or, if there is no county planning commission, shall submit to the county board of
commissioners, in the manner provided in section 39(3), a statement that the requirements of subdivisions (a)
and (d) have been met. The statement shall be signed by the secretary and shall include the name and address
of each planning commission or legislative body to which a copy of the proposed master plan was submitted
under subdivision (a) or (d), as applicable, and the date of submittal.

(f) For any local unit of government proposing a master plan, each public utility company, railroad
company, and public transportation agency owning or operating a public utility, railroad, or public
transportation system within the local unit of government, and any government entity that registers its name
and address for this purpose with the secretary of the planning commission. An entity described in this
Rendered Thursday, March 17, 2022 Page 3 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 34 of 2022

 Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



subdivision that receives a copy of a proposed master plan, or of a final master plan as provided in section
43(5), shall reimburse the local unit of government for any copying and postage costs thereby incurred.

(g) If the proposed master plan is or includes a proposed master street plan, the county road commission
and the state transportation department.

(3) An entity described in subsection (2) may submit comments on the proposed master plan to the
planning commission in the manner provided in section 39(3) within 63 days after the proposed master plan
was submitted to that entity under subsection (2). If the county planning commission or the county board of
commissioners that receives a copy of a proposed master plan under subsection (2)(e) submits comments, the
comments shall include, but need not be limited to, both of the following, as applicable:

(a) A statement whether the county planning commission or county board of commissioners considers the
proposed master plan to be inconsistent with the master plan of any municipality or region described in
subsection (2)(a) or (d).

(b) If the county has a county master plan, a statement whether the county planning commission considers
the proposed master plan to be inconsistent with the county master plan.

(4) The statements provided for in subsection (3)(a) and (b) are advisory only.
History: 2008, Act 33, Eff. Sept. 1, 2008;Am. 2010, Act 306, Imd. Eff. Dec. 17, 2010.

125.3843 Proposed master plan; public hearing; notice; approval by resolution of planning
commission; statement; submission of copy of master plan to legislative body; approval
or rejection by legislative body; procedures; submission of adopted master plan to certain
entities.
Sec. 43. (1) Before approving a proposed master plan, a planning commission shall hold not less than 1

public hearing on the proposed master plan. The hearing shall be held after the expiration of the deadline for
comment under section 41(3). The planning commission shall give notice of the time and place of the public
hearing not less than 15 days before the hearing by publication in a newspaper of general circulation within
the local unit of government. The planning commission shall also submit notice of the public hearing in the
manner provided in section 39(3) to each entity described in section 39(2). This notice may accompany the
proposed master plan submitted under section 41.

(2) The approval of the proposed master plan shall be by resolution of the planning commission carried by
the affirmative votes of not less than 2/3 of the members of a city or village planning commission or not less
than a majority of the members of a township or county planning commission. The resolution shall refer
expressly to the maps and descriptive and other matter intended by the planning commission to form the
master plan. A statement recording the planning commission's approval of the master plan, signed by the
chairperson or secretary of the planning commission, shall be included on the inside of the front or back cover
of the master plan and, if the future land use map is a separate document from the text of the master plan, on
the future land use map. Following approval of the proposed master plan by the planning commission, the
secretary of the planning commission shall submit a copy of the master plan to the legislative body.

(3) Approval of the proposed master plan by the planning commission under subsection (2) is the final step
for adoption of the master plan, unless the legislative body by resolution has asserted the right to approve or
reject the master plan. In that case, after approval of the proposed master plan by the planning commission,
the legislative body shall approve or reject the proposed master plan. A statement recording the legislative
body's approval of the master plan, signed by the clerk of the legislative body, shall be included on the inside
of the front or back cover of the master plan and, if the future land use map is a separate document from the
text of the master plan, on the future land use map.

(4) If the legislative body rejects the proposed master plan, the legislative body shall submit to the planning
commission a statement of its objections to the proposed master plan. The planning commission shall
consider the legislative body's objections and revise the proposed master plan so as to address those
objections. The procedures provided in subsections (1) to (3) and this subsection shall be repeated until the
legislative body approves the proposed master plan.

(5) Upon final adoption of the master plan, the secretary of the planning commission shall submit, in the
manner provided in section 39(3), copies of the adopted master plan to the same entities to which copies of
the proposed master plan were required to be submitted under section 41(2).

History: 2008, Act 33, Eff. Sept. 1, 2008.

125.3845 Extension, addition, revision, or other amendment to master plan; adoption;
procedures; review and findings.
Sec. 45. (1) An extension, addition, revision, or other amendment to a master plan shall be adopted by

following the procedure under sections 39, 41, and 43, subject to all of the following:
Rendered Thursday, March 17, 2022 Page 4 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 34 of 2022

 Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



(a) Any of the following amendments to a master plan may be made without following the procedure under
sections 39, 41, and 43:

(i) A grammatical, typographical, or similar editorial change.
(ii) A title change.
(iii) A change to conform to an adopted plat.
(b) Subject to subdivision (a), the review period provided for in section 41(3) shall be 42 days instead of 63

days.
(c) When a planning commission sends notice to an entity under section 39(2) that it intends to prepare a

subplan, the notice may indicate that the local unit of government intends not to provide that entity with
further notices of or copies of proposed or final subplans otherwise required to be submitted to that entity
under section 39, 41, or 43. Unless the entity responds that it chooses to receive notice of subplans, the local
unit of government is not required to provide further notice of subplans to that entity.

(2) At least every 5 years after adoption of a master plan, a planning commission shall review the master
plan and determine whether to commence the procedure to amend the master plan or adopt a new master plan.
The review and its findings shall be recorded in the minutes of the relevant meeting or meetings of the
planning commission.

History: 2008, Act 33, Eff. Sept. 1, 2008.

125.3847 Part of county master plan covering incorporated area; adoption by appropriate
city or village required; exception.
Sec. 47. (1) Subject to subsection (2), a part of a county master plan covering an incorporated area within

the county shall not be recognized as the official master plan or part of the official master plan for that area
unless adopted by the appropriate city or village in the manner prescribed by this act.

(2) Subsection (1) does not apply if the incorporated area is subject to county zoning pursuant to the
Michigan zoning enabling act, 2006 PA 110, MCL 125.3101 to 125.3702, and a contract under the urban
cooperation act, 1967 (Ex Sess) PA 7, MCL 124.501 to 124.512, or 1967 (Ex Sess) PA 8, MCL 124.531 to
124.536.

History: 2008, Act 33, Eff. Sept. 1, 2008.

125.3849 City or village planning department; authority to submit proposed master plan, or
proposed extension, addition, revision, or other amendment.
Sec. 49. (1) This act does not alter the authority of a planning department of a city or village created by

charter to submit a proposed master plan, or a proposed extension, addition, revision, or other amendment to a
master plan, to the planning commission, whether directly or indirectly as provided by charter.

(2) Subsection (1) notwithstanding, a planning commission described in subsection (1) shall comply with
the requirements of this act.

History: 2008, Act 33, Eff. Sept. 1, 2008.

125.3851 Public interest and understanding; promotion.
Sec. 51. (1) To promote public interest in and understanding of the master plan, a planning commission

may publish and distribute copies of the master plan or of any report, and employ other means of publicity
and education.

(2) A planning commission shall consult with and advise public officials and agencies, public utility
companies, civic, educational, professional, and other organizations, and citizens concerning the promotion or
implementation of the master plan.

History: 2008, Act 33, Eff. Sept. 1, 2008.

Rendered Thursday, March 17, 2022 Page 5 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 34 of 2022

 Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov



 
 
 
 
 
 

Meeting Minutes 



City Commission/Planning Board Meeting 
October 11, 2021 
 

  October 11, 2021 - 5  

Mr. Share, CM Markus and Commissioner Hoff all commented on the importance of preventing 
outdoor dining from encroaching beyond its permitted areas. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Anthony Long said residents would need to know what outdoor dining might look like to provide 
relevant feedback. He recommended posting another survey to Engage Birmingham with 
descriptions. He also concurred with prior comments that the restauranteurs’ interest in having 
outdoor dining needs to be ascertained. Mr. Long also recommended extending outdoor dining 
through the winter since Covid-19 remains an issue, and then soliciting further feedback from the 
public and restauranteurs then. 
 
Mr. Bloom said it would be positive if the Planning Board could recommend temporary standards 
for Winter 2021-2022. He said the City should also consider two sets of outdoor dining standards: 
one for normal circumstances and one for ongoing Covid-19 issues.  
 

C. 2040 Master Plan Update 
 
PD Dupuis introduced the item. 
 
Chair Clein, Mr. Williams and Commissioner Baller all noted that the Planning Board was presently 
working with the second draft of the master plan, and not with a finalized document.  
 
Commissioner Nickita said the Planning Board should pay specific attention to what changed 
between the first and second drafts. 
 
PD Dupuis confirmed that would be the case. 
 
Commissioner Baller said more attention should be paid to the presentation of the Master Plan, 
including keeping maps on one page and with legible street names. He said the presentation 
should make it easy for residents to review. 
 
In reply to Mr. Share, PD Dupuis said that in addition to speaking at Planning Board meetings 
members of the public could submit feedback on the Master Plan directly to staff or at 
thebirminghamplan.com.  
 
Mr. Williams encouraged the public to attend Planning Board meetings and submit feedback. He 
said there were likely to be a number more changes before review of the second draft is 
completed.  
 
Mr. Boyle noted Commissioners Nickita, Sherman and Hoff were stepping down in November and 
acknowledged them for their contributions to the City.  
 
Public Comment 
 
Mr. Bloom said he would like to see redline maps to see what how the maps changed from draft 
one to draft two. He expressed concern about some of the draft’s recommendations and said he 
wanted to make sure they would all be thoroughly vetted. He said he also wanted to ensure that 
residents’ concerns about the draft would be taken into account. 

ndupuis
Highlight

ndupuis
Highlight

ndupuis
Highlight



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
November 10, 2021 

 

1 

 

 
C. Chair’s Comments  
 
Chair Clein welcomed everyone to the meeting and reviewed the meeting’s procedures.  
 

11-177-21 
 
D. Review Of The Agenda  
 

11-178-21 
 

E. Unfinished Business  
 

None. 
 

11-179-21 
 
F. Rezoning Applications  
 
None. 
 

11-180-21 
 
G. Community Impact Studies  
 
None. 
 

11-181-21 
 

H. Special Land Use Permits 
 
 
 

11-182-21 
 
I. Site Plan & Design Reviews 
 
 
 

11-183-21 
 

J. Study Session 
 

1. The Birmingham Plan 2040 – Review of the Introduction, Future Land Use & 
Chapter One (Connect the City)  

 
PD Dupuis introduced the item. Mr. Lambert presented the item. 

ndupuis
Highlight

ndupuis
Highlight

ndupuis
Highlight



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
November 10, 2021 

 

2 

 

 
Mr. Lambert confirmed for Chair Clein that any lots described as ‘low-intensity seams’ were not 
being recommended for a change in land use. The only changes recommended are multi-modal 
and pedestrian improvements.  
 
Chair Clein invited public comment. Seeing no immediate public comment, Chair Clein opened the 
topic to the Board for discussion. 
 
Mr. Williams said the revisions captured the essence of the Board’s comments over the last year. 
He said he found the paragraph on page six of the draft beginning “All of these other aspects” 
incendiary and recommended it be removed. He said the draft should recommend that the 
southwest area of the City be slated for the addition of sidewalks and multi-modal improvements. 
He noted that coming up the hill on Northlawn near the Birmingham Country Club was particularly 
perilous.  
 
Mr. Share said it would be helpful to briefly describe lot sizes and/or density allowances for zoning 
districts so the public better understands the proposals. He opined that the draft still retained too 
much of a focus on social engineering, citing specificity in tasks and committees or the 
recommendation for a community foundation as two examples. He said those suggestions could 
possibly be better used in an appendix at the end of the draft. He asked whether residents living 
near parks with potential commercial destinations had been surveyed regarding their interest. He 
said he was not sure that every neighborhood planning district needed a commercial area. He 
said he was unsure of the demand for a public circulator. He asked why metered parking was 
being recommended for Lincoln. He said he did not believe that all of the civic buildings needed 
to be in the Tudor style, citing the new fire station on Adams as an attractive building not in the 
Tudor style. He said the draft could retain its recommendations that certain ideas be explored, 
but that it need not specify which committee look at those ideas.  
 
Messrs. Share and Emerine and Ms. Whipple-Boyce said they did not believe that Glenhurst at 
Lincoln was an optimal location for a small commercial destination.  
 
Mr. Jeffares said two-way cycling is a bane for fellow cyclists, citing Eton Street’s current 
experiment with it, and recommended the draft find safer ways to promote cycling. He said Detroit 
and Ferndale both have good examples of safer cycling options. He said he liked the idea of the 
traffic oval on Woodward from the first draft. He recommended that the draft not specify where 
complete streets and social districts be located. Instead, he said the draft should just encourage 
exploration of the concepts and the bringing in of an expert to make location recommendations. 
He suggested the Multi-Modal Transportation Board explore electric golf cart type options for 
residents to use on 25 m.p.h. streets that could be parked two-to-a-spot to reduce demand on 
parking and increase accessibility. He said the draft should recommend that development projects 
include consideration of the integration of a senior and community center. He said the draft should 
recommend the creation of public transit options to get from downtown Birmingham to the Troy 
Transit Center. He said he thought a public circulator was worth further exploration. Regarding 
the paragraph from page six mentioned by Mr. Williams, Mr. Jeffares said he felt that the point 
was that diversified tools for surveying the public allowed the master planning team to access 
more diverse opinions. He noted that there are routes cyclists already prefer to use, and 
recommended the draft seek to improve the safety of those instead of creating new ones. He 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
November 10, 2021 

 

3 

 

noted that the area of Northlawn described by Mr. Williams is safer for cyclists than using Lincoln. 
He recommended the City try having a cafe food truck at Booth Park before deciding whether to 
add a brick and mortar location. He said the neighborhood loop could be more useful if it added 
ways to get into the City from neighboring municipalities, saying the addition of ‘spokes’ would 
be beneficial.  
 
Mr. Lambert confirmed that Mr. Jeffares’ interpretation of the paragraph on page six aligned with 
Mr. Lambert’s intent.  
 
Ms. Whipple-Boyce stated that the future land use planning map on pages eight and nine seemed 
to have mis-labelled Greenwood Cemetery as a recreational option. She said that instead of 
recommending the specific locations of commercial destinations in parks the draft could just more 
broadly suggest the idea be explored. She noted that an overlap of grey and red on the land use 
map seemed to be resulting in purple, and asked that those areas be corrected. She said she was 
not sure of the utility of either the neighborhood loop or the public circulator, but was willing to 
hear why they might be useful. 
 
Mr. Emerine recommended that any references to this being the second draft, or similar 
statements that would have to be revised out of the final draft, just be removed now. He asked 
Staff to update Mr. Lambert on the ongoing study of a two-way cycling path on Eton. He said 
that Booth Park could be an ideal location for a 30 to 40 sq. ft. cafe, citing a similar cafe in 
Mariano Park in Chicago that is very popular with park visitors.  
 
Chair Clein commended Mr. Lambert on the revisions made to the draft. He said he agreed with 
many of his colleagues’ comments. He said that, unlike Mr. Jeffares, he did not like the proposal 
for a redesigned median at Woodward and Maple and said that he was not sure people would 
want to spend time in the middle of Woodward. He said he prefers to shrink intersections, while 
acknowledging that was a philosophical preference. He said that the recommended scale could 
be clarified for the commercial destinations, stating that kiosks would be appropriate where larger 
cafes would not, like at Glenhurst and Lincoln. He disagreed with Mr. Share’s contention that 
programming options need not be considered, stating that if they are not considered then the 
City would be more likely to design spaces that cannot be used effectively at all. He said that 
while he liked the idea of a neighborhood loop that could be restricted to pedestrian use on 
certain days, he agreed with Ms. Whipple-Boyce that he was no longer sure of the utility of the 
neighborhood loop as it was being proposed. He said he thought the concept needed more 
clarification, or may need to be removed from the plan.  
 
Mr. Share concurred that kiosk-sized cafes might be more appropriate than larger commercial 
destinations in parks. He said that the discussion of the neighborhood loop could be as broad as 
recommending that the City explore ‘citywide interconnection’.  
 
Mr. Lambert said the intent of the neighborhood loop was to provide a throughline in the City 
where multi-modal development, including sidewalks, benches, wayfinding, and other options are 
especially prioritized.  
 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
November 10, 2021 

 

4 

 

Given that description, Chair Clein said that instead of including the neighborhood loop the draft 
should recommend that all areas be ADA-compliant and have a variety of multi-modal 
improvements.  
 
Mr. Koseck said he agreed with many of his colleagues’ comments and said the revisions to the 
draft were good. He reminded Mr. Lambert to continue writing at the public’s, and not the 
planning professional’s, level. He said the neighborhood loop could be useful for exercise and to 
define a major pedestrian option. 
 
Mr. Lambert was asked to outline criteria that would help the City decide where to implement 
recommendations from the draft, instead of making specific location recommendations. 
 
Public Comment  
 
Since there was no initial public comment, Chair Clein opened the discussion again to public 
comment.  
 
Paul Reagan stated there is a covenant on Booth Park that would cause the park to revert to the 
Booth Family Trust if it is used for anything other than a park. He added that the land use map 
might be easier to read if only the areas to have zoning changes are highlighted. He re-proposed 
his idea from previous meetings of a pedestrian bridge for crossing Woodward. He recommended 
that concepts that have been scaled back in the plan, like accessory dwelling units, just be 
considered for removal instead, noting that the City could always pursue such an idea in the 
future even if it is not mentioned in the master plan.  
 
Kevin Kozlowski recommended that more contrasting colors be used for the maps.   
 
In reply to Mr. Kozlowski, Mr. Lambert clarified that some of the lots around Poppleton Park were 
being recommended for reduced density in comparison with the draft one recommendations as 
part of the direction to reduce the extent of the seams.  
 
Chair Clein thanked Mr. Lambert, the Board, and the public.  
 
Mr. Lambert noted that it would be useful to remind the public that the master plan does not 
zone or re-zone property.  
 
Mr. Koseck recommended that the changes made to the second draft be redlined. 
 
Mr. Williams said he did not believe that was necessary. 
 
Ms. Whipple-Boyce said that if there was a way to show the future land use map and the current 
zoning for those same areas that would be useful. 
 
SP Cowan said it would be possible to create hyperlinks between the online future land use map 
and the current zoning ordinance and the draft master plan and the zoning ordinance.  
 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
November 10, 2021 

 

5 

 

Chair Clein said that while that was a great idea, it would probably have limited public use. He 
said the colors and a brief explanation of the zoning districts would likely be sufficient.  
 
SP Cowan updated the Planning Board on the Multi-Modal Transportation Board’s ongoing study 
of the Eton St. bicycle lane, sidewalks in the southwest portion of the City, and the Neighborhood 
Loop.  
 
In response to a point raised by Ms. Whipple-Boyce, Chair Clein asked Mr. Lambert to create 
maps to show all changes proposed to land use, not just changes to seams and commercial 
destinations.  
 

2. Outdoor Dining 
 
PD Dupuis presented the item. 
 
Mr. Share noted that the word ‘enclosed’ in Article 4, Section 4.44(A)(7)(e) on page 81 might 
lead to confusion since the Board did not want to allow enclosed spaces. 
 
Mr. Williams recommended that ‘enclosed’ be omitted from the aforementioned section in 
response to Mr. Share’s comment. 
 
In reply to Ms. Whipple-Boyce, ACM Ecker confirmed that snow removal is already required of 
business operators.  
 
Mr. Koseck said the implementation of this temporary policy would be a good opportunity for 
Board members to observe the winter outdoor dining options and to integrate those observations 
into the Board’s more general discussion of the outdoor dining standards. 
 
Motion by Mr. Williams 
Seconded by Mr. Koseck to set a public hearing on December 8, 2021 to amend Article 
4, Section 4.44 Outdoor Dining Standards of the zoning ordinance to remove temporal 
restrictions on outdoor dining patios in the public right-of-way and to allow outdoor 
dining fixtures and furnishings to stay outside. 
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
VOICE VOTE 
Yeas: Share, Williams, Whipple-Boyce, Jeffares, Clein, Koseck, Emerine 
Nays: None  
 

11-184-21 
 

 
K. Miscellaneous Business and Communications 

a. Communications  
b. Administrative Approval Correspondence 
c. Draft Agenda for next meeting  



Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings 
December 8, 2021 

2 

1. The Birmingham Plan 2040 – Review of Chapter Two (Embrace Managed
Growth)

PD Dupuis introduced the item. 

Mr. Lambert presented the item. 

The Chair invited Board comment. 

Mr. Williams commented that: 
● Oakland west of Woodward and Ann near Purdy should be left as-is, and not as

recommended in the light blue sections of the Future Land Use - Proposed Changes Map
and the map on District Seams;

● The furthest east parcel of the aforementioned section of Oakland west of Woodward
underwent a lot split in October 2021 which was not reflected on the map, and this area
was previously rejected for rezoning by the City Commission; and,

● Moving development closer to the road on Southfield, from Southlawn up to Canterbury,
would be worth further exploration.

Mr. Jeffares said he believed the area of Oakland Mr. Williams referred to should be upzoned. He 
noted the area has multifamily developments, commercial developments, and busy roads, and 
said that it was a prime candidate for the addition of duplexes and small-scale multifamily. He 
also noted that the maps were incorrect, because Lincoln does not go all the way through Haynes 
Square. 

Ms. Whipple-Boyce and Mr. Share agreed with Mr. Williams’ comments regarding Southfield Road. 
Ms. Whipple-Boyce and Mr. Share said there could be an opportunity to add moderately-priced 
housing along Southfield Road.  

In reply to Mr. Boyle, Mr. Lambert explained that the parcel to the north of Greenwood Cemetery 
in the Future Land Use Proposed Changes “District Seams” was being recommended for upzoning 
to bring it in line with the zoning of the adjacent area.  

Chair Clein concurred with Mr. Jeffares regarding Oakland, noting that zoning to allow low-
intensity multifamily would not preclude the addition of single family residential to the area if 
desired. He concurred with Mr. Williams’ recommendations for Ann. He said he agreed with Mr. 
Lambert’s comments about the homes near Willits.  

Two Board members stated they were comfortable with the recommendations for Lincoln and 14 
Mile.  

In reply to Board inquiry, Mr. Lambert stated: 
● It would be appropriate to consider having criteria for developments to qualify for

unbundled parking in order to incentivize more ‘missing middle’ housing; and,
● The Master Planning Team could look into other potential mechanisms for incentivizing

the City’s goals for residential unit size and cost.

ndupuis
Highlight

ndupuis
Highlight

ndupuis
Highlight



Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings 
December 8, 2021 

3 

Mr. Boyle agreed it remains important to look at the correlation between required parking, 
residential density, properties and their prices. He said that the Plan should at least state that as 
a goal for the City, even if it cannot make full recommendations of how to proceed.  

Chair Clein concurred with Mr. Boyle. 

Mr. Williams and Chair Clein stated that until the Triangle Area has parking available there will 
not be an increase in the Area’s residential development. 

Mr. Jeffares noted that the majority of the recommended “District Destinations” are near existing 
commercial areas. 

Mr. Lambert explained that the recommended “District Destinations” would be more oriented 
towards community gathering, like coffee shops, than the businesses already in those areas.  

In reply to Mr. Koseck, Mr. Lambert noted that while there were residents that expressed their 
opposition to accessory dwelling units (ADUs), some also offered their support for the concept. 
He said that ADUs could possibly be tested first in areas zoned for multifamily. He said that the 
recommendation had been reduced from the first draft, and that study remains necessary. 

Mr. Koseck said he had not spoken with anyone thus far who supported ADUs. 

Mr. Lambert reported that the second Plan survey had 116 replies, and raised the topic of ADUs. 
He said of the replies, 43% of the respondents were in favor of ADUs, 43% were not, and the 
remainder of the respondents were undecided.  

Chair Clein asked Mr. Lambert to reply to the email from Larry Bertollini which was submitted to 
the Board.  

In reply to the Chair, Mr. Lambert said he was recommending a commercial destination for the 
parcel on the northeast corner of Eton and Lincoln because it is adjacent to a substantial park 
and it would encourage further development of the Rail District.  

SP Cowan advised the Planning Board that the Parks and Recreation Board had recommended 
said parcel be developed with eight pickleball courts at its December 7, 2021 meeting.  

Public Comment 

Carl Kona spoke as a resident living in an area zoned for multifamily and said he was not in favor 
of ADUs. He said he could only see ADUs being appropriate on a case-by-case basis. 

Mr. Bertollini reviewed his email to the Board.  

Norm Cohen concurred with Mr. Kona. He said he was unsure how ADUs would add value to the 
community.  



Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings 
December 8, 2021 

4 

Mr. Williams said further exploration of zoning to allow main-floor additions, instead of vertical 
additions like ADUs, would likely be more beneficial in terms of keeping seniors in the community. 

Ms. Whipple-Boyce said she was curious to learn more about ADUs and was glad they had not 
been eliminated entirely from the draft Plan. She said study of ADUs would be appropriate. 

Chair Clein concurred with Ms. Whipple-Boyce, adding that he was not persuaded that denser 
areas were the appropriate trial locations for ADUs. 

Chair Clein responded to Mr. Bertollini’s comments. The Chair noted that sometimes broader 
Master Plan efforts supersede more local Master Plan efforts, as may be the case with the 2040 
Plan and the Kenning Park Master Plan. Chair Clein acknowledged that can be disappointing when 
one has put effort into the more local Master Plan, but can also be necessary when trying to plan 
for a whole community. He concluded by stating that he did not believe the best use for the 
northeast corner of Eton and Lincoln was pickleball or tennis courts. 

Chair Clein thanked all participants. 

2. Outdoor Dining (End Date)

PD Dupuis and Chair Clein introduced the item. 

There was no Board or public comment or inquiry. 

Motion by Mr. Williams 
Seconded by Mr. Boyle to recommend approval to the City Commission the ordinance 
amendments to Article 4, Section 4.44, Outdoor Dining Standards, to remove 
temporal restrictions on outdoor dining patios in the public right-of-way, and to allow 
outdoor dining fixtures and furnishings to stay outside overnight. 

Motion carried, 7-0. 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Williams, Boyle, Koseck, Share, Whipple-Boyce, Clein, Jeffares 
Nays: None  

3. Outdoor Dining (Comprehensive)

PD Dupuis reviewed the item. He noted that an establishment’s outdoor dining is restricted in 
most cases by ordinance to only being in front of said establishment’s storefront. 

Mr. Jeffares stated that while the resident survey on Engage Birmingham regarding outdoor dining 
had hundreds of respondents, he had heard from Birmingham Shopping District (BSD) members 
that very few business owners participated in writing the letter from the BSD to the Planning 
Board. He noted that page six of the BSD letter specified that the BSD received minimal feedback 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
January 12, 2022 

 

2 

 

 
J. Study Session 
 

1. The Birmingham Plan 2040 – Review of Chapter Three (Retain Neighborhood 
Quality) 

 
Mr. Lambert presented the item.  
 
Ms. Whipple-Boyce said there was a discrepancy between page 59, where the draft reads that 
“Community parks should provide the amenities of neighborhood parks, and include more 
significant active recreational offerings, cafes, restrooms, and other specialized amenities,” and 
the chart of recommended park amenities on page 57. She said she agreed with the text and 
thought the chart should be updated to match. 
 
Mr. Lambert agreed the text was the more accurate version.  
 
Ms. Whipple-Boyce and Mr. Koseck were in favor of the draft emphasizing its support for adding 
sidewalks to the places currently missing them. 
 
Mr. Williams noted that if the draft endorses more sidewalks that it must also recommend ways 
of retaining the tree canopy, since adding sidewalks would affect many mature trees. He said 
that replanting trees older than saplings would an appropriate approach. 
 
Ms. Whipple-Boyce expressed skepticism that relaxing zoning standards, expediting the 
application process, or reducing fees for proposed additions would sufficiently incentivize 
additions over new construction. She noted that in most neighborhoods there are also generous 
lot coverage allowances, in addition to small lots, which would make relaxing those aspects of 
the zoning standards difficult. She posited the City would likely need alternative incentives for 
additions over new construction. 
 
Mr. Koseck did not believe additions should be encouraged over new construction, noting that 
there can be poorly-executed additions and well-executed new construction. He said he would 
never encourage bigger footprint than what is currently allowed. He suggested that ways of 
incentivizing or requiring better architecture in Birmingham should be studied instead.  
 
Mr. Koseck recommended that the text of the draft be streamlined. He said that recommending 
Worth as a way to address park access for the Torry neighborhood is insufficient, since Worth is 
small and more of an urban park. He suggested the City be encouraged to consider partnerships 
with Our Shepherd Lutheran or Eton Academy to gain park space. He also suggested that certain 
unprogrammed areas of Kenning Park could be altered to make it appropriate for Torry use. 
 
Mr. Koseck stated that broad statements such as “Streets are the most pervasive public space in 
a city, and Birmingham’s streets are exceptionally beautiful and pleasant,” and “As a result, 
Birmingham retains a wonderful tree canopy and streets that are pleasant to walk along, bike 
along, and not too difficult to drive along,” be qualified. 
 

ndupuis
Highlight

ndupuis
Highlight

ndupuis
Highlight



Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings 
January 12, 2022 

3 

Mr. Koseck said he did not believe that there are calls for wider streets generally in Birmingham, 
and that statement should be removed. He said he was in favor of reducing the speed on 
residential streets to 20 m.p.h. if feasible. On page 63, he recommended that Master Plan Action 
Number Five, regarding convening a committee to establish tree policies, be moved to Number 
One instead.  

Mr. Koseck said on page 66 the statement “These houses are designed to stand out and be 
noticed, rather than harmonize with and complement neighboring houses,” was not likely 
accurate. He said the standing out was more a function of bad architecture than intent.  

Mr. Share expressed concern that the chart on page 57 might be overstepping the draft’s purview 
regarding parks. He said that the draft could just recommend that the Parks and Recreation Board 
(PRB) conduct a longer-term study of parks to see where the the amenities listed might be best 
located.  

Mr. Share stated that he did not think altering the posted speed on residential streets would be 
effective in slowing down traffic, and said other ways of calming traffic would likely be more 
effective. He said that his review of the statutes do not seem to support a speed limit of less than 
25 miles per hour. 

Mr. Share recommended that in addition to requiring native plants, the draft should recommend 
that plants more resilient to climate change be used as well. 

Mr. Share said he was not aware of unapproved builds occurring often. If they are not, he 
recommended that point two on page 67 be removed.  

Mr. Share noted that eight foot sidewalks would likely be too wide to accommodate in many 
mixed use areas.  

Mr. Share said he liked the idea of creating historic districts as one way of slowing down new 
construction. He said he would also consider allowing wider homes in exchange for reductions in 
height, along with adherence with to-be-determined district-specific design guidelines. 

Mr. Lambert stated that an eight foot sidewalk width was included as a best practice, not as a 
recommendation. He said the same was the case for the section on parks, and that the PRB could 
use the information as a basis for future park studies.  

Messrs. Boyle and Jeffares said they were in favor of the draft retaining the parks list. Mr. Boyle 
said supplying figures and info about the City in the draft is useful. 

Mr. Boyle and Chair Clein asked that the draft focus more on giving directives and prioritizing its 
recommendations. Mr. Boyle asked whether all the directions were equally important, whether 
they were all going in the direction the City wants, and whether they should all be addressed in 
the same time frame as factors to consider.  

Mr. Boyle said a priority for the draft should be the City’s implementation of the recommendations 
from the Ad Hoc Unimproved Streets Study Committee within a certain amount of time. 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
January 12, 2022 

 

4 

 

 
Mr. Boyle suggested that the best way to incentivize additions and not new buildings would be 
changing the way the buildings are taxed.  
 
Mr. Boyle noted that the map was inaccurate on page 58, and that #2 shows Cranbrook Park 
instead of Derby Well.  
 
Mr. Jeffares said the draft needed to focus more on adding senior amenities, like softball fields or 
shuffleboard, to the parks. He noted that parks do not have to contain brick and mortar cafes or 
nothing. He recommended that some of the larger parks be equipped with a concrete pad, water 
hook-up, and or electrical access in order to allow for pop-up amenities in the summer. He noted 
the City has precedent for working with schools or other organizations for shared park or facility 
use. He recommended that the City consider enhancing mobility in the area by allowing or 
encouraging the use of golf carts, noting that two can fit in a parking spot.  
 
Mr. Jeffares agreed that Lincoln between Southfield and Woodward be studied regarding whether 
parking is required on both sides. He cautioned that residents abutting a park should not have 
more of a say on how a park is used than other community members, since parks are community 
amenities.  
 
Messrs. Jeffares and Williams suggested that a small increase in lot coverage be considered for 
first floor additions, while making the second floor smaller than the first.  
 
Chair Clein said he would like to see more specificity in terms of reviewing neighborhood 
character, with the draft being clear that in doing so reducing the building footprint allowed per 
ordinance or other changes could be recommended.  
 
In reply to Chair Clein, Mr. Lambert stated that whether to further regulate aesthetics in single 
family residential areas is a matter that remains open to question based on Board and City 
preference. He noted that some residents seemed to want that, and some did not. He agreed 
that zoning should be used to better align houses to the character of the neighborhoods around 
them. He said that currently district standards specify lot size basis but not more particular 
character of neighborhoods. He agreed that the draft should recommend that the neighborhoods 
be reviewed for character, including bulk standards, and guidelines for new construction should 
be written based on those findings. He stated he did believe that bulk standards in the City can 
be too generous and can lead to the issues with new construction. 
 
Mr. Williams recommended that oversimplification of the parking categories be resisted since one 
or two solutions would not address the needs of every neighborhood.  
 
Public Comment 
 
Carl Kona said he was supportive of adding sidewalks, and said he would like to see the draft 
make recommendations for maintenance of already existing sidewalks. He said he also wanted 
to make sure that parking limitations are sufficiently strict near the downtown in order to allow 
downtown residents to park near their homes.  
 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
January 12, 2022 

 

5 

 

Paul Reagan commended the Board members and Mr. Lambert for their work and comments thus 
far. He said that one way to stem demolitions would be to study why people are leaving the 
community and to do more to address those issues. He suggested that requiring the addition of 
drainage wells to new construction could act as a disincentive. He agreed with Mr. Lambert that 
the bulk and size allowances in Birmingham are often too generous. He recommended that the 
parks be considered as a system, and not just as individual parks. He said more needed to be 
done in planning for an aging population. 
 
David Bloom said the City should explore ways to offset the costs of installing elevators into 
homes for seniors, which would eliminate the need to find ways to expand first floor additions. 
He said he wanted residents living near parks to continue to be engaged about potential changes 
to park amenities.  
 
Mr. Bloom also made a number of comments regarding seams. Chair Clein addressed the 
comments, and noted that those issues had been discussed thoroughly during the Board’s 
November 2021 and December 2021 meetings and were not part of the topic at hand. 
 
Cindy Rose said zoning should be reviewed because new construction is negatively affecting 
character of the community. 
 
After public comment concluded, Mr. Lambert said prioritizing partnerships with schools to 
increase access to parks for the community should be a more clear recommendation in the draft. 
He said that at the end of the review of the second draft, he and the Board should discuss how 
recommendations in the chapters should be prioritized.  
 
In regards to whether speeds on residential streets could be lowered, Chair Clein asked Mr. 
Lambert to consult with ACM Ecker and the City Attorney. 
 

2. Outdoor Dining (Comprehensive) 
 
PD Dupuis summarized the item. 
 
Ms. Whipple-Boyce recommended that if the Planning Board were to consider year-round outdoor 
dining at any point moving forward, more enclosed and/or heated options be considered for the 
coldest times of year.  
 
Mr. Williams said he was concerned that the Board did not have sufficient expertise to make 
appropriate recommendations without an outside consultant. 
 
Mr. Jeffares and Chair Clein expressed more confidence that the Board would be able to make 
appropriate recommendations. 
 
Mr. Williams suggested then that the Board could make recommendations and maybe also 
continue a longer-term study with a consultant in the future. 
 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
February 9, 2022 

 

3 

 

There was Board consensus to discuss the questions posed in the Study Session #8 summary at 
the next Board discussion of outdoor dining.  
 
Mr. Williams asked for photographic examples of outdoor dining located on both a deck and the 
sidewalk.  
 

2. 2040 Plan – Chapter 4 (Support Mixed-Use Districts) & Chapter 5 (Advance 
Sustainability Practices) 

 
Chair Clein and PD Dupuis introduced the item. 
 
Mr. Lambert presented the item. 
 
In reply to Mr. Williams, ACM Ecker noted that all boards and committees provided feedback on 
the first draft of the master plan.  
 
Chair Clein asked Staff to solicit feedback from other boards and committees on the second draft 
of the master plan, especially regarding tasks the draft suggests the various boards and 
committees undertake in the future.  
 
Individual Board member comments were as follows: 

● Chapters Four and Five had areas that were too detailed for a master plan; 
● Discouraging barriers for outdoor dining may not be appropriate; 
● There may be too much flexibility recommended for the Rail District; 
● It may be appropriate to include an appendix of potential ways to implement 

recommendations rather than including those examples in the body of the plan; 
● Prioritizing intergovernmental cooperation should be emphasized as part of the 

sustainability recommendations; 
● It might be more appropriate for the City to determine what sustainability goals it would 

like its developments to meet instead of using LEED certification as a metric since LEED 
is an imperfect measure of sustainability; 

● The canopy recommendations would likely be helpful in mitigating the noise and speeding 
problems on Woodward but may not be enough to eliminate the issues; 

● Enhancing the safety of crossing Woodward may need more attention in the plan; 
● Mr. Lambert should stay apprised of the Board’s decisions regarding 770 S. Adams 

because it will impact the plan’s recommendations for Worth Plaza; 
● The recommendations for Market North and the Rail District are both attractive and likely 

feasible; 
● The sustainability board is a good idea and would likely get new and different residents 

involved with the City; 
● The draft recommends EV charging in the parking decks but also notes that the parking 

decks cannot afford to lose spaces to dedicated EV charging, which is an inconsistency 
that should be addressed; 

● The focus on increasing pedestrian activity in the downtown is appropriate, and social 
districts could be recommended as another way of increasing downtown pedestrian 
activity; 

ndupuis
Highlight

ndupuis
Highlight

ndupuis
Highlight



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
February 9, 2022 

 

4 

 

● Parking deck occupancy is currently around 55% and the draft says it is at 90%, so that 
should be updated; 

● Studying shared use streets is a good idea more broadly, though Merrill may not be an 
appropriate location; 

● The draft should tie-in the Library’s long-range plan in terms of Library-related 
recommendations; 

● The recommendations regarding Bates Street and parking at the Farmer’s Market should 
be coordinated; 

● Bumpouts should be considered in the Bates Street-Farmer’s Market area, particularly on 
the east side, to provide some space for outdoor dining; and, 

● A reference to the Low Impact Design Manual put together by SEMCOG and EGLE would 
likely be appropriate in the draft’s Green Stormwater Infrastructure section. 

 
Regarding the South Woodward Gateway, Mr. Williams said more feedback should be solicited 
from the residents that would be impacted to the east and west.  
 
Ms. Whipple-Boyce said she loved the recommendations for the South Woodward Gateway but 
was concerned that they were not achievable. 
 
Mr. Jeffares liked the recommendations for the South Woodward Gateway and said he did not 
believe them to be farfetched. He concurred with Mr. Williams that the development in that area 
would likely be piecemeal, and stated that this is a good project to include as something to stretch 
towards in the plan.  
 
Messrs. Jeffares and Emerine spoke in favor of the recommendations to improve the Rouge River 
natural area. Mr. Jeffares emphasized the importance of creating an accessible pathway so all 
can enjoy the Rouge River.  
 
Mr. Emerine noted that the City was in the process of updating its stormwater standards to align 
with the State’s and County’s updated standards. He said that those standards would apply to all 
developments except but single family residential. He said he was not sure if that information tied 
in to the plan but that he thought it relevant to provide. 
 
Chair Clein thanked Mr. Jeffares for his recommendation that the plan include projects to stretch 
towards. He said he was respectfully frustrated with some Board members’ comments that would 
seek to remove some of the more ambitious parts of the draft. He questioned the point of having 
done a master plan in that scenario.  
 
The Chair continued by noting that the Board, City, and Master Planning Team have actively 
pursued public feedback regarding the plan for two years. He emphatically stated that this process 
has solicited more public feedback than any other master plan he had been involved in. He said 
he wanted to challenge the Board to push forward on getting final public input and on finishing 
the plan. He warned the Board about getting caught up in ‘analysis paralysis’. 
 
Public Comment 
 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
February 9, 2022 

 

5 

 

Ms. Steglish said she wanted to see diversity of residents and housing stock prioritized in the 
plan. 
 
Chair Clein noted that the draft addresses those issues in other chapters.  
 
David Bloom raised concerns about the City having sufficient parking to accommodate its current 
and potential growth. 
 
Mr. Jeffares commended Mr. Lambert. He recommended that items that were not accomplished 
from the 2016 Plan be considered for inclusion in the 2040 Plan.  
 
Chair Clein thanked Mr. Lambert.  
 

02-34-22 
 
K. Miscellaneous Business and Communications 
 
Mr. Williams asked PD Dupuis to clarify when the next joint Planning Board-City Commission 
meeting will be.  
 

1. Pre-Application Discussions  
i. Sweet Green 

 
PD Dupuis presented the item.  
 
The Board granted permission for administrative approval. 
 
Chair Clein noted that if other establishments near Sweet Green want to add outdoor dining in 
the future, attention must be paid to the layout of the outdoor dining so as not to negatively 
impact those with visual or other impairments.  
 

ii. Cannelle Patisserie   
 
SP Cowan and owner Matt Knio Garen Damiryan presented the item. 
 
SP Cowan noted that the Building and Engineering Departments’ previous concerns with the 
outdoor dining design were resolved. 
 
It was noted that if queuing issues result from the walkup window the proprietor could find ways 
to address the issue.  
 
The Board granted permission for administrative approval. 
 

2. Communications 
i. City Attorney Memo – Roberts Rules 

 
Chair Clein said he appreciated the the City Attorney’s guidance. 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
March 9, 2022 

 

4 

 

3. 525 E. Brown – Birmingham Roast – Request for changes to outdoor dining 
patio (Postponed from September 9, 2021) 

 
PD Dupuis summarized the item. 
 
Jesse Dhillon, Managing Partner of Birmingham Roast, was present on behalf of the item. 
 
Mr. Jeffares said that of all the outdoor dining examples that arose during Covid-19 this was the 
best. He said he would be pleased if more outdoor dining looked like the proposal in this case. 
He said the fire suppression requirements should not be an issue, noting that other establishments 
do the same.   
 
Chair Clein said that while he usually does not like proposals with awnings he likes this one and 
thinks the overall proposal is appropriate for its location. 
 
Motion by Ms. Whipple-Boyce 
Seconded by Mr. Williams to approve the Design Review application for 525 E. Brown 
– Birmingham Roast – with the following conditions:  

1. The applicant must either maintain or enter into a new rental agreement 
with the City for the use of the public property; and, 
2. The applicant must comply with the requests of all City Departments. 
 

Mr. Share said he remained concerned about the type of proposed cover and would 
be voting no on this motion. 
 
Motion carried, 6-1. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Jeffares, Williams, Whipple-Boyce, Koseck, Ramin, Clein 
Nays: Share 
 

03-57-22 
J. Study Session 
 
PD Dupuis proposed that the Board review Item J2 prior to Item J1.  
 
Motion by Mr. Williams 
Seconded by Mr. Share to reverse the order of review for Items J1 and J2. 
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
VOICE VOTE 
Yeas: Jeffares, Williams, Whipple-Boyce, Koseck, Ramin, Clein, Share 
Nays: None 
 

1. 2040 Master Plan (previously Item J2) 
 

ndupuis
Highlight

ndupuis
Highlight

ndupuis
Highlight



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
March 9, 2022 

 

5 

 

PD Dupuis introduced the item. 
 
Board comment regarding the ‘General Direction’ section of Mr. Lambert’s memorandum were as 
follows: 

● Number five should address the broader thematic goal of uniting the east and west side 
of the City, with common elements of crossings being a tool for doing so; 

● Number 15 should say the Master Plan (the Plan) recommends the City look at each 
neighborhood to see if the allowable height, bulk, and setbacks should be modified to 
better reflect the conditions of each neighborhood; 

● Number 16 could be more generally about micro-mobility options instead of specifically 
mentioning golf carts; 

● The Plan should recommend the City explore how to make public property available for 
private use; and, 

● While there was some skepticism from one Board member about a 20 m.p.h. speed limit 
as mentioned in Number 17, both in terms of legality and efficacy, there was a more 
general consensus that the recommendation should be explored and the discussion could 
go from there. 

 
Board comment regarding the ‘Prioritization’ section of Mr. Lambert’s memorandum were as 
follows: 

● There was Board consensus that Number seven should more specifically be ‘updating the 
zoning code to foster neighborhood preservation’. It arose often as a core resident concern 
and should be considered a significant priority;  

● The revision of the Multi-Modal Plan, as it relates to Woodward, should be listed as a high 
priority; 

● Implementing unimproved streets recommendations should be moved higher on the list; 
● Establishing a Sustainability Board should remain high on the list, as it needs to be done 

imminently and would not be difficult to achieve; 
● Bates Street and moving the Farmer’s Market should be considered as part of Number 

Two; 
● A Senior Facility should be included somewhere on the priority list;  
● Number Four should be described a bit more in layperson’s terms; 
● The Plan should make clear why the priorities are important, why ordinance changes 

should be considered to reflect the priorities, and why time is of the essence; and, 
● Worth Park and a parking structure for the Triangle should be added to the priority list. 

 
Board comment regarding the ‘Further Direction Needed’ section of Mr. Lambert’s memorandum 
were as follows: 

● Number three is not particularly important in the context of a Plan that focuses on the 
neighborhoods; 

● Attention should be maintained on creating attainable housing and diversifying housing 
stock in the Triangle, the Rail, and the 14 Mile-to-Lincoln stretch of Woodward in order to 
bring in and retain young families; 

● The City should work with Birmingham Public Schools to find further use for the facilities 
for both senior and/or community uses; 

● There was consensus that traffic calming and enhancement of the Woodward and Maple 
intersection should occur; and, 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
March 9, 2022 

 

6 

 

● Number Two merits inclusion in terms of its effects neighborhood cohesion. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Samuel Oh, resident and member of the Corridor Improvement Authority, spoke on behalf of his 
neighborhood group in the Triangle. He expressed concerns about the speed and density of 
traffic, about the process of appointments for the Corridor Improvement Authority, and about 
potentially increasing density in the Triangle. He requested that a park or open space be 
considered for the Triangle. 
 
Chair Clein clarified that: 

● The Plan itself makes recommendations but does not rezone properties; and, 
● The recommendations made for the Triangle in the Plan align with the Triangle Plan which 

was adopted by the City in 2007.  
 
Mr. Oh reiterated his belief that the Plan rezoned properties in the Triangle to a higher density. 
 
David Bloom said the Plan should provide more clarity on how a Master Plan influences zoning, 
noting that the process may confuse some residents. He advocated for clarity in the Plan as to 
whether there is insufficient parking in the City, recommended public engagement on the Plan’s 
recommendations, raised concerns about having cafes in the parks, and said there should be 
clarity regarding whether a mezzanine is considered a ‘floor’ in describing building heights. 
 
Jack Reinhardt, Managing Partner of the 555 Building, expressed concern about the S. Old 
Woodward project. He said he had not received notice of discussions of the S. Old Woodward 
project. 
 
Chair Clein clarified that the present topic before the Board was the Master Plan.  
 
Mr. Williams said Mr. Reinhardt’s comments regarding the S. Old Woodward project would be 
more appropriately directed to the Commission. 
 
Mr. Reinhardt then expressed concern about the loss of parking in the S. Old Woodward area.  
 

2. Outdoor Dining Standards (previously Item J1) 
 
PD Dupuis introduced the item. 
 
Mr. Share recommended in Article 4, Section 4.44(B), “or by the Planning Division at the discretion 
of the Planning Director” would be changed to “or by the Planning Division at the discretion of 
the Planning Board”, and that “throughout the year with a valid Outdoor Dining License” be 
removed from Article 4, Section 4.44(B)(5).  
 
Mr. Jeffares and Chair Clein said the ‘written permission’ referenced in Article 4, Section 4.44(B)(4) 
should require renewal yearly and should be submitted to the City as part of the Outdoor dining 
patio renewal process. Chair Clein recommended Staff determine where best to include that as 
part of the policy. 



 
 
 
 
 
 

DPZ Presentation Slides 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Draft 2 Review:
Meeting 1
PLANNING BOARD · NOVEMBER 10, 2021

DPZ  GIBBS  MCKENNA



Direction for the 2nd Draft: General
Direction Provided Ch. Has This Been Addressed?
1. Reduce Length All 👍 Yes

2. Action Prioritization All 👉 Partially; to be further refined in Draft 2 review process

3. Simplify Language All 👉 Partially; unclear language to be identified in Draft 2 review process

4. Population Projections 2 👍 Yes

5. Include Infrastructure All 👎 Not within scope

6. Increase Sustainability Focus 5 👍 Yes

7. Address Covid-19 All 👍 To the extent possible

8. Focus on Big Moves / Forward-looking All 👍 Yes, in language and actions

9. Prominently Feature Schools All 👎 No; recommended process to be discussed

10. Feature Next 1 👉 Partially; it is identified clearly but the recommendations are for further study

11. Address Outside Connections 1 👉 Partially; the plan does this indirectly, need further direction

12. Historic Districts 3 👍 Yes

13. Walkability for Older Adults All 👉 Partially; address in the neighborhood loop and parks

14. Focus Growth in Mixed-use Areas 2 & 4 👍 Yes

15. More Outdoor Gathering Spaces 3 & 4 👍 Yes

16. Focus on Big Woodward Safety 1 👍 Yes

17. Add Big Woodward North of Maple 1 & 4 👉 Yes; most detail is provided in the text, action items split between Ch. 1 & 4

18. Refer Parking Complexity to Further Study 3 👍 Yes

19. More Broadly Address the Rouge 5 👍 Yes

20. Consider Future of Golf Courses ? 👎 No; further direction needed

👍 Addressed

👉
Addressed but the approach 
requires review

👎
Not addressed or requires 
more information



Direction for the 2nd Draft: Mixed-Use Districts
Direction Provided Ch. Has This Been Addressed?
GENERAL

1.1. More Shared Streets 4 👉 Partially; more may be considered

1.2. Consider Dining Decks re: Covid-19 4 👍 Yes

1.3. EV Charging in MU Districts 4 👉 Partially; within parking decks, further opportunities may be discussed

MAPLE & WOODWARD

2.1. Include Bates Street 4 👉 Partially; recommended for a further special study

2.2. Revisit Pilot Parking re: Covid-19 4 👍 Yes; Covid is unlikely to increase downtown parking demand

2.3. Lighten Retail Standards on Side Streets 4 👎 No; will include but we need to discuss authority and process

HAYNES SQUARE

3.1. Include Adams Square 1 & 4 👍 Yes

3.2. Consider Live-work Buildings 1 & 4 👎 Oversight. Should this be added to the Haynes Square Plan or Zoning in general?

3.3. Add Connection from Worth to Bowers 1 👎 Oversight. To add to the Haynes Square Plan

3.4. Address Haynes Ownership Transfer 1 👉 Partially; included within the Haynes Square Plan recommended study items

3.5. Focus MissingMiddle on Haynes/Adams Sq. 2 👎 Property values are too high here, focused on the Med. & High Intensity Seams

3.6. Look at the Haynes / Adams Traffic Proposal 1 👉 The proposal would function, however it needs actual analysis in a full plan

SOUTH WOODWARD GATEWAY

4.1. South Woodward Gateway Housing 4 👉 Buildings are the best buffer to noise; has been directed to a full plan update

👍 Addressed

👉
Addressed but the approach 
requires review

👎
Not addressed or requires 
more information



Direction for the 2nd Draft: Neighborhoods
Direction Provided Ch. Has This Been Addressed?
1. Revise Planning Districts All 👍 Yes

2. Significantly Reduce Seams 2 👍 Yes

3. Revisit and Limit Accessory Dwellings 2 👍 Yes

4. Reduce and Clarify Commercial Destinations 1 👉 Yes; however the locations and uses should be reviewed

5. Torry Requires More Amenities 3 👍 Yes; this has always been included but may now be more clear

6. Reference the Unimproved Streets Committee 3 👍 Yes

7. Focus on Completing Missing Sidewalks 3 👍 Yes

8. Provide More Green Infrastructure Detail 5 👉 Yes; however it is referred to further study in a Green Infrastructure Plan

9. Clarify the Neighborhood Loop 1 👉 Partially; clarified in text but referred for specific design to be completed

10. Clarify Kenning Park Paths 3 👍 Indirectly; walking paths are addressed generally for Kenning and other parks

11. More Aggressive Tree Preservation 3 👍 Yes

12. More Financial Details on Renovations 3 👉 Partially; recommend a committee be convened to study this

13. Review Lot Coverage Standards 2 👍 It is part of the overall zoning review

14. Provide More Design Control Detail 3 👎 We should discuss if this is desired, it may be a recommended study with examples

15. Remove lot combinations areas 2 👉 Yes; the impact of the existing ordinance should be discussed

👍 Addressed

👉
Addressed but the approach 
requires review

👎
Not addressed or requires 
more information



Document Reorganization
 
 

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 c

Contents

A. Introduction

Context ...................................................................... 2
A Global Pandemic ..................................................... 2
Planning Districts ....................................................... 3

B. Future Land Use

Future Land Use Map ................................................. 9
Zoning Plan ...............................................................10
Birmingham Planning Districts ................................... 11
Mixed-use District Fabric ...........................................13
Neighborhood District Fabric .....................................13
District Seams ...........................................................14
District Destinations...................................................15

C. Summary of Key Actions

Key Actions ...............................................................18

Ch 1. Connect the City

Overcome the Woodward Divide ................................28
Redefine Downtown Districts .....................................32
Implement Haynes Square .........................................34
Encourage Gathering Places ......................................37
Prioritize the Neighborhood Loop ...............................40
Accommodate More Modes of Movement ..................42
Improve Regional Transit Connections ........................43
Multi-modal Plan Updates ..........................................44

Ch 2. Embrace Managed Growth

Encourage Housing in Mixed-use Districts ..................48
Infill Some Medium and High Intensity District Seams .50
Study Accessory Dwelling Units .................................51
Update the Zoning Code ............................................52

Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality

Equip Parks to Serve Neighborhoods .........................56
Keep Streets Pedestrian-oriented...............................60
Replace Unimproved Streets ......................................62
Retain Street Tree Canopy .........................................63
Revise Parking Restrictions ........................................64
Retain Housing Character ..........................................66

Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

Continue Improving the Maple and Woodward District 70
Implement Haynes Square .........................................77
Adopt a South Woodward Gateway Plan ....................77
Develop a North Woodward Gateway Plan .................80
Keep it Loose in the Rail District.................................81

Ch 5. Advance Sustainability Practices

Green the City’s Municipal Operations ........................88
Require Green Building in New Construction ..............88
Expand Recycling and Composting ............................88
Install Green Stormwater Infrastructure in Neighborhood 
Streets and Parks ......................................................89
Improve the Rouge River Natural Area ........................89
Implement Plan Actions Supporting Sustainability .......91



B. Future Land Use

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/218

Future Land Use Map

B. Future Land Use

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 9

Future	Land	Use:	1:400

Municipal	Boundary

Downtown	Neighborhood

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Civic	Use
Civic

School

Cemetery

Destinations
Neighborhood	Destination

EX

Mixed	Use	Centers
Downtown

Haynes	Square

Market	North

Railroad	District

South	Woodward	Gateway

Neighborhood	Intensities
Commercial

High

Medium

Low

Neighborhood	Seams
High

Medium

Low

De-densification

Parks
Parks	and	Open	Space

Boundaries  

  Planning Districts 

District Destinations

  Civic Destination: General 

  Civic Destination: School

  Civic Destination: Cemetery

  Recreational Destination

  Commercial Destination

Mixed Use District Fabric

  High Intensity

  Medium Intensity

  Low Intensity

Neighborhood District Fabric

  High Intensity

  Medium Intensity

  Low Intensity

District Seams

High Intensity (TZ-1, TZ-3, R3, R4, 

R5, R6, R7, R8, and MX)

Medium Intensity (TZ-1, R3, R4, 

R5, R6, and R8)

Low Intensity (R1A, R1, R2, R3)

Future Land Use Map
Birmingham’s future land use map is structured by Planning 

District boundaries within which land uses reinforce the 

desired future character. This map serves as the basis 

for zoning, specifying where different uses and intensities 

are appropriate throughout the City. This Future Land Use 

Map aims to identify, sustain, and strengthen Birmingham’s 

neighborhoods and mixed-use districts. The following 

sections describe each land use in greater detail.

Figure 6. Future Land Use Map.

Redding RdRedding Rd
Redding RdRedding Rd

Quarton RdQuarton Rd

Big Beaver RdBig Beaver Rd

Wimbleton DrWimbleton Dr

Mohegan StMohegan St

Rivenoak StRivenoak St

Madison StMadison St

Abbey StAbbey St

Tottenham RdTottenham Rd

Derby Rd
Derby Rd

Pembroke RdPembroke Rd

Windemere RdWindemere Rd

Buckingham AveBuckingham Ave

Westboro DrWestboro Dr

Yorkshire RdYorkshire Rd

Dorchester RdDorchester Rd
Dorchester RdDorchester Rd

Ridgedale AveRidgedale Ave

Oakland AveOakland Ave

Oakland Ave

Oakland Ave

O
xford St

O
xford St

Maple RdMaple Rd
Maple RdMaple Rd

Maple RdMaple Rd

Martin StMartin St

Merrill StMerrill St

Townsend StTownsend St

Brown StBrown St

Forest AveForest Ave
Yosemite BlvdYosemite Blvd

Villa RdVilla Rd

C
olum

bia St
C

olum
bia St Eton St

Eton St
Eton St
Eton St

Saint Andrew
s St

Saint Andrew
s St

C
oolidge H

w
y

C
oolidge H

w
y

G
raefield Rd

G
raefield Rd

Bowers StBowers St

Hazel StHazel St

Haynes StHaynes St
Haynes St
Haynes St

Holland StHolland St Torry St
Torry St

Torry St
Torry St

Taunton R
d

Taunton R
d

Eton St
Eton St

Sheffield Rd

Sheffield Rd

Webster StWebster St

Cole StCole St
Cole StCole St

Chestnut StChestnut St

Hazel StHazel St

Willis StWillis St

B
aldw

in Ave
B

aldw
in Ave

G
reenw

ood St
G

reenw
ood St

W
oodland St

W
oodland St

O
ld W

oodward Ave

O
ld W

oodward Ave

Woodward Ave

Woodward Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

Adam
s R

d
Adam

s R
d

W
orth St

W
orth St

Adam
s R

d
Adam

s R
d

Adam
s R

d
Adam

s R
d

Raynale StRaynale St

Lakeside D
r

Lakeside D
r

Lakeside D
r

Lakeside D
r

La
ke

 P
ar

k 
Dr

La
ke

 P
ar

k 
Dr

Lake Park D
r

Lake Park D
r

B
ro

ok
w

oo
d 

St
B

ro
ok

w
oo

d 
St

C
hesterfield Ave

C
hesterfield Ave

G
le

nh
ur

st
 D

r
G

le
nh

ur
st

 D
r

W
es

tw
oo

d 
D

r
W

es
tw

oo
d 

D
r

Ly
on

hu
rs

t S
t

Ly
on

hu
rs

t S
t

G
lenhurst Ave

G
lenhurst Ave

Larchlea D
r

Larchlea D
r

W
estchester W

ay
W

estchester W
ay

Pleasant Ave
Pleasant Ave

W
el

le
sl

ey
 D

r

W
el

le
sl

ey
 D

r

Devon LnDevon Ln

Ar
gy

le
 B

lv
d

Ar
gy

le
 B

lv
d

Arlington St
Arlington St

Arlington St
Arlington St

Shirley R
d

Shirley R
d

Shirley R
d

Shirley R
d

Linden R
d

Linden R
d

Aspen R
d

Aspen R
d

H
aw

thorne St
H

aw
thorne St

Oak AveOak AveOak Ave
Oak Ave

Oak AveOak Ave

VinewoodVinewood

HarmonHarmon

PinePine

MapleMaple

AvonAvon

Midvale StMidvale St

W
oo

dl
ea

 C
t

W
oo

dl
ea

 C
t

Lincoln RdLincoln Rd

Fairway DrFairway Dr

Northlawn Blvd

Northlawn Blvd

Norfolk StNorfolk St

G
reenlaw

n St
G

reenlaw
n St

G
olfview

 B
lvd

G
olfview

 B
lvd

C
ranbrook R

d
C

ranbrook R
d

Lincoln RdLincoln Rd Lincoln RdLincoln Rd
Wallace StWallace St

Frank StFrank St Purdy St

Purdy St
Ann St
Ann StPierce St

Pierce St
Pierce St
Pierce St

Park St
Park St

Park St
Park St

Ferndale Ave

Ferndale Ave

George StGeorge St

C
hester St

C
hester St

B
ates St

B
ates St

H
enrietta St

H
enrietta St

Stanley B
lvd

Stanley B
lvd

Southfield R
d

Southfield R
d

H
enrietta St

H
enrietta St

Pierce St
Pierce St

C
edar D

r
C

edar D
r

Edgew
ood R

d
Edgew

ood R
d

G
rant St

G
rant St

C
um

m
ings Ave

C
um

m
ings Ave

W
ashington

W
ashington

M
aryland

M
aryland

Shipm
an B

lvd
Shipm

an B
lvd

W
atkins St

W
atkins StSo

ut
hfi

el
d 

Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

Old W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

Hanna StHanna St

Lincoln RdLincoln Rd

Southlawn BlvdSouthlawn Blvd

Southlawn BlvdSouthlawn Blvd

Northlawn BlvdNorthlawn Blvd

Southlawn BlvdSouthlawn Blvd

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd
14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

Ruffner AveRuffner Ave

Humphrey AveHumphrey Ave

ChapinChapin

Banbury
Banbury

Bradford RdBradford Rd

M
elton Rd

M
elton Rd

Bennaville AveBennaville Ave

Emmons AveEmmons Ave

Smith AveSmith Ave

Bird AveBird Ave
14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

Saxon DrSaxon Dr

Pi
lg

rim
 A

ve
Pi

lg
rim

 A
ve

Pu
rt

ia
n 

Av
e

Pu
rt

ia
n 

Av
e

Fa
irf

ax
 S

t
Fa

irf
ax

 S
t

Su
ffi

el
d 

Av
e

Su
ffi

el
d 

Av
e

Penistone

Penistone

Future Land Use

B. Future Land Use

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/218

Future Land Use Map

B. Future Land Use

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 9

Future	Land	Use:	1:400

Municipal	Boundary

Downtown	Neighborhood

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Civic	Use
Civic

School

Cemetery

Destinations
Neighborhood	Destination

EX

Mixed	Use	Centers
Downtown

Haynes	Square

Market	North

Railroad	District

South	Woodward	Gateway

Neighborhood	Intensities
Commercial

High

Medium

Low

Neighborhood	Seams
High

Medium

Low

De-densification

Parks
Parks	and	Open	Space

Boundaries  

  Planning Districts 

District Destinations

  Civic Destination: General 

  Civic Destination: School

  Civic Destination: Cemetery

  Recreational Destination

  Commercial Destination

Mixed Use District Fabric

  High Intensity

  Medium Intensity

  Low Intensity

Neighborhood District Fabric

  High Intensity

  Medium Intensity

  Low Intensity

District Seams

High Intensity (TZ-1, TZ-3, R3, R4, 

R5, R6, R7, R8, and MX)

Medium Intensity (TZ-1, R3, R4, 

R5, R6, and R8)

Low Intensity (R1A, R1, R2, R3)

Future Land Use Map
Birmingham’s future land use map is structured by Planning 

District boundaries within which land uses reinforce the 

desired future character. This map serves as the basis 

for zoning, specifying where different uses and intensities 

are appropriate throughout the City. This Future Land Use 

Map aims to identify, sustain, and strengthen Birmingham’s 

neighborhoods and mixed-use districts. The following 

sections describe each land use in greater detail.

Figure 6. Future Land Use Map.

Redding RdRedding Rd
Redding RdRedding Rd

Quarton RdQuarton Rd

Big Beaver RdBig Beaver Rd

Wimbleton DrWimbleton Dr

Mohegan StMohegan St

Rivenoak StRivenoak St

Madison StMadison St

Abbey StAbbey St

Tottenham RdTottenham Rd

Derby Rd
Derby Rd

Pembroke RdPembroke Rd

Windemere RdWindemere Rd

Buckingham AveBuckingham Ave

Westboro DrWestboro Dr

Yorkshire RdYorkshire Rd

Dorchester RdDorchester Rd
Dorchester RdDorchester Rd

Ridgedale AveRidgedale Ave

Oakland AveOakland Ave

Oakland Ave

Oakland Ave

O
xford St

O
xford St

Maple RdMaple Rd
Maple RdMaple Rd

Maple RdMaple Rd

Martin StMartin St

Merrill StMerrill St

Townsend StTownsend St

Brown StBrown St

Forest AveForest Ave
Yosemite BlvdYosemite Blvd

Villa RdVilla Rd

C
olum

bia St
C

olum
bia St Eton St

Eton St
Eton St
Eton St

Saint Andrew
s St

Saint Andrew
s St

C
oolidge H

w
y

C
oolidge H

w
y

G
raefield Rd

G
raefield Rd

Bowers StBowers St

Hazel StHazel St

Haynes StHaynes St
Haynes St
Haynes St

Holland StHolland St Torry St
Torry St

Torry St
Torry St

Taunton R
d

Taunton R
d

Eton St
Eton St

Sheffield Rd

Sheffield Rd

Webster StWebster St

Cole StCole St
Cole StCole St

Chestnut StChestnut St

Hazel StHazel St

Willis StWillis St

B
aldw

in Ave
B

aldw
in Ave

G
reenw

ood St
G

reenw
ood St

W
oodland St

W
oodland St

O
ld W

oodward Ave

O
ld W

oodward Ave

Woodward Ave

Woodward Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

Adam
s R

d
Adam

s R
d

W
orth St

W
orth St

Adam
s R

d
Adam

s R
d

Adam
s R

d
Adam

s R
d

Raynale StRaynale St

Lakeside D
r

Lakeside D
r

Lakeside D
r

Lakeside D
r

La
ke

 P
ar

k 
Dr

La
ke

 P
ar

k 
Dr

Lake Park D
r

Lake Park D
r

B
ro

ok
w

oo
d 

St
B

ro
ok

w
oo

d 
St

C
hesterfield Ave

C
hesterfield Ave

G
le

nh
ur

st
 D

r
G

le
nh

ur
st

 D
r

W
es

tw
oo

d 
D

r
W

es
tw

oo
d 

D
r

Ly
on

hu
rs

t S
t

Ly
on

hu
rs

t S
t

G
lenhurst Ave

G
lenhurst Ave

Larchlea D
r

Larchlea D
r

W
estchester W

ay
W

estchester W
ay

Pleasant Ave
Pleasant Ave

W
el

le
sl

ey
 D

r

W
el

le
sl

ey
 D

r

Devon LnDevon Ln

Ar
gy

le
 B

lv
d

Ar
gy

le
 B

lv
d

Arlington St
Arlington St

Arlington St
Arlington St

Shirley R
d

Shirley R
d

Shirley R
d

Shirley R
d

Linden R
d

Linden R
d

Aspen R
d

Aspen R
d

H
aw

thorne St
H

aw
thorne St

Oak AveOak AveOak Ave
Oak Ave

Oak AveOak Ave

VinewoodVinewood

HarmonHarmon

PinePine

MapleMaple

AvonAvon

Midvale StMidvale St

W
oo

dl
ea

 C
t

W
oo

dl
ea

 C
t

Lincoln RdLincoln Rd

Fairway DrFairway Dr

Northlawn Blvd

Northlawn Blvd

Norfolk StNorfolk St

G
reenlaw

n St
G

reenlaw
n St

G
olfview

 B
lvd

G
olfview

 B
lvd

C
ranbrook R

d
C

ranbrook R
d

Lincoln RdLincoln Rd Lincoln RdLincoln Rd
Wallace StWallace St

Frank StFrank St Purdy St

Purdy St
Ann St
Ann StPierce St

Pierce St
Pierce St
Pierce St

Park St
Park St

Park St
Park St

Ferndale Ave

Ferndale Ave

George StGeorge St

C
hester St

C
hester St

B
ates St

B
ates St

H
enrietta St

H
enrietta St

Stanley B
lvd

Stanley B
lvd

Southfield R
d

Southfield R
d

H
enrietta St

H
enrietta St

Pierce St
Pierce St

C
edar D

r
C

edar D
r

Edgew
ood R

d
Edgew

ood R
d

G
rant St

G
rant St

C
um

m
ings Ave

C
um

m
ings Ave

W
ashington

W
ashington

M
aryland

M
aryland

Shipm
an B

lvd
Shipm

an B
lvd

W
atkins St

W
atkins StSo

ut
hfi

el
d 

Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

Old W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

Hanna StHanna St

Lincoln RdLincoln Rd

Southlawn BlvdSouthlawn Blvd

Southlawn BlvdSouthlawn Blvd

Northlawn BlvdNorthlawn Blvd

Southlawn BlvdSouthlawn Blvd

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd
14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

Ruffner AveRuffner Ave

Humphrey AveHumphrey Ave

ChapinChapin

Banbury
Banbury

Bradford RdBradford Rd

M
elton Rd

M
elton Rd

Bennaville AveBennaville Ave

Emmons AveEmmons Ave

Smith AveSmith Ave

Bird AveBird Ave
14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

Saxon DrSaxon Dr

Pi
lg

rim
 A

ve
Pi

lg
rim

 A
ve

Pu
rt

ia
n 

Av
e

Pu
rt

ia
n 

Av
e

Fa
irf

ax
 S

t
Fa

irf
ax

 S
t

Su
ffi

el
d 

Av
e

Su
ffi

el
d 

Av
e

Penistone

Penistone



Future Land Use



Future Land Use

Zoning Plan
B. Future Land Use

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2110

Future Land Use Planning District Corresponding Zoning District(s)

District Destinations
Civic Destinations: General Any district which permits institutional uses
Civic Destinations: School Varies: must match the predominant district of surrounding properties
Recreational Destinations PP: Public Property
Commercial Destinations N/A: New zoning district required
Mixed-use District Fabric
High Intensity Fabric Downtown Overlay; Triangle Overlay; MX: Mixed Use
Medium Intensity Fabric Downtown Overlay; Triangle Overlay; MX: Mixed Use
Low Intensity Fabric Downtown Overlay
Neighborhood District Fabric
High Intensity Fabric R2: Single-Family Residential; R3: Single-Family Residential;

R4: Two-Family Residential
Medium Intensity Fabric R1: Single-Family Residential; R2: Single-Family Residential
Low Intensity Fabric R1A: Single-Family Residential; R1: Single-Family Residential
District Seams
High Intensity TZ-1: Transition Zone; TZ-3: Transition Zone; R3: Single-Family Residential

R4: Two-Family Residential; R5: Multiple-Family Residential
R6: Multiple-Family Residential; R7: Multiple-Family Residential
R8: Attached Single-Family Residential; MX: Mixed Use

Medium Intensity TZ-1: Transition Zone; R3: Single-Family Residential
R4: Two-Family Residential; R5: Multiple-Family Residential
R6: Multiple-Family Residential; R8: Attached Single-Family Residential

Low Intensity R1A: Single-Family Residential; R1: Single-Family Residential;
R2: Single-Family Residential; R3: Single-Family Residential;
R4: Two-Family Residential (only where abutting R3 or more intense zoning 
districts)

Zoning Plan

A zoning plan is required by the Michigan Planning Enabling 
Act (MPEA) and Zoning Enabling Acts (MZEA).  Section 
33(d) of the MPEA (PA 33 of 2008), as amended, requires 
that the comprehensive plan shall serve as the basis for the 
community’s zoning plan and the Michigan Zoning Enabling 
Act (PA 110 of 2006), as amended, requires a zoning plan 
to be prepared as the basis for the zoning ordinance.

 

Birmingham’s Zoning Plan (the chart below) presents a 
summary of the zoning districts that apply to each of the 
proposed future land use planning district designations.  
To implement the zoning plan, recommended future revi-
sions to Birmingham’s zoning ordinance are discussed 
throughout this plan.



Future Land Use
Zoning Plan
B. Future Land Use

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2112

1
2

3

4

5
6

7

a

c d

b

891112

10

13

14

a Downtown

b North Woodward

c South Woodward

d Railroad District

Neighborhood Districts Mixed-use Districts

Oak AveOak Ave

Raynale StRaynale St

Redding StRedding St

Wimbleton DrWimbleton Dr

Harmon St
Harmon St

Pine StPine St

Pleasant Ave
Pleasant Ave

W Maple RdW Maple Rd
E Maple RdE Maple Rd

E Lincoln StE Lincoln St

Pi
er

ce
 S

t
Pi

er
ce

 S
t

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
R

d
So

ut
hfi

el
d 

R
d

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

Old W
oodward

Old W
oodward

Quarton RdQuarton Rd

N
 A

da
m

s 
R

d
N

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

SS 
Ad

am
s 

R
d

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

S 
Et

on
 R

d
S 

Et
on

 R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
yC
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

Big Beaver RdBig Beaver Rd

BIRMINGHAM PLANNING DISTRICTS
Figure 8. 

15

4 Poppleton

3 The Ravines

2 Holy Name

1 Quarton

5 Derby

6 Pembroke

7 Torry

8 Kenning

9 Pierce

10 Barnum

11 Crestview

12 Birmingham Farms

13 Linden

14 Seaholm

15 Lincoln Hills

W Lincoln StW Lincoln St

Midvale StMidvale St

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

Birmingham Planning Districts
B. Future Land Use

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 11

Birmingham Planning Districts
Planning Districts identify segments of the city that demon-
strate a consistent character, which differs from that of 
surrounding areas. (See Figure 8) Those character differ-
ences may be defined by the mixture of uses, the size of 
properties and blocks, the trajectory of streets, or natural 
and man made divisions like the Rouge River or railroad 
alignment. These districts were originally identified by their 
bounding roads in the text of the 1980 Master Plan but 
not reflected in Future Land Use. Adding this distinction to 
Future Land Use indicates that land use decisions should 
consider the area’s unique character. In addition to land 
use decisions, this plan uses Planning Districts for anal-
ysis and structuring of other municipal programs such as 
parks and civic art.

Birmingham’s Planning Districts, due in part to the era in 
which the city was built, reflect the structure of a 1920’s 
neighborhood unit. Figure 7 illustrates neighborhood unit 
structure, which is reflected in the Future Land Use Map. 

The neighborhood unit consists mostly of District Fabric, 
whether mixed-use or residential. Some districts are higher 
density and others lower, which is reflected in the intensity 
of the district fabric. Districts typically contain recreational 
space, civic institutions, and a small commercial area, 
which are all destinations for district residents. Most of 
Birmingham’s Planning Districts include these elements, 
Barnum and Pierce most closely resembling the diagram.

The edges of Planning Districts are designated District 
Seams. These are places where districts abut each other, 
natural or man made barriers, and roadways that are more 
significant than a neighborhood street. Seams recognize 
this condition which results in greater pedestrian, bicycle, 
and vehicular traffic along the Seam. Most Seams are low 
intensity, reflecting the character of surrounding District 
Fabric. Higher intensity Seams occur along regionally 
significant roadways which carry high traffic volumes and 
in places adjacent to Mixed-use Districts which are much 
higher in intensity than the surrounding District Fabric.

Four Mixed-use Districts are identified, differentiated by 
character and intensity. Like other Planning Districts, most 
Mixed-use Districts include or should include recreational  
space and civic institutions. Commercial destinations are 
not generally part of a Mixed-use District, however, because 
these districts include a mix of commercial uses more 
broadly.

Planning Districts serve as a guide for the types of land use 
which are appropriate across distinct segments of the city. 
Changes in land use should consider the neighborhood 
unit structure and typical distribution of uses as follows:

• District Fabric is either mixed-use or neighborhood, 
and is consistent across the district;

• District Seams occur along the edge of a district;

• Commercial Destinations occur along the edge of 
a district and are limited in area (a local exception 
is recognized for the historic destination at Barnum 
Park);

• Civic Destinations may occur within a district or at 
its edge, and are few in number;

• Recreational Destinations may take many forms, but 
districts should include or abut at least one.Figure 7. Planning District Structure.

District Fabric
District Seam

Commercial Destination
Recreational Destination



Seams & Accessory Dwelling Units

District Seams
B. Future Land Use

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2114

District Seams
District Seams are an important means of 
coordinating land use and transportation 
and significant routes of vehicular, bicycle, 
and pedestrian movement. Identified as low, 
medium, and high intensity, neighborhood 
seams consist of a variety of single-fam-
ily and multi-family housing types, limited 
according to intensity, home-based busi-
nesses, and some size-limited businesses 
in high intensity seams. By definition, Seams 
are applied only at the edges of Planning 
Districts - one or two lots deep. The intensity 
of Neighborhood Seams is directly related 
to the Neighborhood Fabric intensity and 
the size of the adjacent roadway. High Intensity Seams 
are very limited in application, only appropriate adjacent 
to mixed-use centers and the intersections of major and 
section line roads.

Low Intensity Seams match the intensity of  the Planning 
District’s neighborhood fabric. These Seams signal a 
response to adjacent transportation conditions, where 
streets may require wider sidewalks, bicycle accommo-
dations, or traffic calming to lessen the impact of higher 
speed and volume traffic within a residential context.

Medium and High Intensity Seams are located along region-
ally significant streets and in places where multi-family 

housing, attached single-family housing, and commercial 
uses have previously been built. The Seam designation 
establishes consistency, recognizing what has already been 
built and enabling infill development in conditions that are 
not conducive to single-family housing. Medium and High 
Intensity Seams provide opportunities for building town-
homes, cottage courts, and small multi-family buildings. 
These types are allowed within some Mixed-use Districts, 
however the value of land precludes their construction.

Non-residential uses within the edge of Planning Districts 
are designated as Commercial Destinations, not Seams, 
and are subject to restrictions of business size, noise, hours 
of operation, and other elements ensuring compatibility 
with surrounding housing.

• Low Intensity Seams include R1A, R1, R2, and R3, 
and R4 where abutted by R3 or more intense prop-
erties on all boundaries.

• Medium Intensity Seams include TZ-1, R3, R4, R5, 
R6, and R8 districts.

• High Intensity Seams include TZ-1, TZ-3, R3, R4, R5, 
R6, R7, R8, and MX districts.

Figure 10. A Medium Intensity Neighborhood Seam.

Figure 9 - Crestview neighborhood fabric.

Northlawn BlvdNorthlawn BlvdSouthfield R
d

Southfield R
d

Pierce St
Pierce St

H
enrietta St

H
enrietta St

W
ashington

W
ashington

M
aryland

M
aryland

Shipm
an B

lvd
Shipm

an B
lvd

Lincoln RdLincoln Rd

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

Southlawn BlvdSouthlawn Blvd

Infill Some Medium and High Intensity District Seams
Ch 2. Embrace Managed Growth

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2150

5. Provide public parking for the western Haynes 
Square district.

6. Build public parking in the Rail District. This should be 
on a site with adequate access to the Lower Rail District 
and the future connection to the Troy Transit Center.

7. Establish permanent unbundled residential parking 
in all mixed-use districts as municipal garages are 
built.

Infill Some Medium and High Intensity 
District Seams

Increasing the housing supply in only the high intensity 
mixed-use districts will result in a narrow range of new 
housing types, almost exclusively larger multi-family build-
ings. This form of infill addresses the need of some but 
not all demographic groups. One under-supplied group 
is households with young children, which are important 
in supporting the public school system. Few opportuni-
ties exist for new townhomes, duplexes, smaller houses, 
and small multi-family buildings. To accommodate these 
housing types, medium and high intensity district seams 
should be zoned to enable this range of housing.

Most of the medium and high intensity district seams are 
already mapped on multi-family properties, which does 

Neighborhood	Seams:	1:400

Municipal	Boundary

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Neighborhood	Seams	BOLDer

High

Medium

Low

De-densification

High Intensity Seams
Medium Intensity Seams

Figure 29. High and Medium Intensity District Seams.

Oak AveOak Ave

W Maple RdW Maple Rd

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

E Maple RdE Maple Rd

E Lincoln StE Lincoln St

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave W

oodw
ard Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

Quarton RdQuarton Rd

N
 A

da
m

s 
R

d
N

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

SS 
Ad

am
s 

R
d

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

S 
Et

on
 R

d
S 

Et
on

 R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

Big Beaver RdBig Beaver Rd

Study Accessory Dwelling Units
Ch 2. Embrace Managed Growth

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 51

add to the housing supply. However, there may be some 
additional infill capacity available in these properties by 
adjusting downward the minimum open space per dwelling 
standards, which are quite high today. Additionally, some 
medium and high intensity district seams are mapped on 
properties that are single-family today, notably along 14 
Mile Road. While there are not many properties available 
for infill at this scale, those areas able to accommodate 
infill should be zoned to encourage it.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS
1. Create a new zoning district or modify the transi-

tion zone districts to encourage infill development 
of small homes, townhomes, duplexes, and small 
multi-family buildings, limited to medium and high 
intensity district seams.

Study Accessory Dwelling Units

Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) are a low impact way 
to provide additional housing, particularly for older adults 
and lower income individuals. The City currently allows 
accessory structures but has restrictions to prohibit their 
use as permanent dwellings.

Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) are small homes typi-
cally located in the rear yard of a single-family or attached 
townhouse lot, frequently over a garage but often a small 
secondary unit within the primary home. ADUs can provide 
housing sought by many young renters, single-person 
households, and older adults. Birmingham has had historic 
ADUs for decades.

Presently, there is considerable market demand for ADUs 
in the City, but accessory structures are not permitted to 
be used as residences for people other than a relative of 
the primary household. The primary advantage of an ADU, 
if properly regulated, is that the property owner must also 
live on the property, providing oversight by the owner. For 
older adults looking to downsize but avoid a spike in prop-
erty tax by selling, they can build an at-grade ADU to live in 
and rent their primary home. ADUs add a small amount of 
additional units, at a very low overall neighborhood impact.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS
1. Enable Accessory Dwelling Units in already compati-

ble zones: MX, TZ1, TZ3, and R4 through R8.

2. Convene a committee to study Accessory Dwelling 
Units, where they are appropriate in Birmingham, 
and the regulations necessary to ensure any nega-
tive impacts are minimized. 

ADU BEST PRACTICES
a. Permit ADUs where the property owner lives on-site, 

in the primary home or ADU.

b. Prohibit two-rental structures on any single-family 
property.

c. Require ADUs to be designed and built to match or 
exceed the quality of the primary structure.

d. Require adequate landscape screening between 
ADUs and adjacent properties

e. Do not require parking for ADUs.

f. Increase the allowable height for accessory struc-
tures to allow 2 stories when there is a dwelling 
within it above a garage.

g. Exempt the area of interior staircases from the maxi-
mum area of accessory structures when there is a 
dwelling within it.

Figure 30. An existing ADU equivalent.

B. Future Land Use 
Ch 2. Embrace Managed Growth



Chapter 1. Connect the City
 
 

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 c

Contents

A. Introduction

Context ...................................................................... 2
A Global Pandemic ..................................................... 2
Planning Districts ....................................................... 3

B. Future Land Use

Future Land Use Map ................................................. 9
Zoning Plan ...............................................................10
Birmingham Planning Districts ................................... 11
Mixed-use District Fabric ...........................................13
Neighborhood District Fabric .....................................13
District Seams ...........................................................14
District Destinations...................................................15

C. Summary of Key Actions

Key Actions ...............................................................18

Ch 1. Connect the City

Overcome the Woodward Divide ................................28
Redefine Downtown Districts .....................................32
Implement Haynes Square .........................................34
Encourage Gathering Places ......................................37
Prioritize the Neighborhood Loop ...............................40
Accommodate More Modes of Movement ..................42
Improve Regional Transit Connections ........................43
Multi-modal Plan Updates ..........................................44

Ch 2. Embrace Managed Growth

Encourage Housing in Mixed-use Districts ..................48
Infill Some Medium and High Intensity District Seams .50
Study Accessory Dwelling Units .................................51
Update the Zoning Code ............................................52

Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality

Equip Parks to Serve Neighborhoods .........................56
Keep Streets Pedestrian-oriented...............................60
Replace Unimproved Streets ......................................62
Retain Street Tree Canopy .........................................63
Revise Parking Restrictions ........................................64
Retain Housing Character ..........................................66

Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

Continue Improving the Maple and Woodward District 70
Implement Haynes Square .........................................77
Adopt a South Woodward Gateway Plan ....................77
Develop a North Woodward Gateway Plan .................80
Keep it Loose in the Rail District.................................81

Ch 5. Advance Sustainability Practices

Green the City’s Municipal Operations ........................88
Require Green Building in New Construction ..............88
Expand Recycling and Composting ............................88
Install Green Stormwater Infrastructure in Neighborhood 
Streets and Parks ......................................................89
Improve the Rouge River Natural Area ........................89
Implement Plan Actions Supporting Sustainability .......91



Recommendations

Implement Haynes Square
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2136

are likely to developed quickly. Due to the district’s size 
and low existing intensity, development will bring significant 
increases in tax revenue. While a smaller garage has been 
discussed, which may be pursued to whet the appetite of 
developers, the construction of multiple smaller garages 
is less efficient in the long run than one higher-capacity 
structure.

Other Area Improvements

At the intersection of Haynes and Worth Streets, the 2007 
Triangle District plan recommends a triangular green called 
Worth Park. This space provides an important focal center 
for the east side of Haynes Square. It also provides needed 
open space for the Torry neighborhood. Like other urban 
parks discussed in this plan, Worth Park should have 
ample seating, shade, and areas for children to play. Worth 
Street, which has few existing buildings facing onto it, 
should be considered for a shared-use treatment to provide 
interest and connect with the South Woodward Gateway 
alley system. Worth Park may be built in the form of a 
plaza - mostly paved - which is a type of civic open space 
Birmingham does not yet have. New buildings in the area 
can take advantage of the dynamic and pedestrian-centric 
streetscape and plaza.

A missing piece for decades has been the Adam’s Square 
shopping center, which represents the greatest single 
redevelopment site in the City. With an active Haynes 
Square district adjacent, redevelopment is likely to occur. 
To prepare for this, zoning and subdivision requirements 
should be considered such that Adam’s Square provide 
open space for the Torry neighborhood and public park-
ing in exchange for development capacity modeled upon 
the Triangle District Overlay.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS  
1. Implement the public parking deck recommendation 

of the 2007 Triangle District Plan.
2. Create a parking assessment district, per the 2007 

Triangle District Plan, or incremental tax district as 
necessary for land purchases and for financing the 
development of parking structures.

3. Study the potential for Public Private Partnerships to 
construct parking structures in the Triangle District.

4. Create a Haynes Square Plan which provides the 
details, timing, and funding for implementing Haynes 
Square. This may be an update to the 2007 Triangle 
District Plan. This plan should:
a. Reconfigure the streets around Haynes Square 

to create the square and fix the acute intersec-
tion between Woodward and Old Woodward.

b. Build the public square with a cafe, trees, seat-
ing, a kids play area, and other civic features.

c. Consider revising the design of Worth Park in 
the form of a plaza and other opportunities for 
shared streets and passageways, civic art, traf-
fic calming, and way-finding.

d. Detail streetscape and landscape improvements 
along Worth, Bowers, Haynes, and Webster.

e. Improve pedestrian linkages to the surrounding 
neighborhoods, especially along Adams.

f. Consider swapping land to install a public park-
ing lot along the south Old Woodward alley.

g. Create a parking district for Haynes Square 
which allows residences to purchase park-
ing passes in public garages, in addition to 
commercial parking.

h. Install metered, on-street parking along Adams 
and Lincoln Roads.

i. Create subdivision and zoning standards to 
encourage redevelopment of the Adam’s Square 
shopping center, offering significant develop-
ment capacity in exchange for a public open 
space and public parking.

j. Consider streetscape improvements along 
Woodward to improve the walkability to both 
downtown and the market districts.

k. Consider green stormwater management oppor-
tunities made possible through the area’s growth 
and redevelopment.

Improve Regional Transit Connections
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 43

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS
1. Update the Multi-modal Plan to address new mobil-

ity technology, recent design innovations, and a 
public education component.

2. Require protected bicycle facilities on all streets 
posted at or above 35mph.

3. Pilot a shared use street along Merrill Street first 
from Old Woodward to Shain Park, and in a later 
phase connecting to the Rouge River trail system 
through Martha Baldwin Park.

4. Update the multi-modal plan to implement additional 
multi-modal and micro-mobility best practices.

BEST PRACTICE RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE 
MULTI-MODAL PLAN
a. Shift the burden of public bicycle parking in the 

downtown from private businesses to the city.
b. Increase proposed streetside bicycle parking.
c. Add parking areas for micro-mobility devices.
d. Convert bicycle lane signage to mobility lane.
e. Install signage informing micro-mobility users and 

cyclists of where they are permitted to ride.
f. Provide mobility education to all residents.

Improve Regional Transit Connections

Regional transit will increase in importance as long as 
the transit authorities invest in the system, and residents 
support that investment. As one of a number of cities and 
mixed-use centers along Woodward, Birmingham would 
benefit significantly from improved bus or rail along the 
corridor. While this has been projected for decades, there 
is still hope that it will occur.

To support transit, Birmingham has relatively little work 
to do, already having a well established downtown along 
Woodward. Most significantly, Birmingham needs to add 
residents to Downtown, which is proposed in greater detail 
in following chapters. Residents Downtown would also 
be located along the regional transit corridor, more read-
ily users of that service and able to reduce car depen-
dency as a result. The Rail District also needs to secure a 

connection to the Troy Transit Center and add residents 
and businesses. This is also discussed in later chapters. 
Physically the City needs to improve transit stops to be 
covered and include real-time information, along with nearby 
long-term covered bike parking.

For Birmingham, regional transportation will mean rela-
tively little for residents who are further from Downtown 
without an internal circulator. A circulator, autonomous or 
otherwise, would also improve access around the City to 
residents who have difficulties walking and biking during 
the winter months. A circulator within Birmingham should 
run along the Neighborhood Loop, with a few diversions 
to high-frequency destinations like Seaholm. Overall this 
would provide greater access to residents and reduce some 
parking issues Downtown and also at Seaholm.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS
1. Update the Multi-modal Plan to improve the condi-

tions at bus stops along more major roads.
2. Convene a committee to study a public circulator.

BEST PRACTICE RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE 
MULTI-MODAL PLAN
a. Improve bus stops by adding shelters, paving, and 

seating along:
•  Big Woodward
• Old Woodward (completed in part with Phase 1 

streetscape).
• Maple, including stops outside of Downtown
• Coolidge Hwy.
• 14 Mile Rd.



Overcome the Woodward Divide
Key Recommendations 

a. Improve pedestrian and bike crossings of Woodward, 
especially at Oak, Maple, Brown, Haynes, Lincoln, and 
Emmons. 

b. Adjust the angle of intersections at Elm and Worth. (Also at 
Adams / Ruffner in the Haynes Square recommendations) 

c. Study and pursue re-striping options to slow traffic on 
Woodward and provide better bike and pedestrian access. 
(as is underway now south of Birmingham) 

d. Pursue posted speed reductions along Woodward. (through 
legislative means while the 85th percentile rule remains 
active) 

e. Create a North Woodward Gateway Plan. 

f. Update and adopt the South Woodward Gateway Plan. 

g. Create a Haynes Square Plan to improve connections 
across Woodward in the vicinity of Lincoln. (other Haynes 
Square items are covered in the next section) 

h. Update the multi-modal plan to improve Woodward 
crossings and conditions. (ADA ramps, MUTCD compliant 
pedestrian crossing times, crossings at key intersections 
mapped in Figure 14)

Overcome the Woodward Divide
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 29

the City should pursue re-striping the outside travel lane, 
converting it to a substantial protected bicycle lane, one-way 
each side, or a pair of two-way cycle tracks on each side, 
similar to what the City of Ferndale is pursuing. Regionally, 
Ferndale’s Woodward bike facilities should connect north 
to facilities in Pleasant Ridge, Royal Oak, and Birmingham, 
and on to Bloomfield Hills and Pontiac.

Another consideration for re-striping is a shared bicycle 
and transit lane. As the regional transit authority pursues 
improvements to bus frequency, a dedicated lane would 
improve bus function through Birmingham. Because buses 
are relatively infrequent, the transit lane could be shared 
with cyclists. This would require one-way cycle facilities.

Medium-term Action: Reduce Vehicle Speeds
Woodward’s high travel speeds perpetuate the City’s east-
west disconnection, create dangerous conditions accessing 

businesses along the corridor, and threaten the safety of 
all roadway users. While reducing vehicle speeds is a crit-
ical and immediate issue to tackle, change is not simple.

Overall the Woodward corridor varies in its speed and 
context along its trajectory, from a low speed urban context 
in downtown Detroit to a high-speed highway-like context 
in Bloomfield Hills, before slowing down again at Pontiac. 
Along its trajectory, Woodward’s speed and design changes 
in a number of contexts. Through Ferndale, the posted 
speed is 35 mph and on-street parking is permitted. 
Birmingham presents a more urban context to Woodward 
than Ferndale, which should warrant lower speeds. 

Unfortunately MDOT is forced by state law to use the “85th 
Percentile Rule” when attempting to lower speeds, which 
measures the typical speed actually traveled on the road-
way and can result in increased posted speeds instead of 

Oak AveOak Ave

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d E Lincoln StE Lincoln St

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave W

oodw
ard Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

Quarton RdQuarton Rd

N
 A

da
m

s 
R

d
N

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

SS 
Ad

am
s 

R
d

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

S 
Et

on
 R

d
S 

Et
on

 R
d

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
yC
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

Big Beaver RdBig Beaver Rd

W Maple RdW Maple Rd

OAK

MAPLE

EMMONS

LINCOLN

HAYNES

BROWN

KEY WOODWARD CROSSING IMPROVEMENTS

Civic Institutions

Neighborhood Loop

Special Connections

Shared Use Trails

Planning Districts

Key Crossings

Figure 14. Key Woodward Crossing Improvements.

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

W Lincoln StW Lincoln St

Overcome the Woodward Divide
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2130

reduced. The most expedient path to changing the speed 
along Woodward is through legislative means.

The posted speed is not the only means necessary to 
control speed. Land use, landscaping and landscape archi-
tecture, travel lane size, lighting, and other elements in and 
around the roadway signal drivers to reduce speed who may 
otherwise ignore speed limits. From the south, the large 
clear zone and curb separation in the South Woodward 
Gateway gives visual clues to drivers that Woodward is a 
high-speed roadway. Solving the speed issue here requires 
land use changes described later in this plan, along with 
posted speed reductions. From the north, the highway-like 
conditions of Woodward through Bloomfield Hills brings 
drivers in to Birmingham at high speeds. From this direction, 
drivers need a signal that they have entered a different type 
of environment than Bloomfield Hills and should reduce 
speeds. Like the South Woodward Gateway, Birmingham 
needs a vision for the North Woodward Gateway, from 
Big Beaver to Maple, with a particular focus on the Old 
Woodward and Oak Avenue intersections.

Long-term Action: Re-align Secondary Intersections
Traffic problems caused by Woodward spill into surround-
ing streets in a few key locations. Due to Woodward’s 
angle, Adams, Worth, and Elm streets intersect at obtuse 
angles in the northbound direction allowing soft-right 
turns at high speeds. When streets intersect at extreme 
angles, pedestrian crossing distances increase and vehicle 
speeds increase, leading to safety and operational issues. 
Additionally, these intersections occur close to east-west 
streets: Ruffner, Lincoln, and Haynes, further complicating 
operations. Elm and Worth should be realigned to inter-
sect Woodward perpendicularly, as shown in the Triangle 
District Plan. (See Figure 15)

The intersection of Adams with Woodward is especially 
complicated due to its traffic volume and existing median 
breaks, making it particularly dangerous for pedestrians. To 
address this issue, when the Haynes Square intersection 
redevelopment occurs (discussed later), traffic along Adams 
should be rerouted to access Woodward at Haynes, which 
is already a near-perpendicular intersection. Additionally, the 
median break on Woodward at southbound Adams should 
be closed. The Haynes Square intersection would allow 
southbound Adams traffic to turn Left onto Woodward at 

a new traffic signal. This will reduce traffic at Adams and 
Lincoln. At the Woodward intersection, Adams should be 
realigned to intersect perpendicularly, as is proposed for 
Elm and Worth. Where Adams meets Haynes, the street 
should turn to the left slightly, to intersect perpendicularly 
with Haynes, which may also be accomplished through 
signage encouraging southbound Adams traffic to use 
Haynes for Woodward access. Additionally, this movement 
will help provide momentum to future retail in the Haynes 
Square / Triangle District area. To accommodate this, 
Haynes between Woodward and Adams should receive 
a streetscape redevelopment similar to Maple through 
Downtown, which has the same width.

Figure 15. Key Woodward intersection adjustments.

S.  Adam
s Rd.

Haynes St.

Woodward Ave

Old Woodward

E. Lincoln St.

S. W
orth St.

Ruffner Ave.

S. Elm
 St.

Intersection changes along Woodward and Adams.



Redefine Downtown Districts
Key Recommendations 

a. Create a Greater Downtown Branding Plan to differentiate 
Downtown’s districts, including way-finding, gateways, 
business directories, and streetscape products. 

b. Install parking way-finding signage in Downtown. 

c. Permit murals and wraps to be initiated by the City or 
Public Arts Board. (tied to branding)

Redefine Downtown Districts
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2132

Redefine Downtown Districts

Birmingham’s mixed-use districts are defined circum-
stantially by their areas of historic growth and the division 
caused by Woodward. However, the Downtown area in 
particular contains multiple sub-districts which require 
their own character and definition to become active and 
competitive. Old Woodward is too long to sustain a consis-
tent main street without sub-districts of distinct character. 
Most traditional main streets, and shopping malls which 
have modeled themselves from traditional main streets, are 
¼ mile in length. This is the distance from Willits to Brown, 
the most active section of Old Woodward, and Bates to 
Park, the most active section of Maple (See Figure 17). 
Beyond this distance, activity and retail quality declines. But 
once downtowns are successful enough, they can expand 
beyond this distance by establishing secondary districts.

Downtown Sub-districts

Larger downtowns contain multiple districts with their own 
distinct character. For instance, Downtown Detroit contains 

Bricktown, Greektown, Hudson Corktown, and 
other districts. Together they make up the greater 
downtown, but they each have an individual char-
acter. Similarly yet at a more relate-able scale, Ann 
Arbor has a downtown district along Main Street 
and a university district along State Street. Both 
are distinct yet interconnected.

North to south, Downtown Birmingham includes 
three distinct districts. At the center, Maple and 
Woodward, Downtown is at its most intense and 
successful.

To the north along Old Woodward, the topography 
and building scale clearly changes after Oakland, 
becoming clearly distinct by Euclid. North of Euclid 
is a distinct Downtown sub-district. This Market 
North area (See Fig A.2-09) is now most clearly 
defined by the Farmers’ Market and Booth Park, 
as well as a scale that is less intense than Maple 
and Woodward. To the south along Old Woodward, 
the street activity clearly changes after Brown. 
This area is distinct and requires an identity, but the area 
is heavily constrained by the intersection of Woodward 
and Old Woodward. Each sub-district should be clearly 
differentiated, offering a different customer experience yet 
working together as the larger downtown area.

Further, Downtown Birmingham is considered to be only 
west of Woodward. This perpetuates the mental divide that 
Woodward cuts through the community (See Figure 12). 
If Woodward were not a major division, downtown would 
continue east on Maple. The form of more intensive build-
ings east of Maple reflects this condition, with the housing 
along Forest, Chestnut, and Hazel establishing a break 
between this core downtown area and the remainder of 
the southern Triangle District.

Spanning Woodward mentally makes the most significant 
impact south of Brown where the west side is constrained 
just at the point that the east side, the southern Triangle 
District, is at its widest. This Haynes Square area, centered 
on Haynes Street, is cohesive when it spans Woodward 
(discussed later). With its own identity, Haynes Square can 
be elevated to a full sub-district of downtown rather than 
the unsuccessful southern fringe of a successful downtown.Figure 16. Three districts of downtown.

Future	Land	Use:	1:400

Municipal	Boundary

Downtown	Neighborhood

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Parks

Parks	and	Open	Space

Building	Footprints

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Centers

Neighborhoods

Maple and WoodwardMaple and Woodward

Haynes Haynes 
SquareSquare

Market Market 
NorthNorth

Future	Land	Use:	1:400

Municipal	Boundary

Downtown	Neighborhood

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Parks

Parks	and	Open	Space

Building	Footprints

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Centers

Neighborhoods

Redefine Downtown Districts
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 33

Identity, Signage, and Way-finding

Many downtown visitors are unfamiliar with its business 
offerings, parking locations, and street layout. When estab-
lishing multiple districts, signage is especially important 
to orient visitors. Similarly, multiple districts can assist in 
way-finding overall if signed properly. Today, signage is lack-
ing throughout the greater downtown area, from way-find-
ing for parking access to civic institutions and business 
directories. Each district should have clear signage which 
is consistent in the information provided but differentiated 
by district. (See Figure 18)

Parking signage is especially important as the City deals 
with extremely high occupancy of its Downtown garages. 
Prior to the Covid pandemic, many of the City’s parking 
garages operated at 99% capacity; still in the pandemic 
we will rely upon recent, historic usage levels. While the 
North Old Woodward, Park, and Peabody garages typi-
cally operated above 90%, visitors are not always aware of 
nearby spaces available in the Chester and Pierce garages. 
Technology should be employed to inform users of avail-
able capacity throughout the greater downtown. Much 
of this equipment is unattractive, like the signage in use 
currently in Ann Arbor, yet there are minimal and elegant 
solutions available to direct users to the nearest available 

capacity. This signage should be piloted in downtown and 
spread to the City’s other mixed-use districts once parking 
investments are made.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS
1. Create a greater downtown branding plan, in coor-

dination with the Birmingham Shopping District, to 
brand the City’s multiple mixed-use districts. This 
plan should addresses, at a minimum:

a. District way-finding (vehicular, pedestrian, and 
cyclist-oriented), business directory, and gate-
way signage;

b. Differentiation in streetscape products like tree 
grates, lights, trash and recycling cans, and 
public art themes;

c. A marketing plan for each of the distinct 
districts;

d. A phasing plan to install business directory and 
way-finding signage throughout all districts.

2. Install parking way-finding signage in downtown, 
ensuring the design is simple and elegant. (priority)

3. Permit murals and wraps like the popcorn utility 
wrap to be city-initiated or by the Public Arts Board.

Figure 17. Typical length of main streets.

Future	Land	Use:	1:400

Municipal	Boundary

Downtown	Neighborhood

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Parks

Parks	and	Open	Space

Building	Footprints

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Centers

Neighborhoods

Willtis
 St

E. Brown St

Old. W
oodward

1,320’1,320’

S.
 B

at
es

 S
t

Pi
er

ce
 S

t

Park St

E. Maple Rd

Elm
 St

Poppleton St

1,320’
1,320’

Figure 18. Way-finding signage examples.



Implement Haynes Square
Key Recommendations 

a. Build a public parking deck and create a parking 
assessment district in the Triangle District. 

b. Study Public Private Partnerships for future parking 
structures. 

c. Create a Haynes Square Plan, possibly updating the 
Triangle District Plan, including: 

a. Street reconfiguration 

b. A new public square 

c. Triangle district streetscape improvements 

d. Consideration for land dispensation 

e. Parking district creation 

f. Metering on-street parking 

g. Subdivision and zoning standards for Adam’s Square 

h. Woodward improvement in the vicinity 

i. Green stormwater management

Implement Haynes Square
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 35

due in part to parking issues. The parking necessary to 
redevelop properties south of George St is dif f icult to 
accommodate with shallow lots that back onto single-fam-
ily properties. This plan recommends that Old Woodward 
be reconfigured to alleviate the awkward intersections 
and provide larger building sites. George St. is extended 
to big Woodward, and Old Woodward removed south of 
George. South of George St, properties are extended to 
big Woodward, providing sites that can accommodate 
buildings and parking. Property extensions may be traded 
for a public surface parking lot where buildings currently 
sit along Old Woodward, 70 feet deep measured from the 
alley, which leaves over 100 feet of property for develop-
ment, deeper than current properties.

Through this redevelopment, Haynes St. crosses Woodward 
to meet Old Woodward at a new signal. On the east side 
of Woodward, Haynes becomes a main street, paired with 
Worth Street. To support the main street with additional 
traffic, as Maple and Woodward is supported by Maple’s 

traffic, Adams should be slightly adjusted so that south-
bound traf f ic uses Haynes to access Woodward. This 
adjustment is detailed in Figure 15.

Public Parking
Due to the odd lot shapes in the district, significant zoned 
capacity, and lack of access to the downtown parking 
district, private development is unlikely to take the first 
step to launch the Haynes Square, as has been the case 
for the Triangle District, which is synonymous. To success-
fully launch Haynes Square, the City needs to invest in a 
parking garage. Unfortunately, neither of the 2007 Triangle 
District plan’s proposed public parking structures nor its 
proposed parking assessment district have been imple-
mented. A new garage is needed and should be suited to 
meet most of the needs of the district, alleviating develop-
ers from the burden of parking with both commercial and 
residential parking permitted. With a structure in place, and 
mixed-use residences able to unbundle parking (See the 
Mixed-use Districts section), new housing and businesses 

Figure 20. Redevelopment of Haynes Square.

Implement Haynes Square
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2134

Implement Haynes Square
Connecting the city requires a change in perception about 
Woodward. No greater opportunity exists to change this 
perception than Haynes Square. South of Frank Street, 
the character of downtown changes, expressed in zoning, 
street life, and business success. Rather than consider 
South Old Woodward an inferior retail district, the area 
can be combined with the lower Triangle District, spanning 
big Woodward. The Haynes Square district is bound by 
Bowers to the North,  Adams to the East, and Lincoln to 
the South. Its size is similar to the active office and retail 
core of Maple and Woodward.

Street reconfigurations to achieve this result in a public 
open space at south Old Woodward and Haynes Street. 
This square is the new heart of a district independent from 
Maple and Woodward. (See Figure 19) The square should 
be similar to Shain Park from a design perspective, but 
about half its size, with a cafe, seating, and restrooms as is 
recommended for other urban parks. Lined by trees along 
its edges, the square will provide an attractive entrance 
to the greater downtown area, flanked by tall, new devel-
opment east along Woodward and the 555 building to its 
north.

This combined district represents Birmingham’s great-
est opportunity for the development of both extensive 
middle-income housing—a deficiency that should be 
addressed—and emerging commercial business spaces. 
While Maple and Woodward includes a significant pres-
ence of offices, Haynes Square should focus on residen-
tial above commercial uses, and on commercial uses that 
serve a different market than the core shopping district of 
Maple and Woodward.

To capitalize on its potential, two major investments are 
required: reconfiguring the intersection between Woodward 
and Old Woodward, and constructing a parking garage 
on the east side of Woodward.

Street and Property Reconfiguration
A pair of related issues make clear the need for street and 
property reconfiguration in this area. First, the intersection 
of Old Woodward and Woodward occurs at a very acute 
angle and requires a dangerous northbound lef t turn. 
The intersection also creates a narrow and unusable strip 
of land which mirrors the poor frontage condition of the 
South Woodward Gateway. Second, properties that are 
located along Old Woodward south of George Street are 
zoned for taller buildings, but have not seen redevelopment 

Figure 19. Haynes Square reconfiguration.

Future Land Use: 1:400

Municipal	Boundary

Downtown	Neighborhood

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Parks

Parks	and	Open	Space

Building	Footprints

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Centers

Neighborhoods

EXISTING PROPOSED

Old. Woodward

Ann St

Ann St
Old. Woodward

George St

George St

Haynes St
Haynes St

Woodward

Woodward



Encourage Gathering Places
Commercial Destination Recommendations 

a. Build a cafe in Booth Park. 

b. Build a model neighborhood destination at Lincoln and 
Eton. 

c. Create a neighborhood destination zoning district 
controlling the size, impacts, and review process for 
commercial destinations. 

Civic Destination Recommendations 

a. Establish design quality policy for civic buildings and 
structures. 

b. Ensure the Community Fund is established. 

c. Establish a Civic Events Board or extend the Public Arts 
Board to develop frequent civic events and promote 
existing civic institutions. 

d. Convene a committee to study new facilities for Next.

Encourage Gathering Places

Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2138

bakeries, cafes, and coffee shops.

c. Nationally branded chains should be permitted 

when designed to look local.

d. Limit evening hours and prohibit excessive 

noise, including music in the late evenings, and 

early or late truck deliveries should be restricted.

e. Larger restaurants and other potentially inten-

sive commercial should be permitted as special 

uses, with appropriate design, management, 

and operational conditions geared to minimize 

their potential impact on surrounding properties.

f. Drive-thru windows should be prohibited.

g. Loading docks should be minimal, if provided.

h. Landscaped screening should be required from 

adjacent single-family properties.

i. Allowed up to three floors, provided they match 

the scale of a two and one-half story structure.

• For buildings with 3 stories, the upper floors 

must be residential.

• For buildings with 2 stories, the upper floor 

may be office or residential.

• Where located in parks, limit height to one 

story.

j. Parking should be as minimal as possible, or not 

required. If required, parking should not exceed 

3 cars per 1,000 square feet of non-residential 

uses and 1 car per bedroom of residential uses.

k. Planning Board review should ensure minimal 

impacts to the neighborhood.

Figure 22. Propsed Neighborhood Destinations.

Oak AveOak Ave

W Maple RdW Maple Rd

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

E Maple RdE Maple Rd

E Lincoln StE Lincoln St

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave W

oodw
ard Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

N
 A

da
m

s 
R

d
N

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

SS 
Ad

am
s 

R
d

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

S 
Et

on
 R

d
S 

Et
on

 R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

Big Beaver RdBig Beaver Rd
Quarton RdQuarton Rd

Commercial Destinations

Recreational Destinations

5-minute Walk (existing)

5-minute Walk (new)

Encourage Gathering Places
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 39

Civic Destinations

Birmingham has a long tradition of investing in civic build-
ings and landscapes, which began with the construction 
of its first library and the build-out of its civic center in the 
1920s. This civic center is centrally located downtown, 
with it constituent buildings grouped around Shain Park. 
The center occupies five blocks that once housed privately 
owned houses, which the city purchased and razed as 
part of the 1929 Plan. Outside of the City’s primary civic 
cluster in Downtown, nearly all of Birmingham’s neighbor-
hoods include one or more civic uses within a short walk 
for most of their residents. This relationship is relatively 
rare in postwar suburbs and contributes to Birmingham’s 
desirable quality of life. These Civic Destinations include 
fire stations, meeting halls, museums, places of worship, 
post offices, schools, and specialized civic institutions such 
as Next and the YMCA. The 1929 plan proposed anchor-
ing each of the city’s neighborhoods with a civic center, a 

school, or a park. Largely implemented, this plan resulted 
in the numerous schools and parks that now exist in most 
of Birmingham’s neighborhoods.

Civic buildings offer neutral, aspirational places for citizens 
and community leaders to exchange ideas, form community 
associations, or simply socialize. Located in a neighbor-
hood setting, these institutions encourage neighborhood 
interaction. (See Figure 23) They also tend to draw people 
from other nearby neighborhoods, cross-pollinating the 
City’s social structures. Civic buildings and landscapes 
should be grand and iconic, and be distinct from residential 
construction to avoid confusing public and private uses. 
Birmingham’s prewar civic buildings—the City Hall, library, 
post office, and train station—were built of brick and stone 
in an English Tudor style, with the exaggerated scale and 
exceptional quality befitting signature civic buildings.

Throughout the community, Civic Destinations should be 

Future	Land	Use:	1:400

Civic Destinations
Recreational Destinations
5-minute Walk (existing)

Figure 23. Civic Destinations.

Oak AveOak Ave

W Maple RdW Maple Rd

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

E Maple RdE Maple Rd

E Lincoln StE Lincoln St

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave W

oodw
ard Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

Quarton RdQuarton Rd

N
 A

da
m

s 
R

d
N

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

SS 
Ad

am
s 

R
d

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

S 
Et

on
 R

d
S 

Et
on

 R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

Big Beaver RdBig Beaver Rd



Prioritize the Neighborhood Loop
Key Recommendations 

a. Hire a consultant to design the Neighborhood Loop bicycle 
boulevard. 

b. Update the Multi-modal Plan to include and prioritize the 
Neighborhood Loop and its design elements such as 
bicycle signage. 

c. Develop civic programming events to active the 
Neighborhood Loop (Civic Events or Public Arts Board).

Prioritize the Neighborhood Loop
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 41

with family-friendly activities. Where the Hometown Parade 
brings people to Downtown, activities along the loop are 
intended to connect neighbors with each other and get 
residents walking and riding through other neighborhoods 
they don’t normally experience. Additionally, the loop is 
intended to make pedestrians and cyclists more visible 
throughout the City, especially across the major roadways.

Bicycle destination signage is currently lacking throughout 
the City. While the 2013 Multi-modal Plan recommended 
signage, this plan establishes a number of more clear 
destinations with planning district boundaries and multi-
ple downtown districts. Signage should be installed along 
the Neighborhood Loop and other routes with bike lanes. 
Signage may be expanded to secondary connections and 
routes at a later time. Bicycle signage provides significant 
way-finding assistance to riders who may be unsure of how 
to use the bike network.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS
5. Hire a consultant to design the Neighborhood Loop 

bicycle boulevard, including signage and diverters, 
and pedestrian improvements, like complete side-
walks and crosswalks.

6. Update the Multi-modal Plan to include and prioritize 
the Neighborhood Loop design elements.

7. Develop civic programming events along the neigh-
borhood loop, within the purview of the Civic Events 
Board or Public Arts Board.

8. Update the multi-modal plan to implement the 
Neighborhood Loop.

BEST PRACTICE RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE 
MULTI-MODAL PLAN
a. Add benches along the loop where the 

Neighborhood Loop crosses major roads, like 
Maple, schools, and parks, like Linden Park.

b. Add bicycle destination signage along the 
Neighborhood Loop and routes with bike lanes.

c. Add bicycle parking and repair stations like those 
found in Shain Park to all parks. 

Figure 24. The Neighborhood Loop 

Neighborhood Loop 

Protected Bike Lane

Bike Lane

Neighborhood Connector

Paved Bike Path

EmmonsEmmons
SouthlawnSouthlawn

LincolnLincoln

MapleMaple

W
oodw

ard
W

oodw
ard

Old W
oodward

Old W
oodward

OakOak

C
he

st
er
fie

ld
C
he

st
er
fie

ld

Larchler
Larchler

MoheganMohegan DerbyDerby
Eton
Eton



Accommodate More Modes of Movement
Key Recommendations 

a. Update the Multi-modal Plan to address new mobility 
technology, recent design innovations, and a public 
education component. 

b. Update the Multi-modal Plan to implement additional multi-
modal and micro-mobility best practices. (Increasing bicycle 
parking, adding micro-mobility spaces, mobility lane 
signage, education) 

c. Require protected bicycle facilities on all streets posted at 
or above 35mph. 

d. Pilot a shared use street along Merrill Street.



Improve Regional Transit Connections
Key Recommendations 

a. Update the Multi-modal Plan to improve the conditions at 
bus stops along more major roads. (Woodward, Maple, 
Coolidge, 14 Mile) 

b. Convene a committee to study a public circulator.



Multi-modal Plan Updates
Summary of recommendations that affect specific mapped 
elements or designations specified in the Multi-modal Plan



DPZ  GIBBS  MCKENNA



Draft 2 Review:
Meeting 2
PLANNING BOARD · DECEMBER 8, 2021

DPZ  GIBBS  MCKENNA



Direction for the 2nd Draft: General
Direction Provided Ch. Has This Been Addressed?
1. Reduce Length All 👍 Yes

2. Action Prioritization All 👉 Partially; to be further refined in Draft 2 review process

3. Simplify Language All 👉 Partially; unclear language to be identified in Draft 2 review process

4. Population Projections 2 👍 Yes

5. Include Infrastructure All 👎 Not within scope

6. Increase Sustainability Focus 5 👍 Yes

7. Address Covid-19 All 👍 To the extent possible

8. Focus on Big Moves / Forward-looking All 👍 Yes, in language and actions

9. Prominently Feature Schools All 👎 No; recommended process to be discussed

10. Feature Next 1 👉 Partially; it is identified clearly but the recommendations are for further study

11. Address Outside Connections 1 👉 Partially; the plan does this indirectly, need further direction

12. Historic Districts 3 👍 Yes

13. Walkability for Older Adults All 👉 Partially; address in the neighborhood loop and parks

14. Focus Growth in Mixed-use Areas 2 & 4 👍 Yes

15. More Outdoor Gathering Spaces 3 & 4 👍 Yes

16. Focus on Big Woodward Safety 1 👍 Yes

17. Add Big Woodward North of Maple 1 & 4 👉 Yes; most detail is provided in the text, action items split between Ch. 1 & 4

18. Refer Parking Complexity to Further Study 3 👍 Yes

19. More Broadly Address the Rouge 5 👍 Yes

20. Consider Future of Golf Courses ? 👎 No; further direction needed

👍 Addressed

👉
Addressed but the approach 
requires review

👎
Not addressed or requires 
more information



Direction for the 2nd Draft: Mixed-Use Districts
Direction Provided Ch. Has This Been Addressed?
GENERAL

1.1. More Shared Streets 4 👉 Partially; more may be considered

1.2. Consider Dining Decks re: Covid-19 4 👍 Yes

1.3. EV Charging in MU Districts 4 👉 Partially; within parking decks, further opportunities may be discussed

MAPLE & WOODWARD

2.1. Include Bates Street 4 👉 Partially; recommended for a further special study

2.2. Revisit Pilot Parking re: Covid-19 4 👍 Yes; Covid is unlikely to increase downtown parking demand

2.3. Lighten Retail Standards on Side Streets 4 👎 No; will include but we need to discuss authority and process

HAYNES SQUARE

3.1. Include Adams Square 1 & 4 👍 Yes

3.2. Consider Live-work Buildings 1 & 4 👎 Oversight. Should this be added to the Haynes Square Plan or Zoning in general?

3.3. Add Connection from Worth to Bowers 1 👎 Oversight. To add to the Haynes Square Plan

3.4. Address Haynes Ownership Transfer 1 👉 Partially; included within the Haynes Square Plan recommended study items

3.5. Focus MissingMiddle on Haynes/Adams Sq. 2 👎 Property values are too high here, focused on the Med. & High Intensity Seams

3.6. Look at the Haynes / Adams Traffic Proposal 1 👉 The proposal would function, however it needs actual analysis in a full plan

SOUTH WOODWARD GATEWAY

4.1. South Woodward Gateway Housing 4 👉 Buildings are the best buffer to noise; has been directed to a full plan update

👍 Addressed

👉
Addressed but the approach 
requires review

👎
Not addressed or requires 
more information



Direction for the 2nd Draft: Neighborhoods
Direction Provided Ch. Has This Been Addressed?
1. Revise Planning Districts All 👍 Yes

2. Significantly Reduce Seams 2 👍 Yes

3. Revisit and Limit Accessory Dwellings 2 👍 Yes

4. Reduce and Clarify Commercial Destinations 1 👉 Yes; however the locations and uses should be reviewed

5. Torry Requires More Amenities 3 👍 Yes; this has always been included but may now be more clear

6. Reference the Unimproved Streets Committee 3 👍 Yes

7. Focus on Completing Missing Sidewalks 3 👍 Yes

8. Provide More Green Infrastructure Detail 5 👉 Yes; however it is referred to further study in a Green Infrastructure Plan

9. Clarify the Neighborhood Loop 1 👉 Partially; clarified in text but referred for specific design to be completed

10. Clarify Kenning Park Paths 3 👍 Indirectly; walking paths are addressed generally for Kenning and other parks

11. More Aggressive Tree Preservation 3 👍 Yes

12. More Financial Details on Renovations 3 👉 Partially; recommend a committee be convened to study this

13. Review Lot Coverage Standards 2 👍 It is part of the overall zoning review

14. Provide More Design Control Detail 3 👎 We should discuss if this is desired, it may be a recommended study with examples

15. Remove lot combinations areas 2 👉 Yes; the impact of the existing ordinance should be discussed

👍 Addressed

👉
Addressed but the approach 
requires review

👎
Not addressed or requires 
more information



Seams & Accessory Dwelling Units

District Seams
B. Future Land Use

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2114

District Seams
District Seams are an important means of 
coordinating land use and transportation 
and significant routes of vehicular, bicycle, 
and pedestrian movement. Identified as low, 
medium, and high intensity, neighborhood 
seams consist of a variety of single-fam-
ily and multi-family housing types, limited 
according to intensity, home-based busi-
nesses, and some size-limited businesses 
in high intensity seams. By definition, Seams 
are applied only at the edges of Planning 
Districts - one or two lots deep. The intensity 
of Neighborhood Seams is directly related 
to the Neighborhood Fabric intensity and 
the size of the adjacent roadway. High Intensity Seams 
are very limited in application, only appropriate adjacent 
to mixed-use centers and the intersections of major and 
section line roads.

Low Intensity Seams match the intensity of  the Planning 
District’s neighborhood fabric. These Seams signal a 
response to adjacent transportation conditions, where 
streets may require wider sidewalks, bicycle accommo-
dations, or traffic calming to lessen the impact of higher 
speed and volume traffic within a residential context.

Medium and High Intensity Seams are located along region-
ally significant streets and in places where multi-family 

housing, attached single-family housing, and commercial 
uses have previously been built. The Seam designation 
establishes consistency, recognizing what has already been 
built and enabling infill development in conditions that are 
not conducive to single-family housing. Medium and High 
Intensity Seams provide opportunities for building town-
homes, cottage courts, and small multi-family buildings. 
These types are allowed within some Mixed-use Districts, 
however the value of land precludes their construction.

Non-residential uses within the edge of Planning Districts 
are designated as Commercial Destinations, not Seams, 
and are subject to restrictions of business size, noise, hours 
of operation, and other elements ensuring compatibility 
with surrounding housing.

• Low Intensity Seams include R1A, R1, R2, and R3, 
and R4 where abutted by R3 or more intense prop-
erties on all boundaries.

• Medium Intensity Seams include TZ-1, R3, R4, R5, 
R6, and R8 districts.

• High Intensity Seams include TZ-1, TZ-3, R3, R4, R5, 
R6, R7, R8, and MX districts.

Figure 10. A Medium Intensity Neighborhood Seam.

Figure 9 - Crestview neighborhood fabric.

Northlawn BlvdNorthlawn Blvd:V\[OÄLSK�9
K

:V\[OÄLSK�9
K

Pierce St
Pierce St

H
enrietta St

H
enrietta St

W
ashington

W
ashington

M
aryland

M
aryland

Shipm
an B

lvd
Shipm

an B
lvd

Lincoln RdLincoln Rd

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

Southlawn BlvdSouthlawn Blvd

Infill Some Medium and High Intensity District Seams
Ch 2. Embrace Managed Growth

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2150

5. Provide public parking for the western Haynes 
Square district.

6. Build public parking in the Rail District. This should be 
on a site with adequate access to the Lower Rail District 
and the future connection to the Troy Transit Center.

7. Establish permanent unbundled residential parking 
in all mixed-use districts as municipal garages are 
built.

Infill Some Medium and High Intensity 
District Seams

Increasing the housing supply in only the high intensity 
mixed-use districts will result in a narrow range of new 
housing types, almost exclusively larger multi-family build-
ings. This form of infill addresses the need of some but 
not all demographic groups. One under-supplied group 
is households with young children, which are important 
in supporting the public school system. Few opportuni-
ties exist for new townhomes, duplexes, smaller houses, 
and small multi-family buildings. To accommodate these 
housing types, medium and high intensity district seams 
should be zoned to enable this range of housing.

Most of the medium and high intensity district seams are 
already mapped on multi-family properties, which does 

�����������	
�����
�����

���������	
������

�����������	
��������

�����������	�����	
����

����

������

���

����������������

High Intensity Seams
Medium Intensity Seams

Figure 29. High and Medium Intensity District Seams.

Oak AveOak Ave

W Maple RdW Maple Rd

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

E Maple RdE Maple Rd

E Lincoln StE Lincoln St

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

:V
\[
OÄ
LS
K�
9K

:V
\[
OÄ
LS
K�
9K

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave W

oodw
ard Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

Quarton RdQuarton Rd

N
 A

da
m

s 
R

d
N

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

SS 
Ad

am
s 

R
d

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

S 
Et

on
 R

d
S 

Et
on

 R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

*
OL

Z[
LY
ÄL

SK
�(
]L

*
OL

Z[
LY
ÄL

SK
�(
]L

Big Beaver RdBig Beaver Rd

Study Accessory Dwelling Units
Ch 2. Embrace Managed Growth

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 51

add to the housing supply. However, there may be some 
additional infill capacity available in these properties by 
adjusting downward the minimum open space per dwelling 
standards, which are quite high today. Additionally, some 
medium and high intensity district seams are mapped on 
properties that are single-family today, notably along 14 
Mile Road. While there are not many properties available 
for infill at this scale, those areas able to accommodate 
infill should be zoned to encourage it.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS
1. Create a new zoning district or modify the transi-

tion zone districts to encourage infill development 
of small homes, townhomes, duplexes, and small 
multi-family buildings, limited to medium and high 
intensity district seams.

Study Accessory Dwelling Units

Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) are a low impact way 
to provide additional housing, particularly for older adults 
and lower income individuals. The City currently allows 
accessory structures but has restrictions to prohibit their 
use as permanent dwellings.

Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) are small homes typi-
cally located in the rear yard of a single-family or attached 
townhouse lot, frequently over a garage but often a small 
secondary unit within the primary home. ADUs can provide 
housing sought by many young renters, single-person 
households, and older adults. Birmingham has had historic 
ADUs for decades.

Presently, there is considerable market demand for ADUs 
in the City, but accessory structures are not permitted to 
be used as residences for people other than a relative of 
the primary household. The primary advantage of an ADU, 
if properly regulated, is that the property owner must also 
live on the property, providing oversight by the owner. For 
older adults looking to downsize but avoid a spike in prop-
erty tax by selling, they can build an at-grade ADU to live in 
and rent their primary home. ADUs add a small amount of 
additional units, at a very low overall neighborhood impact.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS
1. Enable Accessory Dwelling Units in already compati-

ble zones: MX, TZ1, TZ3, and R4 through R8.

2. Convene a committee to study Accessory Dwelling 
Units, where they are appropriate in Birmingham, 
and the regulations necessary to ensure any nega-
tive impacts are minimized. 

ADU BEST PRACTICES
a. Permit ADUs where the property owner lives on-site, 

in the primary home or ADU.

b. Prohibit two-rental structures on any single-family 
property.

c. Require ADUs to be designed and built to match or 
exceed the quality of the primary structure.

d. Require adequate landscape screening between 
ADUs and adjacent properties

e. Do not require parking for ADUs.

f. Increase the allowable height for accessory struc-
tures to allow 2 stories when there is a dwelling 
within it above a garage.

g. Exempt the area of interior staircases from the maxi-
mum area of accessory structures when there is a 
dwelling within it.

Figure 30. An existing ADU equivalent.

B. Future Land Use 
Ch 2. Embrace Managed Growth



Chapter 2. Embrace Managed Growth
 
 

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 c

Contents

A. Introduction

Context ...................................................................... 2
A Global Pandemic ..................................................... 2
Planning Districts ....................................................... 3

B. Future Land Use

Future Land Use Map ................................................. 9
Zoning Plan ...............................................................10
Birmingham Planning Districts ................................... 11
Mixed-use District Fabric ...........................................13
Neighborhood District Fabric .....................................13
District Seams ...........................................................14
District Destinations...................................................15

C. Summary of Key Actions

Key Actions ...............................................................18

Ch 1. Connect the City

Overcome the Woodward Divide ................................28
Redefine Downtown Districts .....................................32
Implement Haynes Square .........................................34
Encourage Gathering Places ......................................37
Prioritize the Neighborhood Loop ...............................40
Accommodate More Modes of Movement ..................42
Improve Regional Transit Connections ........................43
Multi-modal Plan Updates ..........................................44

Ch 2. Embrace Managed Growth

Encourage Housing in Mixed-use Districts ..................48
Infill Some Medium and High Intensity District Seams .50
Study Accessory Dwelling Units .................................51
Update the Zoning Code ............................................52

Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality

Equip Parks to Serve Neighborhoods .........................56
Keep Streets Pedestrian-oriented...............................60
Replace Unimproved Streets ......................................62
Retain Street Tree Canopy .........................................63
Revise Parking Restrictions ........................................64
Retain Housing Character ..........................................66

Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

Continue Improving the Maple and Woodward District 70
Implement Haynes Square .........................................77
Adopt a South Woodward Gateway Plan ....................77
Develop a North Woodward Gateway Plan .................80
Keep it Loose in the Rail District.................................81

Ch 5. Advance Sustainability Practices

Green the City’s Municipal Operations ........................88
Require Green Building in New Construction ..............88
Expand Recycling and Composting ............................88
Install Green Stormwater Infrastructure in Neighborhood 
Streets and Parks ......................................................89
Improve the Rouge River Natural Area ........................89
Implement Plan Actions Supporting Sustainability .......91



Encourage Housing in Mixed-use Districts
Key Recommendations 

a. Immediately pilot unbundled residential parking in 
Downtown. 

b. Task the Advisory Parking Committee to study downtown 
residential parking. 

c. Task the Advisory Parking Committee to study opportunities 
for expanding downtown parking capacity and 
accommodate more monthly permit users as capacity 
becomes available. 

d. Build public parking in the Triangle District. (Also in Ch. 1) 

e. Provide public parking for the western Haynes Square 
district. 

f. Build public parking in the Rial District with adequate 
access to the Lower Rail District and future connection to 
the Troy Transit Center. 

g. Establish permanent unbundled residential parking in all 
mixed-use districts as municipal garages are built.



Infill Some Med. & High Intensity Seams
Key Recommendations 

a. Create a new zoning district or modify the 
transition zone districts to encourage infill 
development of small homes, townhomes, 
duplexes, and small multi-family buildings, 
limited to medium and high intensity 
district seams.



Study Accessory Dwelling Units
Key Recommendations 

a. Enable Accessory Dwelling Units in already compatible 
zones: MX, TZ1, TZ3, and R4 through R8. 

b. Convene a committee to study Accessory Dwelling Units, 
where they are appropriate in Birmingham, and the 
regulations necessary to ensure any negative impacts are 
minimized.



Update the Zoning Code
Key Recommendations 

a. Update the zoning code. Focus on brevity, clarity, graphics, 
and aligning zones with Future Land Use categories. 
Consolidate zones and uses as much as is practical and 
ensure the updated document is legible, clear, and 
predictable for residents as well as developers. This should 
be a significant update.



New Maps



DPZ  GIBBS  MCKENNA



Draft 2 Review:
Meeting 3
PLANNING BOARD · JANUARY 12, 2022

DPZ  GIBBS  MCKENNA



Chapter 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality
 
 

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 c

Contents

A. Introduction

Context ...................................................................... 2
A Global Pandemic ..................................................... 2
Planning Districts ....................................................... 3

B. Future Land Use

Future Land Use Map ................................................. 9
Zoning Plan ...............................................................10
Birmingham Planning Districts ................................... 11
Mixed-use District Fabric ...........................................13
Neighborhood District Fabric .....................................13
District Seams ...........................................................14
District Destinations...................................................15

C. Summary of Key Actions

Key Actions ...............................................................18

Ch 1. Connect the City

Overcome the Woodward Divide ................................28
Redefine Downtown Districts .....................................32
Implement Haynes Square .........................................34
Encourage Gathering Places ......................................37
Prioritize the Neighborhood Loop ...............................40
Accommodate More Modes of Movement ..................42
Improve Regional Transit Connections ........................43
Multi-modal Plan Updates ..........................................44

Ch 2. Embrace Managed Growth

Encourage Housing in Mixed-use Districts ..................48
Infill Some Medium and High Intensity District Seams .50
Study Accessory Dwelling Units .................................51
Update the Zoning Code ............................................52

Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality

Equip Parks to Serve Neighborhoods .........................56
Keep Streets Pedestrian-oriented...............................60
Replace Unimproved Streets ......................................62
Retain Street Tree Canopy .........................................63
Revise Parking Restrictions ........................................64
Retain Housing Character ..........................................66

Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

Continue Improving the Maple and Woodward District 70
Implement Haynes Square .........................................77
Adopt a South Woodward Gateway Plan ....................77
Develop a North Woodward Gateway Plan .................80
Keep it Loose in the Rail District.................................81

Ch 5. Advance Sustainability Practices

Green the City’s Municipal Operations ........................88
Require Green Building in New Construction ..............88
Expand Recycling and Composting ............................88
Install Green Stormwater Infrastructure in Neighborhood 
Streets and Parks ......................................................89
Improve the Rouge River Natural Area ........................89
Implement Plan Actions Supporting Sustainability .......91



Direction for the 2nd Draft: General
Direction Provided Ch. Has This Been Addressed?
1. Reduce Length All 👍 Yes

2. Action Prioritization All 👉 Partially; to be further refined in Draft 2 review process

3. Simplify Language All 👉 Partially; unclear language to be identified in Draft 2 review process

4. Population Projections 2 👍 Yes

5. Include Infrastructure All 👎 Not within scope

6. Increase Sustainability Focus 5 👍 Yes

7. Address Covid-19 All 👍 To the extent possible

8. Focus on Big Moves / Forward-looking All 👍 Yes, in language and actions

9. Prominently Feature Schools All 👎 No; recommended process to be discussed

10. Feature Next 1 👉 Partially; it is identified clearly but the recommendations are for further study

11. Address Outside Connections 1 👉 Partially; the plan does this indirectly, need further direction

12. Historic Districts 3 👍 Yes

13. Walkability for Older Adults All 👉 Partially; address in the neighborhood loop and parks

14. Focus Growth in Mixed-use Areas 2 & 4 👍 Yes

15. More Outdoor Gathering Spaces 3 & 4 👍 Yes

16. Focus on Big Woodward Safety 1 👍 Yes

17. Add Big Woodward North of Maple 1 & 4 👉 Yes; most detail is provided in the text, action items split between Ch. 1 & 4

18. Refer Parking Complexity to Further Study 3 👍 Yes

19. More Broadly Address the Rouge 5 👍 Yes

20. Consider Future of Golf Courses ? 👎 No; further direction needed

👍 Addressed

👉
Addressed but the approach 
requires review

👎
Not addressed or requires 
more information



Direction for the 2nd Draft: Mixed-Use Districts
Direction Provided Ch. Has This Been Addressed?
GENERAL

1.1. More Shared Streets 4 👉 Partially; more may be considered

1.2. Consider Dining Decks re: Covid-19 4 👍 Yes

1.3. EV Charging in MU Districts 4 👉 Partially; within parking decks, further opportunities may be discussed

MAPLE & WOODWARD

2.1. Include Bates Street 4 👉 Partially; recommended for a further special study

2.2. Revisit Pilot Parking re: Covid-19 4 👍 Yes; Covid is unlikely to increase downtown parking demand

2.3. Lighten Retail Standards on Side Streets 4 👎 No; will include but we need to discuss authority and process

HAYNES SQUARE

3.1. Include Adams Square 1 & 4 👍 Yes

3.2. Consider Live-work Buildings 1 & 4 👎 Oversight. Should this be added to the Haynes Square Plan or Zoning in general?

3.3. Add Connection from Worth to Bowers 1 👎 Oversight. To add to the Haynes Square Plan

3.4. Address Haynes Ownership Transfer 1 👉 Partially; included within the Haynes Square Plan recommended study items

3.5. Focus MissingMiddle on Haynes/Adams Sq. 2 👎 Property values are too high here, focused on the Med. & High Intensity Seams

3.6. Look at the Haynes / Adams Traffic Proposal 1 👉 The proposal would function, however it needs actual analysis in a full plan

SOUTH WOODWARD GATEWAY

4.1. South Woodward Gateway Housing 4 👉 Buildings are the best buffer to noise; has been directed to a full plan update

👍 Addressed

👉
Addressed but the approach 
requires review

👎
Not addressed or requires 
more information



Direction for the 2nd Draft: Neighborhoods
Direction Provided Ch. Has This Been Addressed?
1. Revise Planning Districts All 👍 Yes

2. Significantly Reduce Seams 2 👍 Yes

3. Revisit and Limit Accessory Dwellings 2 👍 Yes

4. Reduce and Clarify Commercial Destinations 1 👉 Yes; however the locations and uses should be reviewed

5. Torry Requires More Amenities 3 👍 Yes; this has always been included but may now be more clear

6. Reference the Unimproved Streets Committee 3 👍 Yes

7. Focus on Completing Missing Sidewalks 3 👍 Yes

8. Provide More Green Infrastructure Detail 5 👉 Yes; however it is referred to further study in a Green Infrastructure Plan

9. Clarify the Neighborhood Loop 1 👉 Partially; clarified in text but referred for specific design to be completed

10. Clarify Kenning Park Paths 3 👍 Indirectly; walking paths are addressed generally for Kenning and other parks

11. More Aggressive Tree Preservation 3 👍 Yes

12. More Financial Details on Renovations 3 👉 Partially; recommend a committee be convened to study this

13. Review Lot Coverage Standards 2 👍 It is part of the overall zoning review

14. Provide More Design Control Detail 3 👎 We should discuss if this is desired, it may be a recommended study with examples

15. Remove lot combinations areas 2 👉 Yes; the impact of the existing ordinance should be discussed

👍 Addressed

👉
Addressed but the approach 
requires review

👎
Not addressed or requires 
more information



Equip Parks to Serve Neighborhoods
Key Recommendations 

a. Develop Worth Park as quickly as plausible to provide a 
portion of the needed open space access for Torry. 

b. Attempt to purchase part of the Adams Square parking lot 
for park space, and if unsuccessful ensure that 
redevelopment would require that open space e provided at 
Adams and Bowers. 

c. Establish a formal arrangement with the school district for 
community use of school facilities (open space). 

d. Expand the 2018 Parks and Recreation Master Plan or 
create a new plan beyond the 2022 horizon, to implement 
Parks Best Practices by adding missing amenities and 
updating those that are out of date. Utilize Planning 
Districts to determine sufficiency of park access across the 
city 

Remainder of section is focused on discussion of best practices 
in providing recreational access across different types of parks 
which have specific service areas within the community.

Equip Parks to Serve Neighborhoods

Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 57

Park Athletics Cafe Garden Dogs Exercise Play Splash Seating Walkways

Mini Parks
1. Baldwin Well X
2. Derby Well X X X X
3. Pump House X X X
4. Redding Well X X X X
5. Lynn Smith X X X X
6. Martha Baldwin X X X
7. South Well X X X
Neighborhood Parks
8. Crestview X X X X X X X
9. Howarth X X X X X X X
10. Linden X X X X X X X
11. Pembroke X X X X X X X
12. St. James X X X X X X X
13. W. Lincoln 
Well Site

X X X X X X X

14. Adams Park X X X X X
A. Adams Square X X X X X X
B. Quarton 
School

X X X X X X

Community Parks
15. Barnum X X X X X X X X
16. Kenning X X X X X X X
17. Poppleton X X X X X X X X
C. Seaholm X X X X X X
Specialty Parks
18. Booth X X X X X X X
19. Rouge River X X
20. Shain X X X X X
21. Quarton Lake X X X X X X X
22. Museum X X
23. Manor X X X X
24. Springdale X X X X X X
25. Lincoln Hills X X X X

Figure 34. Amenity Targets by Park and Park Type.



Keep Streets Pedestrian-oriented
Key Recommendations 

a. Task the Multi-modal Transportation Board with an update 
to the Residential Street Standards, aligning the following 
streetscape elements with Future Land Use categories. 
Update the Multi-modal Plan accordingly. 

(i) Sidewalk width; 

(ii) Planter width and type; 

(iii)Type and extent of on-street parking; 

(iv)Frequency of curb cuts; and 

(v) Width of roadway. 

f. Task the Multi-modal Transportation Board with a study of 
bicycle accommodation alternatives along Lincoln. Update 
the Multi-modal Plan accordingly. 

g. Reduce residential posted speed limits to 20 mph. 

h. Update the Multi-modal plan to compete gaps in sidewalks 
and accessible corner ramps where not already specified.

Keep Streets Pedestrian-oriented
Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2160

Keep Streets Pedestrian-oriented

Streets are the most pervasive public space in a city, and  
Birmingham’s streets are exceptionally beautiful and pleas-
ant. However, the role of moving cars is too often consid-
ered the primary role of streets, which are then widened to 
make driving easier. In most cases, widening neighborhood 
streets reduces their function and safety for pedestrians 
and bicyclists, reduces street tree canopy, and increases 
vehicle speeds. Fortunately, Birmingham has resisted calls 
to widen streets for the movement of cars. As a result, 
Birmingham retains a wonderful tree canopy and streets 
that are pleasant to walk along, bike along, and not too 
difficult to drive along.

Yet today, calls for wider streets continue. Too often our 
job as consultants is concerned with reducing roadway 
pavement and adding trees; making streets elsewhere 
more like those found in Birmingham. Once streets are 
widened, cars will move more quickly and those streets 
become convenient ways to cut around areas of conges-
tion. However, some streets in Birmingham are too narrow, 
like Westchester Way, paved approximately 16 feet yet 
operating two-way with parking. Streets narrower than 20 
feet paved and operating two-way with on-street parking 
should be considered for a modification of function or 
widening. Most other streets should not.

Beyond the space to accommodate automobiles, street 
design must consider pedestrian comfort and safety, bicy-
clist comfort and safety, and street trees.

Pedestrian comfort and safety is influenced by the size 
and location of sidewalks. Birmingham’s historic neighbor-
hood standard was a minimum 4 foot sidewalk, which is 
insufficient by today’s standards. In most neighborhoods, 
sidewalks should be a minimum of 5 feet wide, and 6 feet 
in neighborhoods near mixed-use districts or streets with 
multi-family housing. The recently passed Residential Street 
Design Standard specifies a 5 foot minimum, which works 
for most places. In a mixed-use context, sidewalks should 
be wider, no less than 14 feet from curb to edge of right-
of-way assuming a paved tree lawn with tree wells. Shared 
space streets are a special exception to be handled on a 
case-by-case basis.

Sidewalks should also be continuous and pervasive. Today, 
sidewalks are missing in numerous places, which should 
be surveyed and remedied. Similarly, street intersections 
which do not have accessible ramps to crossings should 
be remedied.

Bicyclist and micro-mobility comfort and safety is princi-
pally influenced by the speed of vehicles and availability 
of dedicated facilities. In most streets, narrow lanes result 
in slow car movement, which provide bike and micro-mo-
bility needs. But more so than cars, frequent stopping 
is extremely inconvenient. Bicycle boulevards should be 
considered to solve this issue, arranging intersection control 
to prefer bike and micro-mobility through movement and 
diverting cars to avoid cut through movement. The neigh-
borhood loop proposes such a system. Along streets with 

speeds above 25mph, however, dedicated 
facilities should be provided or means of 
slowing traffic pursued.

The tree lawn is critical to street trees; 
suf f icient root area results in greater 
canopy. Canopy health is very closely 
related with the health of residents, mental 
and physical, and the success of children 
in school. In fact, programs exist across 
the country to re-establish urban tree 
canopies to improve the health outcomes 
of children. In neighborhoods, tree lawns 
should not be sacrif iced for pavement 
width.

Figure 37. A pleasant, right-sized street in the Quarton district.



Replace Unimproved Streets
Key Recommendations 

a. Adopt policy recommendations, specified by the Ad-hoc 
Unimproved Streets Committee (AHUSC). 

b. City staff should survey the current condition of unimproved 
streets, categorized by the current quality such that streets 
in the most extreme states of disrepair can be prioritized for 
improvement. Stormwater issues should receive special 
priority. 

c. City Commission should establish a yearly budget to 
remedy unimproved streets, considering the general fund 
plus bond strategy and repayment timelines recommended 
by the AHUSC. 

d. Remedy unimproved streets according to the repair priority 
and budget, ensuring improvements occur in different 
planning districts, not all in a single district in a single year.

Replace Unimproved Streets
Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2162

Replace Unimproved Streets

Many neighborhood streets in Birmingham are in disre-
pair. Residents are confused about the process to improve 
streets, which is exacerbated by unique situations in two 
parts of the community.

As is readily apparent, many neighborhood streets are in 
very poor condition. The situation is historic, related to 
the standards in place as far back as each neighborhood 
was initially developed. It has been incumbent upon neigh-
bors to choose to improve their streets, and pay into that 
improvement based upon how much lot frontage they have 
along the street. To date, a significant number of residents 
have done just that, yet it leaves nearly 26 linear miles of 
streets unimproved. Most unimproved streets are easily 

recognizable in that they do not have curbs. Yet, to confuse 
the matter, there is a small section of unimproved streets 
that have historic curbs. And lastly, there is a section of 
Birmingham where sewer service is located in the rear 
lot, not in the street, which requires special consideration 
when improving streets.

The City Commission convened an Ad-hoc Unimproved 
Streets Committee (AHUSC) to study this issue. In late 2020, 
the committee issued its recommendations. A high-level 
summary of those recommendations are to: 1) change the 
process of initiating street repair to be instigated by the 
City; 2) use the City’s general fund to pay for the non-utility 
improvements to streets and bonds to pay for the utility 
portion of improvements, reimbursed by residents through 
special assessment and utility rate fees; and 3) to prefer 

Figure 38. Unimproved Streets, Citywide.

Unimproved Streets

Unimproved with Curbs



Retain Street Tree Canopy
Key Recommendations 

a. Survey missing street trees and prioritize new plantings 
along neighborhood streets with thin canopies. 

b. Survey areas with constrained root conditions and establish 
a plan to provide additional root volume. 

c. Prevent existing, healthy trees from being removed due to 
new constructions. 

d. Create a streetscape improvement plan for the Triangle 
District and Rail District. 

e. Convene a committee to establish tree policies to: 

(i) Select large canopy species native to the region for streets 
and parks, retaining the character of each neighborhood’s 
distinctive canopy while considering the region’s future 
climate. 

(ii) Minimize overly-used or exotic species, such as Crab 
Apple, Honey Locust, and Pear Trees. 

(iii)Craft policy requiring that trees removed due to new 
construction be replaced, as well as mandatory 
contributions to fund new off-site trees.



Revise Parking Restrictions
Key Recommendations 

a. Convene a committee to study citywide street parking 
restrictions and permits, charged with: 

(i) Creating a consistent and limited set of citywide parking 
standards. 

(ii) Create a plan to re-assign street parking restrictions 
citywide for greater consistency. 

(iii)Establish a consistent residential permit system to service 
those neighborhoods that choose to use such a system 
which includes permit fees to cover costs, decals, and 
visitor tags purchased separately from the residential 
permits. The existing permit systems may suffice to operate 
more broadly.

Revise Parking Restrictions
Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 65

EXISTING PARKING RESTRICTIONS

TORRY AT THE RAIL DISTRICT:

• 15 Min Parking 8am-9am Except Sun. & Holidays

• 2 HR Parking 6am-4pm Except Sat, Sun., & Holidays

• 2 HR Parking 8am-6pm Except Sun. & Holidays

• 2 HR Parking 9am-6pm Except Sun. & Holidays

• 2 HR Parking Limit 

• No Parking Anytime 

• Parking Allowed, All Times

• Permit Parking Required at All Times

SEAHOLM AND LINCOLN HILLS:

• 2 HR Parking 9am-5pm Except Sat, sun, & Holidays

• No Parking 8am-6pm 

• No Parking, 7am-9am Except Sun. & Holidays

• No Parking, 8am-6pm Except Sat., Sun. & Holidays

• No Parking, 8am-6pm Except Sun. & Holidays

• No Parking, M-F 7am-2pm

• No Parking, School Days 7am-3pm

• No Parking, School Days 8am-10am

• No Parking, Sunday 7am-1pm

• Parking Allowed, All Times

• Parking Permit 7am-4pm School Days

• Residential Permit Parking

 

Figure 39. Sample of Existing Parking Restrictions

Bowers StBowers St

Adam
s Rd

Adam
s Rd

C
olum

bia St
C

olum
bia St

Torry St
Torry St

Eton St
Eton StHaynes StHaynes St

Holland StHolland St

Webster StWebster St

Cole StCole St

Lincoln StLincoln St

Villa RdVilla Rd

Yosemite BlvdYosemite Blvd

Maple RdMaple Rd

Midvale RdMidvale Rd

Lincoln StLincoln St

Fairway DrFairway Dr

Northlawn BlvdNorthlawn Blvd

Hills
ide D

r

Hills
ide D

r

G
lenhurst D

r
G

lenhurst D
r

G
olfview

 
G

olfview
 

W
estchester W

ay
W

estchester W
ay

Larchlea D
r

Larchlea D
r

Pleasant St
Pleasant St

Maple RdMaple Rd

Avon LnAvon Ln

Be
rw

yn
 R

d
Be

rw
yn

 R
d

Ar
gy

le
 B

lvd

Ar
gy

le
 B

lvd

W
el

le
sl

ey
 D

r

W
el

le
sl

ey
 D

r

Br
yn

 M
aw

r R
d

Br
yn

 M
aw

r R
d

C
ra

nb
ro

ok
 R

d
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d



Retain Housing Character
Key Recommendations 

a. Review and update site, building, and design codes to 
prevent increased rainwater runoff and other negative 
impacts from new house construction. 

b. Expand the inspection process for new house construction 
to ensure that they are built per approved plans to minimize 
negative impacts on surrounding properties. 

c. Revise the zoning code’s residential zoning district 
boundaries and standards to better match and maintain 
current building scale, position on the property, driveway 
configuration, and other key characteristics. 

d. Convene a committee to study incentives to encourage 
renovations to expand existing houses rather than the 
construction of  new homes. 

e. Task the Historic District Commission and Historic District 
Study Committee with proactively establishing new historic 
districts as well as landmarks. 

f. Convene a committee to study neighborhood lighting 
standards, including exterior residential lighting and street 
lighting.

Retain Housing Character
Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 67

establishing historic districts and landmarks throughout the 
city. Additionally, HDC review authority should be strength-
ened in consideration of demolitions and renovations.

Lastly, light intensity and color is an often overlooked quality 
of Birmingham’s neighborhood streets. Some new homes 
have been built with lighting that is too intense, degrading 
the calm character of Birmingham’s neighborhood fabric. 
Lighting should be subdued generally, avoid spillover onto 
neighboring properties, and be oriented downward not 
outward. Luminaires should be shielded to eliminate glare 
and limited in individual intensity. Multiple bulbs of lower 
intensity can provide the same light coverage without glare 
or hot spots. Color temperature is also keenly important. 
Light that is towards the blue end of the spectrum, higher 
color temperature, disrupts natural human cycles when 
used at nighttime. Color temperature should not exceed 
3200 Kelvin after dusk. Currently the Zoning Ordinance 
uses Illuminating Engineering Society of North America 
(IESNA) standards as a baseline, Zone E4 for everything 
R4 and above. Neighborhood illumination is not regu-
lated, which is clearly in need. The International Dark Sky 
Association model standards are recommended in place 
of IESNA standards. These standards should be evalu-
ated for use in neighborhoods as well as for adjustment or 
replacement of existing zoning requirements concerning 
lighting in R4 and above.

Similarly, the color temperature and intensity of streetlights 
requires study to avoid issues similar to residential exterior 

lighting. Across the country many cities have switched to 
LED streetlights. This is a recommended practice for main-
tenance and energy usage but the fixtures and luminaires 
must be carefully selected. LED streetlights produce more 
glare and hotspots than prior technologies. The earliest 
models, still available, are set to color temperatures that 
are too blue. As the city contemplates a change in tech-
nology, common pitfalls should be avoided, ensuring: 
luminaires are shielded with globes or similar devices 
that scatter light; luminaires have a color temperature no 
greater than 3500K; poles are installed more frequently, 
at a lower height, to achieve the desired light level while 
avoiding glare, excessive intensity, and hot spots.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS  
1. Review and update site, building, and design codes 

to prevent increased rainwater runoff and other 
negative impacts from new house construction.  

2. Expand the inspection process for new house 
construction to ensure that they are built per 
approved plans to minimize negative impacts on 
surrounding properties.

3. Revise the Zoning Code’s residential zoning district 
boundaries and standards to better match and 
maintain current building scale, position on the 
property, driveway configuration, and other key 
characteristics.

4. Convene a committee to study incentives to 

Figures 41 & 42. Infill housing on two sides of one street, older homes (left) and new homes (right).



DPZ  GIBBS  MCKENNA



Draft 2 Review:
Meeting 4
PLANNING BOARD · FEBRUARY 09, 2022

DPZ  GIBBS  MCKENNA



Chapters 4 and 5
 
 

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 c

Contents

A. Introduction

Context ...................................................................... 2
A Global Pandemic ..................................................... 2
Planning Districts ....................................................... 3

B. Future Land Use

Future Land Use Map ................................................. 9
Zoning Plan ...............................................................10
Birmingham Planning Districts ................................... 11
Mixed-use District Fabric ...........................................13
Neighborhood District Fabric .....................................13
District Seams ...........................................................14
District Destinations...................................................15

C. Summary of Key Actions

Key Actions ...............................................................18

Ch 1. Connect the City

Overcome the Woodward Divide ................................28
Redefine Downtown Districts .....................................32
Implement Haynes Square .........................................34
Encourage Gathering Places ......................................37
Prioritize the Neighborhood Loop ...............................40
Accommodate More Modes of Movement ..................42
Improve Regional Transit Connections ........................43
Multi-modal Plan Updates ..........................................44

Ch 2. Embrace Managed Growth

Encourage Housing in Mixed-use Districts ..................48
Infill Some Medium and High Intensity District Seams .50
Study Accessory Dwelling Units .................................51
Update the Zoning Code ............................................52

Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality

Equip Parks to Serve Neighborhoods .........................56
Keep Streets Pedestrian-oriented...............................60
Replace Unimproved Streets ......................................62
Retain Street Tree Canopy .........................................63
Revise Parking Restrictions ........................................64
Retain Housing Character ..........................................66

Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

Continue Improving the Maple and Woodward District 70
Implement Haynes Square .........................................77
Adopt a South Woodward Gateway Plan ....................77
Develop a North Woodward Gateway Plan .................80
Keep it Loose in the Rail District.................................81

Ch 5. Advance Sustainability Practices

Green the City’s Municipal Operations ........................88
Require Green Building in New Construction ..............88
Expand Recycling and Composting ............................88
Install Green Stormwater Infrastructure in Neighborhood 
Streets and Parks ......................................................89
Improve the Rouge River Natural Area ........................89
Implement Plan Actions Supporting Sustainability .......91



Direction for the 2nd Draft: General
Direction Provided Ch. Has This Been Addressed?
1. Reduce Length All 👍 Yes

2. Action Prioritization All 👉 Partially; to be further refined in Draft 2 review process

3. Simplify Language All 👉 Partially; unclear language to be identified in Draft 2 review process

4. Population Projections 2 👍 Yes

5. Include Infrastructure All 👎 Not within scope

6. Increase Sustainability Focus 5 👍 Yes

7. Address Covid-19 All 👍 To the extent possible

8. Focus on Big Moves / Forward-looking All 👍 Yes, in language and actions

9. Prominently Feature Schools All 👎 No; recommended process to be discussed

10. Feature Next 1 👉 Partially; it is identified clearly but the recommendations are for further study

11. Address Outside Connections 1 👉 Partially; the plan does this indirectly, need further direction

12. Historic Districts 3 👍 Yes

13. Walkability for Older Adults All 👉 Partially; address in the neighborhood loop and parks

14. Focus Growth in Mixed-use Areas 2 & 4 👍 Yes

15. More Outdoor Gathering Spaces 3 & 4 👍 Yes

16. Focus on Big Woodward Safety 1 👍 Yes

17. Add Big Woodward North of Maple 1 & 4 👉 Yes; most detail is provided in the text, action items split between Ch. 1 & 4

18. Refer Parking Complexity to Further Study 3 👍 Yes

19. More Broadly Address the Rouge 5 👍 Yes

20. Consider Future of Golf Courses ? 👎 No; further direction needed

👍 Addressed

👉
Addressed but the approach 
requires review

👎
Not addressed or requires 
more information



Direction for the 2nd Draft: Mixed-Use Districts
Direction Provided Ch. Has This Been Addressed?
GENERAL

1.1. More Shared Streets 4 👉 Partially; more may be considered

1.2. Consider Dining Decks re: Covid-19 4 👍 Yes

1.3. EV Charging in MU Districts 4 👉 Partially; within parking decks, further opportunities may be discussed

MAPLE & WOODWARD

2.1. Include Bates Street 4 👉 Partially; recommended for a further special study

2.2. Revisit Pilot Parking re: Covid-19 4 👍 Yes; Covid is unlikely to increase downtown parking demand

2.3. Lighten Retail Standards on Side Streets 4 👎 No; will include but we need to discuss authority and process

HAYNES SQUARE

3.1. Include Adams Square 1 & 4 👍 Yes

3.2. Consider Live-work Buildings 1 & 4 👎 Oversight. Should this be added to the Haynes Square Plan or Zoning in general?

3.3. Add Connection from Worth to Bowers 1 👎 Oversight. To add to the Haynes Square Plan

3.4. Address Haynes Ownership Transfer 1 👉 Partially; included within the Haynes Square Plan recommended study items

3.5. Focus MissingMiddle on Haynes/Adams Sq. 2 👎 Property values are too high here, focused on the Med. & High Intensity Seams

3.6. Look at the Haynes / Adams Traffic Proposal 1 👉 The proposal would function, however it needs actual analysis in a full plan

SOUTH WOODWARD GATEWAY

4.1. South Woodward Gateway Housing 4 👉 Buildings are the best buffer to noise; has been directed to a full plan update

👍 Addressed

👉
Addressed but the approach 
requires review

👎
Not addressed or requires 
more information



Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts



Continue Improving Maple and Woodward
Key Recommendations 

a. Adopt a policy requiring a minimum 6 foot clear path along 
the sidewalk be retained throughout mixed-use districts. 

b. Expand activities and special events to attract office 
workers and residents to shop and dine downtown. 

c. Update the Multi-modal Plan to address micro-mobility, 
increased pedestrian activity with new downtown housing, 
and recent experiences with increased outdoor dining. 

d. Update the Parks and Rec Master Plan to increase 
amenities and connections in Downtown’s parks. 

e. Implement an art-mural program for large blank walls. 

f. Study tiered on-street parking meter pricing in Downtown. 

g. Study tiered parking rates for different garages. 

h. Study monthly parking pass fees. 

i. Study secure bike parking and EV charging in parking 
garages. 

j. Continue to review technology improvements and utilize to 
ease the parking experience. 

k. Install directional and informational parking signage. 

l. Study a shared space street for Merrill. 

m. Create a detailed plan for the Bates Street Extension.

Continue Improving the Maple and Woodward District
Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2170

Continue Improving the Maple and 
Woodward District

Maple and Woodward (Downtown Birmingham) is a vibrant 
urban center that is the envy of many other communities. 
Although its population is only 21,000, Birmingham has a 
commercial core the size of a city of 200,000. The city’s 
assortment of shops, restaurants, parks, offices, civic build-
ings, and entertainment venues offers an exciting, safe, and 
walkable environment and lifestyle to its residents. It also 
draws people from throughout the region. Like any dynamic 
urban center, Downtown Birmingham continues to address 
challenges such as affordability, conflicting commercial 
and residential interests, rapid growth, adequate parking, 
and effective traffic management.

Active Sidewalks

Given Downtown’s walkability and scale of commercial 
presence, it has only a moderate amount of weekday 
pedestrian traf fic. During the weekends Birmingham’s  
downtown pedestrian traffic has noticeably fewer visitors 
than Downtown Royal Oak and Detroit’s. Combining offices, 
services, and housing means that a district can be busy 
day and night, which provides a more robust customer 
base during most hours of the day. Increasing housing in 
downtown will begin to shift the balance, further bolstered 
by increasing the number of events, improving streetscapes, 
and activating downtown’s open spaces.

Old Woodward, between Hamilton 
and Merril l Streets, West Maple, 
and Pierce Streets carry the most 
pedestrian traffic. This is the core of 
the Maple and Woodward district. 
Due to their size and volume of 
traffic, both Maple and Woodward 
per form poor ly for restaurants 
compared to smaller streets with 
intimate outdoor dining exper i-
ences, as is found along Merrill and 
Pierce. Similarly, Hamilton boasts 
a collection of smaller businesses 
in a vibrant environment, but is 
negatively impacted by the bank 
on the corner, deadening 350 feet 

of Hamilton at the most critical retail intersection.

Merrill provides an ideal opportunity to pilot a downtown 
shared space street, which reduces, but does not elimi-
nate, the car and accommodates and allows dining areas 
and public seating to extend further into the street during 
evening hours. Paving generally in the character of Merrill 
through Shain Park is recommended, where pedestrian 
movement, clusters of public seating, public art, and bike 
racks would displace but not eliminate space for cars. 
Connecting the active portion of Merril l to Shain Park 
would improve the pedestrian experience, though it is 
made difficult by the surface parking lot at City Hall and 
relatively poor frontages along the Townsend Hotel. Liner 
buildings, small or temporary retail kiosks, food trucks, or 
similar means of activating the municipal building frontage 
on Merrill could activate this connection.

The seasonal dining decks proposed in the Downtown 
Birmingham 2016 plan have successfully expanded the 
afternoon and early evening street life. The popularity of 
these decks has increased the demand for downtown 
parking at the same time that their implementation has 
decreased the number of parking spaces available to 
both diners and shoppers. Yet the pandemic has made 
outdoor dining necessary, a trend likely to continue in good 
weather, maintaining demand for dining decks. As a result, 
two solutions should be pursued in parallel: the use of 
technology to make parking easier to access and locating 

Figure 44. Old Woodward following the recent streetscape redevelopment.

Continue Improving the Maple and Woodward District
Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 71

other opportunities for outdoor dining that do not displace 
parking. Technology may relieve some amount of the street 
parking problem in Downtown by making garages easier 
to access and adjusting the supply of on-street parking 
through pricing cues. These technologies are discussed 
in the following section. 

Additional opportunities for outdoor dining in the public 
realm should be pursued along with technology. Outdoor 
dining next to the curb or building facade should be encour-
aged and opportunities to provide this seating without fenc-
ing should be explored. Today a few instances of fenced 
outdoor seating significantly restrict sidewalk width, a 
minimum 6 foot clear path should be required along the 
sidewalk even if the sidewalk is not 6 feet wide. Where 
streetscape projects make curb changes, space at corner 
and mid-block bulb-outs may be used for dining. And alleys 
and passageways should be considered where dining in 
those locations is convenient for an adjacent business.

Old Woodward, being the largest and most traf f icked 
roadway, requires the greatest consistency and quality 
of storefronts, with more transparency than the smaller 
streets. The new streetscape is an improvement for pedes-
trians, but at present it lacks adequate public seating. In 
fact, throughout the Maple and Woodward area, and in 
other mixed-use districts, public seating is lacking. New 
seating installed with the recent streetscape project is out 
of character with Birmingham and should be replaced by 

benches with backs, like those found in Shain Park.

Bike parking and micro-mobility corrals are also lacking 
throughout the district. As micro-mobility has yet to become 
a concern locally, addressing bike parking should come 
first, but micro-mobility will arrive soon. Bike racks are 
most easily accommodated in bulb-outs at intersections 
where they can be installed perpendicular to the curb, 
accommodating 3 or 4 U-racks.

Public Space
Downtown boasts a wide variety of parks from its’ collection 
of pocket parks, to the formal square of Shain Park, and 
Booth Park and the Rouge Trail. Shain Park is active on a 
daily basis, due to its variety of amenities and its visibility. 
Other park spaces in Downtown could be improved with 
additional amenities and better visibility and connections.

Signage and trail connections would make more existing 
park spaces accessible from Downtown. Directional signage 
throughout Downtown should direct people to the area’s 
parks and trails, in addition to key landmarks and institu-
tions. To access these destinations, a few key connections 
should be added. From Maple and Woodward, Booth Park 
feels separated, more a part of Market North. The Bates 
Street Extension recommended in the 1996 plan should 
be pursued, particularly with a focus on connecting Maple 
and Woodward to Booth Park and the Rouge River trails. 
Where the Willits Trail meets Maple at the Birmingham 

Museum, the museum’s entry with 
seating and the bell should more 
clearly connect down the slope and 
into the trail system.

Seating at both Shain and Booth 
Parks does not accommodate visi-
tors during peak hours. Shain Park’s 
movable seating has been a good 
addition which should be expanded. 
More regular park benches should 
also be installed around the central 
loop. In major cities, the central loop 
would be entirely lined with benches, 
which is too much for Birmingham’s 
character, but the supply should be 
greatly increased. Booth Park has Figure 45. The Pierce-Merrill pocket park.



Establish Market North as a Distinct District
Key Recommendations 

a. Extend the D2 zoning to the multi-family properties along 
the west side of Old Woodward up to Quarton. 

b. Install way finding throughout the district. (Covered earlier) 

c. Update the Multi-modal Plan to support increased 
pedestrian activity on both sides of North Old Woodward. 

d. Update the Parks and Rec Plan to add amenities and a 
cafe to Booth Park. (Covered earlier) 

e. Develop branding, special signage, seating, and 
streetscape elements unique to the Market North district. 

f. Develop storefront design, signage, and other standards to 
retain the small-scale business character. 

g. Study a parking garage in the Lot 6 parking lot. 

h. Develop a streetscape plan along North Old Woodward to 
add on-street parking, pedestrian and bicycle amenities, 
and safety improvements. 

i. Study a permanent, open-air farmers market pavilion.

Continue Improving the Maple and Woodward District
Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 75

Market North’s district character should be reinforced at 
the connection between the sidewalk and building facades. 
Currently some storefronts and signage are unattractive 
and incongruous with Birmingham’s upscale character and 
image. This district is distinct from Maple and Woodward 
in storefront design, featuring less glazing and more small-
scale business facades. Even with new buildings, the 
storefront scale should be retained with paned windows 
featuring more traditional muntins above bulkheads and 
framed door entries. Benches should be encouraged along 
the building facades, facing towards the street. And street-
scape elements like benches, trash cans, and signage 
should be unique to this district.

Unlike Maple and Woodward where restaurants have large 
seating areas in dining decks, Market North maintains a 
character of smaller cafes and even ice cream stores with 
limited outdoor seating. This treatment should be encour-
aged in new buildings, with intimate cafe spaces and some 
outdoor dining along the building and the furnishing zone 
(See Figure C.3-03). The condition at the Market North End 
restaurant is also to be encouraged (See Figure C.3-04). 

Public Space

Market North is anchored by Booth Park and the farmers 
market. Booth Park provides direct access to the Rouge 
River trail system, and occupies nearly 500 feet of Old 
Woodward frontage which creates a clear distinction 

between Maple and Woodward 
and Market North. As discussed 
previously, the park lacks adequate 
seating for its users at peak hours. 
Additional ly the entry corner at 
Harmon and Old Woodward is too 
informal for its’ setting. Proposed 
in the Downtown 2016 plan, Booth 
Pa rk  shou ld  have  a  ca fe  and 
restrooms within an iconic park 
bui lding near this entrance in a 
paved plaza.

The Farmers Market g ives the 
district its name, but has little pres-
ence on non-market days. Rather 
than an afterthought, the district’s 
identity should be reinforced with a 

permanent, open-air market pavilion. The pavilion could 
be located where the market currently takes place, in 
the portion of municipal parking lot 6 that is open to Old 
Woodward. Designed appropriately, cars could continue 
to park under the pavilion awnings on non-market days. 
(See Figure 49).

Housing

The distr ict’s existing housing is mainly in inef f icient 
mult i-fami ly bui ldings along i ts nor thwestern edge. 

Figure 48. Character of small scale businesses in Market North.

Figure 49. Proposed open air market pavilion.

Continue Improving the Maple and Woodward District
Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 75

Market North’s district character should be reinforced at 
the connection between the sidewalk and building facades. 
Currently some storefronts and signage are unattractive 
and incongruous with Birmingham’s upscale character and 
image. This district is distinct from Maple and Woodward 
in storefront design, featuring less glazing and more small-
scale business facades. Even with new buildings, the 
storefront scale should be retained with paned windows 
featuring more traditional muntins above bulkheads and 
framed door entries. Benches should be encouraged along 
the building facades, facing towards the street. And street-
scape elements like benches, trash cans, and signage 
should be unique to this district.

Unlike Maple and Woodward where restaurants have large 
seating areas in dining decks, Market North maintains a 
character of smaller cafes and even ice cream stores with 
limited outdoor seating. This treatment should be encour-
aged in new buildings, with intimate cafe spaces and some 
outdoor dining along the building and the furnishing zone 
(See Figure C.3-03). The condition at the Market North End 
restaurant is also to be encouraged (See Figure C.3-04). 

Public Space

Market North is anchored by Booth Park and the farmers 
market. Booth Park provides direct access to the Rouge 
River trail system, and occupies nearly 500 feet of Old 
Woodward frontage which creates a clear distinction 

between Maple and Woodward 
and Market North. As discussed 
previously, the park lacks adequate 
seating for its users at peak hours. 
Additional ly the entry corner at 
Harmon and Old Woodward is too 
informal for its’ setting. Proposed 
in the Downtown 2016 plan, Booth 
Pa rk  shou ld  have  a  ca fe  and 
restrooms within an iconic park 
bui lding near this entrance in a 
paved plaza.

The Farmers Market g ives the 
district its name, but has little pres-
ence on non-market days. Rather 
than an afterthought, the district’s 
identity should be reinforced with a 

permanent, open-air market pavilion. The pavilion could 
be located where the market currently takes place, in 
the portion of municipal parking lot 6 that is open to Old 
Woodward. Designed appropriately, cars could continue 
to park under the pavilion awnings on non-market days. 
(See Figure 49).

Housing

The distr ict’s existing housing is mainly in inef f icient 
mult i-fami ly bui ldings along i ts nor thwestern edge. 

Figure 48. Character of small scale businesses in Market North.

Figure 49. Proposed open air market pavilion.

Continue Improving the Maple and Woodward District
Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2176

Redevelopment has begun with new mixed-use buildings 
on the east side of Old Woodward and development inter-
est beginning on the west. Many of the district’s buildings 
along Old Woodard are prime opportunities for redevelop-
ment as mixed use structures. While some may be nostal-
gic for the area’s garden apartments, their form and deep 
setbacks from Old Woodward signal that drivers can speed 
through the area, especially coming from the high speed 
portions of big Woodward just to the north. Better defini-
tion at the streetscape with new buildings will slow cars 
and reinforce walkability. But improvements are needed 
along Old Woodward to support additional pedestrians, 
particularly north of Harmon.

Parking
As the Market North district is seeing redevelopment inter-
est, it has too little parking to support its potential. As in 
Maple and Woodward, daytime parking is full in Lot 6 while 
it is empty at night. The Downtown 2016 plan, completed 
about 25 years ago, recommended that a parking deck be 
built on Lot 6. This recommendation should be pursued 
along with the permanent market pavilion, with a low deck, 
about 2-3 floors total, located behind the existing buildings. 

To avoid disturbance to neighbors along Brookside, care 
should be taken to eliminate any light spill over and to pres-
ent a pleasant facade to the west, and care also taken to 
limit impacts on the Rouge River.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS
1. As part of the zoning code update, extend D2 

zoning to the multi-family properties along the west 
side of Old Woodward up to Quarton.

2. Install way-finding signage throughout the district. 
(Addressed previously)

3. Update the Multi-modal Plan to support increased 
pedestrian activity on both sides of North Old 
Woodward and install streetscape amenities. (See 
the section on Multi-modal Plan updates)

4. Update the Parks and Recreation Plan to add 
amenities and a cafe to Booth Park. (See the section 
on Parks and Recreation Plan updates)

5. Convene a committee to develop branding, special 
signage, seating, and streetscape elements unique 
to the Market North district.

Figure 50. Extension of D2 zoning in Market North.

 Zoning

R2 single family residential
R6 single family residential

B2 general business
O office commercial

 Downtown Overlay Zoning

D2 3-story development
D4 5-story development

P parking structures 

CURRENT ZONING WITH OVERLAY

Old W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

Woodward Ave

Woodward Ave

Ferndale Ave

Ferndale Ave

Harmon St
Harmon St Bonnie Brier St

Bonnie Brier St
Vinewood AveVinewood Ave

Oak AveOak Ave

G
reenw

ood St
G

reenw
ood St

W
oodland St

W
oodland St

Park St
Park St

Brookside Ave
Brookside Ave

PROPOSED OVERLAY EXTENSION

Old W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

Woodward Ave

Woodward Ave

Ferndale Ave

Ferndale Ave

Harmon St
Harmon St Bonnie Brier St

Bonnie Brier St

Vinewood AveVinewood Ave

Oak AveOak Ave

G
reenw

ood St
G

reenw
ood St

W
oodland St

W
oodland St

Park St
Park St

Brookside Ave
Brookside Ave



Adopt a South Woodward Gateway Plan
Key Recommendations 

a. Update and adopt the South Woodward Gateway Urban 
Design Plan. 

b. Incentivize redevelopment through increased zoning 
capacity and reduced parking requirements. 

c. Establish zoning standards to enable Neighborhood 
Sleeves. 

d. Establish zoning standards to enable shared-use alleys. 

e. Establish zoning standards to encourage redevelopment of 
South Woodward Gateway properties.

Adopt a South Woodward Gateway Plan

Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 79

to extend outdoor seating and outdoor retail displays into 

the shared-use alley space (See Figure 54).

Full alley activation requires that both sides of the alley 

engage to define its character. With parking addressed 

more efficiently, the triangular parking lots should revert 

to residential use in order to reduce noise spill over into 

the neighborhood. Most of the triangular properties can 

retain yard space, with shallow townhouses lining the alley 

and side streets. A muse-type townhouse is appropriate 

along alleys, which has a flush single car garage entry 

along with the building facade. Common in the United 

Kingdom, Birmingham has a few townhouse developments 

that approximate this treatment.

Neighborhood Sleeves

To create a better interface between Gateway retail and 

surrounding neighborhoods, buildings should provide 

active facades along side streets. In an ideal condition, as 

illustrated, the redevelopment of an entire block face would 

consolidate parking in the mid-block and face buildings 

towards side streets. Doing so simplifies parking access, 

provides more spaces, and provides retail experiences. 

Presently, facing buildings onto Woodward creates an 

awkward parking condition and poor pedestrian experi-

ence and parking access from Woodward is inefficient.

Each residential street in the Kenning and Pierce neigh-

borhoods terminates on Woodward. Currently, the last 150 

feet or more of each residential street is presented with 

surface parking, an unattractive alley, and typically a long 

blank wall along the side of buildings that face Woodward. 

For the neighborhood this is a poor experience by car, 

and especially walking. Potential exists to face storefronts 

onto side streets rather than Woodward, like the condition 

depicted along Benneville (See Figure 53). If this building 

were a coffee shop, it could have a pleasant outdoor patio 

nearby neighbors might frequent.

Figure 55. Neighborhood Sleeve configuration which creates small neighborhood-focused nodes along side streets.



Develop a North Woodward Gateway Plan
Key Recommendations 

a. Plant a full and consistent tree canopy along the Woodward 
median throughout Birmingham, beginning with the 
northern and southern entries. 

b. Develop a North Woodward Gateway Urban Design Plan to 
improve the appearance of the northern entrance to 
Birmingham, slow traffic entering the city, and improve the 
Old Woodward entrances as a signature gateway to 
Birmingham and its’ Downtown.



Keep it Loose in the Rail District
Key Recommendations 

a. Develop an Overlay Zoning District for the Lower Rail 
District (limited duration). 

b. Construct a shared-use street section along Cole and 
Commerce Streets. 

c. Update the 1999 Eton Road Corridor Plan for the area 
south of Palmer Street, including increased vehicular 
connectivity. 

d. Modify the MX District to enable the urban development 
envisions by the 1999 Eton Road Corridor Plan. 

e. Develop a plan to provide access to the Troy Transit Center. 

f. Study redevelopment of the DPW building to occupy a 
portion of a public parking facility. 

g. Construct the contemplated linear park and trail along the 
railroad.

Keep it Loose in the Rail District
Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2182

robotics. Auto service, a lumber yard, and the City’s Public 
Services Department follow old lines of rail spurs.

The Lower Rail District, south of Palmer Street, consists of 
small, mostly single-story warehouse buildings occupied 
with varied businesses including yoga, co-working, dog 
daycare, art, dance, auto body shops, and more. These 
are arranged haphazardly among small parking areas, 
charming in a way that is certainly not suburban. Only the 
degraded character of the street and lack of trees detract 
from the area’s charm. The southern end of the district is 
capped by Kenning Park with the City’s Ice Rink and skate 
park, along with a new and quite urban senior retirement 
development.

The Rail District has no single character but overall it has 
an intimate charm. Other parts of the City are increasing 
their refinement, and many lament the loss of the City’s 
artistic and entrepreneurial roots. Yet this is alive in the 
Rail District.

Plans and zoning for the Rail District point to a heavily 
urbanized future. A 2017 Ad-hoc Committee report for 
the Rail District estimated the zoned potential that could 
be built on properties likely to redevelop in the near future 
could increase intensity 10-fold, albeit unlikely. Due to the 
significant disparity between the district’s long-term future 
and the functional and desirable near-term conditions, poli-
cies and improvements should permit the district’s current 
condition and success to continue while incrementally 
preparing it for an intensified future condition.

Near-term Conditions

Many existing buildings within the Lower Rail District are 
legally non-conforming, disincentivizing investment in exist-
ing buildings and continuation of the present condition.

The Lower Rail district is a type of commercial development 
which is currently emerging nationally. It provides incubator 
space for businesses at a much lower cost level than the 
downtown shops. The current code applies standards that 

Figure 57. The Lower Rail District.

Palmer St
Palmer St

E. Lincoln StE. Lincoln St

Cole StCole St

Holland StHolland St

S.
 E

to
n 

St
S.

 E
to

n 
St

Keep it Loose in the Rail District

Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 83

are appropriate to create pedestrian-oriented streets but as 

a result is burdensome to existing structures and uses. In 

the near-term, the Lower Rail District should remain infor-

mal and somewhat experimental. This character should 

be encouraged through zoning, development review, and 

in the public realm.

Zoning need only be slightly adjusted. These adjustments 

are the type appropriate for an overlay district which applies 

only to the Lower Rail District. The overlay should consider 

allowing the following when existing buildings are improved 

or expanded, or when new single-story buildings are built:

• Parking to remain between buildings and front lot 

lines if it already exists.

• Buildings to retain their present setback when reno-

vated, expanded, or reconstructed.

• Parking lots of 70 feet wide or less to be exempted 

from required trees and landscaping.

• Screening not be required except along lot lines 

facing Eton Street.

• Small footprint towers of 600 square feet or less 

should be allowed to exceed one story without 

causing the overall structure to be interpreted as 

over one story, invalidating the overlay allowances.

Development review should allow the unique nature of 

the district to continue when single story structures are 

improved or expanded, or when new single-story buildings 

are built, including the following:

• The wall cladding may be any material including raw 

concrete block, corrugated metal, wood, or brick.

• Awnings and canopies of any size may be used.

• Pavement should be painted or removed where 

there is no parking. No landscaping should be 

required.

• Shared-use street conditions with bollards to define 

sidewalks should be pursued, which requires site 

specific design interpretation.

• Large expanses of walls should be painted with 

murals.

Figure 58. Current conditions in the Lower Rail District.



Ch 5. Advance Sustainability Practices



Green the City’s Municipal Operations
Key Recommendations 

a. Establish a Sustainability Board to oversee actions and 
evolve the City’s sustainability goals. 

b. Create an action plan to reduce environmental impacts of 
municipal operations. This may include a number of items 
such as building energy standards, fleet fuel efficiency / EV, 
vendor requirements, and supplies used in municipal 
buildings and activities. 

c. Install EV charging stations in garages, public parking lots, 
and on-street in Mixed-use Districts. 

d. Study sustainability opportunities in Parks and Recreation, 
such as pollinator gardens, solar pavilions, plan species, 
tree canopy, landscape maintenance processes, and 
environmental regulations.

Require Green Building in New Construction

Key Recommendations 

a. Require adherence to LEED standards within Mixed-use 
Districts and municipal buildings. 

b. Study increasing energy standards for new construction 
above those of the state energy code, ideally implementing 
2030 District goals.



Expand Recycling and Composting
Key Recommendations 

a. Study the potential for food waste compost service for 
homes and businesses. 

b. Increase the availability of recycling bins in public spaces, 
public buildings, and along streets with high pedestrian 
counts. 

c. Study, along with the Birmingham Shopping District, the 
best path towards business operation changes to reduce 
plastics and styrofoam.

Install Green Stormwater Infrastructure in 
Neighborhood Streets and Parks

Key Recommendations 

a. Require adherence to LEED standards within Mixed-use 
Districts and municipal buildings. 

b. Study increasing energy standards for new construction 
above those of the state energy code, ideally implementing 
2030 District goals.



Improve the Rouge River Natural Area
Key Recommendations 

a. Develop a restoration master plan to restore the Rouge 
River ecosystem. 

b. Develop a trails and access master plan to improve Rouge 
River trails and trail heads. 

c. Establish a “Friends of the Rouge” foundation to oversee, 
build support, and raise funding for the park’s 
enhancement. 

d. Provide funding for city staff and resources to permanently 
preserve and manage the Rouge ecosystem. 

e. Implement policy to ensure private property construction, 
fencing, landscaping, lighting, etc., are compatible with the 
park’s ecology and the restoration master plan.

Implement Plan Actions
Supporting Sustainability

Implement Key Recommendations from Other Sections 

a. Preserving, enhancing, and diversifying the city’s tree 
canopy in streets and open spaces. 

b. Infill housing in Mixed-use Districts result in households 
which on average drive less, use less energy in heating and 
cooling, and use practically no water and fertilizer in 
landscape maintenance. 

c. Bicycle and pedestrian multi-modal improvements, and 
support for neighborhood destinations encourage exercise 
and more trips by foot or bike rather than car. 

d. Support for the Farmer’s Market increases connections to 
food growing, healthy consumption, and food education.



DPZ  GIBBS  MCKENNA



 
 
 
 
 
 

The Birmingham Plan 2040 – 2nd Draft 



The Birmingham Plan
Draft 2 | 11/05/21





 
 

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 c

Contents

A. Introduction
Context ...................................................................... 2

A Global Pandemic ..................................................... 2

Planning Districts ....................................................... 3

B. Future Land Use
Future Land Use Map ................................................. 9

Zoning Plan ...............................................................10

Birmingham Planning Districts ................................... 11

Mixed-use District Fabric ...........................................13

Neighborhood District Fabric .....................................13

District Seams ...........................................................14

District Destinations...................................................15

C. Summary of Key Actions
Key Actions ...............................................................18

Ch 1. Connect the City
Overcome the Woodward Divide ................................28

Redefine Downtown Districts .....................................32

Implement Haynes Square .........................................34

Encourage Gathering Places ......................................37

Prioritize the Neighborhood Loop ...............................40

Accommodate More Modes of Movement ..................42

Improve Regional Transit Connections ........................43

Multi-modal Plan Updates ..........................................44

Ch 2. Embrace Managed Growth
Encourage Housing in Mixed-use Districts ..................48

Infill Some Medium and High Intensity District Seams .50

Study Accessory Dwelling Units .................................51

Update the Zoning Code ............................................52

Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality
Equip Parks to Serve Neighborhoods .........................56

Keep Streets Pedestrian-oriented...............................60

Replace Unimproved Streets ......................................62

Retain Street Tree Canopy .........................................63

Revise Parking Restrictions ........................................64

Retain Housing Character ..........................................66

Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts
Continue Improving the Maple and Woodward District 70

Implement Haynes Square .........................................77

Adopt a South Woodward Gateway Plan ....................77

Develop a North Woodward Gateway Plan .................80

Keep it Loose in the Rail District.................................81

Ch 5. Advance Sustainability Practices
Green the City’s Municipal Operations ........................88

Require Green Building in New Construction ..............88

Expand Recycling and Composting ............................88

Install Green Stormwater Infrastructure in Neighborhood 
Streets and Parks ......................................................89

Improve the Rouge River Natural Area ........................89

Implement Plan Actions Supporting Sustainability .......91



The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21d

This page is intentionally blank.



A. Introduction



Context
A. Introduction

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/212

Context
Planning for the future of a successful City holds an intrigu-
ing set of challenges of which our interactions with the 
residents, workers, neighbors, and leaders in Birmingham 
bring forth. All too often the act of planning is encumbered 
by an obsession with the present and past. However, we’ve 
met with many people who look forward with hope. Even 
among the hopeful, a broader concern for deteriorating 
social connectivity rang clear in conversation.

While Birmingham has long supported a series of close-
knit communities within its borders, the greater culture 
has shifted towards increasing isolation. This comes not 
at the fault of individuals - who remain bright, engaged, 
loving, and caring members of families, civic, and social 
groups - but due in large part to changes in the structure 
of our regions and technology’s role in bridging social gaps 
created by increasing physical isolation.

Structurally, the fabric of daily life has been spread apart, 
few places as completely as Metropolitan Detroit. People 
have been spread further from their workplaces, social 
spaces, entertainment, and the staples of daily life, forced 
to spend an increasing amount of their time driving from 
place to place. Today, the resulting and relentless traf-
fic congestion leaves little time for family or friends, and 
especially little time for engaging within our communities.

Birmingham is rare. It has been a place built heavily upon 
community, weaving together neighbors, schools, churches, 
civic clubs and institutions, and businesses. From resi-
dents, we heard a great deal of nostalgia for the City’s 
former social structures. For some, the loss of strong 
social spheres is manifest in the changing character of 
homes and business districts.  For others, blame is placed 
on greater societal issues. We heard the loss expressed 
especially strongly from the City’s civic institutions which 
are trying to build and support community but feel that 
they are increasingly unknown as society has forgotten 
their critical role. Some feel that downtown’s more recent 
intensity of activity has further eroded its’ culture. Yet at 
the same time we heard a great deal of optimism from new 
and younger residents who are invigorated by downtown’s 
activity and growth, an increasingly rare opportunity in 
Metropolitan Detroit.

Birmingham is rare because it remained intact while most 
historic places in Metropolitan Detroit eroded their down-
towns and invested in car-centric roadways and businesses. 
As a rare place, Birmingham is desirable. That desire results 
in growth pressure which continually increases property 
values. New residents are willing to pay for the lifestyle that 
Birmingham offers, many stretched thin to do so. Some 
residents prefer that the City become increasingly exclusive 
while others feel that it is antithetical to the community’s 
history. Many residents are dismayed that the demand to 
live in Birmingham has resulted in a significant number of 
demolitions. However, other residents have purchased the 
new homes for the quality of life offered in the City and its 
neighborhoods. Some residents would like to downsize 
and remain in the community but can’t find the apartments 
and condos they desire. No single group is in the majority.

Through conversations with residents and leaders we’ve 
been exposed to these divergent desires. But overall, when 
we’ve surveyed residents, responses as a whole have been 
optimistic for the City’s future. Birmingham is doing well 
today and will continue to be a wonderful place to live. As 
a result this plan looks to improve upon what works. The 
primary issue requiring radical change is the divide caused 
by Woodward. Remaining plan elements are either incre-
mental improvements - such as bicycle and micro-mobility 
accommodations - or organizational improvements - such 
as analysis by Planning District and optimizing the zoning 
code. This plan reinforces the structure of Birmingham that 
makes it comfortable to walk, easy to meet neighbors, and 
a very successful community.

A Global Pandemic
In the process of reviewing the first draft of this plan, 
a global pandemic disrupted everyones’ l ives, work, 
schooling, and leisure time. As we submit this second 
draft nearly two years into the pandemic, the long-term 
influence of Covid-19 are still unknown. Questions remain 
in many arenas: will this virus become endemic; what will 
the balance be between working remotely and working 
in offices; how will interactions with friends, family, and 
neighbors change?



Planning Districts
A. Introduction

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 3

First we must acknowledge the tragic loss of family, friends, 
and colleagues. The community has experienced and 
continues to experience loss, and will forever be changed. 
Today we cannot know the extent.

At this point, with the pandemic a continuing issue, 
Birmingham has experienced difficulties and successes. 
The walkable streets, accessible parks and trails, and 
places to socialize in safe conditions have been invaluable 
for residents. The underlying structure of the City, which 
this plan intends to support and enhance, has provided a 
great deal of normalcy and hope. The City also benefited 
from years of outdoor dining experience, which became 
a necessity across the globe. However, Downtown has 
suffered with the loss of in-person office work, dining in 
interior spaces, reduced spending on shopping and dining, 
and supply chain issues. The long-term consequences are 
unclear, however many mixed-use districts like Downtown 
are beginning to recover. The future of office work remains 
unclear, which further reinforces this plan’s goal of adding 
housing to the City’s Mixed-use Districts. In fact their poten-
tial impact on parking is further minimized. We will continue 
to monitor trends during the plan review process.

Planning Districts
Of the City plans following 1929, only the 1980 Plan 
addressed structural elements of neighborhoods and 
commercial districts. Interestingly, when describing neigh-
borhoods, the plan defined them by the roads that bound 
them rather than by a name. The scale used for many of 
the neighborhoods discussed by the 1980 Plan is similar 
to that which this plan has defined. Yet properly defining 
and controlling the extent of commercial districts and 
their effect on residential neighborhoods is clear. Through 
this process of defining residential areas and establishing 
permanent extents to commercial areas, the 1980 Plan 
began to identify a city structure, including recognition of 
the positive role that neighborhood commercial centers play.

While prior plans have dealt with issues pertinent to the 
success of the City and its neighborhoods, these plans 
have lacked the necessary descriptive language that clari-
fies where and why land uses should be allowed. Allocating 
parks is the clearest example. Today the Torry Planning 

District, north of Lincoln, clearly lacks park space yet the 
1929 Plan (See Fig. 1) identified a large park for this neigh-
borhood which was not acquired. The purpose for locating 
the park in 1929 was in finding land yet to be fully platted 
and built upon. Today we can more clearly specify that the 
Torry Planning District needs park space, which is a more 
actionable proposition. Similarly, the 1980 Plan makes park 
space recommendations based upon objective, numerical 
analysis. Yet acquiring land for the neighborhood’s future 
quality of life is an emotional appeal which requires a 
name and identity.

This plan establishes Planning Districts as a tool for 
evaluating access to community amenities, civic insti-
tutions, and neighborhood-centric commercial areas. 
Planning Districts are also a tool for evaluating access 
to facilities like bicycle facilities and improved streets. 
Not every deficit can be corrected, but evaluating the 
deficit leads to discussions of alternatives and oppor-
tunities. While there may be a few opportunities to add 
park space in the Torry District, the Quarton District also 
lacks park space but has no space to allocate. Rather in 
the Quarton District, the use and improvement of nearby 
school fields may be the most viable outcome. These 
districts are derived from prior plans and solidified here 
so they continue as a useful civic tool for the future.

Figure 1. 1929 Plan of Birmingham and Vicinity - the 
shaded areas indicate proposed future parkways.



Planning Districts
A. Introduction

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/214

Retaining Quality of Life
Birmingham’s high quality of life comes from a number 
of relatively mundane characteristics, but the city stands 
out in that it has retained all of these characteristics while 
other places have not. Just as quality of life has a positive 
feedback loop with resident pride and local investment, it 
also does with fiscal viability. The city is fiscally success-
ful because it invests in itself, residents invest in the city, 
and overall that maintains a high quality of life. Elements 
key to that quality of life are:

1. School quality and access

2. Park quality, access, and diversity

3. Downtown access and success

4. Tree canopy

5. Narrow streets

6. Walkability

7. Age diversity

8. Property maintenance

9. Housing diversity and quality

Individually each of these elements is rather mundane, but 
they work together to make places feel safe, comfortable, 
friendly, and relaxed - like home. While not an element 
above, good governance is and has been key to maintaining 
these individual qualities and the city’s overall quality of life.

Figure 2. The Birmingham Plan initial survey results (May 2019).

OVERALL, I FEEL THAT BIRMINGHAM:

Is a wonderful place in which to live

Is a decent place in which to live

Is an average place in which to live
23.8%

1.8%

74.5%

Table 1

1 98%

2 2%

Table 1-1

1 27.5%

2 60%

3 12.5%

Table 1-1-1

1 48%

2 35%

3 17%

Table 1-1-1-1

1 43.38%

2 8.68%

3 47.95%

Q 16

yes 77.05%

undecided 7.87%

no 15.57%

Q 18

yes 70.25%

undecided 15.7%

no 14.05%

Q 19

yes 42.15%

undecided 25.62%

no 32.23%

Q 20

yes 44.63%

undecided 23.14%

no 32.23%

1

98%

2%

Happy

MY NEIGHBORHOOD IS:

Northwest

Outer Southwest

Inner Southwest

Northeast

Southeast

Becoming much better Becoming a little better
Not changing Becoming a little worse

10.6 37.2 30 20.4

6.3 33.8 45 13.8

10.2 39.8 30.1 17.9

10 36 40.7 13.3

1.8

.4

%

%

%

%

%
Happy 
Unhappy 
Indifferent

Table 1

1 98%

2 2%

Table 1-1

1 27.5%

2 60%

3 12.5%

Table 1-1-1

1 48%

2 35%

3 17%

Table 1-1-1-1

1 43.38%

2 8.68%

3 47.95%

Q 16

yes 77.05%

undecided 7.87%

no 15.57%

Q 18

yes 70.25%

undecided 15.7%

no 14.05%

Q 19

yes 42.15%

undecided 25.62%

no 32.23%

Q 20

yes 44.63%

undecided 23.14%

no 32.23%

1

35%
48%

17%

8.6 48.4 29 12.9

THE CITY IS:

Northwest

Outer Southwest

Inner Southwest

Northeast

Southeast

Becoming much better Becoming a little better
Not changing Becoming a little worse Becoming much worse

23.8%
20.5 42 7.1 28.6

10 47.5 15 25

10.7 56.4 11.3 24.6

11.8 48.2 16.1 22.6

13 46.4 13 26

1.8

2.5

3.6

1.3

%

%

%

%

% Happy 
Indifferent 
Unhappy

Table 1

1 98%

2 2%

Table 1-1

1 27.5%

2 60%

3 12.5%

Table 1-1-1

1 48%

2 35%

3 17%

Table 1-1-1-1

1 43.38%

2 8.68%

3 47.95%

Q 16

yes 77.05%

undecided 7.87%

no 15.57%

Q 18

yes 70.25%

undecided 15.7%

no 14.05%

Q 19

yes 42.15%

undecided 25.62%

no 32.23%

Q 20

yes 44.63%

undecided 23.14%

no 32.23%

1

27.5%

12.5%

60%

Becoming much worse

1.5

.8

2



Planning Districts
A. Introduction

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 5

Resilience is an important quality for any community to 
possess. As the world changes, cities need to withstand 
those changes and emerge strong. Birmingham has fared 
well in this regard throughout its’ history, despite the disas-
trous blows many cities have endured through the 20th 
Century. Resilience is derived from social, physical, envi-
ronmental, and governmental systems. Each of these areas 
influences the other; a healthy and resilient community 
must understand the balance and interaction of its systems, 
that decisions and initiatives should be weighed by their 
impact in all of these areas.

Ultimately, cities are social ecosystems for people. Cities 
thrive where people build roots and interconnections, the 
physical social network. Neighborhood social networks 
build, support, and retain a high quality of life. Citywide 
social networks build, support, and retain civic services 
such as schools, parks, libraries and historical resources, 
support organizations for seniors, impoverished residents, 
and others, extracurricular educational, skills, health devel-
opment, and community building activities. Business social 
networks build innovation and local economies. Each scale 
of physical social network needs a means for people to 
observe each other in the city, places for them to meet 
and interact, and support structures which help them 
develop. For instance, people who enjoy observing nature 
need places to do so alone and together, and an advocacy 
organization for ecological preservation. Similarly, business 
innovation needs space for creative and driven people to 
interact, and buildings with inexpen-
sive rent or shared facilities where 
they can incubate new ventures.

A key component of all three social 
rea lms is divers i t y. When ci t ies 
become too narrow in their diversity 
of age, race, family structure, back-
ground, experience, civic institutions, 
and businesses, they eventual ly 
decline. Residents have discussed 
the needs of the older adult popu-
lation extensively. Discussed less 
frequently are the needs of middle 
aged and younger populat ions. 
Focusing too much on one group 
over another is a distraction of the 

present; cities need to provide for and retain a popula-
tion that is diverse in age. Similarly, businesses must be 
diverse in their sizes, areas of focus, and age. Cities need 
well established businesses along with new and innovative 
businesses. To achieve this, buildings are needed which 
differ in the size of space provided, rent, and location in 
the community, and zoning needs to allow for a broad and 
ever-changing range of business types.

As places where people exist in physical space, cities must 
be supportive of peoples’ physical needs and abilities, and 
provide the spaces necessary for interpersonal networks to 
thrive. At a basic level, people need food, shelter, exercise, 
and access to nature. To exist as a broader society, people 
need access to a marketplace and places to gather. While 
food and shelter are often discussed, exercise and access 
to nature have only more recently been studied. The form 
of a city significantly influences one’s likelihood of daily 
exercise. If much of a day’s trips can occur by walking and 
biking, then on average people are physically healthier. 
When a city maintains a vibrant tree canopy, parks, and 
natural areas, combined with opportunities to walk, people 
are mentally healthier. At the broader societal level, people 
need a marketplace for jobs and to acquire goods. Ideally 
this should be near to where they live to achieve the physical 
and mental advantages of walking and nature. And places 
to gather are also key social requirements, which should 
be varied in type and distributed throughout the commu-
nity, typically in the form of plazas, parks, and preserves, 

Figure 3. Vibrant tree canopy in Birmingham. 



Planning Districts
A. Introduction

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/216

but also in the form of cafes, markets, and social clubs.

Birmingham straddles the Rouge River and has a direct 
relationship with the watershed. The river and watershed 
are important for the region and for peoples’ daily life in the 
city. Since the industrial revolution, cities have done a poor 
job of caring for the natural environment upon which they 
are built. Eventually those natural systems react in a way 
that makes places less hospitable. For instance, caring for 
the city’s soils, water quality, and street design and main-
tenance impacts the health and longevity of street trees, 
which impact mental health, clean the air of pollutants, and 
keep the City cool during the hot months. Beyond the imme-
diate environment of Birmingham, choices made within the 
city have a broader impact. Buildings can use less energy 
or generate their own, driving can be reduced, recycling 
opportunities can be expanded, composting opportunities 
can be added, and choices being made concerning mate-
rial use in homes, businesses, and 
municipal operations can cause less 
impact. Overall, caring for the city’s 
local environment and lessening its 
impact on the broader environment 
will in turn support the city’s future 
health.

All of these other aspects of resil-
ience rely upon good governance. Yet 
in a dynamic city, and a distracted 
society, governance is difficult. Too 
often difficult decisions are put off 
and important ones not made to 

avoid conflict. And as part of this ethos, new and inno-
vative ideas are also pushed aside. Rather than regularly 
voicing their desires for the City’s future, those who support 
change don’t get involved while those who oppose it show 
up in force and ferocity. In the lead-up to the master plan’s 
charrette process, a digital survey of residents painted a 
very different picture than what was heard in person, repre-
senting nearly 10 times the number of people. In order to 
better inform decision-making the City should endeavor to 
reach a broad cross-section of residents, many of whom 
cannot attend meetings. It should also support the physical 
world social network needed to support an engaged and 
broad constituent. This is a key point where the physical 
and social structure of the city should better support its’ 
governance. When working well, broad participation helps a 
city remain resilient. When working poorly, the loud voice of 
the minority weakens a city’s ability to adapt to the future.

Figure 5. Birmingham Hometown Parade (May 2019).

Figure 4. Residents biking in Birmingham. 



B. Future Land Use



B. Future Land Use

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/218

Future	Land	Use:	1:400

Municipal	Boundary

Downtown	Neighborhood

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Civic	Use
Civic

School

Cemetery

Destinations
Neighborhood	Destination

EX

Mixed	Use	Centers
Downtown

Haynes	Square

Market	North

Railroad	District

South	Woodward	Gateway

Neighborhood	Intensities
Commercial

High

Medium

Low

Neighborhood	Seams
High

Medium

Low

De-densification

Parks
Parks	and	Open	Space

Figure 6. Future Land Use Map.

Redding RdRedding Rd
Redding RdRedding Rd

Quarton RdQuarton Rd

Big Beaver RdBig Beaver Rd

Wimbleton DrWimbleton Dr

Mohegan StMohegan St

Rivenoak StRivenoak St

Madison StMadison St

Abbey StAbbey St

Tottenham RdTottenham Rd

Buckingham AveBuckingham Ave

Westboro DrWestboro Dr

Yorkshire RdYorkshire Rd

Dorchester RdDorchester Rd
Ridgedale AveRidgedale Ave

Oakland AveOakland Ave

Oakland Ave

Oakland Ave

O
xford St

O
xford St

Maple RdMaple Rd
Maple RdMaple Rd

Martin StMartin St

Merrill StMerrill St

Townsend StTownsend St

Brown StBrown St

Forest AveForest Ave

Haynes St
Haynes St

Holland StHolland St

Webster StWebster St

Cole StCole St

Chestnut StChestnut St

Hazel StHazel St

Willis StWillis St

B
aldw

in Ave
B

aldw
in Ave

G
reenw

ood St
G

reenw
ood St

W
oodland St

W
oodland St

O
ld W

oodward Ave

O
ld W

oodward Ave

Woodward Ave

Woodward Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

Adam
s R

d
Adam

s R
d

W
orth St

W
orth St

Adam
s R

d
Adam

s R
d

Adam
s R

d
Adam

s R
d

Raynale StRaynale St

Lakeside D
r

Lakeside D
r

Lakeside D
r

Lakeside D
r

La
ke

 P
ar

k 
Dr

La
ke

 P
ar

k 
Dr

Lake Park D
r

Lake Park D
r

B
ro

ok
w

oo
d 

St
B

ro
ok

w
oo

d 
St

C
hesterfield Ave

C
hesterfield Ave

G
le

nh
ur

st
 D

r
G

le
nh

ur
st

 D
r

W
es

tw
oo

d 
D

r
W

es
tw

oo
d 

D
r

Ly
on

hu
rs

t S
t

Ly
on

hu
rs

t S
t

G
lenhurst Ave

G
lenhurst Ave

Larchlea D
r

Larchlea D
r

W
estchester W

ay
W

estchester W
ay

Pleasant Ave
Pleasant Ave

W
el

le
sl

ey
 D

r

W
el

le
sl

ey
 D

r

Devon LnDevon Ln

Ar
gy

le
 B

lv
d

Ar
gy

le
 B

lv
d

Arlington St
Arlington St

Arlington St
Arlington St

Shirley R
d

Shirley R
d

Shirley R
d

Shirley R
d

Linden R
d

Linden R
d

Aspen R
d

Aspen R
d

H
aw

thorne St
H

aw
thorne St

Oak AveOak AveOak Ave
Oak Ave

Oak AveOak Ave

VinewoodVinewood

HarmonHarmon

PinePine

MapleMaple

AvonAvon

Midvale StMidvale St

W
oo

dl
ea

 C
t

W
oo

dl
ea

 C
t

Lincoln RdLincoln Rd

Fairway DrFairway Dr

Northlawn Blvd

Northlawn Blvd

Norfolk StNorfolk St

G
reenlaw

n St
G

reenlaw
n St

G
olfview

 B
lvd

G
olfview

 B
lvd

C
ranbrook R

d
C

ranbrook R
d

Lincoln RdLincoln Rd Lincoln RdLincoln Rd
Wallace StWallace St

Frank StFrank St Purdy St

Purdy St
Ann St
Ann StPierce St

Pierce St
Pierce St
Pierce St

Park St
Park St

Park St
Park St

Ferndale Ave

Ferndale Ave

George StGeorge St

C
hester St

C
hester St

B
ates St

B
ates St

H
enrietta St

H
enrietta St

Stanley B
lvd

Stanley B
lvd

Southfield R
d

Southfield R
d

H
enrietta St

H
enrietta St

Pierce St
Pierce St

C
edar D

r
C

edar D
r

Edgew
ood R

d
Edgew

ood R
d

G
rant St

G
rant St

C
um

m
ings Ave

C
um

m
ings Ave

W
ashington

W
ashington

M
aryland

M
aryland

Shipm
an B

lvd
Shipm

an B
lvd

W
atkins St

W
atkins StSo

ut
hfi

el
d 

Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

Old W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

Hanna StHanna St

Lincoln RdLincoln Rd

Southlawn BlvdSouthlawn Blvd

Southlawn BlvdSouthlawn Blvd

Northlawn BlvdNorthlawn Blvd

Southlawn BlvdSouthlawn Blvd

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd
14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

Ruffner AveRuffner Ave

Humphrey AveHumphrey Ave

ChapinChapin
Bennaville AveBennaville Ave

Emmons AveEmmons Ave

Smith AveSmith Ave

Bird AveBird Ave

Saxon DrSaxon Dr

Pi
lg

rim
 A

ve
Pi

lg
rim

 A
ve

Pu
rt

ia
n 

Av
e

Pu
rt

ia
n 

Av
e

Fa
irf

ax
 S

t
Fa

irf
ax

 S
t

Su
ffi

el
d 

Av
e

Su
ffi

el
d 

Av
e



Future Land Use Map
B. Future Land Use

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 9

Future	Land	Use:	1:400

Municipal	Boundary

Downtown	Neighborhood

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Civic	Use
Civic

School

Cemetery

Destinations
Neighborhood	Destination

EX

Mixed	Use	Centers
Downtown

Haynes	Square

Market	North

Railroad	District

South	Woodward	Gateway

Neighborhood	Intensities
Commercial

High

Medium

Low

Neighborhood	Seams
High

Medium

Low

De-densification

Parks
Parks	and	Open	Space

Boundaries  

  Planning Districts 

District Destinations

  Civic Destination: General 

  Civic Destination: School

  Civic Destination: Cemetery

  Recreational Destination

  Commercial Destination

Mixed Use District Fabric

  High Intensity

  Medium Intensity

  Low Intensity

Neighborhood District Fabric

  High Intensity

  Medium Intensity

  Low Intensity

District Seams

High Intensity (TZ-1, TZ-3, R3, R4, 
R5, R6, R7, R8, and MX)
Medium Intensity (TZ-1, R3, R4, 
R5, R6, and R8)
Low Intensity (R1A, R1, R2, R3)

Future Land Use Map
Birmingham’s future land use map is structured by Planning 
District boundaries within which land uses reinforce the 
desired future character. This map serves as the basis 
for zoning, specifying where different uses and intensities 
are appropriate throughout the City. This Future Land Use 
Map aims to identify, sustain, and strengthen Birmingham’s 
neighborhoods and mixed-use districts. The following 
sections describe each land use in greater detail.

Derby Rd
Derby Rd

Pembroke RdPembroke Rd

Windemere RdWindemere Rd

Buckingham AveBuckingham Ave

Westboro DrWestboro Dr

Yorkshire RdYorkshire Rd

Dorchester RdDorchester Rd
Dorchester RdDorchester Rd

Maple RdMaple Rd

Yosemite BlvdYosemite Blvd

Villa RdVilla Rd

C
olum

bia St
C

olum
bia St Eton St

Eton St
Eton St
Eton St

Saint Andrew
s St

Saint Andrew
s St

C
oolidge H

w
y

C
oolidge H

w
y

G
raefield Rd

G
raefield Rd

Bowers StBowers St

Hazel StHazel St

Haynes StHaynes St

Holland StHolland St Torry St
Torry St

Torry St
Torry St

Taunton R
d

Taunton R
d

Eton St
Eton St

Sheffield Rd

Sheffield Rd

Webster StWebster St

Cole StCole St
Cole StCole St

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

Lincoln RdLincoln Rd

Humphrey AveHumphrey Ave

ChapinChapin

Banbury
Banbury

Bradford RdBradford Rd

M
elton Rd

M
elton Rd

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

Penistone

Penistone



Zoning Plan
B. Future Land Use

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2110

Future Land Use Planning District Corresponding Zoning District(s)

District Destinations
Civic Destinations: General Any district which permits institutional uses
Civic Destinations: School Varies: must match the predominant district of surrounding properties
Recreational Destinations PP: Public Property
Commercial Destinations N/A: New zoning district required
Mixed-use District Fabric
High Intensity Fabric Downtown Overlay; Triangle Overlay; MX: Mixed Use
Medium Intensity Fabric Downtown Overlay; Triangle Overlay; MX: Mixed Use
Low Intensity Fabric Downtown Overlay
Neighborhood District Fabric
High Intensity Fabric R2: Single-Family Residential; R3: Single-Family Residential;

R4: Two-Family Residential
Medium Intensity Fabric R1: Single-Family Residential; R2: Single-Family Residential
Low Intensity Fabric R1A: Single-Family Residential; R1: Single-Family Residential
District Seams
High Intensity TZ-1: Transition Zone; TZ-3: Transition Zone; R3: Single-Family Residential

R4: Two-Family Residential; R5: Multiple-Family Residential
R6: Multiple-Family Residential; R7: Multiple-Family Residential
R8: Attached Single-Family Residential; MX: Mixed Use

Medium Intensity TZ-1: Transition Zone; R3: Single-Family Residential
R4: Two-Family Residential; R5: Multiple-Family Residential
R6: Multiple-Family Residential; R8: Attached Single-Family Residential

Low Intensity R1A: Single-Family Residential; R1: Single-Family Residential;
R2: Single-Family Residential; R3: Single-Family Residential;
R4: Two-Family Residential (only where abutting R3 or more intense zoning 
districts)

Zoning Plan
A zoning plan is required by the Michigan Planning Enabling 
Act (MPEA) and Zoning Enabling Acts (MZEA).  Section 
33(d) of the MPEA (PA 33 of 2008), as amended, requires 
that the comprehensive plan shall serve as the basis for the 
community’s zoning plan and the Michigan Zoning Enabling 
Act (PA 110 of 2006), as amended, requires a zoning plan 
to be prepared as the basis for the zoning ordinance.

 

Birmingham’s Zoning Plan (the chart below) presents a 
summary of the zoning districts that apply to each of the 
proposed future land use planning district designations.  
To implement the zoning plan, recommended future revi-
sions to Birmingham’s zoning ordinance are discussed 
throughout this plan.



Birmingham Planning Districts
B. Future Land Use

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 11

Birmingham Planning Districts
Planning Districts identify segments of the city that demon-
strate a consistent character, which differs from that of 
surrounding areas. (See Figure 8) Those character differ-
ences may be defined by the mixture of uses, the size of 
properties and blocks, the trajectory of streets, or natural 
and man made divisions like the Rouge River or railroad 
alignment. These districts were originally identified by their 
bounding roads in the text of the 1980 Master Plan but 
not reflected in Future Land Use. Adding this distinction to 
Future Land Use indicates that land use decisions should 
consider the area’s unique character. In addition to land 
use decisions, this plan uses Planning Districts for anal-
ysis and structuring of other municipal programs such as 
parks and civic art.

Birmingham’s Planning Districts, due in part to the era in 
which the city was built, reflect the structure of a 1920’s 
neighborhood unit. Figure 7 illustrates neighborhood unit 
structure, which is reflected in the Future Land Use Map. 

The neighborhood unit consists mostly of District Fabric, 
whether mixed-use or residential. Some districts are higher 
density and others lower, which is reflected in the intensity 
of the district fabric. Districts typically contain recreational 
space, civic institutions, and a small commercial area, 
which are all destinations for district residents. Most of 
Birmingham’s Planning Districts include these elements, 
Barnum and Pierce most closely resembling the diagram.

The edges of Planning Districts are designated District 
Seams. These are places where districts abut each other, 
natural or man made barriers, and roadways that are more 
significant than a neighborhood street. Seams recognize 
this condition which results in greater pedestrian, bicycle, 
and vehicular traffic along the Seam. Most Seams are low 
intensity, reflecting the character of surrounding District 
Fabric. Higher intensity Seams occur along regionally 
significant roadways which carry high traffic volumes and 
in places adjacent to Mixed-use Districts which are much 
higher in intensity than the surrounding District Fabric.

Four Mixed-use Districts are identified, differentiated by 
character and intensity. Like other Planning Districts, most 
Mixed-use Districts include or should include recreational  
space and civic institutions. Commercial destinations are 
not generally part of a Mixed-use District, however, because 
these districts include a mix of commercial uses more 
broadly.

Planning Districts serve as a guide for the types of land use 
which are appropriate across distinct segments of the city. 
Changes in land use should consider the neighborhood 
unit structure and typical distribution of uses as follows:

• District Fabric is either mixed-use or neighborhood, 
and is consistent across the district;

• District Seams occur along the edge of a district;

• Commercial Destinations occur along the edge of 
a district and are limited in area (a local exception 
is recognized for the historic destination at Barnum 
Park);

• Civic Destinations may occur within a district or at 
its edge, and are few in number;

• Recreational Destinations may take many forms, but 
districts should include or abut at least one.Figure 7. Planning District Structure.

District Fabric
District Seam

Commercial Destination
Recreational Destination



Zoning Plan
B. Future Land Use

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2112

1
2

3

4

5
6

7

a

c d

b

891112

10
13

14

a Downtown

b North Woodward

c South Woodward

d Railroad District

Neighborhood Districts Mixed-use Districts

Oak AveOak Ave

Raynale StRaynale St

Redding StRedding St

Wimbleton DrWimbleton Dr

Harmon St
Harmon St

Pine StPine St

Pleasant Ave
Pleasant Ave

W Maple RdW Maple Rd
E Maple RdE Maple Rd

E Lincoln StE Lincoln St

Pi
er

ce
 S

t
Pi

er
ce

 S
t

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
R

d
So

ut
hfi

el
d 

R
d

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

Old W
oodward

Old W
oodward

Quarton RdQuarton Rd

N
 A

da
m

s 
R

d
N

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

SS 
Ad

am
s 

R
d

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

S 
Et

on
 R

d
S 

Et
on

 R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
yC
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

Big Beaver RdBig Beaver Rd

BIRMINGHAM PLANNING DISTRICTS
Figure 8. 

15

4 Poppleton

3 The Ravines

2 Holy Name

1 Quarton

5 Derby

6 Pembroke

7 Torry

8 Kenning

9 Pierce

10 Barnum

11 Crestview

12 Birmingham Farms

13 Linden

14 Seaholm

15 Lincoln Hills

W Lincoln StW Lincoln St

Midvale StMidvale St

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d



Mixed-use District Fabric
B. Future Land Use

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 13

Mixed-use District Fabric
Birmingham’s Mixed-use Districts are defined principally 
by Mixed-use District Fabric. As the name implies, these 
are blocks and buildings which include a variety of uses. 
Between the Downtown and Triangle District Overlays, and 
the Eton Corridor Plan, each area has a clear set of rules 
and applicable zones. To achieve greater zoning consis-
tency citywide, these zones may be changed through a 
zoning update, but should retain the intent of prior plans 
for Downtown, the Triangle District, and the Eton Corridor. 
Each district is distinct in its mix of uses and location for 
required ground floor commercial uses. To be successful, 
each district must also develop moderate to high densi-
ties of housing, and provide civic and recreational space.

• Maple and Woodward is a high intensity mixed-
use district which includes zones as defined in the 
Downtown and Triangle District Overlays. Zoning 
may be modified to create greater consistency 
between these overlay districts, but should generally 
retain the heights and uses as defined in those over-
lays. Ground floor commercial uses are required as 
defined by the Red Line Retail standards.

• Haynes Square is a medium intensity mixed-use 
district which includes zones as defined in the 
Downtown and Triangle District Overlays. Similar 
to Maple and Woodward, zoning may be modified 
for greater consistency. Haynes Square should be 
lower in height and intensity than areas further north 
in the core of downtown. Ground floor commer-
cial uses should be provided along Old Woodward, 
Woodward, and Haynes Street. Other streets may 
include other primary uses.

• Market North is a low intensity mixed-use district 
which includes zones as defined in the Downtown 
Overlay. Market North should consist of build-
ings lower in scale and intensity than the core of 
Downtown to the south, and of smaller scale busi-
nesses. Ground floor commercial uses are required 
as defined by the Red Line Retail standards.

• The Rail District is a low intensity mixed-use district 
which includes zones as defined in the Eton Corridor 
Plan. Similar to other Mixed-use Districts, zones may 
be modified for greater consistency.

Neighborhood District Fabric
Neighborhood District Fabric constitutes the majority of 
each neighborhood-based Planning District, and as a result 
most of the City overall. Identified as low, medium, and 
high intensity, neighborhood fabric consists of single-fam-
ily housing within a narrow range of size and character. 
This housing is arranged in blocks bounded by low speed, 
pedestrian and bicyclist-centric roads, lined with mature 
street trees.

Neighborhood District Fabric is often distinguished in terms 
of block structure, which is its framing element. Across 
Birmingham, block structure varies substantially. Most of 
Quarton Lake Estates has long blocks, oriented north-
south, with the exception of the western portion which has 
a variety of shorter blocks, some that change direction. 
Holy Name has principally square blocks. Interestingly, 
Crestview and Pierce have similarly sized blocks but in 
different orientations. Kenning and Birmingham Farms have 
many curvilinear blocks. The structure of a neighborhood’s 
blocks establishes a great deal of its character. Deep blocks 
support deeper properties. Short blocks are more easily 
walkable. Curvilinear blocks deflect views. Very straight 
blocks give long views. No pattern is better or worse, they 
simply provide a structure for the neighborhood fabric.

In each neighborhood, the size of private lots varies while 
often occupying the same structure of blocks. For instance, 
Crestview has larger lots to the west and smaller lots to 
the east. The same is true in Pembroke, with smaller lots 
to the north and larger to the south. Variety of lot sizes in 
a neighborhood contributes to the visual interest of pedes-
trians, with houses of different types and sizes. This also 
supports a diversity of resident types in terms of family 
structure, age, and income. Each Planning District includes 
a narrow range of diversity internally, which is reflected in 
the narrow range of zoning districts within each intensity 
of neighborhood fabric.

• Low Intensity Fabric includes R1-A and R1 zoning 
districts.

• Medium Intensity Fabric includes R1 and R2 zoning 
districts.

• High Intensity Fabric includes R2, R3, and R4 zoning 
districts.



District Seams
B. Future Land Use

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2114

District Seams
District Seams are an important means of 
coordinating land use and transportation 
and significant routes of vehicular, bicycle, 
and pedestrian movement. Identified as low, 
medium, and high intensity, neighborhood 
seams consist of a variety of single-fam-
ily and multi-family housing types, limited 
according to intensity, home-based busi-
nesses, and some size-limited businesses 
in high intensity seams. By definition, Seams 
are applied only at the edges of Planning 
Districts - one or two lots deep. The intensity 
of Neighborhood Seams is directly related 
to the Neighborhood Fabric intensity and 
the size of the adjacent roadway. High Intensity Seams 
are very limited in application, only appropriate adjacent 
to mixed-use centers and the intersections of major and 
section line roads.

Low Intensity Seams match the intensity of  the Planning 
District’s neighborhood fabric. These Seams signal a 
response to adjacent transportation conditions, where 
streets may require wider sidewalks, bicycle accommo-
dations, or traffic calming to lessen the impact of higher 
speed and volume traffic within a residential context.

Medium and High Intensity Seams are located along region-
ally significant streets and in places where multi-family 

housing, attached single-family housing, and commercial 
uses have previously been built. The Seam designation 
establishes consistency, recognizing what has already been 
built and enabling infill development in conditions that are 
not conducive to single-family housing. Medium and High 
Intensity Seams provide opportunities for building town-
homes, cottage courts, and small multi-family buildings. 
These types are allowed within some Mixed-use Districts, 
however the value of land precludes their construction.

Non-residential uses within the edge of Planning Districts 
are designated as Commercial Destinations, not Seams, 
and are subject to restrictions of business size, noise, hours 
of operation, and other elements ensuring compatibility 
with surrounding housing.

• Low Intensity Seams include R1A, R1, R2, and R3, 
and R4 where abutted by R3 or more intense prop-
erties on all boundaries.

• Medium Intensity Seams include TZ-1, R3, R4, R5, 
R6, and R8 districts.

• High Intensity Seams include TZ-1, TZ-3, R3, R4, R5, 
R6, R7, R8, and MX districts.

Figure 10. A Medium Intensity Neighborhood Seam.

Figure 9 - Crestview neighborhood fabric.

Northlawn BlvdNorthlawn BlvdSouthfield R
d

Southfield R
d

Pierce St
Pierce St

H
enrietta St

H
enrietta St

W
ashington

W
ashington

M
aryland

M
aryland

Shipm
an B

lvd
Shipm

an B
lvd

Lincoln RdLincoln Rd

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

Southlawn BlvdSouthlawn Blvd



District Destinations
B. Future Land Use

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 15

District Destinations
Within each planning district there may be one or more 
special land uses which serve as destinations for residents 
of that district, surrounding districts, or even outside of 
the city. Most frequently these destinations are churches 
and other civic institutions, followed in frequency by open 
spaces. Destinations are key supportive features within 
the city and planning district, giving many residents the 
opportunity to walk to some of their daily needs and to 
socialize with neighbors. However, destinations also gener-
ate some amount of traffic and parking demand, and may 
have peak hours of activity that require consideration for 
their surroundings.

Destinations are organized in three categories: 
Civic Destinations, Recreational Destinations, and 
Commercial Destinations. Civic destinations include 
civic institutions and outdoor spaces in institutional use. 
Schools and cemeteries are further identified within 
the civic category due to their importance within the 
city. Recreational destinations include parks and public 
open spaces of different sizes, from pocket parks to 

the Rouge River natural area. Commercial destina-
tions are a special category of non-residential uses that 
serve a local rather than regional customer base due 
to their size, hours of operation, and the specific cate-
gory of business. These include neighborhood-support-
ive services where a significant share of customers are 
located nearby. (See Figure 11)

• Civic Destination: General includes any zoning 
district within which the institutional use is allowed, 
and is restricted only to allowed institutional uses.

• Civic Destination: School should match the predom-
inant zoning district of surrounding properties.

• Civic Destination: Cemetery includes the Public 
Property District.

• Recreation Destinations include the Public Property 
District.

• Commercial Destinations are intended for a new 
zoning category which limits development and  
operational parameters necessary to promote 
compatibility with surroundings.

Figure 11. Example of a commercial destination land use.



The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2116

This page is intentionally blank.



C. Summary of Key Actions



Key Actions
C. Summary of Key Actions

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2118

Key Actions
This section summarizes the actions and recommendations 
embedded in each subsequent chapter and subsection 
of this document.

OVERCOME THE WOODWARD DIVIDE

1. Adjust Elm to meet Woodward perpendicularly per 
the Triangle District plan.

2. Adjust Worth to meet Woodward perpendicularly per 
the Triangle District plan.

3. Task the Multi-modal Transportation Board to 
pursue a speed reduction on Woodward, to 35mph 
or similar, through legislative means.

4. Task the Multi-modal Transportation Board to study 
lane reduction and re-striping options for Woodward 
in coordination with MDOT. Recommended actions:

a. Participate in a traffic study along Woodward, 
with MDOT, once I-75 reopens fully to determine 
whether the road can be reduced to 3-lanes in 
each direction.

b. Pending verification of potential lane reductions, 
fund and implement re-striping on Woodward, 
between 14 Mile and Oakland, potentially to 
Quarton, converting the outside lane to a buff-
ered bicycle and transit lane.

c. Participate in regional plans to coordinate bicy-
cle and transit infrastructure along Woodward 
between municipalities.

5. Create a Haynes Square Plan, implementing the 
intent of the following recommendations:

a. Reconfigure the Woodward and Old Woodward 
intersection at Haynes Square as described in 
later Chapters.

b. Divert Adams traffic onto Haynes by angling 
Adams to intersect perpendicularly with Haynes, 
taking a portion of the parking lot of The Plant 
Station.

c. Adjust Adams to meet Woodward perpendicu-
larly at Ruffner.

6. Create a North Woodward Gateway Plan to address 

land use, gateway, and road design elements of 
Woodward north of Maple.

7. Revisit and adopt a South Woodward Gateway Plan, 
focused on traffic calming and beautification of 
Woodward.

8. Update the multi-modal plan as to improve 
Woodward crossings and conditions.

REDEFINE DOWNTOWN DISTRICTS

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. Create a greater downtown branding plan, in coor-
dination with the Birmingham Shopping District, to 
brand the City’s multiple mixed-use districts. This 
plan should addresses, at a minimum:

a. District way-finding (vehicular, pedestrian, and 
cyclist-oriented), business directory, and gate-
way signage;

b. Differentiation in streetscape products like tree 
grates, lights, trash and recycling cans, and 
public art themes;

c. A marketing plan for each of the distinct 
districts;

d. A phasing plan to install business directory and 
way-finding signage throughout all districts.

2. Install parking way-finding signage in downtown, 
ensuring the design is simple and elegant. (priority)

3. Permit murals and wraps like the popcorn utility 
wrap to be city-initiated or by the Public Arts Board.

IMPLEMENT HAYNES SQUARE

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS  

1. Implement the public parking deck recommendation 
of the 2007 Triangle District Plan.

2. Create a parking assessment district, per the 2007 
Triangle District Plan, or incremental tax district as 
necessary for land purchases and for financing the 
development of parking structures.

3. Study the potential for Public Private Partnerships to 
construct parking structures in the Triangle District.



Key Actions
C. Summary of Key Actions

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 19

4. Create a Haynes Square Plan which provides the 
details, timing, and funding for implementing Haynes 
Square. This may be an update to the 2007 Triangle 
District Plan. This plan should:

a. Reconfigure the streets around Haynes Square 
to create the square and fix the acute intersec-
tion between Woodward and Old Woodward.

b. Build the public square with a cafe, trees, seat-
ing, a kids play area, and other civic features.

c. Consider revising the design of Worth Park in 
the form of a plaza and other opportunities for 
shared streets and passageways, civic art, traf-
fic calming, and way-finding.

d. Detail streetscape and landscape improvements 
along Worth, Bowers, Haynes, and Webster.

e. Improve pedestrian linkages to the surrounding 
neighborhoods, especially along Adams.

f. Consider swapping land to install a public park-
ing lot along the south Old Woodward alley.

g. Create a parking district for Haynes Square 
which allows residences to purchase park-
ing passes in public garages, in addition to 
commercial parking.

h. Install metered, on-street parking along Adams 
and Lincoln Roads.

i. Create subdivision and zoning standards to 
encourage redevelopment of the Adam’s Square 
shopping center, offering significant develop-
ment capacity in exchange for a public open 
space and public parking.

j. Consider streetscape improvements along 
Woodward to improve the walkability to both 
downtown and the market districts.

k. Consider green stormwater management oppor-
tunities made possible through the area’s growth 
and redevelopment.

ENCOURAGE GATHERING PLACES

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. Build a cafe in Booth Park as recommended in the 
2016 Downtown Plan.

2. Build a model neighborhood destination at the 
northeastern corner of Lincoln and Eton.

3. Create a neighborhood destination zoning 
district. This district should consider the following 
recommendations:

a. Allow by-right Commercial Destinations of up 
to 10,000 square feet total, no more than 3,000 
square feet per tenant.

b. Limit uses to bakeries, banks, bicycle shops, 
cafés, carry-out foods, coffee shops, exer-
cise studios, florists, hardware, ice cream 
parlors, mail centers, personal care, medical 
offices, pharmacies, real estate offices, financial 
services, small groceries, specialty shops, and 
other small local service-businesses. Housing 
should be permitted above the ground floor. 

•  Where located in parks, limit uses to baker-
ies, cafes, and coffee shops.

c. Nationally branded chains should be permitted 
when designed to look local.

d. Limit evening hours and prohibit excessive 
noise, including music in the late evenings, and 
early or late truck deliveries should be restricted.

e. Larger restaurants and other potentially inten-
sive commercial should be permitted as special 
uses, with appropriate design, management, 
and operational conditions geared to minimize 
their potential impact on surrounding properties.

f. Drive-thru windows should be prohibited.

g. Loading docks should be minimal, if provided.

h. Landscaped screening should be required from 
adjacent single-family properties.

i. Allowed up to three floors, provided they match 
the scale of a two and one-half story structure.

• For buildings with 3 stories, the upper floors 
must be residential.



Key Actions
C. Summary of Key Actions

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2120

• For buildings with 2 stories, the upper floor 
may be office or residential.

• Where located in parks, limit height to one 
story.

j. Parking should be as minimal as possible, or not 
required. If required, parking should not exceed 
3 cars per 1,000 square feet of non-residential 
uses and 1 car per bedroom of residential uses.

k. Planning Board review should ensure minimal 
impacts to the neighborhood.

4. Establish policy to continue the tradition of 
constructing Birmingham’s civic buildings and parks 
as iconic structures and landscapes to the highest 
standards and at a civic scale. This should include 
authentic durable materials, oversized windows, 
high ceilings, and Tudor design and detailing.

5. Ensure the Community Foundation / Fund is estab-
lished in a timely manner.

6. Establish a Civic Events Board or extend the role of 
the Public Arts Board to develop regular civic events 
to continue engaging the community throughout the 
year and promote existing civic institutions.

7. Convene a committee to study the location, 
programming, and funding for new facilities for Next.

PRIORITIZE THE NEIGHBORHOOD LOOP

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

8. Hire a consultant to design the Neighborhood Loop 
bicycle boulevard, including signage and diverters, 
and pedestrian improvements, like complete side-
walks and crosswalks.

9. Update the Multi-modal Plan to include and prioritize 
the Neighborhood Loop design elements.

10. Develop civic programming events along the neigh-
borhood loop, within the purview of the Civic Events 
Board or Public Arts Board.

11. Update the multi-modal plan to implement the 
Neighborhood Loop.

ACCOMMODATE MORE MODES OF 
MOVEMENT

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. Update the Multi-modal Plan to address new mobil-
ity technology, recent design innovations, and a 
public education component.

2. Require protected bicycle facilities on all streets 
posted at or above 35mph.

3. Pilot a shared use street along Merrill Street first 
from Old Woodward to Shain Park, and in a later 
phase connecting to the Rouge River trail system 
through Martha Baldwin Park.

4. Update the multi-modal plan to implement additional 
multi-modal and micro-mobility best practices.

IMPROVE REGIONAL TRANSIT 
CONNECTIONS

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. Update the Multi-modal Plan to improve the condi-
tions at bus stops along more major roads.

2. Convene a committee to study a public circulator.

ENCOURAGE HOUSING IN MIXED-USE 
DISTRICTS

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. Immediately pilot unbundled residential parking in 
Downtown. This may be achieved by releasing 100 
to 200 passes for new downtown residential units.

2. Task the Advisory Parking Committee to study 
downtown residential parking. The committee 
should consider:

a.  Offering a limited supply of permits for down-
town housing, eliminating on-site parking. 
Evaluate the supply and modify as needed over 
time to maximize garage usage and housing.

b. Tie parking passes to an average rental or sales 
rate of 150% of Area Median Income or less, 
calculated on a per-building basis.



Key Actions
C. Summary of Key Actions

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 21

c. Tier permit costs according to the number of 
vehicles per residence, increasing in price for 
each vehicle and by parking garage.

3. Task the Advisory Parking Committee to study 
opportunities for expanding downtown parking 
capacity and accommodate more monthly permit 
users as capacity becomes available.

4. Build public parking in the Triangle District as previ-
ously discussed.

5. Provide public parking for the western Haynes 
Square district.

6. Build public parking in the Rail District. This should be 
on a site with adequate access to the Lower Rail District 
and the future connection to the Troy Transit Center.

7. Establish permanent unbundled residential parking 
in all mixed-use districts as municipal garages are 
built.

INFILL SOME MEDIUM AND HIGH 
INTENSITY DISTRICT SEAMS

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. Create a new zoning district or modify the transi-
tion zone districts to encourage infill development 
of small homes, townhomes, duplexes, and small 
multi-family buildings, limited to medium and high 
intensity district seams.

STUDY ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. Enable Accessory Dwelling Units in already compati-
ble zones: MX, TZ1, TZ3, and R4 through R8.

2. Convene a committee to study Accessory Dwelling 
Units, where they are appropriate in Birmingham, 
and the regulations necessary to ensure any nega-
tive impacts are minimized. 

UPDATE THE ZONING CODE

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. Update the zoning code. Focus on brevity, clarity, 
graphics, and aligning zones with Future Land Use 
categories. Consolidate zones and uses as much 
as is practical and ensure the updated document is 
legible, clear, and predictable for residents as well 
as developers. This should be a significant update.

EQUIP PARKS TO SERVE 
NEIGHBORHOODS

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS  

1. Develop Worth Park as quickly as plausible to 
provide a portion of the needed open space access 
for Torry.

2. Attempt to purchase part of the Adams Square 
parking lot for park space, and if unsuccessful  
ensure that redevelopment would require that open 
space be provided at Adams and Bowers.

3. Establish a formal arrangement with the school 
districts for community use of school facilities.

4. Expand the 2018 Parks and Recreation Master Plan 
or create a new plan beyond the 2022 horizon, to 
implement Parks Best Practices by adding missing 
amenities and updating those that are out of date. 
Utilize Planning Districts to determine sufficiency of 

park access across the city.

KEEP STREETS PEDESTRIAN ORIENTED

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. Task the Multi-modal Transportation Board with an 
update to the Residential Street Standards, align-
ing the following streetscape elements with Future 
Land Use categories. Update the Multi-modal Plan 
accordingly.

a. Sidewalk width;

b. Planter width and type;



Key Actions
C. Summary of Key Actions

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2122

c. Type and extent of on-street parking;

d. Frequency of curb cuts; and

e. Width of roadway.

2. Task the Multi-modal Transportation Board with a 
study of bicycle accommodation alternatives along 
Lincoln. Update the Multi-modal Plan accordingly.

3. Reduce residential posted speed limits to 20 mph.

4. Update the Multi-modal plan to complete gaps in 
sidewalks and accessible corner ramps where not 
already specified.

REPLACE UNIMPROVED STREETS

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. Adopt policy recommendations specified by the 
Ad-hoc Unimproved Streets Committee (AHUSC).

2. City staff should survey the current condition of 
unimproved streets, categorized by the current 
quality such that streets in the most extreme states 
of disrepair can be prioritized for improvement. 
Stormwater issues should receive special priority.

3. City Commission should establish a yearly budget to 
remedy unimproved streets, considering the general 
fund plus bond strategy and repayment timelines 
recommended by the AHUSC.

4. Remedy unimproved streets according to the repair 
priority and budget, ensuring improvements occur in 
different planning districts, not all in a single district 
in a single year.

RETAIN STREET TREE CANOPY

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS 

1. Survey missing street trees and prioritize new plant-
ings along neighborhood streets with thin canopies.

2. Survey areas with constrained root conditions and 
establish a plan to provide additional root volume.

3. Prevent existing, healthy trees from being removed 
due to new construction. (Permitting, Inspections)

4. Create a streetscape improvement plan for the 

Triangle District and Rail District. (already specified)

5. Convene a committee to establish tree policies to:

a. Select large canopy species native to the region 
for streets and parks, retaining the character of 
each neighborhood’s distinctive canopy while 
considering the region’s future climate.

b. Minimize overly-used or exotic species, such as 
Crab Apple, Honey Locust and Pear Trees.

c. Craft policy requiring that trees removed due 
to new construction be replaced, as well as 
mandatory contributions to fund new off-site 
trees.

REVISE PARKING RESTRICTIONS

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS  

1. Convene a committee to study citywide street park-
ing restrictions and permits, charged with:

a. Creating a consistent and limited set of citywide 
parking standards. An example of such a set 
follows:

• No restriction

• 2-hour parking from 9am to 4pm, except 
by permit (this addresses daytime park-
ing issues from students and downtown 
workers)

• Parking by permit only, 5pm to 10am (this 
addresses nighttime parking issues from 
food service)

• Neighborhood Parking Benefit District, used 
in association with (b) or (c) above.

b. Create a plan to re-assign street parking restric-
tions citywide for greater consistency.

c. Establishing a consistent residential permit 
system to service those neighborhoods that 
choose to use such a system which includes 
permit fees to cover costs, decals, and visi-
tor rear-view mirror tags purchased separately 
from the residential permit. The existing permit 
systems may suffice to operate more broadly.



Key Actions
C. Summary of Key Actions

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 23

RETAIN HOUSING CHARACTER

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS  

1. Review and update site, building, and design codes 
to prevent increased rainwater runoff and other 
negative impacts from new house construction.  

2. Expand the inspection process for new house 
construction to ensure that they are built per 
approved plans to minimize negative impacts on 
surrounding properties.

3. Revise the Zoning Code’s residential zoning district 
boundaries and standards to better match and 
maintain current building scale, position on the 
property, driveway configuration, and other key 
characteristics.

4. Convene a committee to study incentives to encour-
age renovations to expand existing houses rather 
than the construction of new houses.

5. Convene a committee to study age-in-place-friendly 
building regulations, such as grab-bars, ramps, and 
elevators in single-family homes.

6. Task the Historic District Commission and Historic 
District Study Committee with proactively establish-
ing new historic districts as well as landmarks.

7. Convene a committee to study neighborhood light-
ing standards, including exterior residential lighting 
and street lighting.

CONTINUE IMPROVING THE MAPLE AND 
WOODWARD DISTRICT

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

8. Adopt a policy requiring a minimum 6 foot clear path 
along the sidewalk be retained throughout mixed-
use districts.

9. Expand activities and special events to attract office 
workers and residents to shop and dine downtown, 
including weekly food-truck events at Shain Park. 
This can be pursued by the contemplated Civic 
Events Board along with the Birmingham Shopping 
District.

10. Update the Multi-modal Plan to address micro-mo-
bility, increased pedestrian activity due to new 
downtown housing, and recent experiences with 
increased outdoor dining. See multi-modal plan 
update recommendations.

11. Update the Parks and Recreation Master Plan to 
increase amenities and connections in Downtown’s 
parks. See parks and recreation plan updates.

12. Implement an art-mural program for large blank wall 
surfaces in key locations.

13. Task the Advisory Parking Committee with a study 
of tiered parking meter pricing in Downtown. A best 
practice goal is to achieve an average maximum 
85% occupancy all streets.

14. Task the Advisory Parking Committee with a study 
of tiered parking rates for different garages.

15. Task the Advisory Parking Committee with a study 
of monthly parking pass fees.

16. Task the Advisory Parking Committee with a study 
of secure bike parking and electric vehicle charging 
stations within parking garages.

17. Task the Advisory Parking Committee with a review 
of master plan parking recommendations in 2030 to 
evaluate technologies and trends at that time.

18. Pursue technological improvements to ease parking 
usage, such as parking space occupancy indicators 
(green and red lights above spaces) to more easily 
direct users through the garages.

19. Install directional and informational signage. (previ-
ously addressed)

20. Convene a committee to study a Merrill Street 
shared space streetscape retrofit between Old 
Woodward and Shain Park. Consider options for 
activating the rear of City Hall, changes to the wall, 
small retail kiosks, and other low-impact means of 
enlivening the block.

21. Build a parking deck in the Triangle District as soon 
as possible. (addressed previously)

22. Create a detailed plan for the Bates Street Extension 
ensuring robust public input.



Key Actions
C. Summary of Key Actions

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2124

ESTABLISH MARKET NORTH AS A 
DISTINCT DISTRICT

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. As part of the zoning code update, extend D2 
zoning to the multi-family properties along the west 
side of Old Woodward up to Quarton.

2. Install way-finding signage throughout the district. 
(Addressed previously)

3. Update the Multi-modal Plan to support increased 
pedestrian activity on both sides of North Old 
Woodward and install streetscape amenities. (See 
the section on Multi-modal Plan updates)

4. Update the Parks and Recreation Plan to add 
amenities and a cafe to Booth Park. (See the section 
on Parks and Recreation Plan updates)

5. Convene a committee to develop branding, special 
signage, seating, and streetscape elements unique 
to the Market North district.

6. Task the Design Review Board to develop storefront 
design, signage, and other standards to retain the 
small-scale business character of Market North.

7. Task the Advisory Parking Committee to study a 
parking garage in the Lot 6 parking lot.

8. Task the Multi-modal Transportation Board to 
develop a streetscape plan along North Old 
Woodward, up to Big Woodward, with a focus on 
adding on-street parking and pedestrian and bicycle 
amenities and improving safety.

9. Convene a committee to study a permanent, open-
air farmers market pavilion with public restrooms on 
the portion of Lot 6 that is along Old Woodward.

ADOPT A SOUTH WOODWARD GATEWAY 
PLAN

Master Plan Actions

1. Revise and adopt the South Woodward Gateway 
Urban Design Plan. Consider:

a. Incorporating the Neighborhood Sleeves 
concept.

b. Piloting a shared-use alley by re-paving the 
alleyway, moving power poles underground, and 
opening businesses onto the alley.

c. Piloting a Neighborhood Sleeve with existing 
buildings or through redevelopment, including 
streetscape improvements on the side streets 
with chicanes and streetscape details like tree 
pits, benches, pedestrian-scaled lighting, and 
trash and recycling receptacles.

2. Incentivize redevelopment through increased zoning 
capacity and reduced parking requirements.

3. As part of a zoning code rewrite, establish zoning 
standards to enable Neighborhood Sleeves. This 
may be done by requiring storefronts along neigh-
borhood streets and other strategies.

4. As part of a zoning code rewrite, establish zoning 
standards to enable shared-use alleys. This may be 
done by:

a. Requiring storefronts at entries along the alley.

b. Permitting attached single-family housing along 
the neighborhood-side of the alley, limited to 2 
stories.

5. As part of a zoning code rewrite, establish zoning 
standards to encourage redevelopment of South 
Woodward Gateway properties. This may be done 
by:

a. Permitting multi-family housing on the commer-
cial properties.

b. Permitting 2 stories along the alley and 3 or 4 
stories between Woodward and 50 feet of the 
alley.

c. Reducing parking requirements and allowing 
shared parking.



Key Actions
C. Summary of Key Actions

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 25

DEVELOP A NORTH WOODWARD 
GATEWAY PLAN

Master Plan Actions

1. Plant a full and consistent tree canopy along the 
Woodward median throughout Birmingham, begin-
ning with the northern and southern entries.

2. Develop and adopt a North Woodward Gateway 
Urban Design Plan to improve the appearance of 
the northern entrance to Birmingham, slow traffic 
entering the city, and improve the Old Woodward 
entrance as a signature gateway to Birmingham and 
Downtown.

KEEP IT LOOSE IN THE RAIL DISTRICT

Master Plan Actions

1. Develop an Overlay Zoning District for the Lower 
Rail District that permits the existing, but somewhat 
improved condition to persist. Consider sunsetting 
the overlay once public parking is available. See 
recommendations in the text of this section.

2. Construct a shared-use street section along Cole 
and Commerce Streets.

3. Update the 1999 Eton Road Corridor Plan for the 
area south of Palmer Street to permit the exist-
ing, but somewhat improved condition to persist. 
Consider the following amendments:

a. So long as the buildings--existing or new--are 
one story, eliminate all requirements of Section 
5 of the Site Design Guidelines p 41-46. of the 
Eton Road Corridor Plan. These include but are 
not limited to:

• Eliminating building frontage and sidewalk 
requirements.

• Eliminating parking requirements, except as 
the on-street parking shall be as determined 
by the “Immediate Neighbors” of the adja-
cent Torry or Kenning Neighborhoods.

• Eliminating the signage and landscaping 
requirements.

• Eliminating building use and aesthetic 
requirements.

4. As part of a zoning code update, modify the MX 
District to enable the urban development envisioned 
by the plan. Consider the following:

a. Exempt LA-01 (E) and (F), as is true in 
Downtown, or at a minimum that plantings in the 
MX District are only required within the streets-
cape and within open areas of the property, but 
not based on a minimum number of trees per 
residential unit as currently defined.

b. MX District zoning should be carefully analyzed 
by contracting two or more architects to 
complete preliminary building designs for mixed-
use buildings on existing sites, small and large, 
with and without on-site parking, attempting 
to achieve capacity. The architects should be 
requested to discuss and present challenges 
and constraints that are faced in the process. 
While some challenges are part of code design, 
others may be unknown without testing.

5. Update the 1999 Eton Road Corridor Plan for the 
area south of Palmer Street to increase vehicular 
connectivity. Consider the following:

a. At the termination of Holland Street, creating a 
connection to the rail station by purchasing a 30 
ft wide corridor or easement.

6. Develop a plan to provide access to the Troy Transit 
Center and consider the development of surround-
ing properties, including the School District bus 
parking lot and the DPS facility.

7. Convene a committee to study redevelopment of the 
DPS building to occupy a portion of a public park-
ing facility in its place, which services the lower Rail 
District.

8. Construct the contemplated linear park and trail 
along the railroad.



The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2126

This page is intentionally blank.



Ch 1. Connect the City



Overcome the Woodward Divide
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2128

Overcome the Woodward Divide

Woodward divides Birmingham physically and mentally. 
It is an extremely fast, high volume, and divisive roadway 
described as a “superhighway” in the city’s 1929 plan. While 
it provides regional connections that support Downtown 
activities, Woodward separates the City’s neighborhoods. 
Particularly for older adults and children, Woodward can 
be an impenetrable barrier to mobility.

A complete street plan for Woodward has been produced 
by the Woodward Avenue Action Association, and has been 
well supported but not yet implemented. The state depart-
ment of transportation (MDOT) indicated that their current 
preference for major roadways such as Woodward is to 
provide greater accommodation for pedestrians, cyclists, 
and transit, and to stitch together those communities 
historically divided by state routes. However, implement-
ing those changes are currently well beyond MDOT’s ability 
to fund directly. Funding aside, they are likely to support 
City-led initiatives to improve crossings and the charac-
ter of Woodward. In the short term, small key changes to 
Woodward should be targeted, especially with a focus on 
pedestrian and bicyclists at crossings. In the long term, 
larger changes should be studied and advocated for at 
the county and state levels.

Short-term Action: Improve Crossings

The simplest changes to have a significant impact are to 
improve key crossings by providing sufficient crosswalk 
time at signals, better signage, more substantial crosswalk 
and bike lane striping, pedestrian activated signals, and 
pedestrian refuges. Presently, there are too few crossings, 
and most of those that exist are uncomfortable for pedes-
trians and cyclists.

An initial set of key crossings is selected from those major 
Sectionline and Quartersection roads, crossings necessary 
to implement the Neighborhood Loop (discussed later), 
and crossings that already exist but are insufficient. (See 
Figure 14) These include: Sectionline crossings at 14 Mile 
and Maple, Quartersection crossings at Lincoln and Oak, 
Neighborhood Loop crossings at Emmons and Oak, and 
existing crossings at Brown and Oakland. Additionally, the 
intersection of Old Woodward and Woodward is proposed 
for redevelopment (discussed later). Development of this 
intersection would include adding a crossing at Haynes St.

Short-term Action: Re-striping

Should Woodward be justifiably reduced to three lanes 
in each direction, reconfiguring the roadway still remains 
prohibitively expensive. However, as a lower cost option, 

Figure 12. The Woodward divide.Basemap:	Citywide	1:400

Figure 13. Neighborhood Loop Crossing at Emmons.



Overcome the Woodward Divide
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 29

the City should pursue re-striping the outside travel lane, 
converting it to a substantial protected bicycle lane, one-way 
each side, or a pair of two-way cycle tracks on each side, 
similar to what the City of Ferndale is pursuing. Regionally, 
Ferndale’s Woodward bike facilities should connect north 
to facilities in Pleasant Ridge, Royal Oak, and Birmingham, 
and on to Bloomfield Hills and Pontiac.

Another consideration for re-striping is a shared bicycle 
and transit lane. As the regional transit authority pursues 
improvements to bus frequency, a dedicated lane would 
improve bus function through Birmingham. Because buses 
are relatively infrequent, the transit lane could be shared 
with cyclists. This would require one-way cycle facilities.

Medium-term Action: Reduce Vehicle Speeds

Woodward’s high travel speeds perpetuate the City’s east-
west disconnection, create dangerous conditions accessing 

businesses along the corridor, and threaten the safety of 
all roadway users. While reducing vehicle speeds is a crit-
ical and immediate issue to tackle, change is not simple.

Overall the Woodward corridor varies in its speed and 
context along its trajectory, from a low speed urban context 
in downtown Detroit to a high-speed highway-like context 
in Bloomfield Hills, before slowing down again at Pontiac. 
Along its trajectory, Woodward’s speed and design changes 
in a number of contexts. Through Ferndale, the posted 
speed is 35 mph and on-street parking is permitted. 
Birmingham presents a more urban context to Woodward 
than Ferndale, which should warrant lower speeds. 

Unfortunately MDOT is forced by state law to use the “85th 
Percentile Rule” when attempting to lower speeds, which 
measures the typical speed actually traveled on the road-
way and can result in increased posted speeds instead of 

Oak AveOak Ave

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d E Lincoln StE Lincoln St

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave W

oodw
ard Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

Quarton RdQuarton Rd

N
 A

da
m

s 
R

d
N

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

SS 
Ad

am
s 

R
d

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

S 
Et

on
 R

d
S 

Et
on

 R
d

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
yC
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

Big Beaver RdBig Beaver Rd

W Maple RdW Maple Rd

OAK

MAPLE

EMMONS

LINCOLN

HAYNES

BROWN

KEY WOODWARD CROSSING IMPROVEMENTS

Civic Institutions

Neighborhood Loop

Special Connections

Shared Use Trails

Planning Districts

Key Crossings

Figure 14. Key Woodward Crossing Improvements.

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

W Lincoln StW Lincoln St



Overcome the Woodward Divide
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2130

reduced. The most expedient path to changing the speed 
along Woodward is through legislative means.

The posted speed is not the only means necessary to 
control speed. Land use, landscaping and landscape archi-
tecture, travel lane size, lighting, and other elements in and 
around the roadway signal drivers to reduce speed who may 
otherwise ignore speed limits. From the south, the large 
clear zone and curb separation in the South Woodward 
Gateway gives visual clues to drivers that Woodward is a 
high-speed roadway. Solving the speed issue here requires 
land use changes described later in this plan, along with 
posted speed reductions. From the north, the highway-like 
conditions of Woodward through Bloomfield Hills brings 
drivers in to Birmingham at high speeds. From this direction, 
drivers need a signal that they have entered a different type 
of environment than Bloomfield Hills and should reduce 
speeds. Like the South Woodward Gateway, Birmingham 
needs a vision for the North Woodward Gateway, from 
Big Beaver to Maple, with a particular focus on the Old 
Woodward and Oak Avenue intersections.

Long-term Action: Re-align Secondary Intersections

Traffic problems caused by Woodward spill into surround-
ing streets in a few key locations. Due to Woodward’s 
angle, Adams, Worth, and Elm streets intersect at obtuse 
angles in the northbound direction allowing soft-right 
turns at high speeds. When streets intersect at extreme 
angles, pedestrian crossing distances increase and vehicle 
speeds increase, leading to safety and operational issues. 
Additionally, these intersections occur close to east-west 
streets: Ruffner, Lincoln, and Haynes, further complicating 
operations. Elm and Worth should be realigned to inter-
sect Woodward perpendicularly, as shown in the Triangle 
District Plan. (See Figure 15)

The intersection of Adams with Woodward is especially 
complicated due to its traffic volume and existing median 
breaks, making it particularly dangerous for pedestrians. To 
address this issue, when the Haynes Square intersection 
redevelopment occurs (discussed later), traffic along Adams 
should be rerouted to access Woodward at Haynes, which 
is already a near-perpendicular intersection. Additionally, the 
median break on Woodward at southbound Adams should 
be closed. The Haynes Square intersection would allow 
southbound Adams traffic to turn Left onto Woodward at 

a new traffic signal. This will reduce traffic at Adams and 
Lincoln. At the Woodward intersection, Adams should be 
realigned to intersect perpendicularly, as is proposed for 
Elm and Worth. Where Adams meets Haynes, the street 
should turn to the left slightly, to intersect perpendicularly 
with Haynes, which may also be accomplished through 
signage encouraging southbound Adams traffic to use 
Haynes for Woodward access. Additionally, this movement 
will help provide momentum to future retail in the Haynes 
Square / Triangle District area. To accommodate this, 
Haynes between Woodward and Adams should receive 
a streetscape redevelopment similar to Maple through 
Downtown, which has the same width.

Figure 15. Key Woodward intersection adjustments.

S.  Adam
s Rd.

Haynes St.

Woodward Ave

Old Woodward

E. Lincoln St.

S. W
orth St.

Ruffner Ave.

S. Elm
 St.

Intersection changes along Woodward and Adams.



Overcome the Woodward Divide
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 31

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. Adjust Elm to meet Woodward perpendicularly per 
the Triangle District plan.

2. Adjust Worth to meet Woodward perpendicularly per 
the Triangle District plan.

3. Task the Multi-modal Transportation Board to 
pursue a speed reduction on Woodward, to 35mph 
or similar, through legislative means.

4. Task the Multi-modal Transportation Board to study 
lane reduction and re-striping options for Woodward 
in coordination with MDOT. Recommended actions:

a. Participate in a traffic study along Woodward, 
with MDOT, once I-75 reopens fully to determine 
whether the road can be reduced to 3-lanes in 
each direction.

b. Pending verification of potential lane reductions, 
fund and implement re-striping on Woodward, 
between 14 Mile and Oakland, potentially to 
Quarton, converting the outside lane to a buff-
ered bicycle and transit lane.

c. Participate in regional plans to coordinate bicy-
cle and transit infrastructure along Woodward 
between municipalities.

5. Create a Haynes Square Plan, implementing the 
intent of the following recommendations:

a. Reconfigure the Woodward and Old Woodward 
intersection at Haynes Square as described in 
later Chapters.

b. Divert Adams traffic onto Haynes by angling 
Adams to intersect perpendicularly with Haynes, 
taking a portion of the parking lot of The Plant 
Station.

c. Adjust Adams to meet Woodward perpendicu-
larly at Ruffner.

6. Create a North Woodward Gateway Plan to address 
land use, gateway, and road design elements of 
Woodward north of Maple.

7. Revisit and adopt a South Woodward Gateway Plan, 
focused on traffic calming and beautification of 
Woodward.

8. Update the multi-modal plan as to improve 

Woodward crossings and conditions.

MULTI-MODAL PLAN UPDATES

a. Improve pedestrian and bicycle crossings along 
Woodward at 14 Mile, Emmons, Lincoln, Haynes, 
Brown, Maple, Oakland, and Oak.

b. Move signage at Lincoln and Woodward which 
obscures pedestrian countdown timers.

c. Add a signal for the Brown Street crosswalk along 
the northbound lanes of Woodward.

d. Install ADA-compliant ramps at intersections that are 
not in compliance along Woodward.

e. Review pedestrian crossing times for MUTCD 
compliance, some may need to be lengthened.

f. Add a protected only left turn signal for northbound 
left turns to Old Woodward. This may be omitted 
if the Haynes Square street reconfiguration occurs 
quickly.

g. Update the plan to reflect the chosen outer lane 
conversion along Woodward.



Redefine Downtown Districts
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2132

Redefine Downtown Districts
Birmingham’s mixed-use districts are defined circum-
stantially by their areas of historic growth and the division 
caused by Woodward. However, the Downtown area in 
particular contains multiple sub-districts which require 
their own character and definition to become active and 
competitive. Old Woodward is too long to sustain a consis-
tent main street without sub-districts of distinct character. 
Most traditional main streets, and shopping malls which 
have modeled themselves from traditional main streets, are 
¼ mile in length. This is the distance from Willits to Brown, 
the most active section of Old Woodward, and Bates to 
Park, the most active section of Maple (See Figure 17). 
Beyond this distance, activity and retail quality declines. But 
once downtowns are successful enough, they can expand 
beyond this distance by establishing secondary districts.

Downtown Sub-districts

Larger downtowns contain multiple districts with their own 
distinct character. For instance, Downtown Detroit contains 

Bricktown, Greektown, Hudson Corktown, and 
other districts. Together they make up the greater 
downtown, but they each have an individual char-
acter. Similarly yet at a more relate-able scale, Ann 
Arbor has a downtown district along Main Street 
and a university district along State Street. Both 
are distinct yet interconnected.

North to south, Downtown Birmingham includes 
three distinct districts. At the center, Maple and 
Woodward, Downtown is at its most intense and 
successful.

To the north along Old Woodward, the topography 
and building scale clearly changes after Oakland, 
becoming clearly distinct by Euclid. North of Euclid 
is a distinct Downtown sub-district. This Market 
North area (See Fig A.2-09) is now most clearly 
defined by the Farmers’ Market and Booth Park, 
as well as a scale that is less intense than Maple 
and Woodward. To the south along Old Woodward, 
the street activity clearly changes after Brown. 
This area is distinct and requires an identity, but the area 
is heavily constrained by the intersection of Woodward 
and Old Woodward. Each sub-district should be clearly 
differentiated, offering a different customer experience yet 
working together as the larger downtown area.

Further, Downtown Birmingham is considered to be only 
west of Woodward. This perpetuates the mental divide that 
Woodward cuts through the community (See Figure 12). 
If Woodward were not a major division, downtown would 
continue east on Maple. The form of more intensive build-
ings east of Maple reflects this condition, with the housing 
along Forest, Chestnut, and Hazel establishing a break 
between this core downtown area and the remainder of 
the southern Triangle District.

Spanning Woodward mentally makes the most significant 
impact south of Brown where the west side is constrained 
just at the point that the east side, the southern Triangle 
District, is at its widest. This Haynes Square area, centered 
on Haynes Street, is cohesive when it spans Woodward 
(discussed later). With its own identity, Haynes Square can 
be elevated to a full sub-district of downtown rather than 
the unsuccessful southern fringe of a successful downtown.Figure 16. Three districts of downtown.

Future	Land	Use:	1:400

Municipal	Boundary

Downtown	Neighborhood

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Parks

Parks	and	Open	Space

Building	Footprints

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Centers

Neighborhoods

Future	Land	Use:	1:400

Municipal	Boundary

Downtown	Neighborhood

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Parks

Parks	and	Open	Space

Building	Footprints

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Centers

Neighborhoods

Maple and WoodwardMaple and Woodward

Haynes Haynes 
SquareSquare

Market Market 
NorthNorth

Future	Land	Use:	1:400

Municipal	Boundary

Downtown	Neighborhood

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Parks

Parks	and	Open	Space

Building	Footprints

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Centers

Neighborhoods

Future	Land	Use:	1:400

Municipal	Boundary

Downtown	Neighborhood

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Parks

Parks	and	Open	Space

Building	Footprints

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Centers

Neighborhoods



Redefine Downtown Districts
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 33

Identity, Signage, and Way-finding

Many downtown visitors are unfamiliar with its business 
offerings, parking locations, and street layout. When estab-
lishing multiple districts, signage is especially important 
to orient visitors. Similarly, multiple districts can assist in 
way-finding overall if signed properly. Today, signage is lack-
ing throughout the greater downtown area, from way-find-
ing for parking access to civic institutions and business 
directories. Each district should have clear signage which 
is consistent in the information provided but differentiated 
by district. (See Figure 18)

Parking signage is especially important as the City deals 
with extremely high occupancy of its Downtown garages. 
Prior to the Covid pandemic, many of the City’s parking 
garages operated at 99% capacity; still in the pandemic 
we will rely upon recent, historic usage levels. While the 
North Old Woodward, Park, and Peabody garages typi-
cally operated above 90%, visitors are not always aware of 
nearby spaces available in the Chester and Pierce garages. 
Technology should be employed to inform users of avail-
able capacity throughout the greater downtown. Much 
of this equipment is unattractive, like the signage in use 
currently in Ann Arbor, yet there are minimal and elegant 
solutions available to direct users to the nearest available 

capacity. This signage should be piloted in downtown and 
spread to the City’s other mixed-use districts once parking 
investments are made.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. Create a greater downtown branding plan, in coor-
dination with the Birmingham Shopping District, to 
brand the City’s multiple mixed-use districts. This 
plan should addresses, at a minimum:

a. District way-finding (vehicular, pedestrian, and 
cyclist-oriented), business directory, and gate-
way signage;

b. Differentiation in streetscape products like tree 
grates, lights, trash and recycling cans, and 
public art themes;

c. A marketing plan for each of the distinct 
districts;

d. A phasing plan to install business directory and 
way-finding signage throughout all districts.

2. Install parking way-finding signage in downtown, 
ensuring the design is simple and elegant. (priority)

3. Permit murals and wraps like the popcorn utility 
wrap to be city-initiated or by the Public Arts Board.

Figure 17. Typical length of main streets.

Future	Land	Use:	1:400

Municipal	Boundary

Downtown	Neighborhood

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Parks

Parks	and	Open	Space

Building	Footprints

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Centers

Neighborhoods

Future	Land	Use:	1:400

Municipal	Boundary

Downtown	Neighborhood

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Parks

Parks	and	Open	Space

Building	Footprints

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Centers

Neighborhoods

Willtis
 St

E. Brown St

Old. Woodward

1,320’1,320’

S.
 B

at
es

 S
t

Pi
er

ce
 S

t

Park St

E. Maple Rd

Elm
 St

Poppleton St

1,320’
1,320’

Figure 18. Way-finding signage examples.



Implement Haynes Square
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2134

Implement Haynes Square
Connecting the city requires a change in perception about 
Woodward. No greater opportunity exists to change this 
perception than Haynes Square. South of Frank Street, 
the character of downtown changes, expressed in zoning, 
street life, and business success. Rather than consider 
South Old Woodward an inferior retail district, the area 
can be combined with the lower Triangle District, spanning 
big Woodward. The Haynes Square district is bound by 
Bowers to the North,  Adams to the East, and Lincoln to 
the South. Its size is similar to the active office and retail 
core of Maple and Woodward.

Street reconfigurations to achieve this result in a public 
open space at south Old Woodward and Haynes Street. 
This square is the new heart of a district independent from 
Maple and Woodward. (See Figure 19) The square should 
be similar to Shain Park from a design perspective, but 
about half its size, with a cafe, seating, and restrooms as is 
recommended for other urban parks. Lined by trees along 
its edges, the square will provide an attractive entrance 
to the greater downtown area, flanked by tall, new devel-
opment east along Woodward and the 555 building to its 
north.

This combined district represents Birmingham’s great-
est opportunity for the development of both extensive 
middle-income housing—a deficiency that should be 
addressed—and emerging commercial business spaces. 
While Maple and Woodward includes a significant pres-
ence of offices, Haynes Square should focus on residen-
tial above commercial uses, and on commercial uses that 
serve a different market than the core shopping district of 
Maple and Woodward.

To capitalize on its potential, two major investments are 
required: reconfiguring the intersection between Woodward 
and Old Woodward, and constructing a parking garage 
on the east side of Woodward.

Street and Property Reconfiguration

A pair of related issues make clear the need for street and 
property reconfiguration in this area. First, the intersection 
of Old Woodward and Woodward occurs at a very acute 
angle and requires a dangerous northbound lef t turn. 
The intersection also creates a narrow and unusable strip 
of land which mirrors the poor frontage condition of the 
South Woodward Gateway. Second, properties that are 
located along Old Woodward south of George Street are 
zoned for taller buildings, but have not seen redevelopment 

Figure 19. Haynes Square reconfiguration.

Future Land Use: 1:400

Municipal	Boundary

Downtown	Neighborhood

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Parks

Parks	and	Open	Space

Building	Footprints

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Centers

Neighborhoods

EXISTING PROPOSED

Old. Woodward

Ann St

Ann St
Old. Woodward

George St

George St

Haynes St
Haynes St

Woodward

Woodward



Implement Haynes Square
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 35

due in part to parking issues. The parking necessary to 
redevelop properties south of George St is dif f icult to 
accommodate with shallow lots that back onto single-fam-
ily properties. This plan recommends that Old Woodward 
be reconfigured to alleviate the awkward intersections 
and provide larger building sites. George St. is extended 
to big Woodward, and Old Woodward removed south of 
George. South of George St, properties are extended to 
big Woodward, providing sites that can accommodate 
buildings and parking. Property extensions may be traded 
for a public surface parking lot where buildings currently 
sit along Old Woodward, 70 feet deep measured from the 
alley, which leaves over 100 feet of property for develop-
ment, deeper than current properties.

Through this redevelopment, Haynes St. crosses Woodward 
to meet Old Woodward at a new signal. On the east side 
of Woodward, Haynes becomes a main street, paired with 
Worth Street. To support the main street with additional 
traffic, as Maple and Woodward is supported by Maple’s 

traffic, Adams should be slightly adjusted so that south-
bound traf f ic uses Haynes to access Woodward. This 
adjustment is detailed in Figure 15.

Public Parking

Due to the odd lot shapes in the district, significant zoned 
capacity, and lack of access to the downtown parking 
district, private development is unlikely to take the first 
step to launch the Haynes Square, as has been the case 
for the Triangle District, which is synonymous. To success-
fully launch Haynes Square, the City needs to invest in a 
parking garage. Unfortunately, neither of the 2007 Triangle 
District plan’s proposed public parking structures nor its 
proposed parking assessment district have been imple-
mented. A new garage is needed and should be suited to 
meet most of the needs of the district, alleviating develop-
ers from the burden of parking with both commercial and 
residential parking permitted. With a structure in place, and 
mixed-use residences able to unbundle parking (See the 
Mixed-use Districts section), new housing and businesses 

Figure 20. Redevelopment of Haynes Square.



Implement Haynes Square
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2136

are likely to developed quickly. Due to the district’s size 
and low existing intensity, development will bring significant 
increases in tax revenue. While a smaller garage has been 
discussed, which may be pursued to whet the appetite of 
developers, the construction of multiple smaller garages 
is less efficient in the long run than one higher-capacity 
structure.

Other Area Improvements

At the intersection of Haynes and Worth Streets, the 2007 
Triangle District plan recommends a triangular green called 
Worth Park. This space provides an important focal center 
for the east side of Haynes Square. It also provides needed 
open space for the Torry neighborhood. Like other urban 
parks discussed in this plan, Worth Park should have 
ample seating, shade, and areas for children to play. Worth 
Street, which has few existing buildings facing onto it, 
should be considered for a shared-use treatment to provide 
interest and connect with the South Woodward Gateway 
alley system. Worth Park may be built in the form of a 
plaza - mostly paved - which is a type of civic open space 
Birmingham does not yet have. New buildings in the area 
can take advantage of the dynamic and pedestrian-centric 
streetscape and plaza.

A missing piece for decades has been the Adam’s Square 
shopping center, which represents the greatest single 
redevelopment site in the City. With an active Haynes 
Square district adjacent, redevelopment is likely to occur. 
To prepare for this, zoning and subdivision requirements 
should be considered such that Adam’s Square provide 
open space for the Torry neighborhood and public park-
ing in exchange for development capacity modeled upon 
the Triangle District Overlay.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS  

1. Implement the public parking deck recommendation 
of the 2007 Triangle District Plan.

2. Create a parking assessment district, per the 2007 
Triangle District Plan, or incremental tax district as 
necessary for land purchases and for financing the 
development of parking structures.

3. Study the potential for Public Private Partnerships to 
construct parking structures in the Triangle District.

4. Create a Haynes Square Plan which provides the 
details, timing, and funding for implementing Haynes 
Square. This may be an update to the 2007 Triangle 
District Plan. This plan should:

a. Reconfigure the streets around Haynes Square 
to create the square and fix the acute intersec-
tion between Woodward and Old Woodward.

b. Build the public square with a cafe, trees, seat-
ing, a kids play area, and other civic features.

c. Consider revising the design of Worth Park in 
the form of a plaza and other opportunities for 
shared streets and passageways, civic art, traf-
fic calming, and way-finding.

d. Detail streetscape and landscape improvements 
along Worth, Bowers, Haynes, and Webster.

e. Improve pedestrian linkages to the surrounding 
neighborhoods, especially along Adams.

f. Consider swapping land to install a public park-
ing lot along the south Old Woodward alley.

g. Create a parking district for Haynes Square 
which allows residences to purchase park-
ing passes in public garages, in addition to 
commercial parking.

h. Install metered, on-street parking along Adams 
and Lincoln Roads.

i. Create subdivision and zoning standards to 
encourage redevelopment of the Adam’s Square 
shopping center, offering significant develop-
ment capacity in exchange for a public open 
space and public parking.

j. Consider streetscape improvements along 
Woodward to improve the walkability to both 
downtown and the market districts.

k. Consider green stormwater management oppor-
tunities made possible through the area’s growth 
and redevelopment.



Encourage Gathering Places
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 37

Encourage Gathering Places
While Birmingham is more walkable than most cities in 
Metro-Detroit, accessing daily destinations still require a 
car for many residents. City structure and the distribution of 
daily destinations is the greatest determinant of the trans-
portation mode people will choose and its impact on socia-
bility and the environment. When comparing Birmingham’s 
neighborhoods with immediately surrounding communities, 
the differences are stark; Birmingham’s neighborhoods 
are more consistent, cohesive, and complete. But there 
is still room for improvement in the City’s neighborhoods. 
The most significant modifications concern accommo-
dating nearby, daily destinations, means of accessing the 
City’s mixed-use districts more easily, and accommo-
dations provided at neighborhood parks. When people 
have access to nearby destinations, they are more likely 
to choose walking or biking, which increases interaction 
among neighbors.

Due to the regional draw of Downtown, its price point is 
too high to provide normal neighborhood services, and its 
location is too far for most residents to walk. Historically, 
Birmingham has supported civic institutions and parks 
within neighborhoods, and has had a number of smaller, 
neighborhood businesses that provided more frequent 
offerings to nearby residents. Birmingham retains its’ parks 
and institutions, but only a few neighborhood commercial 
destinations: Maple and Chesterfield, Maple and Eton, and 
14 Mile and Southfield.

Neighborhood Destinations are the glue for neighborhood 
and community social structures. At destinations, neigh-
bors meet and interact, and the act of walking or rolling to 
nearby destinations builds familiarity between neighbors 
on the street. Neighborhood Destinations fall into 3 cate-
gories: Commercial Destinations like markets and cafes, 
Recreational Destinations like parks and trails, and Civic 
Destinations like schools and religious institutions.

Commercial Destinations

Local bakeries, specialty markets, coffee shops, brew 
pubs, dry cleaners, hair salons, pharmacies, and even 
service stations comprise neighborhood scaled ameni-
ties that are unique to Birmingham among surrounding 
communities. Easy access to these amenities, especially 

by walking, contribute to the City’s comfortable lifestyle 
and high property values. Recent studies indicate house 
values dramatically increase when located within a ten-min-
ute walk of a coffee shop, green grocery, micro-brewery, 
park, or school. But some city residents live beyond a 
comfortable walk or bike ride.

Commercial destinations should be located to provide 
walkable access to neighborhoods, but not be so close 
to one another that they become a larger district. (See 
Figure 22) To accommodate social interaction, a few cafes 
within existing parks may provide a sufficient destination. 
Commercial Destinations should be encouraged and their 
scale and specific uses should be limited, along with oper-
ating hours and noise, to limit their impact on surround-
ing residents. These destinations should also be allowed 
to provide residential uses above the ground floor, which 
will help their success by providing immediately adjacent 
customers and allowing the residential units to offset some 
of the operational costs of managing the buildings. Scale 
and character should remain compatible with the surround-
ing neighborhood, reviewed by the Planning Board.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. Build a cafe in Booth Park as recommended in the 
2016 Downtown Plan.

2. Build a model neighborhood destination at the 
northeastern corner of Lincoln and Eton.

3. Create a neighborhood destination zoning 
district. This district should consider the following 
recommendations:

a. Allow by-right Commercial Destinations of up 
to 10,000 square feet total, no more than 3,000 
square feet per tenant.

b. Limit uses to bakeries, banks, bicycle shops, 
cafés, carry-out foods, coffee shops, exer-
cise studios, florists, hardware, ice cream 
parlors, mail centers, personal care, medical 
offices, pharmacies, real estate offices, financial 
services, small groceries, specialty shops, and 
other small local service-businesses. Housing 
should be permitted above the ground floor. 

•  Where located in parks, limit uses to 



Encourage Gathering Places
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2138

bakeries, cafes, and coffee shops.

c. Nationally branded chains should be permitted 
when designed to look local.

d. Limit evening hours and prohibit excessive 
noise, including music in the late evenings, and 
early or late truck deliveries should be restricted.

e. Larger restaurants and other potentially inten-
sive commercial should be permitted as special 
uses, with appropriate design, management, 
and operational conditions geared to minimize 
their potential impact on surrounding properties.

f. Drive-thru windows should be prohibited.

g. Loading docks should be minimal, if provided.

h. Landscaped screening should be required from 
adjacent single-family properties.

i. Allowed up to three floors, provided they match 

the scale of a two and one-half story structure.

• For buildings with 3 stories, the upper floors 
must be residential.

• For buildings with 2 stories, the upper floor 
may be office or residential.

• Where located in parks, limit height to one 
story.

j. Parking should be as minimal as possible, or not 
required. If required, parking should not exceed 
3 cars per 1,000 square feet of non-residential 
uses and 1 car per bedroom of residential uses.

k. Planning Board review should ensure minimal 
impacts to the neighborhood.

Figure 22. Propsed Neighborhood Destinations.

Oak AveOak Ave

W Maple RdW Maple Rd

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

E Maple RdE Maple Rd

E Lincoln StE Lincoln St

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave W

oodw
ard Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

N
 A

da
m

s 
R

d
N

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

SS 
Ad

am
s 

R
d

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

S 
Et

on
 R

d
S 

Et
on

 R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

Big Beaver RdBig Beaver Rd

Quarton RdQuarton Rd

Commercial Destinations

Recreational Destinations

5-minute Walk (existing)

5-minute Walk (new)

Future	Land	Use:	1:400



Encourage Gathering Places
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 39

Civic Destinations

Birmingham has a long tradition of investing in civic build-
ings and landscapes, which began with the construction 
of its first library and the build-out of its civic center in the 
1920s. This civic center is centrally located downtown, 
with it constituent buildings grouped around Shain Park. 
The center occupies five blocks that once housed privately 
owned houses, which the city purchased and razed as 
part of the 1929 Plan. Outside of the City’s primary civic 
cluster in Downtown, nearly all of Birmingham’s neighbor-
hoods include one or more civic uses within a short walk 
for most of their residents. This relationship is relatively 
rare in postwar suburbs and contributes to Birmingham’s 
desirable quality of life. These Civic Destinations include 
fire stations, meeting halls, museums, places of worship, 
post offices, schools, and specialized civic institutions such 
as Next and the YMCA. The 1929 plan proposed anchor-
ing each of the city’s neighborhoods with a civic center, a 

school, or a park. Largely implemented, this plan resulted 
in the numerous schools and parks that now exist in most 
of Birmingham’s neighborhoods.

Civic buildings offer neutral, aspirational places for citizens 
and community leaders to exchange ideas, form community 
associations, or simply socialize. Located in a neighbor-
hood setting, these institutions encourage neighborhood 
interaction. (See Figure 23) They also tend to draw people 
from other nearby neighborhoods, cross-pollinating the 
City’s social structures. Civic buildings and landscapes 
should be grand and iconic, and be distinct from residential 
construction to avoid confusing public and private uses. 
Birmingham’s prewar civic buildings—the City Hall, library, 
post office, and train station—were built of brick and stone 
in an English Tudor style, with the exaggerated scale and 
exceptional quality befitting signature civic buildings.

Throughout the community, Civic Destinations should be 

Future	Land	Use:	1:400

Civic Destinations

Recreational Destinations

5-minute Walk (existing)

Figure 23. Civic Destinations.

Oak AveOak Ave

W Maple RdW Maple Rd

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

E Maple RdE Maple Rd

E Lincoln StE Lincoln St

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave W

oodw
ard Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

Quarton RdQuarton Rd

N
 A

da
m

s 
R

d
N

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

SS 
Ad

am
s 

R
d

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

S 
Et

on
 R

d
S 

Et
on

 R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

Big Beaver RdBig Beaver Rd



Prioritize the Neighborhood Loop
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2140

maintained and supported. During the planning charrette, 
some of the City’s civic institutions discussed their great 
variety of programs. We also heard that some struggle to 
reach residents and new generations who are not familiar 
with the role that civic institutions play in the community. 
To support these institutions, Birmingham should have a 
Community Foundation or fund, which the Chamber of 
Commerce is in the process of establishing. In addition 
to the fund, regular social events should be organized 
throughout the city. At present, a series of events occurs 
downtown, but additional events should be considered 
throughout the community. The Community Foundation 
or fund should contribute to these events and involve civic 
institutions in organizing and promotion. Regular events 
such as these are an important means of gaining visi-
bility among community members, engaging them, and 
strengthening the community’s social and civic structure.

Of particular interest to older residents is the lack of a 
sufficient senior center. While Next’s programs and staff 
meet much of this need, their facilities are insufficient. 
Surrounding communities boast substantial seniors facil-
ities. Beyond the senior focus, some younger adults use 
Next’s facilities and Next has begun to broaden their appeal 
beyond the senior cohort. Improved facilities for Next would 
contribute to both older and younger adult populations. At 
present Next occupies a former school building located 
adjacent to Seaholm. New facilities for Next would ideally 
be located near the center of the city, for more convenient 
access to all residents. Many options exist and should be 
studied, including: part of a public parking facility devel-
opment in Haynes Square or the Bates Street extension, 
replacing the surface parking in Shain Park, or other loca-
tions near the city center. In addition to programming for 
Next, the facility should provide space that may be reserved 
free of charge for meetings of resident organizations.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. Establish policy to continue the tradition of 
constructing Birmingham’s civic buildings and parks 
as iconic structures and landscapes to the highest 
standards and at a civic scale. This should include 
authentic durable materials, oversized windows, 
high ceilings, and Tudor design and detailing.

2. Ensure the Community Foundation / Fund is estab-
lished in a timely manner.

3. Establish a Civic Events Board or extend the role of 
the Public Arts Board to develop regular civic events 
to continue engaging the community throughout the 
year and promote existing civic institutions.

4. Convene a committee to study the location, 
programming, and funding for new facilities for Next.

Prioritize the Neighborhood Loop
Presently, the city’s major roads run between planning 
districts which is efficient for long-distance car needs, 
but is less convenient and safe for walkers and cyclists. 
Additionally, many neighborhoods experience cut-through 
traf f ic when congestion is high on major roads along 
the distr ict per imeter. To address these issues and 
increase social interaction through walking and cycling, 
a Neighborhood Loop is proposed. (See Figure 24) This 
is a pedestrian and bicycle priority route through most of 
Birmingham’s neighborhoods, avoiding larger roads where 
possible. This plan recommends that improvements be 
prioritized over most other multi-modal improvements. 
The loop is also an opportunity for a future internal public 
transportation circulator for the City, to provide mobility 
options for those who cannot walk long distances or cycle.

The loop is intended to be a bicycle boulevard system 
which also focuses on pedestrian accommodations and 
comfort. Bicycle boulevards are routes that are designed 
for bicycle access while discouraging through access for 
cars. As such, the loop will serve to reduce cut-through 
traffic by diverting cars to provide better bike and pedestrian 
access and safety. Pedestrian accommodations include 
sufficient sidewalks, marked crosswalks, shading, and 
benches. The proposed loop route builds upon the cycle 
track recently piloted along Eton Rd.

Beyond physical accommodations, the Neighborhood 
Loop is intended to be a social concentrator for the City’s 
neighborhoods. Once established, at least by signage, 
activities should be planned along the loop to encourage 
pedestrian and cyclist use, especially families. During the 
summer, a monthly program could close the loop to traffic 
one day per month, and parks along the path programmed 



Prioritize the Neighborhood Loop
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 41

with family-friendly activities. Where the Hometown Parade 
brings people to Downtown, activities along the loop are 
intended to connect neighbors with each other and get 
residents walking and riding through other neighborhoods 
they don’t normally experience. Additionally, the loop is 
intended to make pedestrians and cyclists more visible 
throughout the City, especially across the major roadways.

Bicycle destination signage is currently lacking throughout 
the City. While the 2013 Multi-modal Plan recommended 
signage, this plan establishes a number of more clear 
destinations with planning district boundaries and multi-
ple downtown districts. Signage should be installed along 
the Neighborhood Loop and other routes with bike lanes. 
Signage may be expanded to secondary connections and 
routes at a later time. Bicycle signage provides significant 
way-finding assistance to riders who may be unsure of how 
to use the bike network.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

5. Hire a consultant to design the Neighborhood Loop 
bicycle boulevard, including signage and diverters, 
and pedestrian improvements, like complete side-
walks and crosswalks.

6. Update the Multi-modal Plan to include and prioritize 
the Neighborhood Loop design elements.

7. Develop civic programming events along the neigh-
borhood loop, within the purview of the Civic Events 
Board or Public Arts Board.

8. Update the multi-modal plan to implement the 
Neighborhood Loop.

BEST PRACTICE RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE 
MULTI-MODAL PLAN

a. Add benches along the loop where the 
Neighborhood Loop crosses major roads, like 
Maple, schools, and parks, like Linden Park.

b. Add bicycle destination signage along the 
Neighborhood Loop and routes with bike lanes.

c. Add bicycle parking and repair stations like those 
found in Shain Park to all parks. 

Figure 24. The Neighborhood Loop 

Neighborhood Loop 

Protected Bike Lane

Bike Lane

Neighborhood Connector

Paved Bike Path

Basemap:	Citywide	1:400

EmmonsEmmons
SouthlawnSouthlawn

LincolnLincoln

MapleMaple

W
oodw

ard
W

oodw
ard

Old W
oodward

Old W
oodward

OakOak

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

Larchler
Larchler

MoheganMohegan DerbyDerby

Eton
Eton



Accommodate More Modes of Movement
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2142

Accommodate More Modes of Movement
Much of the congestion that Birmingham experiences is due 
to regional issues, which the city has little opportunity to 
change. While recommendations are provided to deal with 
cut-through traffic and dangerous intersections, providing 
viable alternatives for getting around the City without a car 
is the most effective strategy to reduce the inconvenience 
caused by congestion. Across the country mobility has 
evolved from a focus on personal automobiles to support 
bicycle and pedestrian priority, and to integrate evolving 
technologies. Birmingham needs a strategy to integrate a 
wide variety of alternatives to personal vehicles.

The 2013 Multi-modal Plan increases priority for bicycles 
and pedestrians which is a critical improvement. Today, 
there remains a long way to go to achieve the goals of this 
plan. With emerging technologies and lessons learned in 
bicycle accommodations, the 2013 plan should be updated 
to integrate new modes as well as experiences from imple-
mentation to date.

Beyond bicycles and pedestrians, preparing for unknown 
future mobility devices is difficult to predict but import-
ant to allow for increased access throughout the city. To 
successfully integrate new technologies, strategies are 
required for both facilities and education.

Multi-modal Facilities

To accommodate an increasing number of mobility options, 
facilities for dif ferent roadway users should be consid-
ered according to the speed of user. A significant differ-
ent in speed is why cars and pedestrians don’t mix well. 
Similarly, this is why bicycles need dedicated lanes when 
cars travel above 25mph; the difference in speeds causes 
a safety issue. This view is important when considering 
how to integrate scooters, single wheels, and even e-bikes. 
Whether a street should be slow speed and shared for all 
users, higher speed and separated for all users, or some-
where in between intersects transportation network and 
urban design.

Within neighborhoods, accommodation for multiple modes 
is relatively easy. Most streets in Birmingham are narrow, 
slowing cars enough to mix modes within the street. The 
Neighborhood Loop, consisting of a series of bicycle 

boulevards, also provides safe and convenient access 
for multiple modes. But in neighborhoods, bikes, scooters, 
and similar technology should be discouraged from using 
sidewalks through signage and education.

Within Mixed-use Districts, accommodation for new mobil-
ity modes should be considered more carefully. On streets 
with larger volumes of car traffic, improved bicycle accom-
modations such as protected bike lanes are necessary 
to ensure comfort and safety for riders of all ages. These 
lanes can also accommodate faster moving new technol-
ogy like scooters. However, many streets in Birmingham 
cannot accommodate both bike lanes and on-street parking 
yet these mixed-use districts also experience the highest 
parking usage rates. The most effective means of accom-
modating multiple modes is to slow the speed of all users.

Another recommended initiative is to pilot shared-use 
streets where materials, signage, and the street edge are 
designed for all users to operate at very slow speeds and 
mix. These shared use spaces and streets are common 
in Europe and are increasing in use in the US. A notable 
example is Argyle Street in Chicago. Merrill Street is an 
excellent location to pilot a shared use street, connecting 
Old Woodward with Shain Park and the Library, potentially 
extending to Martha Baldwin Park and the Rouge River trail 
network. Worth Street in Haynes Square could pilot the form 
as a future main street, along with Cole Street in the Rail 
District. Over time a network of shared use streets should 
be assembled, better accommodating changing mobility.

Educating Roadway Users

While new mobility options provide benefits for many trav-
elers, addressing safety issues and a clear understanding 
and respect for rules is critical. Riders of bicycles, scoot-
ers, and other modes must be aware of where they are 
expected and allowed to ride, whether safety equipment 
is required, and how right-of-way is determined. In addi-
tion to awareness, the city should understand that most 
frequently violations occur where people feel that it is 
unsafe or very inconvenient to ride where directed. But 
equally importantly, drivers need to respect the rights of 
other roadway users, many of which do not. To address 
these issues, adequate signage, public education, and 
enforcement are necessary.



Improve Regional Transit Connections
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 43

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. Update the Multi-modal Plan to address new mobil-
ity technology, recent design innovations, and a 
public education component.

2. Require protected bicycle facilities on all streets 
posted at or above 35mph.

3. Pilot a shared use street along Merrill Street first 
from Old Woodward to Shain Park, and in a later 
phase connecting to the Rouge River trail system 
through Martha Baldwin Park.

4. Update the multi-modal plan to implement additional 
multi-modal and micro-mobility best practices.

BEST PRACTICE RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE 
MULTI-MODAL PLAN

a. Shift the burden of public bicycle parking in the 
downtown from private businesses to the city.

b. Increase proposed streetside bicycle parking.

c. Add parking areas for micro-mobility devices.

d. Convert bicycle lane signage to mobility lane.

e. Install signage informing micro-mobility users and 
cyclists of where they are permitted to ride.

f. Provide mobility education to all residents.

Improve Regional Transit Connections
Regional transit will increase in importance as long as 
the transit authorities invest in the system, and residents 
support that investment. As one of a number of cities and 
mixed-use centers along Woodward, Birmingham would 
benefit significantly from improved bus or rail along the 
corridor. While this has been projected for decades, there 
is still hope that it will occur.

To support transit, Birmingham has relatively little work 
to do, already having a well established downtown along 
Woodward. Most significantly, Birmingham needs to add 
residents to Downtown, which is proposed in greater detail 
in following chapters. Residents Downtown would also 
be located along the regional transit corridor, more read-
ily users of that service and able to reduce car depen-
dency as a result. The Rail District also needs to secure a 

connection to the Troy Transit Center and add residents 
and businesses. This is also discussed in later chapters. 
Physically the City needs to improve transit stops to be 
covered and include real-time information, along with nearby 
long-term covered bike parking.

For Birmingham, regional transportation will mean rela-
tively little for residents who are further from Downtown 
without an internal circulator. A circulator, autonomous or 
otherwise, would also improve access around the City to 
residents who have difficulties walking and biking during 
the winter months. A circulator within Birmingham should 
run along the Neighborhood Loop, with a few diversions 
to high-frequency destinations like Seaholm. Overall this 
would provide greater access to residents and reduce some 
parking issues Downtown and also at Seaholm.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. Update the Multi-modal Plan to improve the condi-
tions at bus stops along more major roads.

2. Convene a committee to study a public circulator.

BEST PRACTICE RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE 
MULTI-MODAL PLAN

a. Improve bus stops by adding shelters, paving, and 
seating along:

•  Big Woodward

• Old Woodward (completed in part with Phase 1 
streetscape).

• Maple, including stops outside of Downtown

• Coolidge Hwy.

• 14 Mile Rd.



Multi-modal Plan Updates
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2144

Multi-modal Plan Updates
A number of adjustments are recommended to the 2013 
Multi-modal Plan within the previous sections. Those 
updates that are able to be expressed on a map are 
included in this section for ease of comparison to the 
existing plan. In addition, these recommendations impact 
the overall network for bicyclists, pedestrians, and transit. 
Some of the updates identified in this section are adjust-
ments based upon those impacts.

PEDESTRIAN FACILITIES

Pedestrian facilities are generally adjusted in order to 
implement recommendations in the Connect the City and 
Prioritize the Neighborhood Loop sections. These are 
specified in Figure 25.

BICYCLE FACILITIES

Bicycle facilities are generally adjusted in order to imple-
ment recommendations in the Connect the City, Prioritize 
the Neighborhood Loop, and Accommodate More Modes 
of Movement sections. These are specified in Figure 26 and 
include recommended adjustments to the overall bicycle 
network function as a result of other changes.

TRANSIT FACILITIES

Transit facilities are generally adjusted in order to imple-
ment recommendations in the Connect the City, Prioritize 
the Neighborhood Loop, and Improve Regional Transit 
Connections sections. These are specified in Figure 27.

Figure 25. Pedestrian updates to the multi-modal plan.

Improvements Added

Curb Extensions Added

Oak AveOak Ave

W Maple RdW Maple Rd

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

E Maple RdE Maple Rd

E Lincoln StE Lincoln St

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

Quarton RdQuarton Rd

N
 A

da
m

s 
R

d
N

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

SS 
Ad

am
s 

R
d

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

S 
Et

on
 R

d
S 

Et
on

 R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

Big Beaver RdBig Beaver Rd

Larchlea D
r

Larchlea D
r



Multi-modal Plan Updates
Ch 1. Connect the City

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 45

Figure 27. Transit updates to the multi-modal plan.

Boundaries

Municipal
Boundary

Neighborhood
Boundaries

Multimodal  - Bike

Neighborhood
Loop

Protected
Bike
Lane

Bike
Lane

Neighborhood
Connector

Paved
Bike
Path

TBD

Existing
Rouge
Trails

Multimodal - Transit

Transit
Stop

Proposed
Circulator
Stop

Multimodal - Intersections

Intersection
Improvements

Parks

Parks
and
Open
Space

Civic Institutions

Civic

School

Cemetery

Transit Stops Added

Removed / Relocated

Figure 26. Bicycle facility updates to the multi-modal plan.

Boundaries

Municipal
Boundary

Neighborhood
Boundaries

Multimodal  - Bike

Neighborhood
Loop

Protected
Bike
Lane

Bike
Lane

Neighborhood
Connector

Paved
Bike
Path

TBD

Existing
Rouge
Trails

Multimodal - Transit

Transit
Stop

Proposed
Circulator
Stop

Multimodal - Intersections

Intersection
Improvements

Parks

Parks
and
Open
Space

Civic Institutions

Civic

School

Cemetery

Bike Connection Added

Type Changed

Removed / Relocated

Oak AveOak Ave

W Maple RdW Maple Rd

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

E Maple RdE Maple Rd

E Lincoln StE Lincoln St

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

Quarton RdQuarton Rd

N
 A

da
m

s 
R

d
N

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

SS 
Ad

am
s 

R
d

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

S 
Et

on
 R

d
S 

Et
on

 R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

Big Beaver RdBig Beaver Rd

Larchlea D
r

Larchlea D
r

Oak AveOak Ave

W Maple RdW Maple Rd

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

E Maple RdE Maple Rd

E Lincoln StE Lincoln St

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

Quarton RdQuarton Rd

N
 A

da
m

s 
R

d
N

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

SS 
Ad

am
s 

R
d

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

S 
Et

on
 R

d
S 

Et
on

 R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

Big Beaver RdBig Beaver Rd

Larchlea D
r

Larchlea D
r



The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2146

This page is intentionally blank.



Ch 2. Embrace Managed Growth



Encourage Housing in Mixed-use Districts
Ch 2. Embrace Managed Growth

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2148

Encourage Housing in Mixed-use Districts
Maple and Woodward

The Maple and Woodward district (Downtown Birmingham) 
has an imbalance of commercial to residential develop-
ment, with very few households compared to a significant 
amount of office and retail space. This lack of housing has 
been recognized since the 1980 plan, due significantly to 
a policy which does not allow residences to park in the 
public parking decks. Each mixed-use district requires a 
balance of housing with offices and retail space; a proper 
mix ensures that the district is active during daytime hours 
and into the evening, supporting retail spaces and restau-
rants and promoting greater public safety. If housing is to 
be provided downtown to re-balance the 24-hour life-cycle 
of the downtown, it will require access to the municipal 
parking supply.

Providing parking on private properties in downtown is 
difficult due to the small size of properties and goals for 
walkable streets activated by storefronts. Properties in 
suburban locations can more easily provide on-site park-
ing because land is not scarce. Those areas are also not 
walkable. Walkable streets require small blocks and a lot 
of activity; there is not room for parking on every property. 
The current rules encourage development to add housing 
on upper floors to achieve a height bonus, but require some 
of the very valuable ground floor to be set aside for park-
ing. This results in very large and very expensive housing 
in a downtown that needs small and relatively inexpensive 

apartments and condos.

Parking downtown is typically heavily utilized during the 
daytime, with most public garages over 90% of their capac-
ity. However, that same parking is virtually empty during the 
evening and overnight. Weekend parking is also underuti-
lized with around 2,000 spaces available. This parking 
imbalance is an ideal opportunity to accommodate hous-
ing, which requires parking at night and on weekends, and 
vacates parking during the day. When initially proposed 
as a concept, concern for the time that residents would 
depart and office workers would arise was raised. Having 
monitored parking patterns, at least half of total parking 
capacity is available at 10am, providing a significant period 
of overlap between uses. (See Figure 28)

Presently, four and five-story buildings are allowed in most 
areas downtown yet most buildings are lower. Considering 
the dif ference between the height of existing buildings 
and the currently allowed potential, all housing growth 
needed in the downtown area could be accommodated 
within the existing zoned capacity. Some of that capacity 
is further limited by the historic status of many existing 
buildings. However, we do not recommend increasing 
heights beyond what is currently zoned, except where 
adjusting zone boundaries for greater consistency. Focus 
should instead be on filling existing capacity, here and in 
other mixed-use districts.

New residential parking permit price should be set attain-
ably yet to discourage residents from parking cars that 

Figure 28. Downtown garage capacity at different times on a Monday.

MONDAY, 9:30AM MONDAY, 11:00AM MONDAY, 1:00PM MONDAY, 5:00PM



Encourage Housing in Mixed-use Districts
Ch 2. Embrace Managed Growth

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 49

are not used regularly. Distribution of permits can also be 
managed through permit assignments, assigning spaces 
in less used garages like Chester Street.  For the mostly 
younger and older residents who may not need a car, 
they benefit from the cost of parking being entirely elimi-
nated from the cost of their housing. And lastly, the added 
income for the parking district can be reinvested into exist-
ing structures and for replacements and new structures.

Haynes Square

Haynes Square, to both sides of Woodward, can accommo-
date a significant amount of infill development. As discussed 
in a prior section, this area should be targeted for more 
housing than office within the use mix. Most of the avail-
able capacity is located east of Woodward in the Triangle 
District, which is already zoned for significant infill capacity. 
However, like Downtown, housing development in Haynes 
Square / Triangle District, on both sides of Woodward, is 
restricted by parking.

To the east of Woodward, many properties are oddly shaped 
and all are relatively shallow in depth. These character-
istics mean that parking provided on-site is inefficient. 
Non-residential development in this area has been slow 
for similar reasons - parking is difficult to fit due to the 
geometry of most properties. A public parking structure 
is needed east of Woodward to drive private sector devel-
opment, as previously discussed.

To the west of Woodward, properties are also too shallow 
to provide sufficient on-site parking. In addition, because 
this area is near to the downtown parking district but not 
within, development demand funnels to the downtown 
district where parking is not required for new develop-
ment. One solution to this issue is proposed in a previous 
section, removing the southern portion of Old Woodward to 
extend properties and create public surface parking. This 
will not provide sufficient parking for the district, however, 
as the public parking opportunity is very close to lower 
scale homes. The western Haynes Square district could 
be provided additional parking access by: extending the 
downtown parking district; building a parking structure on 
the west side of Woodward as part of the Haynes Square 
street modifications; or including this area within a Triangle 
District parking district.

The Rail District

Like the Triangle District, the Rail District has long been 
zoned for significant infill but has seen little growth over 
time, particularly in the lower Rail District near Cole and 
Lincoln. This location is ideal for housing infill with its prox-
imity to Kenning Park and future access to the Troy Transit 
Center. Development has occurred in the area on proper-
ties that are large, but the many smaller properties around 
Cole Street remain underdeveloped, despite being zoned 
for high density infill. Similar to the Triangle District, devel-
opment of housing is restricted by the size and shape of 
properties, and lack of public parking. A public parking 
garage should be built near the lower Rail District and 
future Troy Transit Station access. Like the other mixed-
use districts, this garage should allow for unbundled resi-
dential parking by selling residential parking passes. The 
garage would also help alleviate parking conflicts with the 
adjacent Torry neighborhood.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. Immediately pilot unbundled residential parking in 
Downtown. This may be achieved by releasing 100 
to 200 passes for new downtown residential units.

2. Task the Advisory Parking Committee to study 
downtown residential parking. The committee 
should consider:

a.  Offering a limited supply of permits for down-
town housing, eliminating on-site parking. 
Evaluate the supply and modify as needed over 
time to maximize garage usage and housing.

b. Tie parking passes to an average rental or sales 
rate of 150% of Area Median Income or less, 
calculated on a per-building basis.

c. Tier permit costs according to the number of 
vehicles per residence, increasing in price for 
each vehicle and by parking garage.

3. Task the Advisory Parking Committee to study 
opportunities for expanding downtown parking 
capacity and accommodate more monthly permit 
users as capacity becomes available.

4. Build public parking in the Triangle District as previ-
ously discussed.



Infill Some Medium and High Intensity District Seams
Ch 2. Embrace Managed Growth

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2150

5. Provide public parking for the western Haynes 
Square district.

6. Build public parking in the Rail District. This should be 
on a site with adequate access to the Lower Rail District 
and the future connection to the Troy Transit Center.

7. Establish permanent unbundled residential parking 
in all mixed-use districts as municipal garages are 
built.

Infill Some Medium and High Intensity 
District Seams
Increasing the housing supply in only the high intensity 
mixed-use districts will result in a narrow range of new 
housing types, almost exclusively larger multi-family build-
ings. This form of infill addresses the need of some but 
not all demographic groups. One under-supplied group 
is households with young children, which are important 
in supporting the public school system. Few opportuni-
ties exist for new townhomes, duplexes, smaller houses, 
and small multi-family buildings. To accommodate these 
housing types, medium and high intensity district seams 
should be zoned to enable this range of housing.

Most of the medium and high intensity district seams are 
already mapped on multi-family properties, which does 

Neighborhood	Seams:	1:400

Municipal	Boundary

Neighborhood	Boundaries

Neighborhood	Seams	BOLDer

High

Medium

Low

De-densification

High Intensity Seams

Medium Intensity Seams

Figure 29. High and Medium Intensity District Seams.

Oak AveOak Ave

W Maple RdW Maple Rd

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

E Maple RdE Maple Rd

E Lincoln StE Lincoln St

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave W

oodw
ard Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

Quarton RdQuarton Rd

N
 A

da
m

s 
R

d
N

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

SS 
Ad

am
s 

R
d

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

S 
Et

on
 R

d
S 

Et
on

 R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

Big Beaver RdBig Beaver Rd



Study Accessory Dwelling Units
Ch 2. Embrace Managed Growth

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 51

add to the housing supply. However, there may be some 
additional infill capacity available in these properties by 
adjusting downward the minimum open space per dwelling 
standards, which are quite high today. Additionally, some 
medium and high intensity district seams are mapped on 
properties that are single-family today, notably along 14 
Mile Road. While there are not many properties available 
for infill at this scale, those areas able to accommodate 
infill should be zoned to encourage it.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. Create a new zoning district or modify the transi-
tion zone districts to encourage infill development 
of small homes, townhomes, duplexes, and small 
multi-family buildings, limited to medium and high 
intensity district seams.

Study Accessory Dwelling Units
Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) are a low impact way 
to provide additional housing, particularly for older adults 
and lower income individuals. The City currently allows 
accessory structures but has restrictions to prohibit their 
use as permanent dwellings.

Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) are small homes typi-
cally located in the rear yard of a single-family or attached 
townhouse lot, frequently over a garage but often a small 
secondary unit within the primary home. ADUs can provide 
housing sought by many young renters, single-person 
households, and older adults. Birmingham has had historic 
ADUs for decades.

Presently, there is considerable market demand for ADUs 
in the City, but accessory structures are not permitted to 
be used as residences for people other than a relative of 
the primary household. The primary advantage of an ADU, 
if properly regulated, is that the property owner must also 
live on the property, providing oversight by the owner. For 
older adults looking to downsize but avoid a spike in prop-
erty tax by selling, they can build an at-grade ADU to live in 
and rent their primary home. ADUs add a small amount of 
additional units, at a very low overall neighborhood impact.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. Enable Accessory Dwelling Units in already compati-
ble zones: MX, TZ1, TZ3, and R4 through R8.

2. Convene a committee to study Accessory Dwelling 
Units, where they are appropriate in Birmingham, 
and the regulations necessary to ensure any nega-
tive impacts are minimized. 

ADU BEST PRACTICES

a. Permit ADUs where the property owner lives on-site, 
in the primary home or ADU.

b. Prohibit two-rental structures on any single-family 
property.

c. Require ADUs to be designed and built to match or 
exceed the quality of the primary structure.

d. Require adequate landscape screening between 
ADUs and adjacent properties

e. Do not require parking for ADUs.

f. Increase the allowable height for accessory struc-
tures to allow 2 stories when there is a dwelling 
within it above a garage.

g. Exempt the area of interior staircases from the maxi-
mum area of accessory structures when there is a 
dwelling within it.

Figure 30. An existing ADU equivalent.



Update the Zoning Code
Ch 2. Embrace Managed Growth

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2152

Update the Zoning Code
Birmingham’s Zoning Ordinance is difficult to understand 
and has been adapted for recent districts, like Downtown 
and the Triangle District, through overlays which are essen-
tially a patchwork over code elements that no longer func-
tion for the City’s goals.

Birmingham’s Zoning Code is due for an overhaul. While 
it is certainly better than many other codes for cities of a 
similar size across the country, the code no longer aligns 
with best practices. Zoning codes should be legible and 
comprehensible for residents and professionals alike, 
including graphic exhibits to clarify text-based concepts. 
Zones should be minimized, combining those which may 
be very similar but in different parts of the city (See Figure 
31), like the Downtown Overlay, Triangle District Overlay, 
and the Mixed-use district established for the Rail District. 
Ideally the residential districts should also be examined 
for their appropriateness and some collapsed, especially 

towards the higher end - R6 through R8. The existing 
Business and Office districts should be rezoned to the 
most appropriate mixed-use district.

Clarity and simplicity in zoning helps residents under-
stand the implication of the zoning code, which is other-
wise opaque to most. Additionally, collapsing zones and 
standards can simplify the review process and make new 
revisions easier to implement. Along with these, use cate-
gories should be collapsed to the broadest categories 
practicable. Overlays remain a useful tool, but they are 
best used to apply more stringent standards for an area, 
rather than overriding the majority of the code. At Maple 
and Woodward, for instance, the overlay is a good means 
of limiting ground floor office uses, which may be appro-
priate in other mixed-use districts.

Max allowable heights: Max allowable heights:

Figure 31. Existing Development Potential in Neighboring Overlays.

D2 3-story development - 56’

D3 4-story development - 68’

D4 5-story development - 80’

MU-3 MFR 5-story development - 60’

MU-5 SF 6-story development - 82’

MU-7 9-story development - 118’



Update the Zoning Code
Ch 2. Embrace Managed Growth

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 53

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. Update the zoning code. Focus on brevity, clarity, 
graphics, and aligning zones with Future Land Use 
categories. Consolidate zones and uses as much 
as is practical and ensure the updated document is 
legible, clear, and predictable for residents as well 
as developers. This should be a significant update.

BEST PRACTICE RECOMMENDATIONS

a. Collapse uses into the broadest categories possible, 
with detailed use specification only provided where 
absolutely necessary, and in limited areas.

b. Combine the business, office, Downtown, Triangle, 
and mixed-use districts into a single set of mixed-
use districts shared between all mixed-use areas. 
Low intensity mixed-use districts would only include 
the lower intensity mixed-use zones, and high inten-
sity mixed-use districts the higher intensity zones.

c. Consider zoning district modifications for residen-
tial districts following the character descriptions and 
analysis for the City’s neighborhoods, described in 
the next chapter of this plan.

d. Revise residential districts to reduce the number of 
non-conforming structures by better aligning stan-
dards with existing structures.

e. Ensure new zoning language is considered for 
simplicity and expediency, achieving regulatory 
goals in a manner clear to the general public.



Update the Zoning Code
Ch 2. Embrace Managed Growth

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2154

Triangle overlay

Oak AveOak Ave

W Maple RdW Maple Rd

W Lincoln StW Lincoln St

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

E Maple RdE Maple Rd

E Lincoln StE Lincoln St

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

Quarton RdQuarton Rd
Big Beaver RdBig Beaver Rd

N
 A

da
m

s 
R

d
N

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

S 
Ad

am
s 

R
d

S 
Ad

am
s 

R
d

S 
Et

on
 R

d
S 

Et
on

 R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
yC
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

Figure 32. Existing Zoning Districts. 

R1 Single Family Residential

R1-A Single Family Residential

R2 Single Family Residential

R3 Single Family Residential

R4 Single Family Residential

R5 Single Family Residential

R6 Single Family Residential

R7 Single Family Residential

R8 Single Family Residential

TZ1 Attached Single-Family

TZ3 Mixed-Use

X Mixed-Use

B-1 Neighborhood Business

B-2 General Business

B-2B General Business

B-3 Office-Residential

B-4 Business-Residential

0-2 Office Commercial

0-1 Office

P Parking

PP Public Property

Old W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

Pi
er

ce
 S

t
Pi

er
ce

 S
t

Midvale RdMidvale Rd

Pleasant St
Pleasant St

Bowers StBowers St

E Lincoln StE Lincoln St

C community use 
D2 3-story development

D3 4-story development

D4 5-story development

D5 special land use

P parking structures 

Downtown overlay 

Old W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

Maple RdMaple Rd

 

ASF-3 SFR 3-story development

R2 MFR 2-story development

MU-3 MFR 5-story development

MU-5 SF 6-story development

MU-7 9-story development
Adam

s R
d

Adam
s R

d

Elm
 St

Elm
 St

Haynes St
Haynes St

Maple RdMaple Rd



Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality



Equip Parks to Serve Neighborhoods
Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2156

Equip Parks to Serve Neighborhoods
Birmingham’s natural areas, parks, recreational facilities, 
and schoolyards are vital resources for its neighborhoods 
and surrounding communities. These open space amenities 
are important both for public health and as places where 
neighbors interact. Each neighborhood should have nearby 
access to open space which is designed with a broad set 
of activities to support a range of ages and abilities. While 
some neighborhoods are well served with parks and open 
spaces, when analyzed from a Planning District basis, 
many lack sufficient services. The 2018 Parks Master Plan 
addresses many service needs from a park-by-park basis. 
However, a planning district-based analysis should be 
completed to ensure that each neighborhood can supply 
diverse activities to its residents, within its existing parks 
or with sufficient programming at nearby community parks.

While Birmingham boasts many parks and the Rouge River 
natural area, an open space amenity is not located within 
close proximity to all residents. Considering which parks 
are accessible by a short walk to most residents, the core 
portion of the city is well accommodated while edges have 
less access. Opportunities to add park space are limited 
because the city is fully built, but parks programming can 
be augmented to make up for lacking amenities and spaces 
may be considered for reprogramming.

Parks and open spaces differ in their size, context, and 
ability to provide services and amenities. Larger, community 
parks provide more numerous amenities. Because these 

are limited in number, each services a significant portion of 
the city, not only the surrounding neighborhood. Yet these 
parks must also provide neighborhood park amenities. This 
dual-purpose can cause conflict, where direct neighbors 
attempt to limit their use and access. For instance, some 
residents have expressed serious frustration that dog runs 
have been excluded from neighborhood parks. The single 
run at Lincoln Hills Golf Course is insufficient for a city the 
size of Birmingham.

Open space amenities are a critical resource for quality of 
life across the city. To ensure each Planning District has 
sufficient access to these amenities, access, service area, 
and the provision of amenities should be studied. Amenities 
should be provided according to the size, and location of 
each open space by type. A chart and map are provided 
as best practice recommendations for a future update to 
the Parks Master Plan.

Of all Planning Districts, Torry is most notably lacking 
park space. Already built-up there are few easy solutions 
to providing new open space. Two potential opportuni-
ties exist around Torry looking further to the future. Open 
space may be required as a condition for redevelopment 
of the Adams Square shopping center. Alternatively, the 
current post office site would accommodate a well-sized 
park if, within the horizon of this plan, the post office elects 
to vacate the property. As both options are difficult, the 
planned Worth Park in the Triangle District should be devel-
oped. Worth Park is reasonably accessible for the Torry 
neighborhood, but it would not fulfill all of the neighbor-

hood’s needs.

Quarton and Seaholm districts also lack 
of f icial open park space for much of 
their Planning Districts. Like Torry, these 
areas have little opportunity for new open 
spaces. However, both neighborhoods 
uti l ize schoolyards as informal open 
spaces. The city should consider a more 
formal arrangement for neighborhood use 
of these spaces, including equipment and 
amenity needs to fulfill neighborhood park 
best practices. Officially using school 
fields as community and neighborhood 
parks requires approval from the school Figure 33. Kids playing in Booth Park. 



Equip Parks to Serve Neighborhoods
Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 57

Park Athletics Cafe Garden Dogs Exercise Play Splash Seating Walkways

Mini Parks
1. Baldwin Well X
2. Derby Well X X X X
3. Pump House X X X
4. Redding Well X X X X
5. Lynn Smith X X X X
6. Martha Baldwin X X X
7. South Well X X X
Neighborhood Parks
8. Crestview X X X X X X X
9. Howarth X X X X X X X
10. Linden X X X X X X X
11. Pembroke X X X X X X X
12. St. James X X X X X X X
13. W. Lincoln 
Well Site

X X X X X X X

14. Adams Park X X X X X
A. Adams Square X X X X X X
B. Quarton 
School

X X X X X X

Community Parks
15. Barnum X X X X X X X X
16. Kenning X X X X X X X
17. Poppleton X X X X X X X X
C. Seaholm X X X X X X
Specialty Parks
18. Booth X X X X X X X
19. Rouge River X X
20. Shain X X X X X
21. Quarton Lake X X X X X X X
22. Museum X X
23. Manor X X X X
24. Springdale X X X X X X
25. Lincoln Hills X X X X

Figure 34. Amenity Targets by Park and Park Type.



Equip Parks to Serve Neighborhoods
Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2158

board and collaboration with the city concerning access, 
hours, liability, equipment, and maintenance. In a fully 
built community like Birmingham, school fields are one 
of the only opportunities to expand open space access 
and amenities.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS  

1. Develop Worth Park as quickly as plausible to 
provide a portion of the needed open space access 
for Torry.

2. Attempt to purchase part of the Adams Square 
parking lot for park space, and if unsuccessful  
ensure that redevelopment would require that open 
space be provided at Adams and Bowers.

3. Establish a formal arrangement with the school 
districts for community use of school facilities.

4. Expand the 2018 Parks and Recreation Master Plan 
or create a new plan beyond the 2022 horizon, to 
implement Parks Best Practices by adding missing 
amenities and updating those that are out of date. 
Utilize Planning Districts to determine sufficiency of 
park access across the city.

PARKS BEST PRACTICES

Each type of park should provide specific amenities, as 
their size and configuration permits. All spaces should 
include public/civic art, signage, accessible paths, trash 
and recycling receptacles, and shaded seating.

Plazas are the most limited type of open space. These 
paved areas are small and typically provide only the amen-
ity of passive recreation with seating along their edges. 
Some may also include water features and splash pads. 
Birmingham does not have plazas today, but some are 

Oak AveOak Ave

W Maple RdW Maple Rd

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

E Maple RdE Maple Rd

E Lincoln StE Lincoln St

E Lincoln StE Lincoln St

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave W

oodw
ard Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

Quarton RdQuarton Rd

N
 A

da
m

s 
R

d
N

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

SS 
Ad

am
s 

R
d

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

S 
Et

on
 R

d
S 

Et
on

 R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
yC
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

Pleasant St
Pleasant St

Big Beaver RdBig Beaver Rd

Figure 35. Birmingham Specialty Parks and Mini Parks.

3

2

24

18

25

234

1
6

5

21

20
22

Civic Institutions

Recreational Destinations

2-4 Minute Service Area

4-8 Minute Service Area

8-12 Minute Service Area

19

7



Equip Parks to Serve Neighborhoods
Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 59

8

Oak AveOak Ave

W Maple RdW Maple Rd

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

S 
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d

E Maple RdE Maple Rd

E Lincoln StE Lincoln St

14 Mile Rd14 Mile Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

So
ut

hfi
el

d 
Rd

W
oodward Ave

W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave W

oodw
ard Ave

W
oodw

ard Ave

Quarton RdQuarton Rd

N
 A

da
m

s 
R

d
N

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

SS 
Ad

am
s 

R
d

 A
da

m
s 

R
d

S 
Et

on
 R

d
S 

Et
on

 R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

N
 E

to
n 

R
d

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
y

S 
C

oo
lid

ge
 H

w
yC
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 A
ve

Big Beaver RdBig Beaver Rd

Figure 36. Neighborhood and Community Parks.

12

10

Pleasant St
Pleasant St

9

11

13

10

A

14

B
17

16

15

contemplated by this and other plans.

Mini parks, like the well sites, are also quite limited due to 
their size. They serve an area of roughly 2-to-5 minutes 
walking distance. These spaces provide limited active 
recreation with limited trails. Exercise opportunities should 
be considered along trails. Passive recreational opportuni-
ties are provided with seating areas and may be expanded 
with community gardens and small dog runs. Mini parks 
should have some lighting, but be limited in intensity and 
frequency.

Neighborhood parks are of a moderate size, able to provide 
a variety of amenities. They serve an area of roughly 5-to-7 
minutes walking distance. These should include play equip-
ment for children, passive seating areas, and active ameni-
ties like tennis, basketball, and limited sports fields as space 
allows. Neighborhood parks should also provide bicycle 

parking and lighting, dog runs, and green stormwater 
infrastructure, and may provide community garden space.

Community parks are substantial spaces that should include 
a significant variety of amenities. These parks serve a 
neighborhood park function for those residents within a 
5-to-7 minute walk, but also serve a much more signif-
icant portion of the city that may walk, bike, or drive to 
access their amenities. Community parks should provide 
the amenities of neighborhood parks, and include more 
significant active recreational offerings, cafes, restrooms, 
and other specialized amenities. They should provide 
ample bicycle parking, lighting, and some public parking.

Specialized parks serve a very specific function due to 
their location, and should be considered on a case-by-
case basis. These include the Rouge River Natural Area, 
Shain Park, and other special open spaces.

C

Civic Institutions

Recreational Destinations

Park Opportunity Sites

4-8 Minute Service Area

8-12 Minute Service Area



Keep Streets Pedestrian-oriented
Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2160

Keep Streets Pedestrian-oriented
Streets are the most pervasive public space in a city, and  
Birmingham’s streets are exceptionally beautiful and pleas-
ant. However, the role of moving cars is too often consid-
ered the primary role of streets, which are then widened to 
make driving easier. In most cases, widening neighborhood 
streets reduces their function and safety for pedestrians 
and bicyclists, reduces street tree canopy, and increases 
vehicle speeds. Fortunately, Birmingham has resisted calls 
to widen streets for the movement of cars. As a result, 
Birmingham retains a wonderful tree canopy and streets 
that are pleasant to walk along, bike along, and not too 
difficult to drive along.

Yet today, calls for wider streets continue. Too often our 
job as consultants is concerned with reducing roadway 
pavement and adding trees; making streets elsewhere 
more like those found in Birmingham. Once streets are 
widened, cars will move more quickly and those streets 
become convenient ways to cut around areas of conges-
tion. However, some streets in Birmingham are too narrow, 
like Westchester Way, paved approximately 16 feet yet 
operating two-way with parking. Streets narrower than 20 
feet paved and operating two-way with on-street parking 
should be considered for a modification of function or 
widening. Most other streets should not.

Beyond the space to accommodate automobiles, street 
design must consider pedestrian comfort and safety, bicy-
clist comfort and safety, and street trees.

Pedestrian comfort and safety is influenced by the size 
and location of sidewalks. Birmingham’s historic neighbor-
hood standard was a minimum 4 foot sidewalk, which is 
insufficient by today’s standards. In most neighborhoods, 
sidewalks should be a minimum of 5 feet wide, and 6 feet 
in neighborhoods near mixed-use districts or streets with 
multi-family housing. The recently passed Residential Street 
Design Standard specifies a 5 foot minimum, which works 
for most places. In a mixed-use context, sidewalks should 
be wider, no less than 14 feet from curb to edge of right-
of-way assuming a paved tree lawn with tree wells. Shared 
space streets are a special exception to be handled on a 
case-by-case basis.

Sidewalks should also be continuous and pervasive. Today, 
sidewalks are missing in numerous places, which should 
be surveyed and remedied. Similarly, street intersections 
which do not have accessible ramps to crossings should 
be remedied.

Bicyclist and micro-mobility comfort and safety is princi-
pally influenced by the speed of vehicles and availability 
of dedicated facilities. In most streets, narrow lanes result 
in slow car movement, which provide bike and micro-mo-
bility needs. But more so than cars, frequent stopping 
is extremely inconvenient. Bicycle boulevards should be 
considered to solve this issue, arranging intersection control 
to prefer bike and micro-mobility through movement and 
diverting cars to avoid cut through movement. The neigh-
borhood loop proposes such a system. Along streets with 

speeds above 25mph, however, dedicated 
facilities should be provided or means of 
slowing traffic pursued.

The tree lawn is critical to street trees; 
suf f icient root area results in greater 
canopy. Canopy health is very closely 
related with the health of residents, mental 
and physical, and the success of children 
in school. In fact, programs exist across 
the country to re-establish urban tree 
canopies to improve the health outcomes 
of children. In neighborhoods, tree lawns 
should not be sacrif iced for pavement 
width.

Figure 37. A pleasant, right-sized street in the Quarton district.



Keep Streets Pedestrian-oriented
Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 61

All of these variables in mind, the ideal roadway width will 
depend upon the right-of-way width and what the street 
should best accommodate. Lincoln is perhaps the most 
difficult decision point in Birmingham. It needs on-street 
parking but is also an important route for cyclists. Certainly 
Lincoln needs to sustain its tree canopy. And as a major 
vehicular connector, Lincoln must accommodate cars. With 
recent crosswalk improvements, the means of accom-
modating bicycles must be carefully considered. Today, 
Lincoln is too busy a street to feel safe for many bicyclists.

Standards were set for residential streets by the Multi-
modal Transportation Board and City Commission due to 
recurring resident requests for wider streets when they 
are improved. The current policy sets a standard residen-
tial street at 26 feet from curb-to-curb where the right-of-
way is 50 feet or greater and 20 feet with parking along 
one side where the right-of-way is less than 50 feet. The 
policy provides for modifications for a number of specific 
conditions that may legitimately require greater paving, 
such as school bus routes. Generally these standards align 
with best practices to keep traffic moving slowly through 
neighborhoods, increasing safety.

These standards should be retained, but may be augmented 
to simplify the exception criteria, aligning it with future land 
use. Minor modification is also needed to accommodate 
wider sidewalks along district seams. The residential street 
standards provide a modification of roadway width from 
26 feet to 28 feet where on-street parking is in more active 
use. Because on-street parking will be more actively used 
in neighborhoods with high intensity fabric, the standard 
here may default to 28 feet. Similarly, neighborhoods with 
low intensity fabric will have low on-street parking usage 
and should be less justif ied to allow for wider streets. 
Additionally, provided the narrow width of most streets, 
the standard residential street posted speed should be 
lowered to 20 mph. The Michigan Vehicle Code 257.627(2)
(e) states that the maximum speed in city neighborhoods is 
25 mph unless another speed is fixed and posted. The main 
remaining issue with streets is parking beyond the road-
way on unimproved streets as it encourages cut-through 
traffic and speeding. Once streets are improved this issue 
will be resolved.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. Task the Multi-modal Transportation Board with an 
update to the Residential Street Standards, align-
ing the following streetscape elements with Future 
Land Use categories. Update the Multi-modal Plan 
accordingly.

a. Sidewalk width;

b. Planter width and type;

c. Type and extent of on-street parking;

d. Frequency of curb cuts; and

e. Width of roadway.

2. Task the Multi-modal Transportation Board with a 
study of bicycle accommodation alternatives along 
Lincoln. Update the Multi-modal Plan accordingly.

3. Reduce residential posted speed limits to 20 mph.

4. Update the Multi-modal plan to complete gaps in 
sidewalks and accessible corner ramps where not 
already specified.

STREETSCAPE BEST PRACTICES BY LAND-USE 
CATEGORY

1. Mixed-use Center: 8 foot sidewalks or wider, exclud-
ing a paved tree lawn area; 5-to-6 foot tree lawn 
principally paved with tree wells; on-street parking 
both sides.

2. High Intensity Fabric: 6 foot sidewalk; tree lawns 
6 feet or wider, appropriate for long tree wells or 
continuous planters; on-street parking both sides.

3. Medium and Low Intensity Fabric: 5 foot sidewalk; 
tree lawns 8 feet or wider; on-street parking on one 
or both sides.

4. High and Medium Intensity District Seam: 6-to-8 
foot sidewalk; tree lawns 6 feet or wider, appropriate 
for long tree wells; on-street parking both sides.

5. Low Intensity District Seam: 6 foot sidewalk, tree 
lawns 6 feet or wider; on-street parking both sides.



Replace Unimproved Streets
Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2162

Replace Unimproved Streets
Many neighborhood streets in Birmingham are in disre-
pair. Residents are confused about the process to improve 
streets, which is exacerbated by unique situations in two 
parts of the community.

As is readily apparent, many neighborhood streets are in 
very poor condition. The situation is historic, related to 
the standards in place as far back as each neighborhood 
was initially developed. It has been incumbent upon neigh-
bors to choose to improve their streets, and pay into that 
improvement based upon how much lot frontage they have 
along the street. To date, a significant number of residents 
have done just that, yet it leaves nearly 26 linear miles of 
streets unimproved. Most unimproved streets are easily 

recognizable in that they do not have curbs. Yet, to confuse 
the matter, there is a small section of unimproved streets 
that have historic curbs. And lastly, there is a section of 
Birmingham where sewer service is located in the rear 
lot, not in the street, which requires special consideration 
when improving streets.

The City Commission convened an Ad-hoc Unimproved 
Streets Committee (AHUSC) to study this issue. In late 2020, 
the committee issued its recommendations. A high-level 
summary of those recommendations are to: 1) change the 
process of initiating street repair to be instigated by the 
City; 2) use the City’s general fund to pay for the non-utility 
improvements to streets and bonds to pay for the utility 
portion of improvements, reimbursed by residents through 
special assessment and utility rate fees; and 3) to prefer 

Figure 38. Unimproved Streets, Citywide.

Unimproved Streets

Unimproved with Curbs



Retain Street Tree Canopy
Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 63

construction of concrete streets over asphalt for their 
longevity, with exceptions for low volume conditions.

With these well researched recommendations in place, 
adjustments to unimproved streets policy and the city 
budget are required, along with a strategy for prioritizing 
streets to improve. A consistent approach is recommended, 
ensuring funds are regularly allocated to carry on improve-
ments. From a priority standpoint, the current condition of 
unimproved streets should be surveyed to categorize the 
state of disrepair. The stormwater condition of streets is a 
particularly important element to consider as streets with 
stormwater problems will deteriorate more quickly than 
others. To work through the list of repairs, consideration 
should be given to equitably distribute repairs throughout 
the city so that one neighborhood is not prioritized over 
another. This can be done by ensuring that more than 
one Planning District receives repairs in any year. Some 
Planning Districts, like Quarton and Seaholm, are almost 
entirely unimproved and may receive a greater share of 
improvements than other districts as a result.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. Adopt policy recommendations specified by the 
Ad-hoc Unimproved Streets Committee (AHUSC).

2. City staff should survey the current condition of 
unimproved streets, categorized by the current 
quality such that streets in the most extreme states 
of disrepair can be prioritized for improvement. 
Stormwater issues should receive special priority.

3. City Commission should establish a yearly budget to 
remedy unimproved streets, considering the general 
fund plus bond strategy and repayment timelines 
recommended by the AHUSC.

4. Remedy unimproved streets according to the repair 
priority and budget, ensuring improvements occur in 
different planning districts, not all in a single district 
in a single year.

Retain Street Tree Canopy
Birmingham’s downtown and neighborhoods benefit from 
a rich tree canopy, increasing both house values and 

the public well-being. This street tree canopy should be 
protected and well maintained. At present, the City works 
to diversify tree species, which is important in avoiding 
disease. Considerations should also be made to select 
species that will sustain the City’s future climate. Much of 
the community is well stocked with trees but some streets, 
like Brown and 14 Mile, have gaps in the street tree canopy, 
sometimes spanning an entire block.

Most substantially, the City’s commercial districts have 
severe street tree gaps, including entire streets without 
trees. Maple and Woodward have more consistent trees 
than elsewhere, with limited gaps such as Willits. However, 
streets like Merrill appear to have insufficient root area, 
resulting in small and ineffective trees. New plantings with 
the recent Woodward and future Maple streetscape proj-
ects have extended the root area to support a healthier 
tree stock, which is necessary elsewhere. The Triangle  
and Rail Districts have few street trees and are in need of 
streetscape redesign. Plantings are especially needed in 
these areas to fight the urban heat island by shading side-
walks and roadways, and to provide relief for pedestrians.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS 

1. Survey missing street trees and prioritize new plant-
ings along neighborhood streets with thin canopies.

2. Survey areas with constrained root conditions and 
establish a plan to provide additional root volume.

3. Prevent existing, healthy trees from being removed 
due to new construction. (Permitting, Inspections)

4. Create a streetscape improvement plan for the 
Triangle District and Rail District. (already specified)

5. Convene a committee to establish tree policies to:

a. Select large canopy species native to the region 
for streets and parks, retaining the character of 
each neighborhood’s distinctive canopy while 
considering the region’s future climate.

b. Minimize overly-used or exotic species, such as 
Crab Apple, Honey Locust and Pear Trees.

c. Craft policy requiring that trees removed due 
to new construction be replaced, as well as 
mandatory contributions to fund new off-site 
trees.



Revise Parking Restrictions
Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2164

Revise Parking Restrictions
Parking policies within Birmingham neighborhoods confuse 
visitors and residents and are difficult if not impossible 
to enforce. Current posted requirements differ substan-
tially throughout the City to such an extent that the Police 
Department can only enforce by complaint. Decades of 
block-by-block modifications have eroded the public nature 
of streets.

The source of resident requests are real problems created 
by parking overflow in key areas of the City, but there is a 
mismatch between the conditions creating problems and 
the number and location of solutions. Residents are under-
standably concerned with parking spill-over from nearby 
non-residential uses. City staff is concerned that removing 
parking exacerbates parking spill-over, the complexity of 
regulations is difficult to enforce, and that street parking 
is a public good.

Observations in the Rail District and Seaholm corroborate 
these concerns (See Figure 39). Rail District regulations 
have been created to limit nighttime use of on-street park-
ing to ensure residents have available parking, resulting in 
8 different parking standards within a small area. Seaholm 
regulations have been created to limit daytime student 
parking, resulting in 12 different parking standards within 
a small area.

These conditions are difficult to enforce and represent a 
small segment of the city which has many more similar 
conditions. Some areas have entirely removed parking, 
which encourages speeding - another issue of concern 
to residents. In many cases the perception of insufficient 
parking is not in step with the actual availability of park-
ing, however, the complexity of restrictions contributes to 
violations.

To reduce excessive complexity that leads to enforce-
ment difficulties, and to solve for the real issues of spill-
over parking, we recommend that the city begin anew 
with a simplified selection of standard restrictions. There 
is far too much variation in existing restrictions to adjust 
them one-by-one. A committee should study the situation 
citywide and establish a limited set of options and a plan 
to re-assign parking restrictions. The option to have no 

parking restrictions at all along streets should be the default 
preference where there is not a clear conflict caused by 
adjacent mixed-use districts or institutions.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS  

1. Convene a committee to study citywide street park-
ing restrictions and permits, charged with:

a. Creating a consistent and limited set of citywide 
parking standards. An example of such a set 
follows:

• No restriction

• 2-hour parking from 9am to 4pm, except 
by permit (this addresses daytime park-
ing issues from students and downtown 
workers)

• Parking by permit only, 5pm to 10am (this 
addresses nighttime parking issues from 
food service)

• Neighborhood Parking Benefit District, used 
in association with (b) or (c) above.

b. Create a plan to re-assign street parking restric-
tions citywide for greater consistency.

c. Establishing a consistent residential permit 
system to service those neighborhoods that 
choose to use such a system which includes 
permit fees to cover costs, decals, and visi-
tor rear-view mirror tags purchased separately 
from the residential permit. The existing permit 
systems may suffice to operate more broadly.



Revise Parking Restrictions
Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 65

EXISTING PARKING RESTRICTIONS

TORRY AT THE RAIL DISTRICT:

• 15 Min Parking 8am-9am Except Sun. & Holidays

• 2 HR Parking 6am-4pm Except Sat, Sun., & Holidays

• 2 HR Parking 8am-6pm Except Sun. & Holidays

• 2 HR Parking 9am-6pm Except Sun. & Holidays

• 2 HR Parking Limit 

• No Parking Anytime 

• Parking Allowed, All Times

• Permit Parking Required at All Times

SEAHOLM AND LINCOLN HILLS:

• 2 HR Parking 9am-5pm Except Sat, sun, & Holidays

• No Parking 8am-6pm 

• No Parking, 7am-9am Except Sun. & Holidays

• No Parking, 8am-6pm Except Sat., Sun. & Holidays

• No Parking, 8am-6pm Except Sun. & Holidays

• No Parking, M-F 7am-2pm

• No Parking, School Days 7am-3pm

• No Parking, School Days 8am-10am

• No Parking, Sunday 7am-1pm

• Parking Allowed, All Times

• Parking Permit 7am-4pm School Days

• Residential Permit Parking

 

Figure 39. Sample of Existing Parking Restrictions

Bowers StBowers St

Adam
s R

d
Adam

s R
d

C
olum

bia St
C

olum
bia St

Torry St
Torry St

Eton St
Eton StHaynes StHaynes St

Holland StHolland St

Webster StWebster St

Cole StCole St

Lincoln StLincoln St

Villa RdVilla Rd

Yosemite BlvdYosemite Blvd

Maple RdMaple Rd

Midvale RdMidvale Rd

Lincoln StLincoln St

Fairway DrFairway Dr

Northlawn BlvdNorthlawn Blvd

Hills
ide D

r

Hills
ide D

r

G
lenhurst D

r
G

lenhurst D
r

G
olfview

 
G

olfview
 

W
estchester W

ay
W

estchester W
ay

Larchlea D
r

Larchlea D
r

Pleasant St
Pleasant St

Maple RdMaple Rd

Avon LnAvon Ln

Be
rw

yn
 R

d
Be

rw
yn

 R
d

Ar
gy

le
 B

lvd

Ar
gy

le
 B

lvd

W
el

le
sl

ey
 D

r

W
el

le
sl

ey
 D

r

Br
yn

 M
aw

r R
d

Br
yn

 M
aw

r R
d

C
ra

nb
ro

ok
 R

d
C

ra
nb

ro
ok

 R
d



Retain Housing Character
Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2166

Retain Housing Character
The value of properties in Birmingham has risen such that 
the cost of purchasing and demolishing existing homes is 
viable. Some parts of the City have already been signifi-
cantly rebuilt and the trend is moving into other neighbor-
hoods. Many residents feel that the scale of new homes 
are overwhelming and out of character with their neighbor-
hoods. Numerous residents recounted the adverse effects 
such large houses have had on their properties and their 
quality of life. While the City has implemented progres-
sive design standards for garage placement and overall 
construction management, many of the new houses are, 
in fact, oversized for their lots and often negatively impact 
surrounding households.

Except in historic districts, new houses are not evalu-
ated for the appropriateness of their architectural design 
or building materials by a review board or committee. 
New house plans are only reviewed for compliance with 
building codes and required site engineering regulations. 
House design and consumer preferences have changed 
since Birmingham’s neighborhoods were first developed. 
Recession-era, prewar houses were usually modestly 
designed and downplayed the home-owners wealth or 
lack thereof. Large houses and manors were broken up 
into a series of smaller volumes which effectively disguised 

their overall volume and, with commensurate architectural 
details, gave them the appearance of matching the scale of 
neighboring houses. Most of Birmingham’s original houses 
were constructed with quality craftsmanship and designed 
with architectural massing and details intended to blend 
into the neighborhood rather than command attention.

Following trends in today’s housing market, developers 
endeavor to exaggerate the size of houses, making even 
the most modestly sized house appear as large as possible. 
These houses are designed to stand out and be noticed, 
rather than harmonize with and complement neighboring 
houses. As a result, many new houses become the focal 
point, for better or worse, of the street.

Additions to existing homes should be encouraged as a 
way to accommodate changes that the market desires 
without eroding neighborhood character. Often the driver 
of new construction is market demand for additional bath-
rooms, a master, closet space, larger kitchens, and larger 
garages which tend to be lacking in older homes. While it 
is often easier to tear down an existing home and build a 
new one, this is a destructive process that creates signif-
icant waste material. Renovation and addition could be 
encouraged through a number of policies such as: a fast-
tracked approval process (requiring a slowing down of 
new construction approvals), waived fees for review and 

inspection, and increased lot cover-
age allowances at the ground level 
(not second story). While additions 
and renovation cannot be required, 
they can be encouraged.

Leveraging histor ic distr icts is 
another means of controlling the 
pace of demol i t ions, providing 
review of the scale and character 
of new housing, and encourag-
ing renovation. Expanding existing 
historic districts and landmarks, and 
establishing new districts would 
provide oversight of new construc-
tion and renovation in many areas 
of the city. The Historic Distr ict 
Commiss ion (HDC) shou ld be 
charged with actively studying and Figure 40. Historic home with a sign marketing demolition for a larger home.



Retain Housing Character
Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 67

establishing historic districts and landmarks throughout the 
city. Additionally, HDC review authority should be strength-
ened in consideration of demolitions and renovations.

Lastly, light intensity and color is an often overlooked quality 
of Birmingham’s neighborhood streets. Some new homes 
have been built with lighting that is too intense, degrading 
the calm character of Birmingham’s neighborhood fabric. 
Lighting should be subdued generally, avoid spillover onto 
neighboring properties, and be oriented downward not 
outward. Luminaires should be shielded to eliminate glare 
and limited in individual intensity. Multiple bulbs of lower 
intensity can provide the same light coverage without glare 
or hot spots. Color temperature is also keenly important. 
Light that is towards the blue end of the spectrum, higher 
color temperature, disrupts natural human cycles when 
used at nighttime. Color temperature should not exceed 
3200 Kelvin after dusk. Currently the Zoning Ordinance 
uses Illuminating Engineering Society of North America 
(IESNA) standards as a baseline, Zone E4 for everything 
R4 and above. Neighborhood illumination is not regu-
lated, which is clearly in need. The International Dark Sky 
Association model standards are recommended in place 
of IESNA standards. These standards should be evalu-
ated for use in neighborhoods as well as for adjustment or 
replacement of existing zoning requirements concerning 
lighting in R4 and above.

Similarly, the color temperature and intensity of streetlights 
requires study to avoid issues similar to residential exterior 

lighting. Across the country many cities have switched to 
LED streetlights. This is a recommended practice for main-
tenance and energy usage but the fixtures and luminaires 
must be carefully selected. LED streetlights produce more 
glare and hotspots than prior technologies. The earliest 
models, still available, are set to color temperatures that 
are too blue. As the city contemplates a change in tech-
nology, common pitfalls should be avoided, ensuring: 
luminaires are shielded with globes or similar devices 
that scatter light; luminaires have a color temperature no 
greater than 3500K; poles are installed more frequently, 
at a lower height, to achieve the desired light level while 
avoiding glare, excessive intensity, and hot spots.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS  

1. Review and update site, building, and design codes 
to prevent increased rainwater runoff and other 
negative impacts from new house construction.  

2. Expand the inspection process for new house 
construction to ensure that they are built per 
approved plans to minimize negative impacts on 
surrounding properties.

3. Revise the Zoning Code’s residential zoning district 
boundaries and standards to better match and 
maintain current building scale, position on the 
property, driveway configuration, and other key 
characteristics.

4. Convene a committee to study incentives to 

Figures 41 & 42. Infill housing on two sides of one street, older homes (left) and new homes (right).



Retain Housing Character
Ch 3. Retain Neighborhood Quality

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2168

encourage renovations to expand existing houses 
rather than the construction of new houses.

5. Convene a committee to study age-in-place-friendly 
building regulations, such as grab-bars, ramps, and 
elevators in single-family homes.

6. Task the Historic District Commission and Historic 
District Study Committee with proactively establish-
ing new historic districts as well as landmarks.

7. Convene a committee to study neighborhood light-
ing standards, including exterior residential lighting 
and street lighting.

BEST PRACTICE RECOMMENDATIONS FOR RESI-
DENTIAL LIGHTING

a. Residential lighting standards should address:

a. Maximum luminaire intensity,

b. Color temperature range,

c. Shielding and directionality, and

d. Spillover.

b. Street lighting standards should address:

a. Maximum luminaire intensity,

b. Color temperature range,

c. Shielding and directionality,

d. Lamp design, and

e. Pole height and spacing.

c. Consider the International Dark Sky Association 
model standards.

d. Consider aligning lighting intensity restrictions with 
the Future Land Use categories for neighborhood 
fabric intensity where high intensity fabric justifies 
higher lighting intensity and low intensity fabric justi-
fies lower lighting intensity. Dark Sky LZ1 may be 
appropriate in low intensity fabric and medium inten-
sity fabric areas, LZ2 in high intensity fabric areas, 
and LZ3 in the city’s mixed-use districts.

Figure 43. High quality contemporary infill, in scale with neighborhood fabric.



Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts



Continue Improving the Maple and Woodward District
Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2170

Continue Improving the Maple and 
Woodward District
Maple and Woodward (Downtown Birmingham) is a vibrant 
urban center that is the envy of many other communities. 
Although its population is only 21,000, Birmingham has a 
commercial core the size of a city of 200,000. The city’s 
assortment of shops, restaurants, parks, offices, civic build-
ings, and entertainment venues offers an exciting, safe, and 
walkable environment and lifestyle to its residents. It also 
draws people from throughout the region. Like any dynamic 
urban center, Downtown Birmingham continues to address 
challenges such as affordability, conflicting commercial 
and residential interests, rapid growth, adequate parking, 
and effective traffic management.

Active Sidewalks

Given Downtown’s walkability and scale of commercial 
presence, it has only a moderate amount of weekday 
pedestrian traf fic. During the weekends Birmingham’s  
downtown pedestrian traffic has noticeably fewer visitors 
than Downtown Royal Oak and Detroit’s. Combining offices, 
services, and housing means that a district can be busy 
day and night, which provides a more robust customer 
base during most hours of the day. Increasing housing in 
downtown will begin to shift the balance, further bolstered 
by increasing the number of events, improving streetscapes, 
and activating downtown’s open spaces.

Old Woodward, between Hamilton 
and Merril l Streets, West Maple, 
and Pierce Streets carry the most 
pedestrian traffic. This is the core of 
the Maple and Woodward district. 
Due to their size and volume of 
traffic, both Maple and Woodward 
per form poor ly for restaurants 
compared to smaller streets with 
intimate outdoor dining exper i-
ences, as is found along Merrill and 
Pierce. Similarly, Hamilton boasts 
a collection of smaller businesses 
in a vibrant environment, but is 
negatively impacted by the bank 
on the corner, deadening 350 feet 

of Hamilton at the most critical retail intersection.

Merrill provides an ideal opportunity to pilot a downtown 
shared space street, which reduces, but does not elimi-
nate, the car and accommodates and allows dining areas 
and public seating to extend further into the street during 
evening hours. Paving generally in the character of Merrill 
through Shain Park is recommended, where pedestrian 
movement, clusters of public seating, public art, and bike 
racks would displace but not eliminate space for cars. 
Connecting the active portion of Merril l to Shain Park 
would improve the pedestrian experience, though it is 
made difficult by the surface parking lot at City Hall and 
relatively poor frontages along the Townsend Hotel. Liner 
buildings, small or temporary retail kiosks, food trucks, or 
similar means of activating the municipal building frontage 
on Merrill could activate this connection.

The seasonal dining decks proposed in the Downtown 
Birmingham 2016 plan have successfully expanded the 
afternoon and early evening street life. The popularity of 
these decks has increased the demand for downtown 
parking at the same time that their implementation has 
decreased the number of parking spaces available to 
both diners and shoppers. Yet the pandemic has made 
outdoor dining necessary, a trend likely to continue in good 
weather, maintaining demand for dining decks. As a result, 
two solutions should be pursued in parallel: the use of 
technology to make parking easier to access and locating 

Figure 44. Old Woodward following the recent streetscape redevelopment.



Continue Improving the Maple and Woodward District
Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 71

other opportunities for outdoor dining that do not displace 
parking. Technology may relieve some amount of the street 
parking problem in Downtown by making garages easier 
to access and adjusting the supply of on-street parking 
through pricing cues. These technologies are discussed 
in the following section. 

Additional opportunities for outdoor dining in the public 
realm should be pursued along with technology. Outdoor 
dining next to the curb or building facade should be encour-
aged and opportunities to provide this seating without fenc-
ing should be explored. Today a few instances of fenced 
outdoor seating significantly restrict sidewalk width, a 
minimum 6 foot clear path should be required along the 
sidewalk even if the sidewalk is not 6 feet wide. Where 
streetscape projects make curb changes, space at corner 
and mid-block bulb-outs may be used for dining. And alleys 
and passageways should be considered where dining in 
those locations is convenient for an adjacent business.

Old Woodward, being the largest and most traf f icked 
roadway, requires the greatest consistency and quality 
of storefronts, with more transparency than the smaller 
streets. The new streetscape is an improvement for pedes-
trians, but at present it lacks adequate public seating. In 
fact, throughout the Maple and Woodward area, and in 
other mixed-use districts, public seating is lacking. New 
seating installed with the recent streetscape project is out 
of character with Birmingham and should be replaced by 

benches with backs, like those found in Shain Park.

Bike parking and micro-mobility corrals are also lacking 
throughout the district. As micro-mobility has yet to become 
a concern locally, addressing bike parking should come 
first, but micro-mobility will arrive soon. Bike racks are 
most easily accommodated in bulb-outs at intersections 
where they can be installed perpendicular to the curb, 
accommodating 3 or 4 U-racks.

Public Space

Downtown boasts a wide variety of parks from its’ collection 
of pocket parks, to the formal square of Shain Park, and 
Booth Park and the Rouge Trail. Shain Park is active on a 
daily basis, due to its variety of amenities and its visibility. 
Other park spaces in Downtown could be improved with 
additional amenities and better visibility and connections.

Signage and trail connections would make more existing 
park spaces accessible from Downtown. Directional signage 
throughout Downtown should direct people to the area’s 
parks and trails, in addition to key landmarks and institu-
tions. To access these destinations, a few key connections 
should be added. From Maple and Woodward, Booth Park 
feels separated, more a part of Market North. The Bates 
Street Extension recommended in the 1996 plan should 
be pursued, particularly with a focus on connecting Maple 
and Woodward to Booth Park and the Rouge River trails. 
Where the Willits Trail meets Maple at the Birmingham 

Museum, the museum’s entry with 
seating and the bell should more 
clearly connect down the slope and 
into the trail system.

Seating at both Shain and Booth 
Parks does not accommodate visi-
tors during peak hours. Shain Park’s 
movable seating has been a good 
addition which should be expanded. 
More regular park benches should 
also be installed around the central 
loop. In major cities, the central loop 
would be entirely lined with benches, 
which is too much for Birmingham’s 
character, but the supply should be 
greatly increased. Booth Park has Figure 45. The Pierce-Merrill pocket park.



Continue Improving the Maple and Woodward District
Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2172

a well used set of play structures but very few accommo-
dations beyond that. The entry is underwhelming, an ideal 
location to get information, a beverage, and to have seat-
ing opportunities either in a plaza space towards the entry 
corner or a more naturalistic setting further into the park 
and along the Rouge River trail. Shain and Booth Park’s 
lack of food and beverage offerings could be rectified by 
opening a small café or coffee shop, either of which would 
enhance park-goers’ experiences and draw more people 
to the parks during the daytime.

Downtown’s pocket parks are underutilized during the day 
and evening. The Old Woodward-Oakland pocket park’s 
size is limited and its use is inhibited by the vehicular turn 
lane along its South edge. The 1996 master plan recom-
mended removing this south vehicular lane and expanding 
the park, which would improve the park’s appeal, the walk-
ability along Old Woodward, and the pedestrian linkage 
between the Market District and downtown. Each of these 
spaces would benefit from additional seating and public 
art. The Pierce-Merrill space has sufficient public art but 
no seating, and Pierce-Brown also has no seating. The 
plaza at the Library’s entrance also lacks seating, which 
could easily be provided along the sloped ramp, a good 
place for public art as well. In fact the Library entrance 
plaza pavement should have a surface mural or more 
compelling paving.

Parking

Many parking issues in the Maple and Woodward District 
are common to all mixed-use districts where there is 
an imbalance between housing and commercial uses. 
Presently, municipal parking downtown is operating at or 
above 90% occupancy and the district is growing. During 
its busiest periods, valet services are employed to fully 
utilize rooftop capacity which is otherwise not preferred 
by individual drivers. While the roughly 5-10% available 
capacity seems right-sized for the district, monthly passes 
for Downtown workers have a significant waiting list and 
parking continues to spill-over into adjacent neighborhoods.

Continued growth and success Downtown is important 
for the continued success of the City. In each of the City’s 
major plans, post-1929, increasing parking capacity has 
been recommended. The City’s current insufficient supply 
is a result of not following those recommendations in a 
timely manner. During the process of this plan, the deck 
recommended for the Willits Block in 1996 (the Bates 
extension) failed to pass a bond measure which may have 
been unnecessary had a fund been set aside nearly 25 
years ago. At present, additional parking is needed, and 
this site is a prime opportunity, along with increasing the 
capacity of other existing garages.

The need for more parking capacity is clear. Prior to the 
pandemic, many people were on the waiting list for monthly 
permits in the City’s garages. The City has considered resi-
dent requests to add secure bicycle parking to garages 

and spaces for e lectr ic vehicle 
charging. Both of these proposals 
should be pursued in time. However, 
there is not sufficient capacity to 
remove regular vehicle spaces. 
Some recent trends are l ikely to 
reduce future parking demand, like 
the rise of Transportation Network 
Companies, re-balancing housing 
and commercial in the Downtown, 
and reduced rates of teen driving. 
Autonomous vehicles (AVs) are also 
a future consideration, however, at 
this point in time AVs are sti l l in 
development and are not likely to 
see widespread usage until the end 
of this plan’s horizon. At present it Figure 46. The Library’s entrance plaza.



Continue Improving the Maple and Woodward District
Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 73

remains unclear whether AVs will reduce traffic and park-
ing demand or increase it. To address this timing issue, 
another set of parking analysis will likely be needed in 10 
years. In the meantime, more parking is needed and will 
continue to be needed for at least the next 15 years. The 
best short-term strategy is to invest in parking, but construct 
garages that may be converted to other uses in the future.

While parking across Woodward in Haynes Square / Triangle 
District is somewhat remote, the area is in need of park-
ing investment and may be able to accommodate some 
Downtown / Maple and Woodward workers. A parking 
deck here should be pursued immediately in order to jump-
start development there and provide some alleviation for 
parking demand Downtown (as discussed in the sections 
addressing Haynes Square).

In addition to capacity, the downtown parking district 
is pursuing a number of technological solutions. In the 
garages, they intend to test a pay-by-phone near field 
communication (NFC) system aimed at reducing the 
lines entering garages. In the broader mixed-use district 
discussion, smart signage is recommended to direct users 
towards garages with capacity and away from those at or 
near capacity. Metered parking has recently been equipped 
for monitoring and demand or tiered pricing, which allows 
prices to be adjusted electronically. These systems are 
used to balance where people park by manipulating meter 
rates on a per-block basis. This should be pursued and 
monitored, but rates should not be changed too frequently. 
Together these technologies will help the existing parking 
supply feel less constrained.

During the master plan design charrette, numerous attend-
ees stated that the monthly parking pass rates are extremely 
low in Birmingham, recommending that they be raised. 
Fees should be set to be competitive with other jurisdic-
tions. The additional funding created by increased fees 
should be reinvested in building new parking capacity, 
technological improvements, safety, lighting, and aesthetic 
improvements.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. Adopt a policy requiring a minimum 6 foot clear path 
along the sidewalk be retained throughout mixed-
use districts.

2. Expand activities and special events to attract office 
workers and residents to shop and dine downtown, 
including weekly food-truck events at Shain Park. 
This can be pursued by the contemplated Civic 
Events Board along with the Birmingham Shopping 
District.

3. Update the Multi-modal Plan to address micro-mo-
bility, increased pedestrian activity due to new 
downtown housing, and recent experiences with 
increased outdoor dining. See multi-modal plan 
update recommendations.

4. Update the Parks and Recreation Master Plan to 
increase amenities and connections in Downtown’s 
parks. See parks and recreation plan updates.

5. Implement an art-mural program for large blank wall 
surfaces in key locations.

6. Task the Advisory Parking Committee with a study 
of tiered parking meter pricing in Downtown. A best 
practice goal is to achieve an average maximum 
85% occupancy all streets.

7. Task the Advisory Parking Committee with a study 
of tiered parking rates for different garages.

8. Task the Advisory Parking Committee with a study 
of monthly parking pass fees.

9. Task the Advisory Parking Committee with a study 
of secure bike parking and electric vehicle charging 
stations within parking garages.

10. Task the Advisory Parking Committee with a review 
of master plan parking recommendations in 2030 to 
evaluate technologies and trends at that time.

11. Pursue technological improvements to ease parking 
usage, such as parking space occupancy indicators 
(green and red lights above spaces) to more easily 
direct users through the garages.

12. Install directional and informational signage. (previ-
ously addressed)

13. Convene a committee to study a Merrill Street 
shared space streetscape retrofit between Old 



Continue Improving the Maple and Woodward District
Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2174

Woodward and Shain Park. Consider options for 
activating the rear of City Hall, changes to the wall, 
small retail kiosks, and other low-impact means of 
enlivening the block.

14. Build a parking deck in the Triangle District as soon 
as possible. (addressed previously)

15. Create a detailed plan for the Bates Street Extension 
ensuring robust public input.

MULTI-MODAL PLAN UPDATES

a. Install benches with backs and armrests throughout 
the Downtown area.

b. Increase bike parking within the public streetscape 
throughout Downtown, especially at corner and 
midblock bulb-outs which support multiple racks.

c. Reserve space for micro-mobility storage at corner 
and midblock bulb-outs along with bike parking.

d. Expand the distance of corner curb extensions at 
street intersections and midblock to accommodate 
public seating. Permit outdoor dining in these seat-
ing areas for abutting businesses.

PARKS AND RECREATION PLAN UPDATES

a. Increase the amount of seating in Shain, Booth, and 
the City’s pocket parks with benches.

b. Expand portable café seating in Shain and Booth 
Parks and on all widened sidewalks.

c. Open cafés in Shain and Booth Parks with public 
restrooms and limited food and beverage offerings.

d. Expand the Oakland – Old Woodward pocket park 
by removing the south vehicular lane, per the 1996 
master plan recommendations.

e. Add paths and seating to the Pierce-Brown pocket 
park.

f. Improve the Library’s entrance plaza with seating 
and murals.

g. Integrate the Birmingham Museum into the Rouge 
River trail and park system, including more connec-
tions and signage Downtown.

h. Add green stormwater infrastructure to parks and 
pocket parks.

Establish Market North as a Distinct District
Histor ical ly, the 1/3rd mile-long Market Nor th – Old 
Woodward retail district has been viewed clearly different 
from the core Downtown. It has now become a dining and 
shopping destination of its own. North Old Woodward has 
transitioned from a collection of fine art galleries into a 
busy dining district. The district requires its own identity, 
branding, and focus on its’ specific needs independent of 
other districts. Because it hosts a popular seasonal farm-
er’s market, and following the aptly named Market North 
End restaurant, it is recommended that the area be called 
Market North. The future of Market North is bright but it 
should retain its character of small shops and restaurants, 
and a street life distinct from Maple and Woodward.

Active Sidewalks

The implementation of the 1996 master plan’s traffic-calm-
ing design for Old Woodward, which reduced the number 
of lanes and inserted a landscaped island, has significantly 
slowed vehicular speeds and improved the area’s walkabil-
ity. But problems still exist such as the pedestrian crossing 
at Harmon and Old Woodward, which can be danger-
ous at times. Further north along Old Woodward, traffic 
increases in speed and pedestrian crossing opportunities 
are non-existent, clearly missing at Vinewood Ave. North 
of Harmon St, Old Woodward needs to be redesigned to 
slow traffic and focus on increasing street parking and 
pedestrian crossings, especially in anticipation of increas-
ing redevelopment.

Figure 47. Small scale outdoor dining.



Continue Improving the Maple and Woodward District
Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 75

Market North’s district character should be reinforced at 
the connection between the sidewalk and building facades. 
Currently some storefronts and signage are unattractive 
and incongruous with Birmingham’s upscale character and 
image. This district is distinct from Maple and Woodward 
in storefront design, featuring less glazing and more small-
scale business facades. Even with new buildings, the 
storefront scale should be retained with paned windows 
featuring more traditional muntins above bulkheads and 
framed door entries. Benches should be encouraged along 
the building facades, facing towards the street. And street-
scape elements like benches, trash cans, and signage 
should be unique to this district.

Unlike Maple and Woodward where restaurants have large 
seating areas in dining decks, Market North maintains a 
character of smaller cafes and even ice cream stores with 
limited outdoor seating. This treatment should be encour-
aged in new buildings, with intimate cafe spaces and some 
outdoor dining along the building and the furnishing zone 
(See Figure C.3-03). The condition at the Market North End 
restaurant is also to be encouraged (See Figure C.3-04). 

Public Space

Market North is anchored by Booth Park and the farmers 
market. Booth Park provides direct access to the Rouge 
River trail system, and occupies nearly 500 feet of Old 
Woodward frontage which creates a clear distinction 

between Maple and Woodward 
and Market North. As discussed 
previously, the park lacks adequate 
seating for its users at peak hours. 
Additional ly the entry corner at 
Harmon and Old Woodward is too 
informal for its’ setting. Proposed 
in the Downtown 2016 plan, Booth 
Pa rk  shou ld  have  a  ca fe  and 
restrooms within an iconic park 
bui lding near this entrance in a 
paved plaza.

The Farmers Market g ives the 
district its name, but has little pres-
ence on non-market days. Rather 
than an afterthought, the district’s 
identity should be reinforced with a 

permanent, open-air market pavilion. The pavilion could 
be located where the market currently takes place, in 
the portion of municipal parking lot 6 that is open to Old 
Woodward. Designed appropriately, cars could continue 
to park under the pavilion awnings on non-market days. 
(See Figure 49).

Housing

The distr ict’s existing housing is mainly in inef f icient 
mult i-fami ly bui ldings along i ts nor thwestern edge. 

Figure 48. Character of small scale businesses in Market North.

Figure 49. Proposed open air market pavilion.



Continue Improving the Maple and Woodward District
Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2176

Redevelopment has begun with new mixed-use buildings 
on the east side of Old Woodward and development inter-
est beginning on the west. Many of the district’s buildings 
along Old Woodard are prime opportunities for redevelop-
ment as mixed use structures. While some may be nostal-
gic for the area’s garden apartments, their form and deep 
setbacks from Old Woodward signal that drivers can speed 
through the area, especially coming from the high speed 
portions of big Woodward just to the north. Better defini-
tion at the streetscape with new buildings will slow cars 
and reinforce walkability. But improvements are needed 
along Old Woodward to support additional pedestrians, 
particularly north of Harmon.

Parking

As the Market North district is seeing redevelopment inter-
est, it has too little parking to support its potential. As in 
Maple and Woodward, daytime parking is full in Lot 6 while 
it is empty at night. The Downtown 2016 plan, completed 
about 25 years ago, recommended that a parking deck be 
built on Lot 6. This recommendation should be pursued 
along with the permanent market pavilion, with a low deck, 
about 2-3 floors total, located behind the existing buildings. 

To avoid disturbance to neighbors along Brookside, care 
should be taken to eliminate any light spill over and to pres-
ent a pleasant facade to the west, and care also taken to 
limit impacts on the Rouge River.

MASTER PLAN ACTIONS

1. As part of the zoning code update, extend D2 
zoning to the multi-family properties along the west 
side of Old Woodward up to Quarton.

2. Install way-finding signage throughout the district. 
(Addressed previously)

3. Update the Multi-modal Plan to support increased 
pedestrian activity on both sides of North Old 
Woodward and install streetscape amenities. (See 
the section on Multi-modal Plan updates)

4. Update the Parks and Recreation Plan to add 
amenities and a cafe to Booth Park. (See the section 
on Parks and Recreation Plan updates)

5. Convene a committee to develop branding, special 
signage, seating, and streetscape elements unique 
to the Market North district.

Figure 50. Extension of D2 zoning in Market North.

 Zoning

R2 single family residential

R6 single family residential

B2 general business

O office commercial

 Downtown Overlay Zoning

D2 3-story development

D4 5-story development

P parking structures 

CURRENT ZONING WITH OVERLAY
Old W

oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

Woodward Ave

Woodward Ave

Ferndale Ave

Ferndale Ave

Harmon St
Harmon St Bonnie Brier St

Bonnie Brier St

Vinewood AveVinewood Ave

Oak AveOak Ave

G
reenw

ood St
G

reenw
ood St

W
oodland St

W
oodland St

Park St
Park St

Brookside Ave
Brookside Ave

PROPOSED OVERLAY EXTENSION

Old W
oodward Ave

Old W
oodward Ave

Woodward Ave

Woodward Ave

Ferndale Ave

Ferndale Ave

Harmon St
Harmon St Bonnie Brier St

Bonnie Brier St

Vinewood AveVinewood Ave

Oak AveOak Ave

G
reenw

ood St
G

reenw
ood St

W
oodland St

W
oodland St

Park St
Park St

Brookside Ave
Brookside Ave



Implement Haynes Square
Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 77

6. Task the Design Review Board to develop storefront 
design, signage, and other standards to retain the 
small-scale business character of Market North.

7. Task the Advisory Parking Committee to study a 
parking garage in the Lot 6 parking lot.

8. Task the Multi-modal Transportation Board to 
develop a streetscape plan along North Old 
Woodward, up to Big Woodward, with a focus on 
adding on-street parking and pedestrian and bicycle 
amenities and improving safety.

9. Convene a committee to study a permanent, open-
air farmers market pavilion with public restrooms on 
the portion of Lot 6 that is along Old Woodward.

MULTI-MODAL PLAN UPDATES

j. Expand pedestrian safety and traffic-calming 
measures along North Old Woodward.

k. Install additional pedestrian seating throughout the 
Market North district.

l. Install new Market North branded streetscape 
fixtures throughout the district.

PARKS AND RECREATION PLAN UPDATES

m. Install ample benches in Booth Park.

n. Install a small café and public restrooms in Booth 
Park along with movable tables and chairs.

o. Create a paved plaza, ideally pervious, at the 
entrance to Booth Park with signage and seating.

Implement Haynes Square
The Haynes Square plan corrects a 
dangerous Woodward intersection, 
activates and elevates the South Old 
Woodward commercial district, and 
connects the Triangle District across 
Woodward to take part in the overall 
downtown. Details are addressed 
in the chapter Connect the City. 
That content will not be repeated 
here; this is a reminder of its’ goal 
to support the South Old Woodward 
and Triangle District areas.

Adopt a South Woodward Gateway Plan
The South Woodward Gateway, located along Woodward 
from 14 Mile to Lincoln, is the most unsophisticated stretch 
of retail in the City. The southern portion of Woodward 
presents a sloppy and tired image of the community, which 
is otherwise active and successful. Woodward’s growth 
and decades of mis-focused transportation policy has 
divided Birmingham and eroded the quality of the pedes-
trian and business environments. This Gateway district is 
Birmingham’s first impression to those traveling from the 
south. Numerous times the Gateway has been defended, 
suggesting that the quality of Woodward through Royal Oak 
is worse. Yes, the character of Woodward in Birmingham 

Figure 51. Booth Park’s underwhelming entrance.

Figure 52. Typical character of the gateway.



Adopt a South Woodward Gateway Plan
Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2178

is better than Royal Oak, but it still is not good and not in 
keeping with the image of Birmingham. However, the area 
provides lower cost retail space with excellent exposure 
to traffic, housing most of the national chain merchants in 
the City. The Gateway is valuable for Birmingham, it just 
needs a new and sophisticated image.

Woodward’s conversion to an attractive and grand avenue 
is now supported by the Department of Transportation, 
however that future remains distant. In the interim, changes 
can be made on the side of private development to make 
this area more attractive and functional, paired with near-
term improvements to Woodward itself, detailed in the 
chapter Connect the City. Today, communities to the south 
are well on their way to improving Woodward’s streetscape 

but have not yet addressed adjacent building form. While 
streetscape improvements are needed, and Birmingham 
should improve median plantings right away, the character 
of buildings along Woodward establish the area’s image.

The low quality of the Gateway is well recognized; in 2013 
The Southern Gateway Urban Design Plan was developed. 
Never adopted, the plan should be revisited, updated, and 
adopted. With fresh eyes, the Gateway needs a more radical 
transformation than previously proposed, which focused 
heavily on public sector improvements, leaving existing 
buildings as-is. With the right incentives and capacity, the 
area’s aged buildings can be redeveloped in a manner 
that truly changes the Gateway’s character. In addition, 
the Gateway’s interface with the neighborhoods along it 
should be revisited.

From a neighborhood perspective, the Gateway provides 
some neighborhood retail services but it continues to 
encroach into neighborhoods with parking, increases 
neighborhood cut-through traffic, and is incredibly incon-
venient for pedestrians. Many businesses have purchased 
neighborhood houses beyond the alley, converting these 
to surface parking. This condition is most prevalent on 
the west side, but exists on both sides of Woodward. In 
many cases, this results in neighborhood houses facing 
onto open parking lots, and many more sharing a side or 
rear lot with them. As is recognized in the 2013 plan, the 
triangular parking lots are incredibly inefficient, even larger 
ones, and are better served by efficient mid-block parking.

The 2013 Southern Gateway Urban Design Plan 
recommends that alley pavement be improved 
and made consistent and shared-use to accom-
modate pedestrians, shoppers, and service 
vehicles. In addition to the surface treatment of 
alleys, they require active uses along their edges 
to be safe and pleasant. Currently businesses 
face onto Woodward and use alleys for park-
ing and service. For transformational change, 
businesses should also face onto alleys, creat-
ing true shared-use streets. This dual-sided 
condition is becoming common in the local area, 
found at Kroger along Maple, along Big Beaver 
in Troy, and elsewhere throughout the region. 
In the alley, businesses should be encouraged Figure 54. Shared-use alley space concept.

Figure 53. Building with potential for sleeve activation.



Adopt a South Woodward Gateway Plan
Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 79

to extend outdoor seating and outdoor retail displays into 
the shared-use alley space (See Figure 54).

Full alley activation requires that both sides of the alley 
engage to define its character. With parking addressed 
more efficiently, the triangular parking lots should revert 
to residential use in order to reduce noise spill over into 
the neighborhood. Most of the triangular properties can 
retain yard space, with shallow townhouses lining the alley 
and side streets. A muse-type townhouse is appropriate 
along alleys, which has a flush single car garage entry 
along with the building facade. Common in the United 
Kingdom, Birmingham has a few townhouse developments 
that approximate this treatment.

Neighborhood Sleeves

To create a better interface between Gateway retail and 
surrounding neighborhoods, buildings should provide 
active facades along side streets. In an ideal condition, as 

illustrated, the redevelopment of an entire block face would 
consolidate parking in the mid-block and face buildings 
towards side streets. Doing so simplifies parking access, 
provides more spaces, and provides retail experiences. 
Presently, facing buildings onto Woodward creates an 
awkward parking condition and poor pedestrian experi-
ence and parking access from Woodward is inefficient.

Each residential street in the Kenning and Pierce neigh-
borhoods terminates on Woodward. Currently, the last 150 
feet or more of each residential street is presented with 
surface parking, an unattractive alley, and typically a long 
blank wall along the side of buildings that face Woodward. 
For the neighborhood this is a poor experience by car, 
and especially walking. Potential exists to face storefronts 
onto side streets rather than Woodward, like the condition 
depicted along Benneville (See Figure 53). If this building 
were a coffee shop, it could have a pleasant outdoor patio 
nearby neighbors might frequent.

Figure 55. Neighborhood Sleeve configuration which creates small neighborhood-focused nodes along side streets.



Develop a North Woodward Gateway Plan
Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2180

If most buildings faced businesses onto the neighborhood 
streets rather than Woodward, the end of each street 
would become a small neighborhood main street with a 
handful of shops. These Neighborhood Sleeves would 
benefit neighborhood residents and provide a superior 
pedestrian experience over Woodward. Limited in size, 
each Neighborhood Sleeve would create minimal traffic, 
and further they would encourage neighborhood residents 
to walk or bike for convenient access.

The 2013 Southern Gateway Urban Design Plan includes 
two recommendations for reducing traffic speed into neigh-
borhoods. These options - angled parking with bump-
outs entering the neighborhood, or parallel parking with 
chicanes entering the neighborhood - perfectly support 
Neighborhood Sleeves and pedestrianized alleys.

In a full redevelopment scenario, new buildings could 
accommodate housing above. Due to the street geom-
etries, buildings could also include a mix of larger and 
smaller spaces. Should development demand be sufficient, 
a single parking deck would fit mid-block, allowing for two 
stories of housing above shops, further activating busi-
nesses. Where full redevelopment does not occur, corner 
properties along the side streets should face onto those 
streets with active storefronts. Each piece of the Gateway 
concept - alleys, alley housing, parking consolidation, and 
sleeves - could develop independently.

Master Plan Actions

1. Revise and adopt the South Woodward Gateway 
Urban Design Plan. Consider:

a. Incorporating the Neighborhood Sleeves 
concept.

b. Piloting a shared-use alley by re-paving the 
alleyway, moving power poles underground, and 
opening businesses onto the alley.

c. Piloting a Neighborhood Sleeve with existing 
buildings or through redevelopment, including 
streetscape improvements on the side streets 
with chicanes and streetscape details like tree 
pits, benches, pedestrian-scaled lighting, and 
trash and recycling receptacles.

2. Incentivize redevelopment through increased zoning 
capacity and reduced parking requirements.

3. As part of a zoning code rewrite, establish zoning 
standards to enable Neighborhood Sleeves. This 
may be done by requiring storefronts along neigh-
borhood streets and other strategies.

4. As part of a zoning code rewrite, establish zoning 
standards to enable shared-use alleys. This may be 
done by:

a. Requiring storefronts at entries along the alley.

b. Permitting attached single-family housing along 
the neighborhood-side of the alley, limited to 2 
stories.

5. As part of a zoning code rewrite, establish zoning 
standards to encourage redevelopment of South 
Woodward Gateway properties. This may be done 
by:

a. Permitting multi-family housing on the commer-
cial properties.

b. Permitting 2 stories along the alley and 3 or 4 
stories between Woodward and 50 feet of the 
alley.

c. Reducing parking requirements and allowing 
shared parking.

Develop a North Woodward Gateway Plan
The approach to Birmingham from the north is nearly 
as unimpressive and messy as the approach from the 
south. Both the North and South Woodward Gateways 
are important opportunities to showcase Birmingham’s 
character, and play an important role in calming speedy 
traffic entering the city. While speeding is prevalent every-
where on Woodward, it is especially important to address 
southbound due to increasingly speedy conditions north of 
Birmingham. The northern approach is also complicated 
by a mixed jurisdiction, with Birmingham controlling only 
half of the road’s edge, up to the northern intersection 
with Old Woodward.

The North Woodward Gateway provides a signif icant 
opportunity to calm traffic and change the perception of 
Birmingham along Woodward, despite only controlling 
half of the road’s edge. Key to this transformation is the 
northern intersection with Old Woodward. The triangular 



Keep it Loose in the Rail District
Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 81

green provides a perfect terminated and deflected vista 
for southbound drivers. Today, drivers are greeted by a 
gas station advertisement and price list. This should be a 
grand entry to Downtown with impressive and tall civic art 
or a signature gateway building. In fact the entire triangular 
property, which is privately owned, from Oak Ave to the 
point should be the most impressive structure in the City. 
Short of transformation, every effort should be made to 
announce Birmingham’s presence, its’ character, and the 
importance of its’ Downtown at this location.

Leading to the Old Woodward intersection, streetscape 
improvements, traffic calming, and frontage improvements 
should be studied. With consideration for lane reduc-
tion, such as in the South Gateway, a glimpse of a multi-
way boulevard could come to life between Quarton and 
Old Woodward. Significant transformation is possible by 
continuing the slip lane along Colonial Court Terraces to 
Quarton and Old Woodward, removing the outer travel lane 
for further landscaping, and accommodating bicycles and 
parking within the slip lane.

Certainly other opportunities exist to improve the entrance 
character and slow traffic, which should be studied. Like the 
South Woodward Gateway, the North Woodward Gateway 
needs an urban design plan. Yet ahead of a full gate-
way plan, additional canopy trees should be added to the 
Woodward median throughout the city.

Master Plan Actions

1. Plant a full and consistent tree 
canopy along the Woodward 
median throughout Birmingham, 
beginning with the northern and 
southern entries.

2. Develop and adopt a North 
Woodward Gateway Urban 
Design Plan to improve the 
appearance of the northern 
entrance to Birmingham, slow 
traffic entering the city, and 
improve the Old Woodward 
entrance as a signature gateway 
to Birmingham and Downtown.

Keep it Loose in the Rail District
The Rail District is divided between what has been envi-
sioned for its future and the utility that it currently provides. 
This is a place of experimentation for Birmingham, and has 
been for some time. Layers of history expose incremental 
changes. Traces of former rail spurs from the Grand Trunk 
Railroad are evident in odd property divisions, fence lines, 
and paths of unkempt foliage.

The district’s northern edge, at the top of South Eton Rd., 
has been capped by an upscale restaurant housed in the 
City’s former passenger rail station, now closing. From 
nearby parking lots, the City’s Whole Foods market and 
large scale commercial in Troy is visible just over the tracks, 
yet inaccessible. Just below this, the District Lofts illus-
trate a grand future vision that is formal and neat. Along 
with the adjacent Iron Gate to the south, the area includes 
some of the City’s most contemporary multi-family offer-
ings. Just east of Iron Gate, also part of the 1999 Eton 
Road Corridor Plan, is an experiment in live-work units that 
create a tight urban street grid open for future connec-
tions to neighboring properties. The Griffin Claw brewery 
is next southbound on Eton, a substantial micro brewery 
with an informal brewpub and outdoor beer garden, espe-
cially popular with young families. Next to this, tucked far 
back from Eton is the Robot Garage, a wonderland of toys 
and classes for creativity in making, from legos to art to 

Figure 56. The District Lofts preview the Rail District’s urban future.



Keep it Loose in the Rail District
Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2182

robotics. Auto service, a lumber yard, and the City’s Public 
Services Department follow old lines of rail spurs.

The Lower Rail District, south of Palmer Street, consists of 
small, mostly single-story warehouse buildings occupied 
with varied businesses including yoga, co-working, dog 
daycare, art, dance, auto body shops, and more. These 
are arranged haphazardly among small parking areas, 
charming in a way that is certainly not suburban. Only the 
degraded character of the street and lack of trees detract 
from the area’s charm. The southern end of the district is 
capped by Kenning Park with the City’s Ice Rink and skate 
park, along with a new and quite urban senior retirement 
development.

The Rail District has no single character but overall it has 
an intimate charm. Other parts of the City are increasing 
their refinement, and many lament the loss of the City’s 
artistic and entrepreneurial roots. Yet this is alive in the 
Rail District.

Plans and zoning for the Rail District point to a heavily 
urbanized future. A 2017 Ad-hoc Committee report for 
the Rail District estimated the zoned potential that could 
be built on properties likely to redevelop in the near future 
could increase intensity 10-fold, albeit unlikely. Due to the 
significant disparity between the district’s long-term future 
and the functional and desirable near-term conditions, poli-
cies and improvements should permit the district’s current 
condition and success to continue while incrementally 
preparing it for an intensified future condition.

Near-term Conditions

Many existing buildings within the Lower Rail District are 
legally non-conforming, disincentivizing investment in exist-
ing buildings and continuation of the present condition.

The Lower Rail district is a type of commercial development 
which is currently emerging nationally. It provides incubator 
space for businesses at a much lower cost level than the 
downtown shops. The current code applies standards that 

Figure 57. The Lower Rail District.

Palmer St
Palmer St

E. Lincoln StE. Lincoln St

Cole StCole St

Holland StHolland St

S.
 E

to
n 

St
S.

 E
to

n 
St



Keep it Loose in the Rail District
Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 83

are appropriate to create pedestrian-oriented streets but as 
a result is burdensome to existing structures and uses. In 
the near-term, the Lower Rail District should remain infor-
mal and somewhat experimental. This character should 
be encouraged through zoning, development review, and 
in the public realm.

Zoning need only be slightly adjusted. These adjustments 
are the type appropriate for an overlay district which applies 
only to the Lower Rail District. The overlay should consider 
allowing the following when existing buildings are improved 
or expanded, or when new single-story buildings are built:

• Parking to remain between buildings and front lot 
lines if it already exists.

• Buildings to retain their present setback when reno-
vated, expanded, or reconstructed.

• Parking lots of 70 feet wide or less to be exempted 
from required trees and landscaping.

• Screening not be required except along lot lines 
facing Eton Street.

• Small footprint towers of 600 square feet or less 
should be allowed to exceed one story without 
causing the overall structure to be interpreted as 
over one story, invalidating the overlay allowances.

Development review should allow the unique nature of 
the district to continue when single story structures are 
improved or expanded, or when new single-story buildings 
are built, including the following:

• The wall cladding may be any material including raw 
concrete block, corrugated metal, wood, or brick.

• Awnings and canopies of any size may be used.

• Pavement should be painted or removed where 
there is no parking. No landscaping should be 
required.

• Shared-use street conditions with bollards to define 
sidewalks should be pursued, which requires site 
specific design interpretation.

• Large expanses of walls should be painted with 
murals.

Figure 58. Current conditions in the Lower Rail District.



Keep it Loose in the Rail District
Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2184

To support the district’s current character and prepare for 
the future, streetscape improvements should be pursued 
which work for both. While mentioned in a number of exist-
ing contexts in other districts, shared-use streets are ideal 
for implementation along Cole and Commerce Streets, 
and Lincoln to the East of Eton. For the current condition, 
shared-use formalizes the condition that has occurred 
organically over time, and provides greater importance 
to pedestrians and cyclists. In the long-term condition, it 
helps to retain the character of the district, with greater 
use of shared-use streets than other places in the City.

Long-term Conditions

Many of the City’s district-specific plans have become 
long-range, with investment remaining focused Downtown. 
Beyond the clear draw of Downtown’s reputation, build-
ing there removes a $50,000 per car obligation from 

developers. Both the Triangle and Rail Districts suffer from 
lot patterns that are generally small and include a number 
of oddly shaped properties. Redeveloping these proper-
ties at a high capacity doesn’t work when parking must 
be accommodated. On the other hand, Downtown’s small 
properties are being developed, including the recent hotel 
at Brown and Old Woodward. Like the Triangle District, 
the Rail District needs public parking capacity and the 
ability to use that capacity in lieu of providing parking 
in mixed-use development projects. As opposed to the 
Triangle District, the City owns property in the rail district. 
Most notably, the Public Services Department site is well 
located to provide parking access to Cole Street. Uses on 
site are necessary for maintenance of the City, and there 
are few places to relocate those uses. Even remaining on 
site, the DPS building is approximately the size of a park-
ing structure, and may be part of a redevelopment plan 
to accommodate both. Additionally, the School District’s 
underutilized bus lot can easily accommodate structured 
parking. These are options to be weighed in service of 
unlocking the area’s development potential.

Before the district begins to see more intense development, 
its standards should be revisited. There are a number of 
ways that the MX standards dif fer from the Downtown 
Overlay standard, despite having similar desired physi-
cal outcomes. As discussed previously, zoning districts 
across the City that are similar in their desired outcome 
should be consolidated. If not consolidated with Downtown 
and Triangle District zones, the MX zone should be care-
fully analyzed. A quick reading of zone standards passes 
muster, however some details have potential negative 
consequences. For instance, the zone has tree require-
ments tied to the number of residential units; because this 
doesn’t account for potentially high lot coverage on these 
small properties, the tree requirements could be a barrier 
to development, disincentivizing new housing in the district.

Connectivity is the most significant limitation to the Rail 
District. The Grand Trunk Railroad limits all modes of 
connectivity, with crossings only at Maple and 14 Mile, of 
which the Maple crossing is in poor condition. Additional 
rail crossings should be studied, mainly for pedestrian 
and bicycle movement. A vehicular bridge would be logi-
cal at Lincoln, like the Derby bridge, though difficult to 
achieve due to existing buildings. In the further future, with 

Property blocking connection
Future road extensions

Location of train station addition 

Figure 59. Increased street connectivity and access to 
Troy Transit Center.



Keep it Loose in the Rail District
Ch 4. Support Mixed-use Districts

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 85

significant development in the Rail District, further connec-
tions will be necessary. Every effort should be made to 
avoid increased car trips from new development, provid-
ing extensive pedestrian, bicycle, and transit infrastructure 
instead. Today, right-of-way and access should be reserved 
to connect Lincoln with Lewis Street, also connecting to 
Cole and Holland. Additionally the contemplated green-
way along the railroad should be pursued for bicycle and 
pedestrian connectivity.

Over Birmingham’s long history, the railroad connection to 
Detroit has been an important asset. In recent decades, 
disinvestment in rail and investment in automobiles has 
reduced the role of rail travel. However, this trend is slowly 
changing across the country. Into the future, rail’s come-
back is projected to continue. The City cannot risk being 
left without a direct connection to passenger rail. Looking 
forward a few decades, rail access in the Rail District is 
the most likely economic driver. The City needs to secure 
a long-term connection to the Troy Transit Center and 
consider the redevelopment potential this may bring to 
the district in the future.

Master Plan Actions

1. Develop an Overlay Zoning District for the Lower 
Rail District that permits the existing, but somewhat 
improved condition to persist. Consider sunsetting 
the overlay once public parking is available. See 
recommendations in the text of this section.

2. Construct a shared-use street section along Cole 
and Commerce Streets.

3. Update the 1999 Eton Road Corridor Plan for the 
area south of Palmer Street to permit the exist-
ing, but somewhat improved condition to persist. 
Consider the following amendments:

a. So long as the buildings--existing or new--are 
one story, eliminate all requirements of Section 
5 of the Site Design Guidelines p 41-46. of the 
Eton Road Corridor Plan. These include but are 
not limited to:

• Eliminating building frontage and sidewalk 
requirements.

• Eliminating parking requirements, except as 
the on-street parking shall be as determined 

by the “Immediate Neighbors” of the adja-
cent Torry or Kenning Neighborhoods.

• Eliminating the signage and landscaping 
requirements.

• Eliminating building use and aesthetic 
requirements.

4. As part of a zoning code update, modify the MX 
District to enable the urban development envisioned 
by the plan. Consider the following:

a. Exempt LA-01 (E) and (F), as is true in 
Downtown, or at a minimum that plantings in the 
MX District are only required within the streets-
cape and within open areas of the property, but 
not based on a minimum number of trees per 
residential unit as currently defined.

b. MX District zoning should be carefully analyzed 
by contracting two or more architects to 
complete preliminary building designs for mixed-
use buildings on existing sites, small and large, 
with and without on-site parking, attempting 
to achieve capacity. The architects should be 
requested to discuss and present challenges 
and constraints that are faced in the process. 
While some challenges are part of code design, 
others may be unknown without testing.

5. Update the 1999 Eton Road Corridor Plan for the 
area south of Palmer Street to increase vehicular 
connectivity. Consider the following:

a. At the termination of Holland Street, creating a 
connection to the rail station by purchasing a 30 
ft wide corridor or easement.

6. Develop a plan to provide access to the Troy Transit 
Center and consider the development of surround-
ing properties, including the School District bus 
parking lot and the DPS facility.

7. Convene a committee to study redevelopment of the 
DPS building to occupy a portion of a public park-
ing facility in its place, which services the lower Rail 
District.

8. Construct the contemplated linear park and trail 
along the railroad.



The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2186

This page is intentionally blank.



Ch 5. Advance Sustainability Practices



Green the City’s Municipal Operations
Ch 5. Advance Sustainability Practices

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2188

Green the City’s Municipal Operations
In impact, the City should lead by example. Municipal build-
ings and operational choices should align with environmen-
tal goals. New buildings should meet LEED standards, as 
addressed in the following section. Recycling should be a 
focus within and around municipal properties. Plastic and 
styrofoam bottles and containers should not be purchased 
by the City. Municipal fleet fuel efficiency standards can 
be increased and converted to Electric Vehicles. Staff may 
be incentivized to commute to work by bike, public transit, 
or carpooling. And the City may require its contractors to 
adopt similar policies.

Master Plan Actions

1. Establish a Sustainability Board to oversee the 
recommendations of this plan section and other 
future sustainability initiatives.

2. Task the Sustainability Board to create an action 
plan to reduce environmental impacts of municipal 
operations.

3. Install Electric Vehicle charging stations through-
out the city at garages, public parking lots, and 
on-street in Mixed-use Districts.

4. Task the Sustainability Board to study opportunities 
in Parks and Recreation, such as pollinator gardens, 
solar panel pavilions, plant species, tree canopy, 
landscape maintenance processes, and environ-
mental regulations.

Require Green Building in New Construction
Elsewhere in the country, building energy use and produc-
tion is moving slowly towards neutrality, with some states 
far ahead of others. Michigan has residential and commer-
cial energy codes which comply with federal mandates, 
yet leave room for improvement. Detroit and Grand Rapids 
have adopted 2030 Districts with district goals of reaching 
net zero energy usage by 2050. With a significant amount 
of new construction in Birmingham, there is room to incen-
tivize movement towards net zero and use of LEED stan-
dards within the City’s mixed-use districts.

Master Plan Actions

1. Require adherence to LEED standards within the 
City’s mixed-use districts and municipal buildings.

2. Task the Sustainability Board increasing energy 
standards for new construction above those of 
the state energy code, ideally implementing 2030 
District goals.

Expand Recycling and Composting
Recycling and composting have been targets of recent poli-
cies across the country, aimed at reducing the use of plas-
tics and styrofoam, and reduce the volume of compostable 
waste in landfills. For residences, recycling programs have 
been available for some time, but municipal compost has 
not. Currently yard waste compost is collected in the fall, 
which may be able to expand to food scraps, which is 
especially important for restaurant and grocery store waste. 
Composting potential should be investigated. Concerning 
normal recycling, commercial standards should be consid-
ered along with a greater number of recycling bins in City 
parks and public spaces. Many area businesses use plas-
tic utensils and styrofoam carryout, along with plastic 
bags. All of these could be reduced or eliminated either 
through ordinance or through a Birmingham Shopping 
District program.

Master Plan Actions

1. Task the Sustainability Board to study the poten-
tial for food waste compost service for homes and 
businesses.

2. Increase the availability of recycling bins in public 
spaces like parks, public buildings, and along 
streets with high pedestrian traffic.

3. Task the Sustainability Board and Birmingham 
Shopping District to recommend the best path 
towards business operations changes to reduce 
plastics and styrofoam, either through ordinance or 
first through a voluntary shopping district program 
which leads to a future ordinance.



Install Green Stormwater Infrastructure in Neighborhood Streets and Parks
Ch 5. Advance Sustainability Practices

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 89

Install Green Stormwater Infrastructure in 
Neighborhood Streets and Parks
Water quality management has undergone signif icant 
improvements in recent years. Birmingham regularly expe-
riences flooding and is situated along a sensitive natural 
river system. Untreated runoff threatens the Rouge River 
natural system and damages private properties. Streetside 
landscape areas, City parks, and other City properties are 
clear opportunities to provide stormwater solutions, and 
are plentiful. To address this issue, a new plan should be 
created which evaluates the issues and problem areas, 
emerging best practices, and establishes a strategy to 
implement green infrastructure across the city.

Master Plan Actions

1. Create a Green Infrastructure Plan establishing strat-
egies, design standards, and locations in streets, 
parks, and other City properties with locating street-
side areas where stormwater can be cleaned and 
retained through bioswales and other means, partic-
ularly in areas experiencing flooding.

Improve the Rouge River Natural Area
The Rouge River frontage has been recognized as an 
important walkway by the City and Oakland County since 
the 1920s, part of a planned but not fully executed regional 
park system. The park area is an asset 
to the City, including diverse wildlife 
habitats and ecosystems, wooded 
uplands, prairies, and wetlands. The 
Rouge borders eight neighborhoods as 
well as Downtown. Approximately 48% 
of Birmingham’s residents and over 
11,000 employees are within a five-min-
ute walk of the Rouge. A midday walk 
in the summertime along the Rouge 
trail includes workers, joggers, families 
enjoying opportunities to get near the 
river, and diverse wildlife. Many people 
use the park and recent studies have 
shown that access to trees, wildlife, 
and naturalistic settings is important 
for mental health.

However, the Rouge River natural areas require better 
management, maintenance, and accommodations for 
the diverse set of users who value it. The park’s natural 
ecosystem is challenged by invasive plant species, minimal 
forest management, degraded bank conditions, landscape 
chemical runoff, and roadway storm-water runoff. Active 
management of the area is needed, along with stormwater 
management interventions to clean water before it enters 
the Rouge.

The Rouge’s relatively flat topography is ideal for pedes-
trians and cyclists of all ability levels. However the condi-
tion of trails and access severely limit its use. The existing 
wood chip and crushed-stone hiking trails are unstable 
surfaces and sections of the existing Rouge trail traverse 
steep grades or waterlogged soils. In fact, the Rouge hiking 
trail is often entirely unusable during heavy rain or freezing 
conditions. Where the river comes close to property lines, 
the trail often becomes steep and difficult to traverse. A 
properly designed, paved walkway could provide an easy 
alternative to West Maple’s steep hill between Baldwin and 
Southfield Road, as well as link Linden, Seaholm, Quarton 
and Beverly Hills residents directly to Booth Park. And due 
to the trail’s trajectory, much of the park is completely inac-
cessible. Additionally, many of the trail heads are unmarked 
and hidden. The river trail is of both community-wide and 
regional importance. Access and accommodations are 
necessary for the health of all Birmingham residents.

Figure 60. A segment of the Rouge trail.



Improve the Rouge River Natural Area
Ch 5. Advance Sustainability Practices

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/2190

Many sections of the Rouge trail and trail heads lack 
benches, bicycle racks, lighting, way-finding maps, educa-
tional placards, and other basic amenities. Benches are 
convenient for the enjoyment of the natural area, but also 
for many older adults who need places to rest along long 
walks. Lighting and forest management are important for 
security. Regular surveillance of the trail is difficult for the 
police and public due to insufficient access, and emer-
gency response vehicles have limited or no access to many 
segments of the trial.

The needs of pedestrians and cyclists are often aligned, 
but in the natural areas, multiple facilities are merited. By 
adding pedestrian and bike bridges at key locations, much 
more of the natural area would be accessible, and the trail 
would be able to avoid steep areas if it crossed the river 
more frequently. Opening up access to the far side of the 
river would allow for a paved pedestrian and bicycle trail, 
along with a smaller pedestrian walkway that may be more 
naturalistic in design and access the river more intimately. 
Care is needed in designing upgraded trails. The design 
of trails should endeavor to remain as narrow as practical 
for the effective use of the facility, in order to minimize the 
visual and actual impact on the natural area.

Along with amenities and trails, the natural area requires 
active management and targeted improvements. In many 
instances, the banks and slopes have been stabilized in a 
way that intrudes upon the ecosystem, clearing segments 

of plants and wildlife access. In others, the banks are not 
stabilized at all. Along with the edge conditions, plant 
species and tree health need monitoring and manage-
ment. Natural areas at the urban interface cannot simply 
be left to chance.

Master Plan Actions

1. Develop and implement a restoration master plan to 
restore the Rouge River ecosystem to its natural and 
sustainable conditions. The plan should consider:

a. Retaining environmental scientists to inventory 
and analyze the Rouge corridor’s wildlife, ecol-
ogy, natural systems, and pollution sources.

b. Establishing a phased enhancement time frame 
to stabilize riverbanks, remove invasive species, 
reintroduce native ground covers, wildflowers, 
under-story, and canopy tree species.

c. Identifying and mitigating potential pollution 
or chemical sources, including the existing 
Springdale snow storage dumping area.

2. Develop and implement a trails and access master 
plan to improve the Rouge River trails and trail 
heads. The plan should consider:

a. Installing pedestrian linkages to the park’s 
surrounding neighborhoods and commercial 
districts, including to Quarton Road.

b. Securing easements of additional key proper-
ties to expand the park area and 
improve its walkability, for complete 
ecological restoration, and universal 
accessibility.

c. Coordinating with Bloomfield 
and Beverly Hills to expand trail 
access and connections.

d. Installing an environmentally 
sensitive, hard-surfaced pathway for 
pedestrians and cyclists along the 
Rouge River.

e. Expanding the extent of the trail 
system, crossing the river at more 
locations to access large portions of 
the natural area currently cut off.

Figure 61. A segment of the Rouge trail.



Implement Plan Actions Supporting Sustainability
Ch 5. Advance Sustainability Practices

The Birmingham Plan | Draft 11/05/21 91

f. Installing bridges, ramps, and other enhance-
ments to enable access by all ages and abilities.

g. Installing other amenities such as bicycle racks, 
lighting, markers, seating, and signage at trail 
heads, and seating, markers, and interpretive 
features throughout the trail system.

3. Establish a “Friends of the Rouge” foundation to 
oversee, build support, and raise funding for the 
park’s enhancements. Consider securing corpo-
rate or philanthropic funding in exchange for special 
recognition.

4. Provide funding for city staff and resources to 
permanently preserve and manage the Rouge 
ecosystem.

5. As part of a zoning code overlay, implement policy 
to ensure that private property construction, fenc-
ing, landscaping, lighting, etc., are compatible with 
the park’s ecology, its restoration master plan, and 
overall public welfare. 

Implement Plan Actions Supporting 
Sustainability
Many of the plan goals and actions addressed in previ-
ous chapters implement public health and environmental 
sustainability goals. They specifically advance sustainability 
practices in Birmingham and should be implemented with 
sustainability in mind. These include:

• Preserving, enhancing, and diversifying the city’s 
tree canopy in streets and open spaces.

• Infill housing in Mixed-use Districts result in house-
holds which on average drive less, use less overall 
energy in heating and cooling, and use practically 
no water and fertilizer in landscape maintenance.

• Bicycle and pedestrian multi-modal improvements, 
and support for neighborhood destinations encour-
age exercise and more trips taken by foot or bike 
rather than by car.

• Support for the Farmer’s Market increases connec-
tions to food growing, healthy consumption, and 
food education.







1 

MEMORANDUM 
City Clerk’s Office 

DATE: April 18, 2022 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk 

SUBJECT: Additional Communications regarding the 2nd Draft of the 
Birmingham Plan 2040 

INTRODUCTION: 
The standard deadline for ensuring communications are included in the packet is noon the 
Wednesday before a Monday meeting. Packets are routinely published and distributed Thursday 
afternoon prior to a Monday meeting. Attached are communications that have been received 
since the initial publication and distribution of the April 18, 2022 agenda packet that the 
Commission may wish to consider regarding the 2nd draft of the Birmingham Plan 2040.   

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Email communications with Samuel Oh
2. Letter from Kathryn Gaines regarding the Rezoning of Oakland St.
3. Email Communication from Gina Russo regarding the Little San Francisco neighborhood

5B 
AMENDED - ADDITIONAL INFO



��������	
�������	
����
��	�����	�����������	������	�������� !��"�������#$�%&� '()�*+, �!-./-'!0 1-23�45'�673�8988� &�69:86�41;-:�< �)�=�>,�%� �)�=/�/-,*!� ?=/@-�0A@:�B 2 �C@(�'�%D�@(�'*+, �!-./-'!03�A?&E�A-��?��?-2�%@?&EF@-��?��?-2*+, �!-./-'!03�G�5 '&��2&H� I�%I�5 '&��2&,� I�*+, �!-./-'!01'/�>,:��J-)'�?&���K?==�+��=?�&�I�)2I�'�&,����@&?-2�&?&=�I�@-��)2?@ &?-2��-2�&,�����&?2!� !�2I /��J-)�K?==�, .��&,�-55-'&)2?&E�&-� II'����E-)'�@-2@�'2�� &�&, &�5-?2&�?2�&,�����&?2!/��L2�'��5-2���&-�E-)'��)!!��&?-2�&, &�?&�K-)=I�, .��+��2+�&&�'�M-'�)��&-�, .��@-2& @&�I�E-)�5'?. &�=E�+�M-'��&,��A?&E�'��5-2I�I�K?&,� �NA= '?M?@ &?-2��5�'& ?2?2!�&-�&,��;'? 2!=�G?�&'?@&O�'�= &�I�&-�E-)'�5�&?&?-2�E-)�K-)=I�, .��+��2�+�&&�'���'.�I�?M�E-)�, I�'� @,�I�-)&�&-�&,��@?&E��& MM�+�M-'��E-)@?'@)= &�I� �5�&?&?-2/�;, &�K E�E-)'�5�&?&?-2�K-)=I�, .��5'���2&�I� @@)' &��?2M-'� &?-2�&-�&,��5)+=?@�K?&,-)&�&,��2��I�M-'&,��@?&E��& MM�&-�, .��5'-.?I�I�@= '?M?@ &?-2�/��;-��1 '()�>2�1-23�45'�673�8988� &�P:Q��41�< �)�=�>,�%� �)�=/�/-,*!� ?=/@-�0�K'-&�:�;-�A?&E�1 2!�'�;,-� ��1 '()�3�R=� ��� II�&-�&,�����&?2!�5 @( !��&,�� && @,�I�I-@)��2&��M-'��E�5)+=?@�@-���2&��&-I E�-2�QS67S88/��;,?��5)+=?@�@-���2&�?��?2�'��5-2���&-�1'/�G)5'��T��5)+=?@� ���'&?-2�&, &�&,��8988�� �&�'�5= 2�, ��2-�I�2�?&E�?2@'� ��M'-��&,��899U�� �&�'�5= 2/�L�+�=?�.��K?&,�� 2E�-&,�'��&, &�&,?��?��?2@-''�@&/��L�+�=?�.��?&�K-)=IT.��+��2�+�&&�'�M-'�1'/�G)5'��� 2I�1'/�1 '()��&-�M?'�&�I?'�@&=E�@-2& @&����5'?. &�=E�.�'�)��5)+=?@=EI?��?��?2!� �2�?!,+-',--I�5�&?&?-2�&, &�?��?2?&? ==E�-.�'��9�5�-5=���?!2�I/��R=� ���'�.?�K� 2I�=�&����(2-K�?M�E-)�, .�� 2E�V)��&?-2�/��68��P7�97�W��&�'�! 'I�3< �)�=�>,��<�2&�M'-���E�?R,-2���FF��J-)�'�@�?.�I�&,?������ !��+�@ )���E-)� '���)+�@'?+�I�&-�&,��X--!=��X'-)5��YG�5 '&��2&H� I�Y�!'-)5/�;-�)2�)+�@'?+��M'-��&,?��!'-)5� 2I��&-5�'�@�?.?2!��� ?=��M'-��?&3���2I� 2��� ?=�&-�I�5 '&��2&,� I�Z)2�)+�@'?+�*+, �!-./-'!/�;-�.?�K�&,?��I?�@)��?-2�-2�&,��K�+�.?�?&�,&&5�:SS!'-)5�/!--!=�/@-�S S+, �!-./-'!SIS��!?ISI�5 '&��2&,� I�SA4[R[VA,?\8W9[]̂?B-@_̀ 9G�\8WAM@]M??a\�G\�GWI;&'�J.GFF7,bc�d\Q9� ?=/!� ?=/@-�/�"�������#$�%&� '()�*+, �!-./-'!0 1-23�45'�673�8988� &�69:88�41;-:�4=�a�W?2!, ��% +?2!, �*+, �!-./-'!0����M-'�5= @���2&�-2�&,�� !�2I ed)-&�I�&�a&�,?II�2f"�������#$�%&� '()�*+, �!-./-'!0 1-23�45'�673�8988� &�69:�7�41;-:�g?@,-= ��G)5)?��%2I)5)?�*+, �!-./-'!0A@:�A?&E�A-��?��?-2�%@?&EF@-��?��?-2*+, �!-./-'!03�G�5 '&��2&H� I��%I�5 '&��2&,� I�*+, �!-./-'!0R=� ���5'�5 '�� 2� 55'-5'? &��'��5-2���&-�1'/�>,/�FFFFFFFFFF�h-'K 'I�I����� !��FFFFFFFFF�h'-�:�i��#���j
�%� �)�=/�/-,*!� ?=/@-�0�G &�:�1-23�45'�673�8988� &�69:�6�41�



��������	
��	������	�������	���	���	������	���������������������	���	����������	����	���	��������� �	!	 � 	�����	���	��	���	"�����	�	�	��������	�#���	������	� 	��	����	��##�$� 	���
���� ��	���	�������	��	���	��	%��	���	�������� 	��	%��	�������##%	� 	���� ��	����	����	����������#	 ����#�	���	�������	��	��������	"����%	���	���	������� 	���� 	���	���������	��	���	���� ���	��	���	�����#�	 ��������	!�	��	�&�����#%#����� 	��	'	�������	� �����	��	���� ����#	�	())*	���	����� 	��	+	�������	�	()((�	,#����	�������	� 	�����$	��� �������	����	������##%	������	�������	���	"�����-�	������ ���	.���	����� �����/0���� 	��&�	��  �122		���	������� 	����	�������	�������	%��	���	��������� 	��	���	3���#�	3�����	45��%	5��������4	������	��	����������	����	����	�����	� 	����	��������	����#�	����	���	�� 	�	����#	��	���%2���������6�����������������������	��	���$	����	 ��������	�	���	$��	�����	������77�����������#�����7�7�����������7 7���� 7���%2���������7589,9:5�����;<=((�>2�?*@5,�<A(.BC,B�DE�00?E.2F�)���,�A<)���#�����#�����	



Birmingham Triangle District Zoning  

Current Zoning 



Birmingham Master Plan (2007 Version) pg. 8 



Birmingham Master Plan (2022 Version) p.52 





4/18/22, 2:06 PM City of Birmingham MI Mail - 2040 Plan - Triangle District

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=d6b8bc8df4&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-a%3Ar3705494731065182201&simpl=msg-a%3Ar-70178930… 1/1

Nicholas Dupuis <ndupuis@bhamgov.org>

2040 Plan - Triangle District 
1 message

Nicholas Dupuis <ndupuis@bhamgov.org> Mon, Apr 18, 2022 at 2:05 PM
To: Samuel Oh <samuel.e.oh@gmail.com>
Cc: Tom Markus <tmarkus@bhamgov.org>

Mr. Oh, 

Regarding your comments about the second draft of the 2040 Plan and the Triangle District, I recall the Planning Board
meeting on March 9, 2022 that you attended and provided comments to the board. In your comments related to the
density of the Triangle District, you used several examples of zoning that exists today, and is not proposed to change as a
part of the 2040 Plan. Your assertions of added density were clarified publicly and definitively because they are incorrect.
To date, you have not provided any specific references to the 2040 Plan document or the text within that concerns you so
that we may clarify them for you and discuss. All that I have seen circulated is a graphic that demonstrates what the
Triangle District's density could look like if each parcel developed under the current standard, which I will reiterate are not
proposed to change. Regarding the petition and reaching out to me beforehand, your comment on March 9 that you
already had the petition circulating and wanted to know how to submit it would suggest that you did not reach out to me
for clarification or insight beforehand. 

In the future, I encourage you or any other resident to reach out to me if you have questions or need clarification on
anything 2040 Plan related or otherwise. We have been very clear that public comments are an integral piece of the
master planning process, but we want to make sure that they remain accurate and constructive, as well as out in the
open. 

--  
Nicholas J. Dupuis
Planning Director

Email: ndupuis@bhamgov.org
Office: 248-530-1856
Social: Linkedin

*Important Note to Residents*
Let’s connect! Join the Citywide Email System to receive important City updates and critical information specific to your neighborhood at www.bhamgov.org/
citywideemail. 

mailto:ndupuis@bhamgov.org
https://www.linkedin.com/in/nicholasdupuis1989/
http://www.bhamgov.org/citywideemail




��������	
�������	
����
��	�����	������������	�����	
���������������  !"�#�$
���%�&'�'�%�()*+,+- ./0!�"12314"5 61)7�8,4��97�:;::�!<��;=>��86?1=�8@�A�B-)"0!��(!/-)"0!�./0!�"12314"5CCCCCCCCCC�D14E!4*�*���  !"��CCCCCCCCC�D41�=�	�����������'%%��(4+  1".� )3F1�5�G!<�=�61)7�8,4��97�:;::�!<��;=H9�86�I+/J�F<=����<-)"�<1)-"0<�8,4-@��9�?1=�()*+,+- ./0!�"12314"5�K?0��*�L-)-<-1)�1L�-) !)-<M�- �*1-)"�<0�� !���<0-)"�12�4�!)*�12�4�!"!-)�!)*��A,�F<-)"�!*-LL�4�)<�4� +@<3N��������O��%����P-<M�1L�B-4�-)"0!��F1��-  -1)7Q�@-2��!<�HR��S!4T�I<3�S@�! �� <1,�<4M-)"�<1�4+-)�1+4�@12�@M�)�-"0/14011*�!"!-)3�Q�E-@@�)1<"1�!E!M7�Q�E-@@�F1)<-)+��<1�4� ,�F<L+@@M�!4"+��L14�1+4�U-<<@�I!)�D4!)F- F1�!4�!3�V��L1+"0<�!�@1)"�/!<<@��-)�:;�>�!)*�<0��/1!4*�<0�)!"4��*�+)!)-�1+ @M�<1�)1<�4��W1)�3�V��E�4��"4!<�L+@�<0�)�!)*�<01+"0<�<0- �E! �/�0-)*�+ 3�D14�M1+�)1E�<1�/4-)"�<0- �/!FT�+,�- �*- 4� ,�F<L+@�!)*�0!4!  ��)<3X�W1)-)"�)�A<�<1��M�01���E-@@�F!+ ��+)�*1�0!4��<1����!)*��M�,41,�4<M�2!@+� 7��M01���- �!*J!F�)<�<1�R�1L�<0��>��,41,�4<-� �1)�Y!T@!)*3�Q�E-@@� +LL�4�"4�!<@M�-L�M1+�F1)<-)+��<1�,+4 +��<0- 3�Q�!)*��M�L�@@1E�)�-"0/14 �@-T��E0�4��E��@-2��! �-<�- 3S@�! ��21<��1)F��!"!-)�<1� <1,�<0- �-) !)-<M3X� ,�F<L+@@M7�Z-)!�X+  1�HR��S!4T� <B-4�-)"0!��6Q>9[[�>R>\9



����������	
��������
�������������������	����� !"!#$%&'()*+,-+.*/00��12�34567896:57;<���	�2�=��>�?��@A)"+.B(�B�C+BD�B+�ED$# D�B$@FDBG$�H+��DHBI�J+#��B'D�K#BLM# D�N)(#O�PL$BD)�B+�.DHD#,D�#)"+.B(�B�K#BL�!" (BD$�(� �H.#B#H(O�#�Q+.)(B#+��$"DH#Q#H�B+�L+!.��D#*'&+.'++ �(B�MMM-&'()*+,-+.*RH#BLM# DD)(#O-�


	20220418 Joint Planning Board City Commission Agenda AMENDED
	4A 20220418 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FINAL - 4-18-22
	20220418 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review - 4-18-22
	20220418 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 4-18-22
	20220418 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 4-18-22
	20220418 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 4-18-22
	Transmittal (2)


	Planning Board Reports
	20220418 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 4-18-22
	20220418 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 4-18-22
	20220328 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 3-22-22
	20220328 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 3-22-22
	20220328 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 3-22-22
	20220328 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 3-22-22
	2040 Plan Review - Chapter 1 - 11-10-21
	SUBJECT: The Birmingham Plan 2040 - Review of the Introduction, Future Land Use & Chapter One (Connect the City)

	2040 Plan Review - Chapter 2 - 12-8-21
	SUBJECT: The Birmingham Plan 2040 - Review of Chapter Two (Embrace Managed Growth)

	2040 Plan Review - Chapter 3 - 1-12-22
	SUBJECT: The Birmingham Plan 2040 - Review of Chapter Three (Retain Neighborhood Quality)

	2040 Plan Review - Chapters 4 & 5 - 2-9-22
	SUBJECT: The Birmingham Plan 2040 - Review of Chapter Four (Support Mixed-Use Districts) & Chapter 5 (Advance Sustainability Pratices)


	2040 Plan Review - 2nd Draft Wrap-Up - 3-9-22
	SUBJECT: The Birmingham Plan 2040 – 2PndP Draft Review – Summary of Recommendations






	20220418 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 4-18-22
	Planning Board Reports
	20220418 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 4-18-22
	20220328 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 3-22-22.pdf
	20220328 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 3-22-22
	20220328 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 3-22-22
	20220328 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 3-22-22
	2040 Plan - DPZ Summary of Recommendations - 2nd Draft - 3-4-22




	20220328 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 3-22-22
	20220328 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 3-22-22
	20220328 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 3-22-22
	20220328 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 3-22-22
	Future Land Use Proposed Changes - Categories Package
	1 - ZoningMap_August2021
	2 -The Birmingham Plan 2040 - Draft 2 - Proposed Future Land Use Map - 11.06.2021
	D - Future Land Use Map 10 Changes
	A - Civic Desitinations Map
	B - Mixed Use District Fabric
	C - District Seams

	DPZ Draft 1 Review Summary Letter 4-13-21





	20220418 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 4-18-22
	20220418 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 4-18-22
	20220328 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 3-22-22
	20220328 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 3-22-22
	20220328 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 3-22-22
	20220328 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 3-22-22
	Birmingham-Master-Plan-FAQ-Second-Draft
	2040 Plan Comments - Andrew Haig





	20220418 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 4-18-22
	20220328 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 3-22-22
	20220328 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 3-22-22
	20220328 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 3-22-22
	20220328 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 3-22-22
	2040 Plan Comments - Chuck Tholen
	2040 Plan Comments - Eric Wolfe





	20220418 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 4-18-22
	Planning Board Reports
	20220418 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 4-18-22
	20220328 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 3-22-22
	20220328 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 3-22-22
	20220328 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 3-22-22
	20220328 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 3-22-22
	mcl-33-2008-III.
	PREPARATION AND ADOPTION OF MASTER PLAN Division&&&&ARTICLE&&&&III.&&&&PREPARATION AND ADOPTION OF MASTER PLAN
	125.3831 Section&&&&125.3831 &&&&Master plan; preparation by planning commission; meetings with other governmental planning commissions or agency staff; powers.
	125.3833 Section&&&&125.3833 &&&&Master plan; land use and infrastructure issues; inclusion of maps, plats, charts, and other related matter; recommendations for physical development; additional subjects; implementation of master street plan or certain elements; specifications; section subject to MCL 125.3881(1); public transportation facilities.
	125.3835 Section&&&&125.3835 &&&&Subplan; adoption.
	125.3837 Section&&&&125.3837 &&&&Metropolitan county planning commission; designation; powers.
	125.3839 Section&&&&125.3839 &&&&Master plan; adoption; procedures; notice; submittals; use of electronic mail.
	125.3841 Section&&&&125.3841 &&&&Preparation of proposed master plan; submission to legislative body for review and comment; approval required; notice; submission of comments; statements as advisory.
	125.3843 Section&&&&125.3843 &&&&Proposed master plan; public hearing; notice; approval by resolution of planning commission;  statement; submission of copy of master plan to legislative body; approval or rejection by legislative body; procedures; submission of adopted master plan to certain entities.
	125.3845 Section&&&&125.3845 &&&&Extension, addition, revision, or other amendment to master plan; adoption; procedures; review and findings.
	125.3847 Section&&&&125.3847 &&&&Part of county master plan covering incorporated area; adoption by appropriate city or village required; exception.
	125.3849 Section&&&&125.3849 &&&&City or village planning department; authority to submit proposed master plan, or proposed extension, addition, revision, or other amendment.
	125.3851 Section&&&&125.3851 &&&&Public interest and understanding; promotion.







	Planning Board Reports
	20220418 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 4-18-22
	20220418 2040 Master Plan - 2nd Draft Review FULL - 4-18-22


	Planning Board Reports
	Draft2-Review-Meeting1-November10-2021-Planning-Board-Presentation
	Birmingham-20211208-PB_Review Mtg 2
	Birmingham-Jan12-2022-Planning-Board-Presentation mtg 3
	Birmingham-Feb9-2022-Planning-Board-Presentation mtg 4
	Planning Board Reports
	1817-MasterPlan-Draft_2-Updated

	5A 20220418 Communication - Zoning Petition Request - Little San Fran
	5B Additional Communication
	Additional 2040 Communications Memo
	5B 20220418 Samuel Oh City of Birmingham MI Mail - Re_ Meeting package
	5C 20220418 public comment rcvd re rezoning of Oakland Street Gaines
	5D 20220418 City of Birmingham MI Mail - Fwd_ meeting tonight April 18




